# The 10<sup>th</sup> International Conference on **Development and Application Systems** DAS 2010

www.dasconference.ro

### **Abstracts Book**

May 27-29, 2010 Suceava - Romania

Organized by:

Stefan cel Mare University of Suceava Faculty of Electrical Engineering and Computer Science ROMANIA Published by: Faculty of Electrical Engineering and Computer Science

### **Editors:**

Adrian GRAUR Stefan Gh. PENTIUC Cristina TURCU Valentin POPA Cornel TURCU Alin Dan POTORAC Eugen COCA

### ISSN 1844-5020

*Copyright 2010. All rights reserved. No part of this book may be reproduced in any form or by any means, without written permission from the publisher.* 

Wording, contents and translations quality of the papers are entirely in the responsibility of the authors.



Editura Universității "Ștefan cel Mare" din Suceava

#### **International Steering Committee**

Nicolae Dumitru ALEXANDRU - Gh. Asachi Technical University of Iasi - ROMANIA Tudor AMBROS - Technical University of Chisinau - MOLDOVA Petru ANDREI - Florida State University - United States of America Dragan ANTIC - University of Nis - SERBIA Oleg BREKHOV - Moscow Aviation Institute - RUSSIA Luc De BACKER - Katholieke Hogeschool Sint-Lieven Gent - BELGIUM Christophe CHAILLOU - Laboratoire d'Informatique Fondamentale de Lille - FRANCE Timothy HALL - University of Limerick - IRELAND Ileana HAMBURG - Institute for Technology Gelsenkirchen - GERMANY Stefan HOLBAN - Politehnica University of Timisoara - ROMANIA Maria IOANNIDES - National Technical University of Athens - GREECE Ionel JIAN - Politehnica University of Timisoara - ROMANIA Vladimir KATIC - University of Novi Sad - SERBIA AND MONTENEGRO Eleftherios A. KAYAFAS - National Technical University of Athens - GREECE Vladimir KRAPIVIN - Moscow Institute of Radioengineering - RUSSIA Vladimir MESYURA - The State Technical University of Vinnitsa - UKRAINE Mihai MICEA - Politehnica University of Timisoara - ROMANIA John MILNER - City University London - GREAT BRITAIN Bogdan MOROSAN - Scantech Electronics Inc., Toronto - CANADA Radu MUNTEANU - Technical University of Cluj-Napoca - ROMANIA Carine NAESSENS - Katholieke Hogeschool Sint-Lieven Gent - BELGIUM Jose OLIVEIRA e SA - Instituto Politecnico do Porto - PORTUGAL Andrei PAUN - Louisiana Tech University - United States of America Nicola PITRONE - Universita degli Studi Catania - ITALIA Alexei POKROVSKII - National University of Ireland, Cork - Ireland Radu Emil PRECUP - Politehnica University of Timisoara - ROMANIA Fedor SOPRONIUK - National University of Cernauti - UKRAINE Lieven De STRYCKER - Katholieke Hogeschool Sint-Lieven Gent - BELGIUM Gavril TODEREAN - Technical University of Cluj-Napoca - ROMANIA Petre TODOS - Technical University of Chisinau - MOLDOVA Bernard TOURSEL - Universite des Sciences et Techonologies de Lille - FRANCE

#### **National Organizing Committee**

Theodor BORANGIU - Politehnica University of Bucharest Mihai CERNAT - Transilvania University of Brasov Dorel CERNOMAZU - Stefan cel Mare University of Suceava Calin CIUFUDEAN - Stefan cel Mare University of Suceava Eugen COCA - Stefan cel Mare University of Suceava Elena CURELARU - Stefan cel Mare University of Suceava Mihai DIMIAN - Stefan cel Mare University of Suceava Constantin FILOTE - Stefan cel Mare University of Suceava Adina Magda FLOREA - Politehnica University of Bucharest Adrian GRAUR - Stefan cel Mare University of Suceava Ioan Alfred LETIA - Technical University of Cluj-Napoca George MAHALU - Stefan cel Mare University of Suceava Leon MANDICI - Stefan cel Mare University of Suceava Dan MILICI - Stefan cel Mare University of Suceava Mariana MILICI - Stefan cel Mare University of Suceava Costica NITU Politehnica University of Bucharest Stefan Gheorghe PENTIUC - Stefan cel Mare University of Suceava Radu Dumitru PENTIUC - Stefan cel Mare University of Suceava Mircea PETRESCU - Politehnica University of Bucharest Cezar POPA - Stefan cel Mare University of Suceava Valentin POPA - Stefan cel Mare University of Suceava Alin Dan POTORAC - Stefan cel Mare University of Suceava Octavian PROSTEAN - Politehnica University of Timisoara Gabriela RATA - Stefan cel Mare University of Suceava Mircea STRATULAT - Politehnica University of Timisoara Virgil TIPONUT - Politehnica University of Timisoara Viorel TRIFA - Technical University of Cluj-Napoca Cornel Octavian TURCU - Stefan cel Mare University of Suceava Cristina Elena TURCU - Stefan cel Mare University of Suceava Nicolae TAPUS - Politehnica University of Bucharest Alexandru VALACHI - Gh. Asachi Technical University of Iasi Mihai VOICU - Gh. Asachi Technical University of Iasi Mihai Horia ZAHARIA - Gh. Asachi Technical University of Iasi

10<sup>th</sup> International Conference on DEVELOPMENT AND APPLICATION SYSTEMS, Suceava, Romania, May 27-29, 2010

# CONTENTS

### **KEYNOTE ADDRESSES**

Power-Electronics Issues of Modern Electric Railway Systems	
A. STEIMEL	1
New Advances and Possibilities in Active Circuit Design	
H. Hakan KUNTMAN	9

### **INVITED ADDRESSES**

Magnetization Dynamics for Nonvolatile Memory Technologies	
Leonard SPINU	19
Improved Pulses Generated By Piece-wise Parabolic Nyquist Filters	
Nicolae Dumitru ALEXANDRU	20

### SECTION A

Option to Provide the Necessary Feedback for Closed-Loop neuroStimulation Radu BAZAVAN, Rodica STRUNGARU	21
Obstacle Avoidance Fuzzy System for Mobile Robot with IR Sensors C. G. RUSU, I. T. BIROU	
Hazardous Events Monitoring System in a Hospital Radu ȚIGĂNESCUL-AMARIȚII	
Real-time Communications for Distributed Control Systems Dan PUIU, Florin MOLDOVEANU, Caius SULIMAN	24
Design and Comparison of Different Switched Reluctance Machines Topologies for Automotive Applications	25
The VSB-01 Portable System for Monitoring Environmental Conditions	
Computer Program for Studying the Operation of Gas Turbine Plants Pavel ATĂNĂSOAE, Gicu OICĂ	

Kalman Filter Based Tracking in an Video Surveillance System Caius SULIMAN, Cristina CRUCERU, Florin MOLDOVEANU	
A Fuzzy Approach Regarding the Optimization of Statistical Process Control through Shewhart Control Charts	
Alexandru-Mihnea SPIRIDONICĂ, Marius PISLARU, Romeo-Cristian CIOBANU	
Multiagent System for Robotic Vision System Dan FLOROIAN, Florin MOLDOVEANU, Mihai CERNAT	
The use of Fuzzy Modelling Regarding the Assurance of Environmental Protection Alexandru-Mihnea SPIRIDONICA, Marius PISLARU	
Experience-Based Design and Simulations of a Fuzzy Control System for Cardiovascular Variables	
Cristian BOLDIŞOR, Vasile COMNAC, Iulian ȚOPA	
A Methodology of Power Demand Prediction Corina MARTINEAC, Oana ONET, Simona ARDELEAN, Claudiu VERMEŞAN, Mihai HOPÎRTEAN, Tudor VESA	
µC/OS-II Real Time Kernel Port for Cirrus Logic EP93xx Platform	
Eugen DODIU, Adrian GRAUR, Cristina N. GAITAN, Vasile G. GAITAN, Adrian M. GAITAN	
Analytic Method for Determination of the Amplitude-Phase Transmission Errors Between Selsyns Gabriel GHIDUS, Alecsandru SIMION, Leonard LIVADARU, Sorin MIHAI	
Thunderstorms as Interactive Component of Global Ecodynamics V.F. KRAPIVIN, C. NITU, V.Yu. SOLDATOV	
Analysis and Simulation of Unbalanced Systems Virgil MAIER, Antoniu TURCU, Sorin PAVEL, Iulian BIROU	
Hybrid Electric Vehicle Experimental Model with CAN Network Real Time Control Gheorghe LIVINŢ, Vasile HORGA, Daniel STICEA, Marcel RĂŢOI, Mihai ALBU	
The Iterative Algorithm of Tuning Controllers to the Model Object with Advance and Inertia Second Order Bartolomeu IZVORFANU	39
Tuning Controllers in the Multiple-Loop Feedback Control System to the Objects with Inertia, Time Delay and Non Minimal Phase Irina COJUHARI	40
Fuzzy Model for Sustainability Assurance Related to Environmental Protection Marius PISLARU, Alexandru TRANDABAT, Cristina SCHREINER, Alexandru SPIRIDONICA	41
Mechanical-electrical Optoisolator Transducer with current-to-frequency Conversion Ioan Marcel CIURUŞ, Mihai DIMIAN, Adrian GRAUR	

A Short Survey on Applications of Rough Sets Theory in Power Engineering Ioana PISICĂ, Petru POSTOLACHE	
Middleware Based Model of Heterogeneous Systems for SCADA Distributed Applications Nicoleta-Cristina GĂITAN, Vasile Gheorghiță GĂITAN, Ștefan Gheorghe PENTIUC, Ioan UNGUREAN, Eugen DODIU	44
SECTION B	
Time of Arrival Based on Chirp Pulses as a means to Perform Localization in IEEE 802.15.4a Wireless Sensor Networks Anneleen VAN NIEUWENHUYSE, Jeroen WYFFELS, Jean-Pierre GOEMAERE, Lieven DE STRYCKER, Bart NAUWELAERS	
A New Family of CSK Signals Nicolae Dumitru ALEXANDRU	
Some Useful Properties of STBC codes for Residential Applications Angela DARIE, Mihai GHENGHEA, Ion BOGDAN	47
Spectral Analysis of Three Miller-like Codes Nicolae Dumitru ALEXANDRU	
A New Evolutionary Approach for Base Station Transmitter Placement Shahriar MAHBUB, Nusrat SHARMIN	
An Optimization of Gaussian UWB Pulses Adrian POPA	
The Iimpacts of Temperature on PMD and CD Dispersions During High Speed Optical Communications Nikola STOJANOVIĆ, Miodrag JELIĆ, Miloš SLANKAMENAC, Miloš ŽIVANOV	51
New High Performance Deterministic Interleavers for Turbo Codes Georgian Alexandru LAZAR, Nicoleta Roxana BUZATU, Elena COJOCARIU, Lucian TRIFINA, Razvan VIERU	
A Comparative Approach on WiMax and LTE Technologies Mihai-Florentin URSULEANU, Daniel SIMION, Adrian GRAUR, Alin Dan POTORAC	53
Data Communications in an HPC Hybrid Cluster and Performance Evaluation Ovidiu GHERMAN, Ioan UNGUREAN, Ștefan Gheorghe PENTIUC, Oana VULTUR	54
LTE eNodeB Demonstrator with Real and Simulated Interfaces Titus-Constantin BĂLAN, Florin SANDU, Szilard CSEREY, Virgil CAZACU	55
Simulation of LTE Signaling Florin SANDU, Szilárd CSEREY, Eugen MILE-CIOBANU	

BPEL Implementation of QoS-based Management in Multi-modal Mobile Communications, Florin SANDU, Dan Nicolae ROBU, Cosmin COSTACHE	
Eigenvalue Characterization of the Sum Capacity of Multi-User MIMO Multiple Access Channels Paul COTAE	
SECTION C	
Assigning Connection Sources in Large-Scale Circuits Multilevel Decomposition Olivian STĂNICĂ	
The Modeling of the Heating Resistors in Transient Regime Mitica Iustinian NEACA, Andreea Maria NEACA	
Electronic Devices for Determining the Working Length in Root Canal Therapy Anca POPESCU	61
A Study in Binary Relations for Logic Algebra Functions Ion COJOCARU, Andrei VASILĂŢEANU, Octavian IONEL	
Study of Binary Relations of Boolean Algebra Functions Ion COJOCARU, Octavian IONEL	
Electrical and Switching Parameters of Amorphous Chalcogenide Glassy Semiconductors Cu <sub>5</sub> (AsSe <sub>1.4</sub> I <sub>0.2</sub> ) <sub>95</sub> Miloš SLANKAMENAC, Svetlana R. LUKIĆ, Miloš ŽIVANOV	
Analysis of Coupled Oscillators through a Series RLC Network Iulia DUMITRESCU, Mihai IORDACHE, Mihaela IONITA	
Sensitivity and Tolerance Analysis in Analog Circuits Using Symbolic Methods Lucian MANDACHE, Mihai IORDACHE, Lucia DUMITRIU	
HDL Implementation from Petri Nets Description Viorica SUDACEVSCHI, Victor ABABII, Emilian GUTULEAC, Valentin NEGURA	67
Induction Motor Control with Predicted Maximum Electromagnetic Torque and Speed Nicoleta Roxana BUZATU, Dimitrie ALEXA, Georgian Alexandru LAZAR, Dan BUTNICU, Oana Loredana BUZATU	
Temperature Influence on Conversion Efficiency in the Case of Photovoltaic Cells Corina MARTINEAC, Mihai HOPÎRTEAN, Gilbert DE MEY, Vasile ȚOPA, Silviu ȘTEFĂNESCU	69
GPRS Controlled System for Monitoring and Control of Well Sites Vladimir MILOSAVLJEVIC, Milos ZIVANOV, Viktor DOGAN	

Cordless Seismic Data Acquisition System Miodrag BRKIC, Predrag TEODOROVIC, Milan LUKIC, Milos ZIVANOV	71
Borehole Orientation Sensor - Hardware Realization Viktor DOGAN, Milos ZIVANOV, Miodrag BRKIC	72
Indoor Inter-Robot Distance Measurement in Collaborative Systems Mihai V. MICEA, Andrei STANCOVICI, Dan CHICIUDEAN, Constantin FILOTE	
On Resonance Charts of Piezoelectric Ceramics of Perovskite-Type, in Microwave Range Daniela IONESCU, Iulia Brînduşa CIOBANU	74
Finite State Machine Design and VHDL Coding Techniques Iuliana CHIUCHISAN, Alin Dan POTORAC, Adrian GRAUR	
Synchronous Overmodulation Control of Cascaded Inverters for Photovoltaic Application Valentin OLESCHUK, Roman PRUDEAK, Alexandr SIZOV	
Hysteresis Modelling of Soft Magnetic Materials using LabVIEW Programs Septimiu MOTOASCA, Gheorghe SCUTARU	77
Performance Evaluations and Comparative Electromagnetic Compatibility Measurements on Compact Fluorescent Lamps Georgiana BUTA, Eugen COCA, Adrian GRAUR, Valentin POPA	
Analysis of Beamforming in Phased Antenna Arrays Octavian MANU, Mihai DIMIAN, Adrian GRAUR	
Audio Source Localization, using a Network of Embedded Devices Laurențiu FRANGU, Marius MĂZĂREL, Claudiu CHICULIȚĂ	
Modeling of Ferrite Common Mode Chokes for EMI Suppression in LTCC Technology Mirjana DAMNJANOVIĆ, Ljiljana ŽIVANOV, Miloš ŽIVANOV	
Embedded System for Start of ICE with Hybrid Battery-Super-capacitor Sources Aurel Cornel STANCA, Venetia SANDU, Iuliu SZEKELY	
Magnetic Properties of Two-Dimensional (2D) Heisenberg Lattices as Good Candidates for Spintronic Junctions Jacques CURÉLY	83

### SECTION D

A New Hybrid Genetic Algorithm for The District Heating Network Problem Mitică CRAUS, Florin LEON, Dragos AROTĂRIȚEI	. 84
Information Security Policy in the Distributed Computer Systems Vadym MUKHIN, Artem VOLOKYTA	. 85

Analysis and Determination of Risk Factors Leading to Preterm Birth Using Data Mining	
Adriana-Georgiana MALEA, Ștefan HOLBAN, Nicolae MELIȚĂ	
Embarking on the road of Intrusion Detection, with Erlang Ioan Alfred LETIA, Dan Alexandru MARIAN	
Argumentative Support for Structured HACCP Plans Ioan Alfred LETIA, Adrian GROZA	
Applied Realization of Neural Network and Neurolike Parallel-Hierarchical System Based on GPGPU Andriy YAROVYY	
An Ontological Approach to Legal Literature for Improving Legal Knowledge Dissemination Ioan Alfred LETIA, Sorina CORNOIU	
Architectural Views for Designing Relationships in Distributed Systems Anca Daniela IONITA, Jacky ESTUBLIER	91
Value Based Argumentation using Formal Concepts Ioan Alfred LETIA, Anca GORON	92
Ontology Based Modeling of Cultural Heritage Systems Dorin-Mircea POPOVICI, Crenguta-Madalina BOGDAN, Ronan QUERREC	93
Some Aspects of Data Integration in Data Mining Systems Mirela DANUBIANU, Emanuela–Alina BOLOHAN, Radu ȚIGĂNESCUL–AMARIȚII	94
Formation of Microrelief on the Base of Multilevel Elevations Maps Sergei I.VYATKIN, Oksana V. ROMANIUK	
The BRDF Models Based on the Cosine-quadratic Function Alexander ROMAHYUK, Yuri LYASHENKO	
VRDN: A Software Environment for Visual Simulation of Rewriting Generalized Timed Differential Petri Nets Models	
CORDUNENU	97
Technology Approach to Individual "Knapsack Problem" (Nanologistics) Sergey RYVKIN, Denis KRASNOVSKI	
Cryptoresistant Generator of Binary Key Sequences on the Basis of Cellular Automata Sergey OSTAPOV, Vladimir ZHIKHAREVICH, Lidiya VAL'	
ICT serves Business Training: Implementing Life-Long-Learning Timothy HALL, Ileana HAMBURG, Emma O'BRIEN, Sinead MELLETT	
New trend on OPC Middleware Simona-Anda GHERASIM, Adrian Mihai GĂITAN, Vasile Gheorghită GĂITAN, Valentin POPA	101

A Bee-inspired Approach for Selecting the Optimal Service Composition Solution Cristina Bianca POP, Viorica Rozina CHIFU, Ioan SSLOMIE, Mihaela DINSOREANU, Mihaly FODOR, Irina CONDOR	. 102
Modelling the Probability of Deadlocks in a Multithreading Process Doina LOGOFĂTU, Felix DIETRICH, Evgeni PAVLIDIS, Dennis WILFERT	. 103
System for Real Time Detection of Hands and Pedestrians Movements Gina CRĂCIUN, Ionela RUSU, Ștefan-Gheorghe PENTIUC, Radu Daniel VATAVU	. 104
The Application of Genetic Algoritm for Training "Without a Teacher" Valeriy FRATAVCHAN	. 105
HL7 Messaging Engine with Customizable Translation System Marius CERLINCĂ, Cristina TURCU, Tudor CERLINCĂ, Remus PRODAN	.106
A Distributed RFID Based System for Patients' Identification and Monitoring Tudor CERLINCĂ, Remus PRODAN, Cornel TURCU, Marius CERLINCĂ	. 107
Index of Authors	. 108

### 25 YEARS OF ELECTRICAL ENGINEERING HIGHER EDUCATION IN SUCEAVA

Timeline History	114
Academic Staff	117
Inventions Center	119
EMAD - Research Center in Electrical Machines, Apparatus and Drives	123
SiSCON - Systems and Processes Control Research Center	124
CCSC - Computer Science Research Center	125

# Power-Electronics Issues of Modern Electric Railway Systems

A. STEIMEL, Senior Member, IEEE Ruhr-University Bochum D-44780 Bochum, Germany steimel@eele.rub.de

Abstract — After de-regulation of the former state-owned railways and severe restructuring of the railway industry in the last 15 years, more innovative vehicle concepts saw the light of the day. Power electronics, already formerly being a pacemaker for progress of traction vehicles, brought forth an utmost standardization of the main drive by means of the IGBT-converter-fed induction motor drive. This is independent of the railway supply voltage system or of a diesel prime mover, for locomotives, high-speed and mass-transit trains as well as for tramways. Vehicles able to operate on all four European railway voltage systems have become feasible and are used now widely. New trends as Permanent-Magnet Synchronous Motors or Medium-Frequency Transformers are discussed, and a short overlook over actual field-oriented highperformance motor control systems - including a speedsensorless variant - is given. Power electronics dominates the field of conversion of the 16.7-Hz railway supply power, typical for Central Europe, from the 50-Hz three-phase utility grid.

*Index Terms* — railway systems, induction motor drive, IGBT-converter-fed

#### I. INTRODUCTION

During the second half of the 20th century, the railways' im-portance declined due to the rise of individual transport, in the form of the private motor car and the truck, as well as the air- plane, whose speed and versatility the railway could not apparently match. Only by the close of the century, a change of mind set in: Due to congestion of public traffic by individual transport, track-bound public mass transit becomes more and more appealing. But governmental control proved inadequate to meet the demands to the railway systems; thus, programs of decentralization and deregulation were applied to railway transit. EU Directive 91/440 intended to enable and organize the barrier-free coexistence and competition of governmental and private railway operators, splitting the formerly state-owned railways into industrially-organized, competing train operators and further-on state-owned infrastructure providers.

Ever since the beginning of the 1990s, the European railway industry had to face constant change; the restructuring of the railway organisations by deregulation and privatization led first to a decline in orders and in consequence to amalgamation. Engineering industry divisions formerly responsible for the supply of the mechanical components of traction units were integrated into the transportation divisions of the electrical large-scale industrial companies, the latter now acting as leaders of system technology. This holds most directly for ALSTOM, Siemens and the former ABB/ADtranz; Bombardier Transportation – which absorbed ADtranz and most of the remaining European carbuilders – is part of the Canadian global transportation company Bombardier, while the Swiss "newcomer" Stadler Rail is a carbuilder, who founds on inverters from ABB Industry. More innovative and – by standardization – at the same time economically competitive vehicle concepts were to be developped.

#### II. INNOVATIVE TRACTION MATERIAL

#### A. Locomotives

Since WWII, the four-axle bogie locomotive has been standard in passenger and goods service. The converter-fed induction motor drive allowed "universal" locomotives with high tractive effort at low speed, a rated power of up to 6.4 MW, running stably at maximal speeds up to 357 km/h ([1]; Fig. 1).



Figure 1. Modern high-power AC-fed bogie locomotive.



Figure 2. 1.6-MW cardan hollow-shaft drive with rubber joints, brake discs on extra high-geared shaft in front (ÖBB 1216, Siemens).

The bogies are mostly supported by Flexicoil springs; the cardan hollow-shaft drive with rubber joints is standard ([2]; Fig. 2), except for lower-power vehicles, where simpler forms as the "axle-riding" drive with the motor mounted in the bogie and an elastic coupling between motor and gear to the axle or axle-hung motors for low-speed vehicles are sufficient [1].

The line-friendly Four-Quadrant Converter (4q-C, [3]) is standard with all AC-fed traction vehicles.

#### B. High-Speed Trains

The first generation of high-speed trains (HST) as TGV in France and ICE in Germany pursued the Power Head concept (Fig. 3, top), with special asymmetric, streamlined locomotives and trailers. Due to the heavy axle-load of 18...20 to, this is not suited for speeds over 250 km/h. The distributed drive with about half or three-quarter of the axles driven with lighter motors prevails now, as in Japanese design, while the electronic equipment and the transformers are mounted underfloor (Velaro [4], AGV [5],  $v_{max} = 350$  kph; Fig. 3 bottom). Tilting [6] raises commercial speed up to 220 kph on curved secondary main-lines, where high-speed upgrading is not justified.



Figure 3. High-speed trains with power heads and as EMUs.

#### C. Mass Transit Trains

The classical EMU Metro Train is supplemented by modern design as bogieless lightweight articulated trains with self-steering axles or more conventional articulated trains with small-wheel bogies and depressed floors, to ease access from standard 750-mm platforms (Fig. 4); the power-electronic equipment (and transformer, if AC) is mounted underfloor. Modern trains allow to ambulate freely through all coaches, raising the passengers' feeling of safety and thus the acceptance in the late night hours. Self-propelled double-deck commuter EMUs which use the restricted platform lengths of existing suburban and regional railway systems best are ordered increasingly.





Figure 4. Modern Mass-Transit Trains.

#### D. Low-Floor Light Rail Vehicles (Tramways)

To compete better with individual transport, municipal operators and industry strived for raising comfort of tramways by introducing low-floor trains in the nineties of the last century [7]: In the so-called "70% trams" more or less conventional traction bogies with smaller wheels are used (Fig. 5, top). Single-wheel drives are necessary in the "100% trams", to allow free passage over the floor, which is only 200...300 mm over ground, accessible directly with one step (Fig. 5 bottom). The power electronic (and air-conditioning) equipment has to be mounted on the roofs of the trains.

Dual-system Light Rapid Transit vehicles (Tram Trains) in several German and French cities use the railways' AC

lines in an environment of some 150 km and revert to DC street-level operation when approaching the very centres of these cities.



Figure 5. "70%" and "100%" low-floor tramways.

This makes public transport more attractive, especially if the main station is far from the city centre. The main constructional difference between light rail and railway vehicles – besides a smaller vehicle gauge and a compromise wheel-tire profile – is the lesser resistance to longitudinal impacts.

#### III. RAILWAY POWER SUPPLY VOLTAGE SYSTEMS

Originating from the beginning of the  $20^{\text{th}}$  century, four major railway power supply system exist: DC 1.5 kV and 3 kV, AC 50 Hz, 25 kV and AC 16.7 Hz, 15 kV [8], Fig. 7. The DC 1.5 kV system developed from suburban lines of the big capitals. DC 3 kV was introduced in the twenties, to increase the range.

The AC systems were introduced for long-distance traffic from the beginning. Initially, the special low frequency of 16.7 Hz was necessary to enable sparkles commutation of the series-wound motor excited with AC. 50 Hz could only be established after introduction of (first) the mercury-arc and (later) the thyristor-controlled rectifier, together with "undulating-current" DC motors.

The power systems show now rather stable, we only face a superposition of DC systems by 50-Hz systems in case of high-speed, high-power lines, which the old DC systems cannot sustain (France, Spain, Netherlands, Italy).

Table 1 gives an overview of the lengths and the relative proportion of the four main-line power systems. Tramways and underground preferably use DC 600...800 V.



Figure 6. Railway main-line power-supply systems in Europe.

RAILWAY SYSTEMS (2003)			
DC 1500 V	15,320 km	6.5 %	
DC 3000 V	72,105 km	30.3 %	
AC 15 kV/16 2/3 Hz	32,390 km	13.6 %	
AC 25kV/50 (and 60) Hz	106,437 km	44.8 %	
Others	11,350 km	4.8 %	
Total	237,600 km	100.0 %	

TABLE I. NETWORK LINE LENGTHS AND PROPORTION OF ELECTRICAL

#### IV. MAIN DRIVE CONCEPTS

In former times, the power system and the main-drive concept were rather rigidly tied together [1]: AC 16.7 Hz 15 kV appeared mainly with transformer, switch-gear and series-wound, compensated commutator motors; in the seventies, thyristor-control was introduced, mainly in Austria. 50 Hz necessitated thyristor phase-control, as already mentioned, and DC motors, mainly with separate or mixed excitation. In DC grids, the original camshaft-resistor control of series-wound commutator motors was replaced by thyristor chopper control in the sixties. Multi-system vehicles capable to run on more than two systems were extremely expensive and thus seldom.

The French system of synchronous motors, fed by loadcommutated thyristor converters, as in the TGV-A [9], have shown an intermediate step to the now generally preferred drive system with squirrel-cage induction motors, fed by Voltage-Source Inverters (VSI, [10]). Fig. 6 shows the identical drive structure of DC-fed trams, diesel-electric locomotives and full-electric locomotives with the VSI-IM drive system.



Light-rail vehicle, fed directly from DC 750 V



Diesel-electric locomotive with alternator



Full-electric locomotive with two Four-Quadrant Converters

Figure 6. Schematic diagram of traction vehicles with three-phase IM drive technology.



Figure 7. DB Class 120 and Austrian (ÖBB) Class 1216.

The converters were first (from 1971 on) equipped with force-commutated thyristors, as in Class 120 of Deutsche Bahn (DB, Fig. 7, left), later by Gate-Turn-Off (GTO) thyristors [11]. Around the year 2000, the GTO was detached by the IGBT transistor, with blocking voltages of up to 6.5 kV and turn-off currents of 600 A [12], which can be turned off safely even in short-circuit condition. As they are able to operate directly from the 3 kV overhead lines (with transients up to 5 kV), they allow a very simple and robust multi-system concept, as in ÖBB (Austria) Cl. 1216 "Taurus", Fig. 6, right; Siemens ([2]).

An alternative concept uses the line-side Four-Quadrant Converter as step-up chopper in the 1.5 kV DC grid and as step-down chopper in the 3-kV grid (Swiss Cl. 484, circuit Fig. 8, [14]). This allows use of 4.5-kV IGBT with better switching characteristics and less voltage stress of the motor insulation, as the DC-link is always kept constant at 2.8 kV (Bombardier).



Figure 8. Circuit diagram of SBB Class 484 four-system locomotive.

Diesel-electric locomotive (which by far stand for the biggest part of locomotives all over the world) with AC generator and diode bridge rectifier can now be built to the same "platform" design as full-electric locomotives, with same starting effort, but about half the rated power, due to the weight of the engine. Bombardier unified the construction thus that in the same carbody with identical bogies and motors the electric "E-PowerPackage" can be replaced by a "D-PowerPackage" [14].

Fig. 9 shows a recent air-cooled 200-kW IGBT inverter for 600...750 V from the German manufacturer Vossloh-Kiepe, for tramways and trolley busses, Fig. 10 a converter TC 3200 from Bombardier, for one bogie of a high-power locomotive or a HST power-head.



Figure 9. Inverter Vossloh Kiepe DPU 409 for light-rail application.



Figure 10. Inverter Bombardier TC 3200 for high-power locomotives.

#### V. NEW TRENDS IN DRIVE CONCEPTS

#### A. On-Board Energy Storage

Energy storages are of interest for intermediate storage of the brake energy, for reduction of the peak power demand and infrastructure losses, to enable short sections without catenary in historic cities, in shops or at track works and for relieving a diesel motor at acceleration, rated for the average power only.

Flywheel storages have been tested in hybrid busses and trams, e.g. in Rotterdam. They are built of very strong carbon-fibre materials and driven by inverter-fed permanent-magnet synchronous machines (PMSM); the maximum attained speed is at 12,000 rpm, the usable energy 1.5...2 kWh.

Supercap storages, coupled with two-quadrant converters to the DC link, have been tested for several years at the municipal tramways of Mannheim [15]; now an order of 18 trains for Heidelberg is under delivery (Bombardier MITRAC Energy Saver). Nice City Light Rail is bridging wireless sections, not equipped with overhead contact line, of less than 450 m by means of a NiMH high-performance battery, since July 2007.

#### B. Permanent-Magnet Synchronous Motors

Recently new technologies for synchronous motors, like the permanently-excited type with rare-earth magnets (PMSM, [16]), fed from individual IGBT inverters, are under test. As they offer a considerably higher power-toweight ratio than induction motors, they are most promising for HSTs and low-floor suburban and tram equipment, where "each cubic centimetre counts".

#### There are two main development lines:

1) Conventional drive construction

That means standard drive construction with gears and elastic coupling, as used e.g. in the new AGV drive [5]. The drive has proven its performance when boosting the TGV V150's maximum speed to 574.8 kph on 3<sup>rd</sup> of April, 2007. A first series of 25 trains is under delivery for the Italian railway enterprise NTV. ALSTOM markets PMSM in new CITADIS low-floor tramway cars.

#### 2) Gearless drive

Due to the high power-to-weight ratio, PMSM can do away with the heavy gear-box and enable an oil-free drive chain [17]. In the SYNTEGRA drive (150-kW range for underground and trams, Fig. 5.8, [18]) the rotor is fixed to the shaft of the wheel-set. Due to the direct linking of the motors to the carbody, the load transfer is reduced much.

Efficiency of PMSM is claimed to be some 3 % higher than with IM drives, but special precautions must be taken to limit overvoltage when the inverter trips at high speed or to separate a faulty inverter from the motor, as the excitation cannot be terminated. Field weakening for minimising the stator current in the voltage-control region and for constantvoltage operation is performed by impression of demagnetising current components by the inverter; fieldoriented control (cf. section VI) can be performed without rotor-position sensors now.



Figure 11. SYNTEGRA bogie with two gearless PMSM.

#### C. Medium-Frequency Transformer

To avoid the enormous weight of the 16.7-Hz transformer, a new topology was developed using a medium-frequency (e.g. 5 kHz in the MW-power range). The 15-kV line voltage is rectified by 8 cascaded modules with 6.5-kV IGBTs connected in series, each comprising of an input H-bridge and a (resonantly operated) output half-

bridge, feeding the MF transformer primary (Fig. 12).



Figure 12. Basic topology of a energy supply system with mediumfrequency "electronic" transformer.

As the secondary converter is equipped with IGBTs, too, the converter is for both power-flow directions. A 1.5-MW prototype was built by ALSTOM and SMA in 2002 (total weight 3 to, efficiency including converters 94%) [19]. Unfortunately, the prototype was not integrated into a prototype hybrid multiple unit as intended.

Drive Control Issues

With increasing power at the wheel rim and with higher exploitation of the instantaneously changing wheel-rail contact adhesion, the original simple, quasi-stationary "Slip-Frequency-Current-Characteristic Control" [20], [1] did not suffice anymore, especially to damp drive oscillations excited by slip-stick effects at slip and slide events [1].

#### D. Rotor-field-oriented or Vector Control

In industrial drives so-called "field-oriented" control schemes had already been introduced in the early eighties. Now they were transferred to traction drives, too. The high computational power of Microprocessors ( $\mu$ P) and Digital Signal Processors (DSP) allowed much higher complexity than discrete circuitry before.

Rotor-flux-oriented control [20], [21] calculates amplitude and phase of the rotor-field vector from measured values of inverter output voltages, stator currents (and speed or rotor position) in a machine model. The measured stator currents are decomposed into two orthogonal components in reference to the rotor-field vector, "flux-determining" parallel component and the quadrature "torque-determining" component.

These components – being constant in steady-state – are compared with their reference values in standard linear PI controllers. Finally the controller outputs – the stator-voltage set values in rotor-flux coordinates – have to be transformed back to the stator-winding-fixed reference frame, in which the subsequent Pulse-Width Modulator works.

One problem is the open integration of rotor flux in the Machine Model, which forces to limit the lowest operation frequency and thus to change to the rotor-position-based so-called "Indirect Field Orientation", needing an incremental speed sensor [20], [22]. The other problem is that field orientation works optimally with sinusoidal currents, but gets worse with the strongly distorted current of high-power converters with low switching frequency.



Figure 13. Principle of Direct Rotor-Field Orientation.

#### E. Stator-flux-oriented control

Stator-flux orientation leads the tip of the stator-flux space phasor by control on a predetermined trajectory, in the case of low switching frequency (GTO converters) on a regular hexa-gon or an eighteen-corner curve (Flux Self-Control); the radius of this trajectory equals the modulus of the stator-flux space vector. The actual values are estimated in a Machine Model from measured stator currents and stator voltages, modelled from measured DC-link voltage and IGBT switching commands. The tracking speed is given by the torque controller, in case of the original Direct Self Control [23], [24], [20] by direct hysteresis control with overlaid average switching-frequency control, allowing optimal torque dynamics. This control is increasingly detached by quasi-synchronous pulsing [25], [26], with the switching points derived from reaching preset stator-flux thresholds. This is mainly due to the less critical line interference of a synchronous pulsing.

In case of high switching frequency (IGBT converters) a multi-corner polygon, nearly a circle, is chosen without detriment, meaning mainly sinusoidal currents; the stator voltages are controlled by PWM. Indirect Stator-Quantities Control (ISC, [27], [28], [20], [1]) again controls the stator-flux modulus – as the radius of the trajectory – by means of a flux modulus controller (output  $k_{\Psi}$ , Fig. 14). The tracking speed – in the sampled system the angular increment  $\Delta \chi_{\mu}$  per sampling period  $T_{\rm m}$  – results from the output of a linear torque controller, backed by a feed-forward  $\Delta \chi_{\mu {\rm Stat}}$ . The inputs of this controller are first converted to slip-frequency values, to prevent breakdown of the machine easily by limiting the set value to some 80% of rotor breakdown frequency  $\omega_{\rm rK}$ .



Figure 14. Principle of Indirect Stator-Quantities Control (ISC).

The two controller outputs  $k_{\Psi}$  and  $\Delta \chi_{\mu}$  are processed in block X into the necessary change of the stator-flux space vector in the next sampling period,  $\Delta \underline{\Psi}_{\mu}$ , which divided by the sampling period delivers the inner (magnetizing) voltage  $\underline{u}_{\mu}$ . To that the voltage drop at the stator resistance  $R_{\underline{sl}s}$  is added; the result, normalized to  $U_d$ , is the input for the Pulse-Width Modulator

In addition, but not shown here, a very effective Dynamic Field-Weakening is provided in this controller [27]. The Machine Model delivers the model stator currents, which are compared in a Luenberger Observer with the measured values, to compensate parameter and inverter voltage errors [28]. This control is highly dynamic, especially in the fieldweakening region, and very robust against input voltage disturbances.

This control has been taken as basis for a speed-sensorless control, doing away with sensitive and damage-prone sensors in the bogie-mounted motors. To that purpose, the mentioned errors are compensated diligently in a feed-forward manner; thus the Luenberger Observer is not needed anymore, and the comparison of measured ( $\underline{i}_{sw}$ ) and modelled ( $\underline{i}_s$ ) stator-current space vectors is used to estimate two other parameters, that is speed and stator resistance [28]. A stator-current DC-component observer suppresses of "unwanted" (parasitic) DC components in stator flux and current, allowing operation with very low frequencies ( $\approx 1\%$   $f_{rated}$ ). A special flux-amplitude management enables speed estimation even at stator frequency zero and thus stopping a train running slowly down and accelerate in the opposite direction, without any speed sensor signal.

[29], [30] report on the successful implementation of a speed-sensorless system, based on the described one, in the new SITRAC Siemens traction control, which has been intensively tested in different light-rail and Metro applications all over the world and is now the standard solution for Siemens Underground and Metro trains.



Figure 15. Overall block structure of speed-sensorless ISC.

#### VI. RAILWAY POWER-SUPPLY SYSTEMS ISSUES

An overview over the existing four main-line electric power supply systems has been given in section III. This section discusses the influence of power electronics in this field.

#### A. DC supply system.

DC supply systems are generally fed by diode rectifiers in 6- or 12-pulse connection. In mass transport systems, own

three-phase medium-voltage (MV) busbars are employed for equalizing peak loads, before connecting to the public mains. Thyristor-equipped rectifiers, feeding back brake power, are in use only with mountain railways. Instead, there is an increasing use of energy storages as rotary storages or Supercaps in substations, to recover brake energy and/or support the supply voltage.

#### B. AC 50-Hz supply systems

Very few power-electronic components are in use in 50-Hz systems. Commonly, separate feeding sections are connected to subsequent phases of the three-phase MV grid, to reduce the imbalance of load. The protective insulations have to be crossed with opened main switch. Inverters for reactive power compensation are used only in special situations (Channel Tunnel, Tokyo-Osaka).

#### C. AC 16.7-Hz supply systems

Totally different is the situation in the Central European 16.7-Hz grids, which are owned by the infrastructure operators. The catenary is coupled through longitudinally and from track to track, yielding a very high quality of service and enabling a high degree of regeneration of brake power, made possible by the generally employed 4q-C line converters.

Static converters are used more and more, to replace old single-phase power stations and rotary converters, feeding into the interconnected 110-kV transport grid (132 kV in Switzerland). The incentive is similar as with the drives, but here the point is that no supplier is willing to construct new single-phase 16.7-Hz generators anymore, as the market is too small.

The standard solution are single-phase bridge inverters with IGCT (ABB inverter [31]) or press-pack IGBT (Converteam inverters [32]) in three-level NPC technology. Today, the same inverter modules are used in the threephase 50-Hz side converter, too (Fig. 16).



Figure 16. Main circuit diagram of 15-MW standard railway supply converter, using IGCT elements (ABB Switzerland AG).

The output voltages of the 16.7-Hz single-phase inverters are switched synchronously in 3-fold mode, with staggered angles for each inverter; all four are added by two doublestage transformers, with integrated filter tertiary winding. Fig. 17 shows the output voltages of the two bridge branches A and B, and the resultant bridge voltage  $u^2 = uA - uB$ , with five levels and six angles per 90°, together with the load current i2.



Figure 17. Voltage waveforms of three-level single-phase inverter.

In Datteln, West Germany, at the site of the new E-On 1100-MW hard-coal fired power plant world's largest railway-power supply converter station will be built by ABB. After completion and commissioning in 2011 it will convert up to 413 MW 50-Hz three-phase power into 16.7 Hz. The converter station consists of four converter blocks, which ensure n-1 redundancy due to their overload capability, to absorb a failure of one block and to provide maintenance under full-load [33].

An alternative design is the Modular Multilevel Converter (M<sup>2</sup>LC). Fig. 18 shows a schematic diagram of a railwayintertie converter [34]. Two chains of each n two-quadrant chopper modules (shown at bottom-right) are connected in series per pole, the storage capacitors C of which are not fed from exterior voltage supplies, but float more or less freely and have to be equalized by control. There is no common high-voltage dc-link capacitor, the transformers are more or less standard.



Figure 18. Modular Multilevel Converter three-phase to single-phase.

The output voltage waveform is (2n+1)-stepped. As the power conversion is performed in single-phase mode, separately for each pole, the capacitors have to take up the single-phase power pulsation, which leads to a considerable voltage ripple, mainly with 16.7 Hz, but resonant circuits are not necessary.

Fig. 19 shows for an example of n = 8 the quantities of the three-phase side. The storage-capacitor voltage variation can be seen clearly in the tops of the module input voltage.



**Figure 19.** Line voltage  $u_1$  and line current  $i_1$ , module voltage  $u_{a11}$  and arm current  $i_{a1}$ , arm voltage  $u_{a1}$  of a M<sup>2</sup>LC. n = 8,  $f_{zmodule} = 600$  Hz.  $u_1$  and  $u_{a1}$ normalized to  $U_{\text{PN,rated}}$ ;  $u_{a11}$  to  $U_{\text{PN}}/n$ , currents to  $\hat{i}_{1,\text{rated}}$ .

Five plants for the Swedish and two for the German infrastructure company are under contract with Siemens.

#### D. Instability effects in railway grids with power-electronic traction vehicles

Besides the well-known resonances of the railway line voltage, excited by the harmonics of the switching frequency [1], but now enforced by the increased cabling of line feeders in the Alps tunnels and agglomeration areas, new phenomena of instability appear with the massive propagation of power- electronic traction vehicles.



Fig. 1: Low frequency power oscillation measured on Re 450 locomotive at Bonstetten-Wettswil station on 23rd of September 2004. reference value for traction effort of bogie 1

- F<sub>ref</sub> U<sub>DC</sub> DC link voltage
- line power
- SI Uld line voltage amplitude (d-component)
- line voltage phase (q-component) alues related to vehicle transformer primary side

Figure 20. Low-frequency (2.5 Hz) power oscillations in Switzerland.

In 2007, in Zurich severe grid-power oscillations with very low frequency were observed, where many converter locomotives and only few classic notch-controlled vehicles were in service. In trials these oscillation - which let to the repeated shutdown of the locomotives - were traced back to limit-cycle oscillation between line inductance and dc-link filter capacitor.

Fig. 21 (from [35]) shows a swelling oscillation of line voltage (graph 4) and dc-link voltage (graph 2), which – by dc-link under-voltage at t = 4.3 s and 9.2 s - led to the shutoff of the tractive effort (graph 1). A longer line length or a greater number of vehicles can be exchanged against each others.

In further investigations [36] the decisive influence of the integral gain of the dc-link voltage controller was identified; an advanced multivariable control allows to increase the proportional gain, so that any integral gain can be dispensed with.

#### VII. CONCLUSION

The intense competition after deregulation of railways and the new formation of railway industry led to many innovative designs of electric traction vehicles, attractive for the customer and economic to operate, mainly enabled by high-performance induction machines fed by IGBT converters and the high degree of modularity it offers for a broad variety of traction vehicles. Field-oriented control, mainly that in the stator-flux-oriented variant, allows to exploit the increased tractive power stably, at uncertain wheel-rail contact and with vibratory drive chains. Powerelectronic converters dominate now the power supply in the Central European 16.7-Hz interconnected grid.

#### VIII. ABBREVIATIONS

- AGV Automotrice a Grande Vitesse (High-Speed Railcar)
- EMU Electric Multiple Unit
- HST High-Speed Train
- ICE Inter-City Express
- IGBT Insulated Gate Bipolar Transistor
- IGCT Integrated Gate-Commutated Thyristor
- IM Induction Motor
- NPC Neutral-Point Clamped
- PMSM Permanent-Magnet Synchronous Machine
- SMA SMA Technologie AG, D-34266 Kassel
- TGV Train a Grande Vitesse (High-Speed Train-set)
- VSI Voltage-Source Inverter

#### REFERENCES

- [1] Steimel, A.: Electric Traction: Motion Power and Energy Supply Oldenbourg-Verlag München, 2008
- [2] Schurig, J.: Die Mehrsystem-Lokomotive ES 64 U4 (ÖBB-Reihe 1216). Eisenbahn-Revue 5/2005, pp. 220228, 6/2005, pp. 268274 and 7/2005, pp. 333335.
- [3] Kehrmann, H.; Lienau, W.; Nill, R.: Vierquadrantensteller eine netzfreundliche Einspeisung für Triebfahrzeuge mit Drehstromantrieb.

Elektrische Bahnen 45 (1974), Nr. 6, pp. 135-142

- [4] Möller, D.; Schlegel, C.: Velaro Further Development of the ICE for Worldwide Use. Elektrische Bahnen 104 (2006), Nr. 5, pp. 258263.
- [5] : Alstom präsentiert den Hochgeschwindigkeits-Triebwagenzug AGV.

Eisenbahn-Revue 3/2008, S. 117124

- [6] Kurz, H.; Weschta, A. (editors): ICE T, BR 411, 415 und 605. Hestra-Verlag Darmstadt, 2000
- [7] : Fünf Jahre ÖPNV-Niederflur-Schienenfahrzeuge. Stadtverkehr Fachzeitschrift für den öffentlichen Personen-Nahverkehr, spezial 1993. EK-Verlag Freiburg, 1993.
- [8] H. Gladigau, A.: Historische Entwicklung und Stand der Bahnstromsysteme. Elektrische Bahnen 85 (1987), Nr. 12, pp. 383–390
- [9] Coget, G.: The new generation of SNCF high-speed rolling stock: The TGV-Atlantique train. Rail Engineering Intern. 1986, Nr 3, pp. 15–18
- [10] 120 Elektrische Lokomotive in Drehstromtechnik der Deutschen Bundesbahn. Special print of journal "Elektrische Bahnen".
   R. Oldenbourg Verlag GmbH, Munich, 1984.
- [11] Lienau, W.; Runge, W.: Development Trends of High Power Traction Converters. 4th Europ. Conf. on Power Electronics, Florence 1991
- [12] Bakran, M. M.; Eckel, H.-G.: Traction Converter with 6.5kV IGBT modules. 9th Europ. Conf. on Power Electronics, Graz 2001.

- [13] Gerster, C.; Skarpetowski, G.; Sommer, H.; Still, L.: Advanced multisystem traction chain for locomotives and power heads. 10th Conf. on Power Electronic and Motion Control (EPE-PEMC), Riga 2004
- [14] Buscher, M.; Köck, F.; Trotsch, P.; Bikle, U.: TRAXX: Integrale Plattform zur Steigerung der Wettbewerbsfähigkeit des Schienenverkehrs. ETR – Eisenbahntechnische Rundschau 9/2006
- [15] Steiner, M., Scholten, J.: Energy Storage onboard of railway vehicles, 11th Europ. Conf. on Power Electronics, Dresden 2005
- [16] Binder, A.; Greubel, K.; Piepenbreier, B.; Tölle, H.-J.: Permanent-Magnet Synchronous Drive with Wide Field-Weakening Range. ETEP Vol. 8 (1998), No. 3, S. 157–166
- [17] Jöckel, A.: Getriebelose Drehstromantriebe für Schienenfahrzeuge. Elektrische Bahnen 101 (2003), H. 3, S. 113–119
- [18] Jöckel, A.; Löwenstein, L.; Teichmann, M.; Hoffmann, Th.; v. Wangelin, F.: Syntegra – Innovativer Prototyp einer nächsten Triebfahrwerk-Generation. Elektrische Bahnen 104 (2006), Nr. 8/9, pp. 360–369
- [19] Engel, B.; Victor, M.; Bachmann, G.; Falk, A.: 15 kV/16.7 Hz Energy Supply System with Medium Frequency Transformer and 6.5 kV IGBTs in Resonant Operation. 10th Europ. Conf. on Power Electronics (EPE), Toulouse 2003
- [20] Steimel, A.: Control of the induction machine in traction. Elektrische Bahnen 96 (1998), Nr. 12, pp. 361–369
- [21] Blaschke, F.: The principle of field orientation as applied to the new TRANSVECTOR closed-loop control system for rotating machines. Siemens Review (1972), S. 217–226
- [22] Gedeon, G.; Klausecker, K.; Lang, W.: Mikrocomputer-Ansteuerung für ICE. Elektrische Bahnen 86 (1988), Nr. 7, pp. 229–235
- [23] Depenbrock, M.: Direct Self-Control (DSC) of Inverter-Fed Induction Machine. IEEE Trans. on Power Electronics, vol. 4, pp. 420–429, 1988
- [24] Jänecke, M.; Kremer, R.; Steuerwald, G.: Direct Self Control (DSC), A Novel Method Of Controlling Asynchronous Machines in Traction Applications. Elektrische Bahnen 88 (1990), No. 3, pp. 81–87
- [25] Wörner, K.; Steimel, A.; Hoffmann, F.: Highly Dynamic Stator Flux Track Length Control for High Power IGBT Inverter Traction Drives. 8th Europ. Conf. on Power Electronics and Applications (EPE), Lausanne 1999.
- [26] Steimel, A.: Direct Self Control and Synchronous Pulse Techniques for High-Power Traction Inverters in Comparison. IEEE Transactions on Industrial Electronics, Vol. 51 (2004), No. 4, pp. 810-820
- [27] Jänecke, M.; Hoffmann, F.: Fast Torque Control of an IGBT-Inverter-Fed Three-Phase A.C. Drive in the Whole Speed Range – Experimental Results. 6th Europ. Conf. on Power Electronics, Sevilla 1995, Vol. 3, pp. 399–404
- [28] Depenbrock, M.; Foerth, Ch.; Hoffmann, F.; Koch, S.; Steimel, A.; Weidauer, M.: Speed-sensorless stator-flux-oriented control of induction motor drives in traction. Communications – Scientific Letters of the University of Zilina 2–3/2001, pp. 68–75
- [29] Amler, G.; Sperr, F.; Hoffmann, F.: Highly dynamic and speed sensorless control of traction drives. 10th Europ. Conf. on Power Electronics (EPE), Toulouse 2003
- [30] Weidauer, M.; Foerth, C.; Robust speed-sensorless control of induction motors in traction applications (in German). Intern. ETG-Congress, Karlsruhe 2007; ETG-Fachbericht 107, pp. 431-440
- [31] Thoma, M.; Jampen, U.: Statische Frequenzumrichteranlage Wimmis (Schweiz). Elektrische Bahnen 104 (2006), H. 12, S. 576-583
- [32] Dicks, H.; Janning, J.: Standardumrichter Typ BAUM für DB Energie. Elektrische Bahnen 98 (2000), H. 10, S. 364–373
- [33] Wrede, H.; Umbricht, U.: Development of a 413 MW railway power supply converter. 35th Ann. Conf. of IEEE Industrial Electronics Society (IECON '09), Porto 09
- [34] Lesnicar, A.; Marquardt, R.: A new modular voltage source inverter topology. 10th European Power Electronic Conf. (EPE), Toulouse 2003
- [35] Menth, St.; Meyer, M.: Low-frequency power oscillations in electric railway systems. Elektrische Bahnen 104 (2006), H. 5, S. 216221
- [36] Heising, C., Oettmeier, M., Danielsen, St., Staudt, V. and Steimel, A.: Improvement of low-frequency railway power system stability using an advanced multivariable control concept. 35th Ann. Conf. of the IEEE Industrial Electronics Society (IECON'09), Porto 2009, pp. 565–570

### New Advances and Possibilities in Active Circuit Design

#### H. Hakan KUNTMAN

Istanbul Technical University, Faculty of Electrical and Electronics Engineering, 34469, Maslak, Istanbul, TURKEY kuntman@itu.edu.tr

Abstract —Operational amplifiers are important building blocks for analog circuit design. Unfortunately, their limited performance such as bandwidth, slew-rate etc. leads the analog designer to search other possibilites and other building blocks. As a result, new current-mode active building blocks such as operational transconductance amplifiers (OTA), second generation current conveyors (CCII), current-feedback opamps (CFOA), four terminal floating nullors (FTFN), differential voltage current conveyor (DVCC), differential difference current conveyor (DDCC), third-generation currentconveyor (CCIII), dual X current conveyors (DXCCII), current controlled current conveyors (CCCII) etc. received considerable attention due to their larger dynamic range and wider bandwidth. Employing these new active elements for analog design and using CMOS technology for implementation the circuit designers obtained new possibilites to solve their problems. This work covers new advances and possibilities in the related research area including application on communication, measurement and RF systems.

*Index Terms* — Analog integrated circuits, Analog processing circuits, Circuit simulation, Circuit synthesis, CMOS analog integrated circuits

#### I. INTRODUCTION

Digital signal processing is becoming increasingly more powerful while advances in IC technology provides compact efficient implementation of these algorithms in silicon. Although many types of signal processing have indeed moved to digital domain, analog circuits are fundementally necessary in many of today's complex, high performance systems. This is caused by the reality that naturally occuring signals are analog. Therefore analog circuits act as a bridge between the real world and digital systems [1-4].

At the beginning, operational amplifiers were the unavoided building blocks for analog circuit design. Unfortunately, their limited performance such as bandwidth, slew-rate etc. leads the analog designer to search other possibilites and other building blocks. As a result, new current-mode active building blocks such as operational transconductance amplifiers (OTA), second generation current conveyors (CCII), current-feedback op-amps (CFOA), four terminal floating nullors (FTFN), differential voltage current conveyor (DVCC), differential difference current conveyor (DDCC), third-generation currentconveyor (CCIII), dual X current conveyors (DXCCII), current controlled current conveyors (CCCII) etc. received considerable attention due to their larger dynamic range and wider bandwidth. Employing these new active elements for analog design and using CMOS technology for

implementation the circuit designers obtained new possibilities to solve their problems[5-56]. This work covers new advances and possibilities in the related research area including application on communication, measurement and RF systems.

### II. OTHER TYPE ACTIVE ELEMENTS FOR ANALOG IC DESIGN

Basic amplifier types suitable for analog IC design are shown in TABLE I. Other type active elements are given with their symbols and definition equations in TABLE II.

TABLE I. BASIC ACTIVE ELEMENTS					
Class	Gain Function	Operational Property	Name		
V-V	$Vo = Av.(V_1 - V_2)$	Av→∞	Operational Amplifier		
V-I	$Io = Gm.(V_1 - V_2)$	-	Operational Trans- conductance Amplifier		
I-I	$Io = Ai.(I_1 - I_2)$	Ai→∞	Current Operational Amplifier		
I-V	$Vo = Rm.(I_1 - I_2)$	-	Operational Trans- resistance Amplifier		

#### **III. CURRENT-MODE OPERATION**

Current mode circuits have received considerable attention due to their potential advantages, such as their inherently wide bandwidth, higher slew-rate, greater linearity, wider dynamic range, simple circuitry and low power consumption [57]. The active devices that have been used to realise current-mode circuits include current conveyors (CCIIs), current feedback op-amps (CFOAs), operational transconductance amplifiers (OTAs) and four-terminal floating nullors (FTFNs).

### IV. OTA: OPERATIONAL TRANSCONDUCTANCE AMPLIFIER

OTA-C structures have attracted considerable attention in recent years because they offer several advantages over conventional op-amp based circuits as well as providing the evaluation of fully integrated circuits in VLSI design with CMOS technology. It is well-known that OTAs provide highly linear electronic tunability of their transconductance (gin) and require just a few or even no resistors for their

Name	Symbol	Definition Equations	
CC Current Conveyor	$\int_{C_{\frac{1}{2}}}^{V_{\frac{1}{2}}} \frac{1}{2} \mathbf{CCII} + z$	$i_{y} = a \cdot i_{x}$ $V_{x} = V_{y}$ $i_{z} = \pm i_{x}$	
DOCCII Dual Output Current Conveyor Second Generation	$v_{y} \stackrel{i_{y}}{\longrightarrow} y \qquad z_{1} \qquad z_{2} \qquad z_{2} \qquad z_{1} \qquad z_{2} $	$\begin{bmatrix} v_x \\ i_y \\ i_{z1} \\ i_{z2} \end{bmatrix} = \begin{bmatrix} 0 & 1 & 0 & 0 \\ 0 & 0 & 0 & 0 \\ 1 & 0 & 0 & 0 \\ \pm 1 & 0 & 0 & 0 \end{bmatrix} \begin{bmatrix} i_x \\ v_y \\ v_{z1} \\ v_{z2} \end{bmatrix}$	
CCCII Current Controlled Current Conveyor	$V_{y} \xrightarrow{I_{y}} Y$ $V_{x} \xrightarrow{I_{x}} X$ $V_{z} \xrightarrow{I_{x}} X$ $V_{z} \xrightarrow{I_{z}} V_{z}$	$\begin{bmatrix} I_y \\ V_x \\ I_z \end{bmatrix} = \begin{bmatrix} 0 & 0 & 0 \\ 1 & R_x & 0 \\ 0 & \pm 1 & 0 \end{bmatrix} \begin{bmatrix} V_y \\ I_x \\ V_z \end{bmatrix},  R_x = \frac{V_T}{2I_o}$	
DVCCII Differential Voltage Current Conveyor	$\begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	$\begin{bmatrix} V_X \\ I_{Y1} \\ I_{Y2} \\ I_{Z1} \\ I_{Z2} \end{bmatrix} = \begin{bmatrix} 0 & 1 & -1 & 0 & 0 \\ 0 & 0 & 0 & 0 & 0 \\ 0 & 0 & 0$	
FTFN Four Terminal Nullor	$x \xrightarrow{l_1} \qquad k_2 \xrightarrow{w} y$	$I_1 = I_2 = 0$ $I_{o1} = I_{o2}$ $V_x = V_y$	
CDBA Current differencing Buffered amplifier	$v_{p} \xrightarrow{i_{p}} p \qquad w \qquad v_{p} \xrightarrow{i_{p}} v_{w} \qquad v_{p} \xrightarrow{i_{p}} v_{z} \qquad v_{n} \xrightarrow{i_{n}} 1 \qquad f_{z} = i_{p} - i_{n}$	$\begin{bmatrix} i_z \\ v_w \\ v_p \\ v_n \end{bmatrix} = \begin{bmatrix} 0 & 0 & 1 & -1 \\ 1 & 0 & 0 & 0 \\ 0 & 0 & 0 & 0 \\ 0 & 0 & 0$	
CDTA	Fig. 1. a) Circuit symbol of CDBA. b) Equivalent circuit of CDBA.	<i>W W</i> 0	
Current differencing Transconductance amplifier	$\begin{array}{c} Vp \circ & & p \\ Vn \circ & & n \\ Vn \circ & & n \\ \end{array} \xrightarrow{p} CDTA \\ r \\ z \\ r \\ r \\ vr \\ vr \\ vr \\ vr \\ v$	$V_{p} = V_{n} = 0$ $I_{z} = \alpha_{p}I_{p} - \alpha_{n}I_{n}$ $I_{x+} = gV_{z}$ $I_{x-} = -gV_{z}$	
DXCCII dual X second generation current conveyors	$\begin{array}{c} V_{Y} & \overbrace{I_{Y}}^{I_{Y}} & \begin{array}{c} Y & \mathbf{DXCCII} & Z_{2} \\ & X_{2} & X_{n} & Z_{n} \\ & & I_{X_{p}} & & I_{X_{n}} \\ & & & & I_{X_{n}} \\ & & & & & V_{X_{n}} \end{array} \end{array}$	$V_{Xp} = \beta_1 V_Y,  V_{Xn} = -\beta_2 V_Y,  I_Y = 0,$ $I_{Zn} = \alpha_n I_{Xn},  I_{Zp} = \alpha_p I_{Xp},$	
CFOA Current feedback operational amplifier	$v_{y} \circ i_{y}$ $v_{y} \circ i_{y}$ $v_{z} \circ i_{z}$ $v_{z} \circ i_{z}$ $v_{z} \circ v_{o}$	$\begin{bmatrix} i_y \\ v_x \\ i_z \\ v_o \end{bmatrix} = \begin{bmatrix} 0 & 0 & 0 \\ 1 & 0 & 0 \\ 0 & 1 & 0 \\ 0 & 0 & 1 \end{bmatrix} \begin{bmatrix} v_y \\ i_x \\ v_z \end{bmatrix}$	

TADIEII	OTHER DODIE AD ACTIVE FLEM	TENTS
LADLE IL		IE/N LO

internal circuitry and have more reliable high frequency performance because of the current mode operation which has been established as art important topic in analogue signal processing owing to ils advantage over the voltage mode, particularly for higher frequency of operation. Because of these features, the OTAs are increasingly replacing operational amplifiers and in the past few years, a number of OTA-C based filters and oscillators have been reported [5,7,9,12,50,53].

The rapid increasing use of battery-operated portable equipment in application areas such as telecommunications and medical electronics imposes the use of low-power and small-sized circuits realized with VLSI (very large scale integrated) technologies. CMOS (complementary metal– oxide semiconductor) circuits operating in the subthrehold (weak inversion) region introduce a versatile solution for the realization of low-power VLSI building blocks [12]. Circuits needed for processing of biological signals are a typical and good example of low-power and small-sized building blocks. The main features of biological signals are their low amplitude and low frequency range.

The human electroencephalogram (EEG), which provides a rich picture of the electrical activities of the brain, is one of the most important biological signals [58]. The voltage amplitudes of EEG signals range from about 1-100 mVpeak-to-peak at low frequencies (0.5–100 Hz) at the cranial surface.

It is possible to realize low-frequency OTA-C active filters with small capacitance values of the order of 25–400 pF. The circuit technique described is applied to the  $\alpha$  (8–12 Hz),  $\beta$  (13–40 Hz),  $\theta$  (4–8 Hz) and  $\delta$  (1–4 Hz) band filters for EEG signals. Because of small capacitance values the filter circuit is suitable for realization on a single VLSI chip using the CMOS technology, and enables the user to implement the circuit on implantable biotelemetric applications.



Figure 1. Fourth order OTA-C based EEG filter, frequency responses, capacitance values, biasing currents and OTA transconductance [12].



Figure 2. High-performance CMOS OTA realization [14].

The filter chip is fabricated in Turkish Scientific and Technological Council (TUBITAK) YITAL laboratory. Realized filter topology, filter frequency responses, capacitance values, biasing currents and OTA transconductances are shown in Fig.1.

A high performance CMOS dual output OTA realization providing high output impedance values is given in Fig.2.

#### V. FTFN: FOUR TERMINAL FLOATING NULLOR

It was demonstrated recently that the FTFN is a more general and flexible building block compared to the active elements mentioned above. This has led to a growing interest in the design of amplifiers, gyrators, inductance simulators, oscillators and current mode filters which use FTFN as the active element [16, 19-21, 24, 59–63, 81]. It is more suitable to exploit FTFN as an active element in current-mode circuit design since it has been shown that an FTFN is the most flexible and versatile building block in active network synthesis [16, 32, 38]. Examples of CMOS FTFN realization are shown in Fig.3. It is also possible to realize FTFN based nonlinear circuits to replace opamp-

based nonlinear structures. A good example from chaotic communication is the following inductorless realization of Chua's circuit using a FTFN- based nonlinear resistor and a FTFN- based inductance simulator illustrated in Fig.4 [32,38].



Figure 3. Examples of CMOS FTFN realization [16,32,38,81].



Figure 4. FTFN based realization of Chua's circuit. FTFN realization of nonlinear resistor and inductor, simulation result [38].

The CMOS implementation of Chua's circuit using FTFN based circuit topologies for inductance simulator and Chua's diode provides new possibilities to the designer for the integrated circuit realization of chaotic communication systems.

#### VI. OTRA: OPERATIONAL TRANSRESISTANCE AMPLIFIER

The growing demand for mobile communications has led to high level of chip integration and directed research towards the field of high frequency applications. In the new designed circuit topologies for high frequencies, currentmode approach is preferred rather than the traditional voltage-mode structures. OTRA (Operational Transresistance Amplifer), which is commercially available under the name of Norton amplifier has been attracted attention by its advantages in the current-mode circuit design [35,44,64]. Low input and output impedances, a bandwidth independent of the device gain can be considered the main advantageous properties of the OTRA. These commercial realizations don't provide a true virtual ground at the input terminals and they allow the input current to flow in one direction only. In order to remove these disadvantages of the OTRA, some topologies are proposed in the literature [3-8]. But these solutions are both complex structures and do not operate properly at low power supplies like 1.2V if they are realized with sub-micron technologies.

A CMOS realization example of the OTRA is illustrated in Fig. 5.

In todays technology, circuits which use power supplies as 1V, and fabricated in the CMOS 0.09  $\mu$ m technology can be designed and the process improvement works on the CMOS 65 nm technology with a power supply of 0.9V are still going on. Also CMOS 45 nm technology is available with a power supply of 0.6V.

So for the future design concept the main interest is designing circuitries with low power supplies. This demand

leads designing a high performance CMOS differential OTRA for the current-mode analog systems design. For these reasons, using the STMicroelectronics CMOS 0.13  $\mu$ m technology, a differential OTRA is designed for 1.2V power supply. This new CMOS differential OTRA topology is characterized by the CADENCE simulation tool and the characteristic results showing its high performance are given. A filter design example is given in Fig.6.



Figure 5. A CMOS implementation of the OTRA [36].



Figure 6. The band pass and low pass filters with OTRA and their frequency responses.

Low pass and band pass filters with single CMOS differential OTRA structures are tested with simulations to verify the theoretical results.

#### VII. CFOA: CURRENT-FEEDBACK AMPLIFIER

The conventional operational amplifiers were successfully used over the years for the design of analogue signal processing circuits. The maximum operation frequency of operational amplifier based circuits is determined primarily by the limited gain-bandwidth product and by the slew-rate of the operational amplifier. Since their introduction in 1985 the popularity of current feedback amplifiers has increased considerably as they were found to be able to overcome the limitations arising from conventional operational amplifiers [65–67]. A current feedback amplifier is equivalent to a plus-type second-generation current conveyor with a voltage buffer, as illustrated in Fig.7. The term current-feedback is used because the error signal entering at the feedback node of the op-amp is in the form of a current and this gives to the amplifier a constant closed loop bandwidth capability [68]. Ideally, the bandwidth of the current-feedback op-amp is independent of the closed loop gain. Therefore the closed loop gain-bandwidth product increases linearly with the closed loop gain. This is a major advantage over the voltagefeedback op-amp architecture, which exhibits a constant GBW [69].



Figure 7. Realization of CFOA employing CCII+ and a voltage buffer.

Since the current feedback operational amplifier (CFOA) has a larger bandwidth and a higher slew-rate than the conventional operational amplifier, analogue signal processing circuits built around the CFOA are expected to operate at higher frequencies than the op-amp based circuits [68].

The current feedback amplifiers are gaining popularity as alternative building blocks for analogue signal processing because of offering the following advantages over the conventional opamps:

(i) wide bandwidth which is relatively independent of the closed-loop gain

(ii) very high slew-rate

(iii) simplicity of realization of various functions with the least possible number of external passive

components.

Consequently, there is a growing interest employing CFOAs for the realization of active filters, immittance simulators, single frequency as well as single element controlled variable frequency sinusoidal oscillators and single/multiphase oscillators using CFOA pole.

Recently, several current conveyor based and CFOA based [33,70–72] oscillators are proposed in the literature. The CFOA based topologies offer the following advantage comparing to the current conveyor based circuits. As mentioned above the CFOA has an additional low impedance terminal, which buffers the z terminal of the current conveyor with a unity-gain, thus CFOA based oscillators exhibit low impedance voltage-mode output. CFOA based oscillator circuits are illustrated in Fig.8.



Figure 8. CFOA based oscillator circuits [33].

#### VIII. CURRENT CONVEYOR AND ITS DERIVATIVES, CCII, DO-CCII, DVCCII, CCCII, DXCCII

*CCII, DO-CCII:* The current conveyor is a versatile active element where the current is conveyed between ports at different impedance levels. As an active element it offers several advantages, such as greater linearity and wider bandwidth over the voltage mode counterparts, op-amps [73,74]. Current conveyors find application covering a broad area ranging from filter, oscillator and immittance simulator design to integrators and differentiators. there is growing interest in designing current-mode current conveyor (CC)-based active filters. A current-mode filter theoretically should exhibit high output impedance to enable easy cascadability and to enable additional filter responses by simply connecting the outputs. A current-mode second-order general filter topology employing dual output current conveyors is given in Fig. 9 [28].



Figure 9. current-mode second-order general filter topology employing dual output current conveyors [28].

*CCCII:* By using the second generation current controlled conveyor (CCCII) introduced by Fabre *et al.* in 1995 [75], current conveyor applications can be extended to the domain of electronically adjustable functions. Electronic adjustability of the CCCII is attributed to the dependence of the parasitic resistance at port x on the bias current of the current conveyor. Therefore in the recent past, there has been great emphasis on the design of current-mode circuits using current controlled conveyors. A BP filter example and its frequency response are given in Fig.10 [23].



Figure 10. CCCII based filter and its frequency response [23].



Figure 11. Tuning range of CCCII based filter [23]

*DVCC:* The differential voltage current conveyor DVCC was proposed first by Pal as a modified current conveyor [76] and then developed and realized in CMOS technology by Elwan and Soliman [77]. The DVCC has the advantages of both of the second generation current conveyor (CCII) (such as large signal bandwidth, great linearity, wide dynamic range) and the differential difference amplifier (DDA) (such as high input impedance and arithmetic operation capability) [77]. This element is a versatile building block for applications demanding floating inputs. A CMOS realization of the DVCC, filter design example and the filter response are shown in Fig.12 [40].



Figure 12. TCMOS realization of DVCC, DVCC based filter topology, frequency response [40].

*DXCC:* The dual X current conveyor DXCCII is conceptually a combination of the regular CCII and the inverting current conveyor (ICCII)[78]. It has two X terminals, namely Xp (non-inverting X terminal) and Xn(inverting X terminal). The Xp and Xn terminal currents are reflected to the respective Z terminals, namely Zp and Zn. It is worth emphasizing that, for this device, there is no direct relation between the Zp and Zn terminal currents. CMOS implementation examples of DXCC are illustrated in Fig.13 [47].



Figure 13. CMOS implementation examples for DXCC [47]

Figure 14 reflects an realization example of FDNR, frequency dependent negative resistor employing DXCC and an application example of ladder-filter constructed with DXCC based FDNRs [47].



Figure 14. Realization example of FDNR employing DXCC and an application example of ladder-filter constructed with DXCC based FDNRs.

#### IX. CURRENT DIFFERENCING TRANSCONDUCTANCE AMPLIFIER (CDTA)

A recently reported five terminals active element, proposed by Biolek [79], namely current differencing transconductance amplifier (CDTA) seems to be a versatile component in the realization of a class of analog signalprocessing circuits, especially in realization of analog frequency filters. Current differencing transconductance amplifier consists of an input current substractor and dual output transconductance stage. Improved CMOS realization is shown in Fig. 15. A design example of second-order transadmittance filter is illustrated in Fig.16. Frequency response of the notch filter is illustrated in Fig.17 [51].



Figure 15. Improved CMOS realization of CDTA [51].



Figure 16.Second order filter realization employing CDTAs [51].

The filter topology realizes LP, BP, HP, BS and AP functions as follows:

1) V1= Vin and V2= V3= 0, LPF

- 2) V2= Vin and V1= V3 = 0, BPF.
- 3) V3 = Vin and V1 = V2 = 0, HPF.
- 4) V1 = V3 = Vin and V2 = 0, BSF

5) 
$$V1 = -V2 = V3 = Vin$$
. APF

Simulated BS frequency response is given in Fig.17.



Figure 17. Simulated BS frequency response of CDTA based filter [51].

#### X. CDBA: CURRENT DIFFERENCING BUFFERED AMPLIFIER

The current differencing buffered amplifier CDBA is a new active element intended to simplify the design of analog signal processing filters [56]. p and n are input

terminals and w and z are output terminals. This element is equivalent to the circuit in Fig. 18, which involves dependent current and voltage sources. current through zterminal follows the difference of the currents through pterminal and n-terminal. Moreover, voltage of w-terminal follows the voltage of z-terminal. Hence, we name wterminal as voltage output. Finally, note that the input terminals p and n are internally grounded.



Figure 18. (a) Symbol of CDBA. and its equivalent circuit [56].

A second order general current mode filter topology example is illustrated in Fig. 19. Transfer functions of BP and LP filter functions can be obtained from i<sub>01</sub> and i<sub>02</sub> outputs, respectively. i<sub>03</sub> output yields the sum of HP and BP filter functions. To get the HP function an additional active element is necessary, as shown in Fig.20. Fig.21 and Fig. 22 illustrate the measured frequency responses and the output waveforms, respectively.



Figure 19. CDBA based general second-order filter topology [31].



Figure 20. Realization of HP circuit [31].



Figure 21. Frequency responses of the filters [31]



**Figure 22.** Output waveforms for a sinusoidal 100 kHz input signal of 1000 $\mu$ A and for a load resistance of RL = 10 kOhm. Lower trace w-output, upper trace z-output (voltages) of CDBA2. Vert.: 10 V/div, Hor.: 2  $\mu$ s/div.

#### XI. COA: CURRENT OPERATIONAL AMPLIFLER

Current-mode operational amplifier (COA) is one of the useful current mode integrated building blocks. The main advantage of using COA is its ability to replace with the voltage operational amplifier (VOA) when applying the adjoint network theorem in voltage mode to current mode transformation [80]. A CMOS realization of COA, the step response of the amplifier, COA-based second order filter topologies and high-order BP response obtained by cascading LP and HP sections are given in Figs. 24, 25 and 26, respectively [45].



Figure 23. CMOS realization example of COA [45].



Figure 24. Response of the COA in unity-gain feedback to a  $\pm 5 \mu A$ 

input step (f = 5 MHz)



Figure 25. COA-based low-pass filter topology; (b) COA-based high-pass filter topology [45]



Figure 26. Simulated and ideal band-pass filter responses [45].

#### XII. CONCLUSION

This work covers new advances and possibilities in the related research area including application on communication, measurement and RF systems. Employing these new active elements for analog applications and using CMOS technology for implementation the circuit designers obtained new possibilities to replace the conventional operational amplifier in their design to solve the problems caused by the limited performance of OPAMPs.

#### REFERENCES

- B. Razavi, Design of Analog CMOS Integrated Circuits, Mc Graw-Hill, 2000.
- [2] P.E. Allen and D.R. Holberg, CMOS analog circuit design (Second Edition), Oxford University Press, New York Oxford, 2002.
- [3] G. Ferri, N.C. Guerrini, Low-Voltage Low-Power CMOS Current Conveyors, Kluwer Academic Publishers, Boston/Dordrecht/London, 2003.
- [4] R. Gray, P.J. Hurst, S.H. Lewis, R.G. Meyer, Analysis and design of analog integrated circuits, John Wiley & Sons, Inc., 2001.
- [5] C. Acar, F. Anday and H. Kuntman: On the realization of OTA-C filters, International Journal of Circuit Theory and Applications, Vol.21, pp.331-341, 1993.
- [6] H. Kuntman and A. Zeki: Novel approach to the calculation of nonlinear harmonic distortion coefficients in CMOS amplifiers, Microelectronics Journal, Vol.29, Nos.1-2, pp.43-48, 1998.
- [7] U. Çam, H. Kuntman and C. Acar: On the realization of OTA-C oscillators, International Journal of Electronics, Vol.85, No.3, pp.313-326, 1998.
- [8] U. Çam, H. Kuntman, A new CCII-based sinusoidal oscillator providing fully independent control of oscillation condition and frequency, Microelectronics Journal, Vol.29, Nos.11, pp.913-919, 1998.
- [9] H. Kuntman, A. Özpınar, On the realization of DO-OTA-C oscillators, Microelectronics Journal, Vol.29, No. 12, pp.991-997, 1998.
- [10] O. Çiçekoğlu and H. Kuntman: On the design of CCII+ based relaxation oscillator employing single grounded passive element for linear period control, Microelectronics Journal, Vol.29, No. 12, pp.983-989, 1998.
- [11] Toker, O. Çiçekoğlu and H. Kuntman: New active gyrator circuit suitable for frequency-dependent negative resistor implementation, Microelectronics Journal, Vol.30, No. 1, pp.59-62, 1999.
- [12] G. Düzenli, Y. Kılıç, H. Kuntman and A. Ataman: On the design of low-frequency filters using CMOS OTAs operating in the subthreshold region, Microelectronics Journal, Vol.30, No. 1, pp.45-54, 1999.
- [13] O. Çıçekoğlu, H. Kuntman, S. Berk, Allpass Filters using a single current conveyor, International Journal of Electronics, 86, No.8, pp.947-955,1999
- [14] Zeki, H. Kuntman, High-output-impedance CMOS dual-output OTA suitable for wide-range continuous-time filtering applications, Electronics Letters, 35, No.16, pp.1295-1296, 1999.
- [15] O. Çiçekoğlu, S. Özcan, H. Kuntman, Insensitive Multifunction Filter Implemented with Current Conveyors and Only Grounded Passive Elements, Frequenz, 53, N0.7-8, pp.158-160, 1999.
- [16] U. Çam, H.Kuntman, CMOS four terminal floating nullor (FTFN) design using a simple approach, Microelectronics Journal, Vol.30, No. 12, pp.1187-1194, 1999.
- [17] S. Özcan, A. Toker, C. Acar, H. Kuntman, O. Çiçekoğlu, Single resistance controlled sinusoidal oscillators employing current differencing buffered amplifier, Microelectronics Journal, Vol.31, pp.169-174, 2000.
- [18] H. Kuntman, M. Gülsoy, O. Çiçekoğlu, Actively simulated grounded lossy inductors using third generation current conveyors, Microelectronics Journal, Vol.31, pp.245-250, 2000.
- [19] U. Çam, O. Çiçekoğlu, H. Kuntman, Current-mode single-input three outputs (SITO) universal filter employing FTFNs and reduced number of passive components, Frequenz, Vol.54, No.3-4, pp.94-96, 2000.
- [20] U. Çam, A. O. Çiçekoğlu, H. Kuntman, Universal series and parallel immitance simulators using four terminals floating nullors, Analog Integrated Circuit and Signal Processing, vol. 25, pp. 59-66, 2000.

- [21] U. Çam, O.Çiçekoğlu, M. Gülsoy, H. Kuntman, 'New voltage and current mode first-order all-pass filters using single FTFN', FREQUENZ, No.7-8, pp 177-179, 2000.
- [22] O. Çiçekoğlu, A. Toker and H. Kuntman,' Universal immitance function simulators using current conveyors', Computers and Electrical Engineering, Vol. 27, pp 227-238, 2001.
- [23] Minaei S., Çiçekoğlu, O, Kuntman, H., and Türköz, S., 2001. "High Output Impedance Current-Mode Lowpass, Bandpass and Highpass Filters Using Current Controlled Conveyors". International Journal of Electronics., 88 (8), 915-922.
- [24] Çam U., Toker A., Çiçekoğlu O., Kuntman H, Current-mode high output impedance multifunction filters employing minimum number of FTFN, Analog Integrated Circuits and Signal Processing, vol. 28, pp. 299-307, 2001.
- [25] Toker, S. Özcan, H. Kuntman and O. Çiçekoğlu, 'Supplementary allpass sections with reduced number of passive elements using a single current conveyor', International Journal of Electronics, Vol. 88, No. 9, pp. 969-976, 2001.
- [26] Toker, O. Çiçekoglu, S. Özcan and H. Kuntman, 'High output impedance transadmittance multifunction filter with minimum active elements', International Journal of Electronics, Vol. 88, No. 10, pp. 1085-1091, 2001.
- [27] U. Çam, O. Çiçekoğlu, H. Kuntman, Novel lossless floating immittance simulator using only two FTFNs, Analog Integrated Circuits and Signal Processing, vol.29, 233-235, 2001.
- [28] O. Çiçekoğlu, N. Tarım, H. Kuntman, , Wide Dynamic Range High output impedance current-mode multifunction filters with dual-output current conveyors providing wide dynamic range, AEÜ: International Journal of Electronics and Communications, 56, No.1, pp. 55-60, 2002.
- [29] H. Kuntman, O. Çiçekoğlu, S. Özcan, "Realization of currentmode third order butterworth filters employing equal valued passive elements and unity gain buffers" Analog Integrated Circuit and Signal Processing, Vol.30, pp.253-256, 2002.
- [30] H. Kuntman, O. Çiçekoğlu, S. Özoğuz, 'A modified third generation current conveyor, its characterization and applications' FREQUENZ, Vol.56, pp.47-54, 2002.
- [31] S. Özcan, H. Kuntman and O.Çiçekoğlu, Cascadable current mode multipurpose filters employing current differencing buffered amplifier, AEÜ: International Journal of Electronics and Communications. Vol. 56, No 2, pp.67 – 72, 2002.
- [32] R. Kılıç, U. Çam, M. Alçı and H. Kuntman, Improved Realisation of Mixed-mode chaotic circuit, International Journal of Bifurcation and Chaos, Vol. 12, No. 6, 1429-1435, 2002.
- [33] Toker, O. Çiçekoğlu and H. Kuntman, 'On the oscillator implementations using a single current feedback op-amp', Computers and Electrical Engineering, 28, No.5, 375-389, 2002.
- [34] S. Özcan, O. Çiçekoğlu, H. Kuntman, Multi-input single output filter with reduced number of passive elements employing single current conveyor, Computers & Electrical Engineering, Vol.29, pp.45-53, 2003.
- [35] U. Cam, F. Kacar, O. Cicekoglu, H. Kuntman and A. Kuntman "Novel Grounded Parallel Immitance Simulator Topologies Employing Single OTRA", AEÜ – International Journal of Electronics and Communications, Vol. 57, No. 4, pp. 1-4, 2003.
- [36] M. A. Ibrahim, H. Kuntman, O. Cicekoglu., Canonical Biquadratic All-Pass and Notch Filters Employing Differential Difference Current Conveyor, Frequenz, vol. 57, Nr. 7-8, pp. 162-165, 2003.
- [37] S. Minaei, O. Cicekoglu, H. Kuntman and S. Türköz, " Electronically Tunable Active Only Floating Inductance simulation", International Journal of Electronics, Vol.89, No. 12, pp. 905-912, 2003.
- [38] R. Kılıç, U. Çam, Mustafa Alçı, H. Kuntman and E. Uzunhisarcıklı, "Realization of Inductorless Chua's Circuit Using FTFN-Based Nonlinear Resistor and Inductance Simulator", FREQUENZ, Vol.58, 1-4, 2004.
- [39] M. A. Ibrahim, H. Kuntman and O. Cicekoglu, "Single DDCC biquads with high input impedance and minimum number of passive elements", Analog Integrated Circuit and Signal Processing, Vol.43, 71-79, 2005.
- [40] M. A. Ibrahim, S. Minaei and H. Kuntman, "A 22 MHz current-mode KHN-biquad using differential voltage current conveyor and grounded passive elements", AEU: International Journal of Electronics and Communications, Volume 59, 311–318, 2005.

- [41] M. A. Ibrahim, S. Minaei and H. Kuntman, DVCC based differentialmode all-pass and notch filters with high CMRR, International Journal of Electronics, Volume 93, No.4, 231–240, 2006.
- [42] S. Minaei, O. K. Sayın and H. Kuntman, A New CMOS Electronically Tunable Current Conveyor and Its Application to Current-Mode Filters, IEEE Transactions on Circuits and Systems I, TCAS-I, Volume 53, No.7, 1448-1457, 2006.
- [43] A.Uygur, H. Kuntman, 'Seventh order elliptic video filter with 0.1dB pass band ripple employed CMOS CDTAs', AEU: International Journal of Electronics and Communications, Vol.61, 320-328, 2007.
- [44] Duruk, E. O. Güneş, H. Kuntman, 'A new low voltage CMOS differential OTRA for sub-micron technologies', AEU: International Journal of Electronics and Communications, Vol.61, 291-299, 2007.
- [45] M. Altun and H. Kuntman, 'Design of a Fully Differential Current Mode Operational Amplifier with Improved Input-Output Impedances and Its Filter Applications', AEU: International Journal of Electronics and Communications, Vol.62, N0. 3, 239-244, 2008
- [46] M. Altun, H. Kuntman, S. Minaei and O. K. Sayın, "Realization of nth-order current transfer function employing ECCIIs and application examples", IJE: International Journal of Electronics, Vol. 96, No.11, 1115 – 1126, 2009.
- [47] F. Kacar, B. Metin, H. Kuntman, "A New Dual-X CMOS Second Generation Current Conveyor (DXCCII) with a FDNR Circuit Application", accepted for publication in AEU: International Journal of Electronics and Communications (A08-326).
- [48] F. Kacar, B. Metin, H. Kuntman, O. Çiçekoğlu, "A New High Performance CMOS FDCCII with Application Example of Biquad Filter Realization", accepted for publication in IJE: International Journal of Electronics (TETN-2009-0024.R1).
- [49] Toker, H. Kuntman, O. Çiçekoglu and M. Dişçigil, 'New Oscillator Topologies Using Inverting Second-Generation Current Conveyors', Turkish Journal of Electric Engineering and Computer Sciences (ELEKTRIK), Vol.10, No.1, pp.119-129, 2002.
- [50] B.S. Ergün, H. Kuntman, On the design of new CMOS DO-OTA topologies providing high output impedance and extended linearity range, Journal of Electrical & Electronics Engineering, Engineering Faculty, Istanbul University, Vol.5, No.2, pp.1449-1461, 2005.
- [51] F. Kaçar, H. Kuntman, "A new CMOS current differencing transconductance amplifier (CDTA) and its biquad filter application", Proceedings of EUROCON'2009 (CD-ROM), pp.208-215, St. Petersburg, RUSSIA, May 18-23, 2009.
- [52] F. Kaçar, H. Kuntman, "Novel Electronically Tunable FDNR Simulator Employing Single FDCCII", Proceedings of ECCTD'09: the 19th European Conference on Circuit Theory & Design (CD-ROM), pp.21-24, Antalya, Turkey, August 23-27, 2009.
- [53] S. Eser, S. Özcan, S. Yamaçlı, H. Kuntman and O. Çiçekoğlu, "Current-mode active-only universal filter employing CCIIs and OTAs", Proceedings of Applied Electronics 2009, pp.107-110, Pilsen, Czech Republic, 9-10 September 2009.
- [54] S. Yamaçlı, S. Özcan and H. Kuntman, "Active-only wider band tunable grounded inductance simulator employing COA and OTA", Proceedings of ETAI 2009 Conference: Electronics, Telecommunications and Artificial Intelligence (E3-4, CD ROM), Ohrid, Macedonia, September 26-29, 2009.
- [55] F. Kaçar, H. Kuntman, " On the Realization of the FDNR Simulators Using Only a Single Current Feedback Operational Amplifier", Proc. of ELECO'2009: The 6th International Conference on Electrical and Electronics Engineering, Vol.2, pp.223-226, 5-8 November 2009, Bursa, Turkey.
- [56] Acar, S. Ozoguz, "A new versatile building block: current differencing buffered amplifier suitable for analog signal-processing filters", Microelectronics Journal Vol. 30, 157–160, 1999.
- [57] Toumazou, F.J. Lidges and D.G. Haigh (Editors), Analogue IC Design The Current Mode Approach, Kluwer, 1990.
- [58] J.W. Clark Jr., The origin of biopotentials, in: J.G. Webster (Ed.), Medical Instrumentation: Application and Design, Houghton Mifflin
- [59] Co., Boston, MA, 1992.
- [60] M. Higashimura, 'Current-mode allpass filter using FTFN with grounded capacitor', Electron. Lett., Vol. 27, pp. 1182-1183, 1991.
- [61] M.T. Abuelma' Atti, Cascadable current-mode filters usingFTFN, Electron. Lett., Vol. 32, pp. 1457-1458, 1999.
- [62] S.I. Liu, 'Single-resistance-controlled sinusoidal oscillator using two FTFNs', Electron. Lett., Vol.33, pp. 1185-1186, 1997.

#### 10<sup>th</sup> International Conference on DEVELOPMENT AND APPLICATION SYSTEMS, Suceava, Romania, May 27-29, 2010

- [63] R. Senani, 'A novel application of four terminal floating nullors', Proc. IEEE, Vol.35, pp. 15441546, 1987.
- [64] Huijsing, 'Operational floating amplifier (OFA)', IEE Proc. G, Circuits Devices Syst., Vol. 137, pp. 131-136, 1990.
- [65] Duruk, H. Kuntman, "A new CMOS Differential OTRA Design for the Low Voltage Power Supplies in the Sub-Micron Technologies", Turkish Journal of Electrical Engineering and Computer Sciences (ELEKTRIK), Vol.13, No.1, 23-37, 2005.
- [66] Analog Devices, Linear Products Data Book, Norwood, MA, 1990.
- [67] T. Vanisri, C. Toumazou, Wideband and high gain current-feedback opamp. Electron Lett Vol.28:1705–7, 1992.
- [68] K. Manetakis, C.Toumazou, Current-feedback opamp suitable for CMOS VLSI technology. Electron Lett; Vol.32:1090–2,1996.
- [69] J. Wong, Current-feedback op amps extend high-frequency performance. EDN;26:211–6, 1989.
- [70] P. Harold, Current-feedback op amps ease high-speed circuit design. EDN;7:84–90,1988.
- [71] P.A. Martinez, J. Sabadell, C.Aldea, Grounded resistor controlled sinusoidal oscillator using CFOAs. Electron Lett; Vol. 33(5):346–7, 1997.
- [72] R. Senani, V.K. Singh, Novel single-resistance-controlled-oscillator configuration using current feedback amplifiers. IEEE Trans Circuits Syst I-Fund Theor Appl Vol.43(8):698–700, 1996.
- [73] S.I. Liu, J.H. Tsay, Single-resistance-controlled sinusoidal oscillator using current-feedback amplifiers. Int J Electron Vol.80(5):661–4, 1996.

- [74] Sedra and K. C. Smith, A second generation current conveyor and its applications, IEEE Trans. Circuit Theory, CT-17, 132-134, 1970.
- [75] S. Sedra, G. W. Roberts and F. Gohh, The current conveyor: history, progress and new results, IEEE Proc., Vol.137, 77-78, 1990.
- [76] Fabre, O. Saaid, F. Wiest, C. Boucheron, Current controlled bandpass filter based on translinear conveyors. Electronics Letters, Vol. 31, pp.1727-1728, 1995.
- [77] K.Pal. Modified current conveyors and their applications. Microelectron J;20, pp.37-40, 1989.
- [78] H.O. Elwan, A.M. Soliman. Novel CMOS differential voltage current conveyor and its applications. IEE Proc Circuits Devices Syst. Vol. 144, pp.195–200, 1997.
- [79] Zeki, A. Toker. The dual-X current conveyor(DXCCII):a new active device for tunable continuous-time filters, International Journal of Electronics, Vol. 89(12), pp.913–23, 2002.
- [80] Biolek, CDTA-building block for current-mode analog signal processing. Proceedings of the ECCTD'03, Cracow, Poland, p. 397– 400, 2003.
- [81] G.W.Roberts, A.S. Sedra, A general class of current amplifier based biquadratic. filter circuits, IEEE Trans Circuits Syst, Vol.39,p257–63, 1992.
- [82] M. Sayginer, M. Altun and H Kuntman, "A New CMOS FTFN Realization and Grounded Inductance Simulation", Proceedings of MELECON'08: The 14th IEEE Mediterranean Electrotechnical Conference, pp. 421-424, 5-7 May, Ajaccio, Corsica, France,2008.

# Magnetization Dynamics for Nonvolatile Memory Technologies

Leonard SPINU, Member IEEE Department of Physics and Advanced Materials Research institute University of New Orleans, New Orleans, LA 70148 LSpinu@uno.edu http://fs.uno.edu/lspinu/

*Abstract* — Magnetization dynamics is one of the central issues in the physics of mesoscopic magnetic systems and its understanding is important not only for its evident fundamental interest but also due to the big impact on the information technology, more specifically on magnetic information storage. Magnetic recording is rapidly approaching the nanometer scale as storage densities are projected to increase beyond a terabit per square inch. High volume of data requires higher data transfer rates. These present new challenges and opportunities in nanometer scale materials engineering and in understanding the magnetic properties of nanometer scale magnetic materials. Among the critical issues is the manner and speed which the magnetization direction can be reversed from one stable configuration to another. Also, for the magnetic random access memories (MRAMs) unlike present forms of nonvolatile memories, they must have switching rates and rewrite-ability properties surpassing those of conventional RAMS. This can be achieved only first by understanding and then by controlling the magnetization dynamics of very confined magnetic elements. The presentation will provide a theoretical overview of magnetization reversal phenomenon with applications to nonvolatile memory technologies with emphasis on MRAM, toggle MRAM and Spin Torque Transfer – RAM (STT-RAM).

Leonard SPINU earned a B.S. in Physics from Iasi University in 1991, and a M.S. and Ph.D. in Solid State Physics from Paris-Sud 11 University, Orsay France in 1992 and 1998, respectively. He joined University of New Orleans in 1999 as a research associate in Advanced Materials Research Institute (AMRI) and later in 2002 became a faculty in Department of Physics and AMRI. Currently he is an Associate Professor of Physics and Materials Science and is leading a research group of 3 graduate students, 3 undergraduate students and 1 postdoctoral researcher with experimental and modeling research in nanomagnetism. He once directed at AMRI a DARPA funded project on Advanced Materials for Quantum Computing. His research is currently funded by the National Science Foundation -NSF, Louisiana Board of Regents and Army Research office – Army Research Office-ARO covering subjects as fabrication of high frequency devices based on nanoscale building blocks and characterization of coupled magnetic systems for nonvolatile memory applications. He has more than 100 papers published in peer reviewed journals and he gave more than 30 presentations at major scientific meetings in the field of magnetism and materials science.

*Index Terms* — Nonvolatile Memory Technologies, Magnetization dynamics, mesoscopic magnetic systems, nanometer scale materials, MRAMs, Spin Torque Transfer, STT-RAM

#### REFERENCES

- [1] D. Cimpoesu, H. Pham, A. Stancu, and L. Spinu, "Dynamic and temperature effects in spin-transfer switching," Journal of Applied Physics, vol. 104, p. 7, Dec 2008.
- [2] H. Pham, D. Cimpoesu, A. Stancu, and L. Spinu, "Switching behavior of a Stoner-Wohlfarth particle subjected to spintorque effect," Journal of Applied Physics, vol. 103, p. 3, Apr 2008.
- [3] H. Pham, D. Cimpoesu, A. V. Plamada, A. Stancu, and L. Spinu, "Dynamic critical curve of a synthetic antiferromagnet," Applied Physics Letters, vol. 95, p. 3, Nov 2009.

# Improved Pulses Generated By Piece-wise Parabolic Nyquist Filters

Nicolae Dumitru ALEXANDRU

"Gheorghe Asachi" Technical University of Iaşi, Department of Telecommunications Bd. CAROL I No. 11, RO-700506 IAŞI, Romania

*Abstract* — This paper presents and investigates a novel approach for constructing a family of ISI-free pulses that shows comparable or better ISI performance in the presence of sampling errors, as compared with some recently proposed pulses. The transfer characteristic of the filter is composed of four parabolic pieces and a flat one. The coordinates of the junction points are determined in order to produce a minimal value of the error probability when the impulse response is sampled with a fixed time offset that accounts for the imperfect synchronization in the receiver. The impulse responses of the new filters show a reduced size first lobe, as compared with other pulses. This results in a decreased value of the error probability when the impulse response is sampled with regard to the ideal sampling moments.

Index Terms — improved Nyquist filter, impulse response, error probability

#### REFERENCES

- [1] H. Nyquist, "Certain topics in telegraph transmission theory", AIEE Trans., vol. 47, pp. 617–644, 1928.
- [2] N. C. Beaulieu, C. C. Tan and M. O. Damen, "A "better than" Nyquist pulse", IEEE Commun. Lett., vol. 5, pp. 367–368, Sept. 2001.
- [3] A.Assalini and A. M.Tonello "Improved Nyquist pulses", IEEE Communications Letters, vol. 8, pp. 87 89, Febr. 2004.
- [4] N. C. Beaulieu and M. O. Damen, "Parametric construction of Nyquist-I pulses", IEEE Trans. Communications, vol. COM-52, pp. 2134 - 2142, Dec. 2004.
- [5] P. Sandeep, S. Chandan and A. K. Chaturvedi, "ISI-Free pulses with reduced sensitivity to timing errors", IEEE Communications Letters, vol. 9, no.4, pp. 292 - 294, April. 2005
- [6] T. Demeechai, "Pulse-shaping filters with ISI-free matched and unmatched filter properties", IEEE Trans. Commun., vol. 46, pp. 992, Aug., 1998.
- [7] Tan, C. C. and Beaulieu, N. C., "Transmission properties of conjugate-root pulses", IEEE Trans. Commun., vol. 52, pp. 553– 558, Apr. 2004.
- [8] L. E. Franks, "Further results on Nyquist's problem in pulse transmission", IEEE Trans. Commun. Technol., vol. COM-16, pp. 337–340, April 1968.
- [9] A. V. Kisel "An extension of pulse shaping filters theory," IEEE Trans. Commun., vol. 47, pp. 645–647, May 1994.
- [10] O. Andrisano and M. Chiani, "The first Nyquist criterion applied to coherent receiver design for generalized MSK signals", IEEE Trans. Commun., vol. 42, Feb./Mar./Apr. 1999.
- [11] B. Sayar and S. Pasupathy, "Nyquist 3 pulse shaping in continuous phase modulation", IEEE Trans. Commun., vol. COM-35, pp. 57–67, Jan. 1987.
- [12] N. C. Beaulieu, "The evaluation of error probabilities for intersymbol and cochannel interference", IEEE Trans. Commun., vol. 31, pp.1740–1749, Dec. 1991.
- [13] F. S. Hill Jr., "A unified approach to pulse design in data transmission", IEEE Trans. Commun, vol. COM-25, pp. 346–354, Mar. 1977.
- [14] X.-G. Xia, "A family of pulse-shaping filters with ISI-free matched and unmatched filter properties", IEEE Trans. Commun., vol. 45, pp. 1157–1158, Oct. 1997.
- [15] N.D. Alexandru and L.A. Onofrei, "A novel class of improved Nyquist pulses", ECUMICT 2006, Gent, Belgium, pp. 363-370, 2006.
- [16] N.D. Alexandru, M.L. Alexandru and L.A. Onofrei, "A class of improved pulses generated by Nyquist filters", Advances in Electrical Engineering, vol 2, pp. 10-14, 2006.
- [17] N.D. Alexandru and L.A. Onofrei, "A class of ISI-free and bandlimited pulses", DAS 2006, pp 189-194, Suceava, mai 2006.
- [18] N.D. Alexandru and L.A. Onofrei, "A survey of several classes of improved pulses generated by Nyquist filters", Comm'2006, Bucureşti, 2006.
- [19] P. Tan and N.C. Beaulieu, "Reduced ICI in OFDM system using the "Better Than" Raised-Cosine Pulse", IEEE Communications Letters, vol. 8, no.3, pp.135-137, March 2004.
- [20] S. Chandan, P.Sandeep and A. K. Chaturvedi, "A family of ISI-free polynomial pulses", IEEE Communications Letters, vol. 9, no.6, pp. 496-498, June. 2005.

# Option to Provide the Necessary Feedback for Closed-Loop neuroStimulation

Radu BAZAVAN<sup>1</sup>, Rodica STRUNGARU<sup>2</sup> Faculty of Electronics, Telecommunications and Information Technology 1-3 Iuliu Maniu Av, Bucharest <sup>1</sup>radu.bzv@ieee.org <sup>2</sup>rodica.strungaru@elmed.pub.ro

*Abstract* — Recent developments in Deep Brain Stimulation (DBS) and computer technology have resulted in dramatically new and effective surgical treatments for Parkinson's disease and other movement disorders. From the DBS, by research, the concept has evolved to Closed-Loop neuroStimulation (CLnS) which is the brain target point electric stimulation linked to the patient's body and brain response.

One delicate CLnS difficulty in rising concept functionality is contoured by the need of a feedback source.

Regarding Parkinson's disease, the Subthalamic Nucleus (at target point) generates a modulated signal by Parkison's tremor. The amplitude values of the modulated signal envelope are far most variable during the day.

By neurostimulating with a signal linked to the differences between maximum and minimum values of modulated signal envelope provided, the patient will receive the exact values required for Parkinson symptoms suppression.

*Index Terms* — Biomedical measurements, Closed-Loop neuroStimulation, Deep Brain Stimulation, DBS process, Neurostimulation

#### REFERENCES

- Xiao-jiang Feng, Eric Shea-Brown, Brian Greenwald, Herschel Rabitz, Robert Kosut, "Toward Closed-Loop Optimization of Deep Brain Stimulation for Parkinson's Disease: Concepts and Lessons from a Computational Model", J.Neuroengineering 4, L14-L21, 2007.
- [2] Michael Flynn, Daryl Kipke, "Single-Chip Closed-Loop Deep-Brain Stimulation for Treatment of Parkinson's Disease" University of Michigan Research Update, Oct. 2009.
- [3] Jongwoo Lee, Hyo-Gyuem Rhew, Daryl Kipke and Michael Flynn, "A 64 Channel Programmable Closed-loop Deep Brain Stimulator with 8 Channel Neural Amplifier and Logarithmic ADC", Symposium on VLSI Circuits Digest, 2008.
- [4] Karen L. Francis, Waneen W. Spirduso, Tim Eakin, Pamela Z.New, "Long-Term Effects of ThalamicDeep Brain Stimulation on Force Control in a Patient with Parkinson's Disease-Driven Action Tremor", The Journal of Applied Research, Vol.6, No. 1, 2006.
- [5] Thuy-Duong Barbara Nguyen-Vu, Hua Chen, Alan Cassell, Jessica Koehne, Hardeep Purewal, M. Meyyappan, Russell Andrews, and Jun Li, "Carbon Nanofiber Nanoelectrode Array for Closed-Loop Electrical Stimulation", Center for Nanotechnology, NASA Ames Research Center, Moffett Field, CA, Jul. 2005.
- [6] Jay L. Shils, Michelle Tagliati, Ron L. Alterman, "Neurophysiological Monitoring During Neurosurgery for Movement Disorders", Neurophysiology in Neurosurgery: A Modern Intraoperative Approach, Chapter 16, Elsevier Science, 2002.
- [7] G. L. Sannazzari, R. Ragona, M. G. Ruo Redda, G. Isolato, A Guarneri, F. R. Giglioli, "CT–MRI image fusion for delineation of volumes in three-dimensional conformal radiation therapy in the treatment of localized prostate cancer", The British Journal of Radiology, 75, 603–607, 2002.
- [8] William D. Hutchinson, "Techniques of Microelectrode Recording in Movement Disorders Surgery", Surgery for Parkinson's Disease and Movement Disorders, Philadelphia, 2001.
- [9] James Solberg, Richard Smith, "Closed-Loop Control of Functional Electrical Stimulation for Human Gait: Introduction, Feedback Sensors, and Foreseeable Difficulties", School of Electrical and Information Engineering, Nov. 2000.

More references are available on-line at www.dasconference.ro.

# Obstacle Avoidance Fuzzy System for Mobile Robot with IR Sensors

C. G. RUSU<sup>1</sup>, I. T. BIROU<sup>2</sup> <sup>1</sup>Technical University of Cluj-Napoca <sup>1</sup>calin.rusu@edr.utcluj.ro, <sup>2</sup>iulian.birou@edr.utcluj.ro

*Abstract* — The goal of this research was to develop a fuzzy obstacle avoidance system for an autonomous mobile robot using IR detection sensors. This paper presents implemented control architecture for behavior-based mobile robot. The mobile robot is able to interact with an unknown environment using a reactive strategy determined by sensory information. Current research in robotics aims to build autonomous and intelligent robots, which can plan its motion in a dynamic environment. Autonomous mobile robots are increasingly used in well structured environment such as warehouses, offices and industries. Fuzzy behavior able to make inferences is well suited for mobile robot navigation because of the uncertainty of the environment. A rule-based fuzzy controller with reactive behavior was implemented and tested on a two wheels mobile robot equipped with infrared sensors to perform collision-free navigation. The experimental results have shown that the proposed architecture provides an efficient and flexible solution for small wheeled mobile robots.

Index Terms — Fuzzy system, IR sensors, Mobile robot, Obstacle avoidance

#### REFERENCES

- [1] Ronald C. Arkin; Behaviour-Based Robotics, The MIT Press, Cambridge, 1998.
- [2] G W. Lucas; A Tutorial and Elementary Trajectory Model for the Differential Steering System of Robot Wheel Actuators, The Rossum Project, 2001
- [3] G. Dudek, M. Jenkin; Computational Principles of Mobile Robotics, Cambridge University Press, New York, 2000
- [4] Babuska, Robert; Fuzzy Logic for Engineering Applications (et 29-30), Control Engineering Laboratory, Faculty of Information Technology and Systems Delft University of Technology, Delft, the Netherlands, March 3, 1999
- [5] Ibrahim, Ahmed; Fuzzy Logic for Embedded System Applications, Elsevir Science, U.S.A., 2004
- [6] Mendel, M., Jerry; Fuzzy Logic Systems for Engineering, A Tutorial IEEE Progeedings of the IEEE, Vol. 83, no.3, March 1993
- [7] Jantzen, Jan; Design of Fuzzy Controllers, Technical University of Denmark, Dept. of Automation, Lyngby, Denmark, Technical Report 98-E-864, 19 Aug. 1998
- [8] K-team S.A; Khepera User Manual version 5.0, Lausanne, 1998.
- [9] R. Brooks, "A robust layered control system for a mobile robot," IEEE Trans. Robotics Automat., vol. RA-2, pp. 14–23, Feb. 1986.
- [10] L. A. Zadeh, "Fuzzy sets," Inform. Contr., vol. 8, pp. 338-353, 1965.
- [11] J. S. R. Jang, C. T. Sun, and E. Mizutani, Neuro-Fuzzy and Soft Computing. Englewood Cliffs, NJ: Prentice-Hall, 1997.
- [12] S.-B. Cho and S.-I. Lee, "Mobile robot learning by evolution of fuzzy for a miniature mobile robot," in Proc. Knowledge-Based Electron. Syst.,
- [13] Saffiotti, Alessandro; Ruspini Enrique H.; Konolige, Kurt– Using Fuzzy Logic for Mobile Robot Control, Chapter 5 of the International Handbook of Fuzzy Sets, D. Dubois, H. Prade, and H. Zimmermann, editors, Kluwer Academic Publisher, forthcoming in 1999
- [14] Surmann, Hartmut; Huser, Jörg; Peters, Huser and Liliane A Fuzzy System for Indoor Mobile Robot Navigation, Proc. of the Fourth IEEE Int. Conf. on Fuzzy Systems, pp. 83 - 86, 20 - 24.03.1995, Yokohama, Japan
- [15] Tunstel, Edward; Lippincott, Tanya; Jamshidi, MO Introduction to Fuzzy Logic Control With Application to Mobile Robotics, NASA Center for Autonomous Control Engineering Department of Electrical and Computer Engineering, 1996

More references are available on-line at www.dasconference.ro.

# Hazardous Events Monitoring System in a Hospital

Radu ȚIGĂNESCUL-AMARIȚII Stefan cel Mare University of Suceava str.Universitatii nr.13, RO-720229 Suceava rtiganescul@stud.usv.ro

*Abstract* — The proposed assignment implies the building of an automated system to monitor a hospital (ASMH), the protection of its patients and its personnel against unwanted events, such as: flooding, gas leeks, breaking and entering, entering the hospital with forbidden objects.

The system uses gas sensors, light sensors, smoke detectors, proximity sensors, flooding sensors and metal detection sensors installed in the points of interest. Sensors are connected to a monitoring system composed of a data acquisition board and a computer. In case of emergency a warning message will be displayed on the monitoring system and through the internet to the authorities. The message contains data about the type of sensor, its location and information about the sensor.

*Index Terms* — monitoring system, automated system to monitor a hospital, ASMH, signal energy, electrical signals, sensor, transducer and transmitter

#### REFERENCES

- [1] Alexandru, N.D, Graur, A., "Domotică", Mediamira, Cluj Napoca, 2005
- [2] I.C. Paschalidis, W. Lai, X. Song/Optimized Scheduled Multiple Access for Wireless Sensor Network-IEEE Transactions on Automatic Control, Volume 54, Number 11, November 2009
- [3] Aplicatii in Visual Basic / Bogdan Patrut. Bucuresti : Teora, 2002, ISBN 973-601-981-0
- [4] www.hwsensor.com/English/PDF/sensor/MC%20series%20specifications-ANWEI%20.pdf
- [5] http://www.hwsensor.com/English/products/sensor/Catalytic.htm
- [6] http://www.scientia.ro/tehnologie/39-cum-functioneaza-lucrurile/55-detectorul-de-fum.html
- [7] http://pdb.turck.de/media/\_ro/Anlagen/Datei\_EDB/edb\_2502126\_ron\_ro.pdf
- [8] http://pdb.turck.de/media/\_ro/Anlagen/Datei\_EDB/edb\_4618510\_ron\_ro.pdf
- [9] Amplificatoare de radiofrecventa de putere / Mihai Albulet. Bucuresti : Matrix Rom, 1996. ISBN 973-97494-5-3
- [10] www.velleman.be/downloads/0/illustrated/illustrated assembly manual k8059 rev1.pdf
- [11] Efecte biologice ale radiatiilor electromagnetice de radiofrecventa si microunde / Mihail Zamfirescu, Ion Rusu, Gheorghe Sajin ... [et al.]. Bucuresti : Editura Medicala, 2000.-ISBN 973-39-0426-0
- [12] Senzori : Prezent si perspectiva / Dumitru Stanciu. Bucuresti : Editura Tehnica, 1987.
- [13] Senzori si traductoare / Petru Todos si Carmen Golovanov. Chisinau : Editura ""Tehnica"" a U.T.M., 1998
- [14] Totul despre Hardware / Winn L. Rosch ; trad. de Florin Moraru şi Cristian Mocanu. Ed. a 2-a. Bucuresti : Teora, 2001.
- [15] Calculatoare numerice. Hardware : structura si proiectare / Fredrick J. Hill si Gerald Peterson. Bucuresti : Editura Tehnica, 1980.
- [16] Programarea aplicatiilor Windows in Visual Basic / Elena Cristina Turcu. Suceava : Editura Universitatii din Suceava, 2002. ISBN 973-8293-43-X

# Real-time Communications for Distributed Control Systems

Dan PUIU<sup>1</sup>, Florin MOLDOVEANU<sup>2</sup>, Caius SULIMAN<sup>3</sup> Transilvania University of Brasov bld.Eroilor nr.3,Brasov <sup>1</sup>puiudan@unitbv.ro, <sup>2</sup>moldof@unitbv.ro, <sup>3</sup>caius.suliman@unitbv.ro

*Abstract* — Due to the quick evolution of manufacturing processes, the demand for more flexible automation systems is on the rise. To answer these requirements, distributed control architecture based on intelligent drives and CAN networks tends more and more to replace the traditional solutions. CAN was designed and applied in car networking in order to reduce the complexity of the related wiring harnesses. The traditional CAN application technique must be change in order to achieve the real time communication constraints of a distributed control system. In this paper is designed a special purpose scheduler for CAN, which ensure a maximum transmission time for a message. A distributed control system is developed and the proposed scheduler is experimentally validated.

Index Terms - Distributed control, delay estimation

#### REFERENCES

- [1] C.E. Pereira and L. Carro "Distributed Real-time Embedded Systems: Recent Advances, Future Trends and Their Impact on Manufacturing Plant Control", Annual Reviews in Control, vol. 31, no. 1, pp. 81÷92, 2007.
- [2] D. Jouve and D. Bui, "CANopen Servo Drives Provides High Performance Motion control." Proc. 7th Int. Intelligent Motion Conf., Nuremberg, Germany, 2002, pp. 1-6.
- [3] E. Tovar and F. Vasques "Real-Time Fieldbus Communication Using Profibus Networks:, IEEE Trans. on Electronics, Vol. 46, No. 6, pp. 1241-1251, 1999.
- [4] F. He and S. Zhao "Research on Synchronous Control of Nodes in distributed Network Systems", Proc. IEEE Inter. Conf. on Automation and Logistics, Qingdao, China, 2008, pp. 2999-3004.
- [5] F. He, W. Tong and Q. Wang "Synchronization Control Strategy of Multi-motor System Based on Profibus Network", Proc. IEEE Inter. Conf. on Automation and Logistics, Jinan, China, 2007, pp. 3099-3034.
- [6] H.H. Lee and U. H. Jeong "Design of Distributed Scheduler on CAN for Real-Time Networking", Proc. 5th Russian Korean Int. Symp. Science and Technology, Korus2001, Tomsk, Russia, 2001, pp. 22-25.
- [7] G. Sebestyen, "Industrial Informatics", (romanian language), Ed. Albastră, Cluj-Napoca, Romania, 2006.
- [8] L. M. Pinho and F. Vasques "Reliable Real-Time Communication in CAN Networks", IEEE Trans. On Computers, Vol. 52, No. 12, pp. 1594-1607, 2003.
- [9] R. I. Davis, A. Burns, R. J. Bril and J. J. Lukkien "Controller Area Network (CAN) schedulability analysis: Refuted, revisited and revised", Real Time Systems, Vol. 35, No. 3, pp. 239-272, 2007.
- [10] \*\*\*, Road Vehicles: Interchange of Digital Information—Controller Area Network for High-Speed Communication, ISO 11898, Nov. 1993.
- [11] \*\*\*, Road Vehicles: Interchange of Digital Information—Controller area Network for High-Speed Communication, Draft Amendment, ISO 11898:1993/DAM 1, Feb. 1994.
# Design and Comparison of Different Switched Reluctance Machines Topologies for Automotive Applications

Claudia MARTIS<sup>1</sup>, Vlad PETRUS<sup>1</sup>, Adrian-Cornel POP<sup>1</sup>, Johan GYSELINCK<sup>2</sup> <sup>1</sup>Technical University of Cluj-Napoca 15, Daicoviciu, RO-400020 Cluj-Napoca, Romania csmartis@mae.utcluj.ro <sup>2</sup>Université Libre de Bruxelles 50, Avenue Franklin Roosevelt, B-1050, Brussels, Belgium

*Abstract* — The present paper approaches the comparative design and analysis of 5 SRM topologies for an EPAS application. Different number of phases and different combination of stator and rotor pole number will be considered, keeping the same main dimensions (outer and inner stator diameter, airgap length, stack length, stator pole height, stator yoke width, rotor pole height) and the same winding per phase (number of turns and wire diameter).

A preliminary sizing of the machine will be carried on, giving the initial geometric data. The key dimensions will be calculated and the winding will be dimensioned. A numerical-based performances analysis will be performed for each case.

*Index Terms* — switched reluctance machine, electrical power assisted steering systems, fault tolerance, conventional and optimization design, numerical field analysis

- [1] A. Freialdenhoven, "Market view on electric power steering (EPS) systems", Advanced Steering Systems Workshop, Germany, Mai 2006.
- [2] D. Iles-Klumpner, "Automotive Permanent Brushless Actuation Technologies", PhD Thesis, Timisoara, Romania, 2005.
- [3] R. Krishnan, R. Arumugan, J.F. Lindsay, "Design Procedure for Switched-Reluctance Motors", Industry Applications, IEEE Transactions on 24 No. 3, 1988.
- [4] S. Huang, J. Luo, F. Leonardi, T.A. Lipo, "A General Approach to Sizing and Power Density Equations for Comparison of Electrical Machines", IEEE Transactions on Industry Applications, Vol.34, No.1, 1998.
- [5] G. Henneberger, I.A. Viorel, "Variable Reluctance Electrical Machines", Shaker Verlag, Aachen, 2001
- [6] P. Vijayraghavan, "Design of Switched Reluctance Motors and Development of a Universal Controller for Switched Reluctance and Permanent Magnet Brushless DC Motor Drives," PhD Thesis, Virginia Polytechnic Institute and State University, USA, 2001.
- [7] H.P. Chi, R.L. Lin, J.F. Chen, "Simplified flux-linkage model for switched reluctance motors", Electric Power Applications, IEE Proceedings Volume 152, Issue 3, 6 May 2005 Page(s): 577 – 583.
- [8] I.A. Viorel, L. Strete, I.F. Soran, "Analytical flux-linkage model of switched reluctance motor", Rev. Roum. Sci. Techn.- Electrotechn. Et Energ, 54, Bucharest, 2009.

# The VSB-01 Portable System for Monitoring Environmental Conditions

Alexandru SUCIU, Vasile BUZDUGA, Gabriela VIZITIU Stefan cel Mare University of Suceava, FIESC alsuciu@stud.usv.ro, vabuzduga@stud.usv.ro, gvizitiu@stud.usv.ro

*Abstract* — Static devices for environmental parameters measurements are widely encountered in practice. Considering the advantages of mobile devices for environmental parameters measurements such as: low cost, posibility to perform measurements in different areas approximately in the same time, we focus our work on the design and the implementation of such mobile device. Further development of our device (VSB-01) is also discussed in this paper.

Index Terms - airpollution, amplifier, capacitor, microphone, sensors

- [1] N.M. Bârlea, Physical sensors, Ed. Blue, Cluj-Napoca 2000
- [2] N.D. Alexandru, Home automation, Ed. Mediamira, Cluj-Napoca 2006
- [3] B.C. Boghițoiu, "Electronics help", Ed. Albatros, Bucuresti 1982
- [4] http://www.tme.eu/ro/katalog/senzori-si- temperature and humidity detectors 100,526 / # id\_category% 3D100526% 26
- [5] http://www.adelaida.ro/index.php?cPath=88\_155 & sort = 2nd & page = 4
- [6] http://www.tme.eu/ro/katalog/artykuly.phtml?search=senzori&idp=1 # search% 3Dsenzori
- [7] www.microchip.com/PIC16F648A datasheet

## Computer Program for Studying the Operation of Gas Turbine Plants

Pavel ATĂNĂSOAE, Gicu OICĂ Combined Heat and Power Plant of Suceava str.Energeticianului nr.1, RO-720166 Suceava patanasoae@sesv.ro; bepa@sesv.ro

*Abstract* — The combined heat and power plants equipped with gas turbines under various alternatives give an attractive solution in ensuring the heat demand under the form of hot water for the residential areas of urban settlements. Recovering the heat contained in the burning gas for steam generation and hot water supply represents the reason for using these plants in cogeneration applications. Lately, it comes out that there are used more and more average and small power solutions placed at consumers which have high performances. The paper presents a computer program made in the Visual Basic language for studying the operation of gas turbine plants. With this program, people are able to perform the thermodynamic analysis of gas turbine plants both in nominal and not nominal working regimes. The paper also presents the results of using the program for a 24 MW gas turbine.

*Index Terms* — thermal power generation, computer aided software engineering, power system modelling, turbines

- [1] G. Darie, Instalații termoenergetice cu turbine cu gaze. Editura Bren, București, 1998.
- [2] T. Chmielniak, W. Kosman, G. Kosman, Simulation modules of thermal processes for performance control of CHP plant with a gas turbine unit. Applied Thermal Engineering 27 (2007) 2181-2187.
- [3] H.I.H Saravanamutto, G.F.C. Rogers, H. Cohen, Gas turbine theory. Pearson Education Limited, 2001.
- [4] I.S. Dumitrescu, V. Athanasovici, Indicatori de eficiență energetică a ciclurilor de cogenerare cu turbine cu abur. Energetica nr.4 (1995) 168-174.

# Kalman Filter Based Tracking in an Video Surveillance System

Caius SULIMAN<sup>1</sup>, Cristina CRUCERU<sup>2</sup>, Florin MOLDOVEANU<sup>3</sup> "Transylvania" University of Braşov No. 29, Eroilor Blvd., RO-69121 Braşov <sup>1</sup>caius.suliman@unitbv.ro, <sup>2</sup> cri.cruceru@yahoo.com, <sup>3</sup>moldof@unitbv.ro

*Abstract* — In this paper we have developed a Matlab/Simulink based model for monitoring a contact in a video surveillance sequence. For the segmentation process and correct identification of a contact in a surveillance video, we have used the Horn-Schunk optical flow algorithm. The position and the behavior of the correctly detected contact were monitored with the help of the traditional Kalman filter. After that we have compared the results obtained from the optical flow method with the ones obtained from the Kalman filter, and we show the correct functionality of the Kalman filter based tracking. The tests were performed using video data taken with the help of a fix camera. The tested algorithm has shown promising results.

Index Terms — Video Surveillance System, Optical Flow, Kalman Filtering, Image Processing, Tracking

- M. A. Ali, S. Indupalli, B. Boufama, "Tracking Multiple People for Video Surveillance," First Intern. Workshop on Video Processing for Security, June 2006.
- [2] B. Benfold, I. Reid, "Guiding Visual Surveillance by Tracking Human Attention," Proc. of the 20th British Machine Vision Conf., September 2009.
- [3] L.M. Fuentes, S.A. Velastin, "From tracking to advanced surveillance," Proc. of the Intern. Conf. on Image Processing, vol. 3, pp. 121-124, September 2003.
- [4] K.P. Horn, B.G. Schunck, "Determining optical flow," Artificial intelligence, vol. 17, pp. 185-203, 1981.
- [5] C. C. Hsieh, S. S. Hsu, "A Simple and Fast Surveillance System for Human Tracking and Behavior Analysis," Proc. of the 3rd Intern. IEEE Conf. on Signal-Image Technologies and Internet-Based System, pp. 812-818, December 2007.
- [6] F. Jean, R. Bergevin, A.B. Albu, "Body tracking in human walk from monocular video sequences," Proc. of the 2nd Canadian Conf. on Computer and Robot Vision, pp. 144-151, May 2005.
- [7] N. Koenig, "Toward real-time human detection and tracking in diverse environments," Proc. of the 6th IEEE Intern. Conf. on Development and Learning, pp. 94-98, July 2007.
- [8] S. Kong, M.K. Bhuyan, C. Sanderson, B.C. Lovell, "Tracking of Persons for Video Surveillance of Unattended Environments," Proc. of the 19th Intern. Conf. on Pattern Recognition, pp. 1-4, December 2008.
- [9] W. Niu, L. Jiao, D. Han, Y. F. Wang, "Real-time multiperson tracking in video surveillance," Proc. of the 4th Pacific Rim Conf. on Multimedia, vol. 2, pp. 1144-1148, December 2003.
- [10] A.W. Senior, G. Potamianos, S. Chu, Z. Zhang, and A. Hampapur, "A comparison of multicamera person-tracking algorithms," Proc. IEEE Int. Works. Visual Surveillance, May 2006.
- [11] J. Wang, Y.g Yin, H. Man, "Multiple Human Tracking Using Particle Filter with Gaussian Process Dynamical Model," EURASIP Journal on Image and Video Processing, vol. 2008, Article ID 969456, 10 pages, 2008.
- [12] G. Welch, G. Bishop, "An Introduction to the Kalman Filter,", Technical Report: TR95-041, University of North Carolina, 2006.
- [13] J. Yao, J.M. Odobez, "Multi-Camera 3d Person Tracking With Particle Filter In A Surveillance Environment," Proc. of the 16th European Signal Processing Conf., August 2008.

# A Fuzzy Approach Regarding the Optimization of Statistical Process Control through Shewhart Control Charts

Alexandru-Mihnea SPIRIDONICĂ<sup>1</sup>, Marius PISLARU<sup>2</sup>, Romeo-Cristian CIOBANU<sup>3</sup> <sup>1, 2, 3</sup>Technical University "Gheorghe Asachi" of Iasi, Faculty of Electrical Engineering Bd.Profesor Dimitrie Mangeron, nr.51-53, 700050 Iasi, Romania <sup>1</sup>aspiridonica@ee.tuiasi.ro, <sup>2</sup>mpislaru@ee.tuiasi.ro, <sup>3</sup>rciobanu@ee.tuiasi.ro

*Abstract* — The main goal of most organizations, no matter of their nature, object or size, is to be competitive as possible on the market, a crucial factor in ensuring a long operating duration. Unfortunately, the appearance of variation is a very bad and undesirable thing that determine a decrease in the companies productivity. Managing and providing a better view competitiveness can not be given unless we use some statistic models. This models' variables follow closely each step of the process. If in the past years the issue of the control managing of a process wasn't seriously taken into consideration, today more things like more pretentious customers or the growth of the competitiveness level on the products and logistics market, made almost all companies to hire people, especially for the control of the quality. They have to check not only the final products but also the intermediate stages of the process. The aim of this paper is to realize a fuzzy approach based on statistical control techniques concerning on Shewhart control charts. The relationship between statistical process control and fuzzy modeling is a very researched field because the sensitivity of the fuzzy systems is an important advantage in quality analysis of the production process.

*Index Terms* — statistical process control, control charts, special causes, fuzzy logic, double warning limit

- [1] J.S.Oakland, "Statistical Process Control", 5th Edition, University of Leeds Business School, 2003
- [2] D.C.Montgomerry, "Introduction to statistical quality control", 5<sup>th</sup> edition, wiley, New York, 2005
- [3] Ali Riza Motorcu, A.Gullu, "Statistical process control in machining, a case study for machine tool capability and process capability", Technical Education Faculty, Gazi University, Turkey, 2004
- [4] W.A Shewhart (edited and new forwarded be W.E Deming), "Statistical method from the viewpoint of quality control", Dover Publications, New York, USA, 1986
- [5] P.S.Pande, R.P.Neuman, R.R.Cavanagh, "The six-sigma way how GE Motorola and other top companies are honing their performance", McGraw-Hill, New York, 2000
- [6] R.Caulcutt, "The rights and wrongs of control charts", Applied Statistics, vol.44, no.3, pp.279-288
- [7] E.S.Page, "Control charts with warning lines", Biometrics 42, 1955, pp. 243-257
- [8] S.W.Roberts, "Properties of control chart zone test", The Bell System Technical Journal 37, 1958, pp.83-114
- [9] Western Electric, "Statistical Quality Control Handbook", Indianapolis, Indiana, 1965
- [10] L.Zadeh, "Soft computing and fuzzy logic", IEEE Software, 1965
- [11] S.S.Prabhu, D.C.Montgomerry, G.C.Runger, "A combined adaptive sample size and sampling interval control scheme", Journal of Quality Technology 26(3), 1994, pp.164-176.
- [12] L.R.Wang, H.Rowlands, "An approach of fuzzy logic evaluation and control in SPC, Quality and Reliability Engineering", International 16(2), 2000, pp.91-98
- [13] C.Lee, "Fuzzy logic in-control systems: fuzzy logic controller", Parts I and II, IEEE Transactions on Systems Man and Cybernetics, 1990, pp. 404-435

# Multiagent System for Robotic Vision System

Dan FLOROIAN, Florin MOLDOVEANU, Mihai CERNAT Transilvania University of Brasov 29, Eroilor Blvd., RO-500036 Brasov d.floroian@ieee.org

*Abstract* — In this paper we present a robot vision mechanism for a multiagent robotic systems for controlling the behavior of the agents. For implementing this vision mechanism we consider the fuzzy technology which is very versatile in this situation. This mechanism offers the surveillance of the entire set of robots and contributes to their behavior.

*Index Terms* — cooperative systems, intelligent control, robot vision systems, fuzzy control, fuzzy neural network

- [1] M. Aubé, "From Toda's Urge theory to the commitment theory of emotions," Cybernetics and Systems, vol. 32, no. 6, pp. 585-610, Sept. 2001.
- [2] J. Barata, and L.M. Camarinha-Matos, "Multiagent coalitions of manufacturing components for shop floor agility The CoBaSA architecture," Int. J. Networking and Virtual Organisation, vol. 2(1), pp.50-77, 2003.
- [3] T. Gomi, J. Vardalos, and I. Kon-Ichi, "Elements of artificial emotion," Proc. 4th IEEE Workshop on Robot and Human Communication RO-MAN'95, Tokio, pp. 265-268, 1995.
- [4] H. Hashimoto, "Research on friendly networked robotics Remote force sensation," Proc. 35th SICE Annual. Conf. Domestic Session Paper, vol. 101C-6, pp. 21-22, 1996.
- [5] T. Hashimoto, T. Yamaguchi, and J. Miyamichi, "Emotion-orientated man-machine interface for welfare intelligent agent," Japanese Agent Society, vol. 16, no.7, pp. 993-1000, 1998.
- [6] N. Jennings, K. Sycara, and M. Wooldridge, A Roadmap of Agent Research and Development, Boston: Kluwer Academic Publishers, 1998, pp.7-38.
- [7] H. Kobayashi, "Human friendly communication with robot On the aspect of safty," Proc. 35th SICE Annual. Conf. Domestic Session Paper, vol. 101C-10, pp. 29-30, 1996.
- [8] B. Kosko, "Fuzzy cognitive maps," Int. J. Man-Machine Studies, vol. 24, pp. 65-75, 1986.
- [9] S.S. Nestinger, D. Ko, A. Rumer, and H.H. Chevy, "Mobile agent based remote vision sensor fusion," Proc. IEEE/ASME Int. Conf. on Mechatronic and Embedded Syst. and Appl. – MESA 2008, pp. 482-487, Dec. 2008.
- [10] J. Rasmmussen, "Skills, rules and knowledge; signals, signs, and symbols and other distinctions in human performance models," IEEE Trans. on System, Man and Cyber., vol. 13, pp. 257-266, 1983.
- [11] C. Suliman, C. Cruceru, F. Moldoveanu, and C. Suciu, "Person tracking in video surveillance systems using Kalman filter," Int. Conf. on Automation, Quality and Testing, Robotics - AQTR 2010, May 2010, (in press).
- [12] M. Wooldridge, Reasoning about Rational Agents, Cambridge, Massachusetts; London: MIT Press, 2000.
- [13] M. Wooldridge, and N.R. Jennings, "Agent theories, architectures, and languages: A survey," Proc. of ECAI-Workshop on Agent Theory, Architectures and Languages, 1994.
- [14] T. Yamaguchi, S. Mizuno, T. Yoshida, and T. Hashimoto, "Cooperative works for agent robot and human using robot vision based on the model of knowledge, emotion and intention," Proc. IEEE Conf. on System, Man and Cyber. – IEEE SMC'99, vol. 2, pp. 987-992, 1999.
- [15] \*\*\*, Java Agent Development Framework JADE, Available: http://jade.tilab.com/
- [16] \*\*\*, Protégé 2000, Available: http://protege.stanford.edu/
- [17] \*\*\*, XBee, Available: http://www.digi.com

# The use of Fuzzy Modelling Regarding the Assurance of Environmental Protection

Alexandru-Mihnea SPIRIDONICA<sup>1</sup>, Marius PISLARU<sup>2</sup>

<sup>1, 2</sup>Technical University "Gheorghe Asachi" of Iasi, Faculty of Electrical Engineering Bd.Profesor Dimitrie Mangeron, nr.51-53, 700050 Iasi, Romania <sup>1</sup>aspiridonica@ee.tuiasi.ro, <sup>2</sup>mpislaru@ee.tuiasi.ro

*Abstract* — Environmental pollution has become a more stringently problem in recent years. The main reasons for increase of the environmental pollution at the level of the whole planet are represented by the increase of garbage amount and by the lack of special places for it's storage, the increased number of the toxic substances used in many fields of science that leads to a continuous pollution of the breathing air. Finally, another important reason for the increase of environmental pollution is represented by the continuously development of the technology that has a disastrous effect for natural ecosystems. Because of these factors, measures were taken in order to avoid disasters, like the dramatic decreased of ozone layer. Based on some fuzzy modelling, the aim of this paper is to design a system that ensure a better protection of the environment.

*Index Terms* — fuzzy networks, sustainable development, importance-performance analysis, hybrid system

- [1] J.Petts, "Handbook of environmental impact assessment volume 2: Environmental impact assessment in practice: impact and limitations", Blackwell Science Ltd., Oxford, UK, 1999
- [2] L.A.Andriantiatsaholiniaina, V.S.Kouikoglou, Y.A.Phillis, "Evaluating strategies for sustainable development: fuzzy logic reasoning and sensitivity analysis", Ecological Economics 48 (2004), pp.149-172
- [3] G.Atkinson, R.Dubourg, K.Hamilton, M.Munashinge, D.Pearce, C.Young, "Measuring Sustainable Development: Macroeconomics and the Environment", 2nd ed. Edward Elgar, Northampton, 1999
- [4] L.R.Brown, C.Flavin, H.French, "State of the world 2000", Norton, New York, USA, 2000.
- [5] F.Spitz, S.Lek, "Environmental impact prediction using neural network modelling an example in wildlife damage", Journal of Applied Ecology 36(2), pp.317-326, 1999
- [6] R.Gupta, M.A. Kewalramani, R.V.Ralegaonkar, "Environmental impact analysis using fuzzy relation for landfill siting.", Journal of Urban Planning & Development, pp.121-139, 2003
- [7] T.Hudik, "Using machine learning methods in environmental risk assessment overview", Proceedings of 4th International Workshop on Environmental Applications of Machine Learning, Brno University of Technology, Czech Republic, pp.78-82, 2006
- [8] T.Y.Pai, R.J Chou, H.H.Wen, "Evaluating impact level of different factors in environmental impact assessment for incinerator plants using GM (1,N) model", Waste Management, pp.1915-1922, 2008
- [9] P.Van Kouwen, P.P.Schot, M.J.Wassen, "Aframework for linking advanced simulation models with interactive cognitive maps", Environmental Modelling & Software 23 (9), pp.1133-1144, 2008
- [10] L.A. Zadeh, "Fuzzy logic = computing with words", IEEE Transactions on Fuzzy Systems 4(1), pp.103-111, 1996
- [11] J.S.Oakland, "Statistical Process Control", 5th Edition, University of Leeds Business School, 2003
- [12] Y.A.Phillis, L.A.Andriantiatsaholiniaina, "Sustainability: an ill-defined concept and its assessment using fuzzy logic", Ecological Economics 37 (3), pp.435-456, 2001
- [13] J.A.Martilla, J.C.James, "Importance-performance analysis", Journal of Marketing 41 (1), pp.77-79, 1977

# Experience-Based Design and Simulations of a Fuzzy Control System for Cardiovascular Variables

Cristian BOLDIŞOR, Vasile COMNAC member IEEE, Iulian ȚOPA Automatics Department, Transilvania University of Brașov, Romania cristian.boldisor@unitbv.ro

*Abstract* — The control of physiological variables presents specific challenges, mainly due to the highly nonlinear, complex behavior of biological systems. Cardiovascular system stands as a clear example, with critical situations when control is desirable and troublesome in the same time. This paper presents a fuzzy control strategy for two cardiovascular variables, blood pressure and cardiac output, by automatic infusion of two commonly used drugs, sodium nitroprusside and dopamine, respectively. The fuzzy controllers proposed here are PI type, designed by experience, with rules established by interviewing a physician. Simulations are possible, making use of a mathematical model describing the effects of drugs infusion rates on controlled variables. The main goal is achieving the normal and safe values within a reasonable time period. Furthermore, cost reduction by minimized drug consumption and shortened period of clinical treatment is part of the main issues which motivate automation.

*Index Terms* — Cardiovascular system, Drug delivery systems, Fuzzy control, Fuzzy systems, Physiological variables control

### REFERENCES

- [1] K.Behbehain, Russel R.C, "A Controller for Regulation of Mean Arterial Blood Pressure Using optimum Nitroprusside infusion rate", IEEE Trans on Bio-medical Engg., Vol 38,No.6, June 1991.
- [2] V. Sema. R. Roy and H. Kaufman, "Adaptive control of multiple drug infusion," Proc. of the 1983 American Control Conference, San Francisco, 1983, pp. 22-26.
- [3] G.I.Voss, P.G.Katona, " Adaptive multivariable drug delivery: Control of arterial pressure and cardiac output in anesthetized Dogs", IEEE trans on Bio-medical Engineering, Vol. BME-34, No.8, Aug 1987.
- [4] W.D. Timmons, "Cardiovascular models and control", in J.D. Bronzino (ed.), The Biomedical Engineering Handbook (2<sup>nd</sup> edition), Vol. 2, CRC Press, 2000, pp. 160.1-160.18.
- [5] J.J. Batzel, S. Timischl-Teschl and F. Kappel, "A cardiovascular-respiratory control system model including state delay with applications to congestive heart failure in humans", J. of Mathematical Biology, Vol. 50, No. 5, March 2005, pp. 293-335.
- [6] F. Kappel and J.J. Batzel, "Survey of research in modeling the human respiratory and cardiovascular systems", in R.C. Smith and M.A. Demetriou (eds.), Research directions in distributed parameter systems, 2003, SIAM - Society of Industrial and Applied Mathematics, pp. 187-218.
- [7] J. Nie and D. Linkens, Fuzzy-Neural Control: Principles, Algorithms and Applications, Prentice Hall, 1995.
- [8] M.L. Kumar, R. Harikumar, A.K. Vasam, V.K. Sudhaman, "Fuzzy Controller for Automatic Drug Infusion in Cardiac Patients", Proc. of the Int. MultiConference of Engineers and Computer Scientists IMECS 2009, Hong Kong, March 18-20, 2009, pp. 76-80.
- [9] G.W. Neat, Expert Adaptive Control: Method and Medical Application, Ph.D. Thesis, Rensselaer Polytechnic Institute, Troy, NY, 1990.
- [10] D. Moeller, D. Popovic and G. Thiele, "Modeling, Simulation and Parameter-estimation of the Human Cardiovascular System", in Advances in Control Systems and Signal Processing Braunschweig, 1993.

More references are available on-line at www.dasconference.ro.

## A Methodology of Power Demand Prediction

Corina MARTINEAC, Oana ONET, Simona ARDELEAN, Claudiu VERMEŞAN, Mihai HOPÎRTEAN, Tudor VESA Technical University of Cluj-Napoca, FDEE Electrica Distribuție Transilvania Nord, Utrecht University str.C.Daicoviciu nr.15, RO-400020 Cluj-Napoca, str. I. Măcelaru nr 28 A, RO- 40038 Cluj-Napoca, Heidelberglaan 2,3584CS Utrecht, THE NETHERLANDS Corina.Martineac@eps.utcluj.ro, onetz\_oana@yahoo.com, Simona.Ardelean@eps.utcluj.ro, Claudiu.Vermesan@tnd.electrica.ro, M.I.Hopirtean@students.uu.nl, Tudor.Vesa@staff.utcluj.ro

*Abstract* — The end use consumers of energy conversion, transport and distribution determine market demand of energy. This should be balanced by the offer provided by producers in the energy system.

Ensuring the balance between demand and supply in electricity is a complex process of dynamic nature and requires a strict balance of electrical power at each moment for ensuring a stable energy system, since the electricity can not be stored. This balancing of supply and demand of energy must be fulfilled both technically and economically. Recording activity and energy consumption parameters that depend on them is followed by a prediction of consumption and an analysis of the results to improve the final information quality.

The study presented in the paper focuses on predicting trends in energy consumption, holding for database real-time readings of energy consumption related to a calendar year, filed for a distribution operator. The chosen prediction mechanism is the simple linear regression method, since the only variable that was considered is the history of consumption. The presented prediction methodology uses the regression instrument of Excel running linear regression analysis using least squares method to find a line that corresponds to a set of observations.

It was intended that the indexes of quality of energy consumption trend is as good as they can be in order to increase the chances that forecast made to adequately reflect the future actual data and the maximum percentage error is as small as it can be.

Index Terms - load curves, power demand, prediction, statistical indicators, trend

### REFERENCES

- Albert, Hermina., Mihăilescu A. Pierderi de putere şi energie în rețelele electrice. Editura Tehnică, Bucureşti, 1997, ISBN 973-31-1071-X
- [2] Baciu, A., Baciu, C. I. Energia electrică și mediul înconjurător. Editura Tehnică, București, 1982.
- [3] Bott, E. Microsoft office XP. Editura Teora, București, 2002. ISBN- 973-20-0089-9
- [4] Carabogdan I. Gh., Mihăileanu C. Bilanțuri energetice. Editura Tehnică, București, 1986
- [5] Chindriş, M., Cziker, A. C., Miron, Anca, Tomoiagă, B. Managementul energiei electrice Aplicații. Casa Cărții de Știință, Cluj-Napoca, 2009, ISBN 978-973-133-492-9.
- [6] Darie, S., Vădan, I. Producerea, Transportul şi Distribuția Energiei Electrice. Instalații pentru transportul şi distribuția energiei electrice. U.T. PRES, Cluj-Napoca, 2003, ISBN 973-662-036-0.
- [7] Luștrea, B. Prognoza consumului de energie. Editura Agir, București, 2001 ISBN 973-8130-34-4.
- [8] Montgomery, D.C., Jennings, C.L., Kulahci, M. Introduction to time series analysis and forecasting. Wiley & Sons Inc. Publication, New Jersey, 2008, ISBN 978-0-471-65397-4.
- [9] Popescu, Th., Demetriu, S. Practica modelării şi predicției seriilor de timp. Metodologia Box-Jenkins. Editura Tehnică, Bucureşti, 1991, ISBN 973-31-0249-0.
- [10] Preitl, Ş., Precup, R.E. Introducere în conducerea fuzzy a proceselor. Editura Tehnică, București, 1997.

More references are available on-line at www.dasconference.ro.

# μC/OS-II Real Time Kernel port for Cirrus Logic EP93xx platform

Eugen DODIU<sup>1</sup>, Adrian GRAUR<sup>2</sup>, Cristina N. GAITAN<sup>3</sup>, Vasile G. GAITAN<sup>4</sup>, Adrian M. GAITAN<sup>5</sup> <sup>1,2,3,4,5</sup>Stefan cel Mare University of Suceava 13, University Street, RO-720229 Suceava <sup>1</sup>edodiu@usv.ro, <sup>2</sup>adriang@eed.usv.ro, <sup>3</sup>gaitan@eed.usv.ro, <sup>4</sup>cristinag@eed.usv.ro, <sup>5</sup>agaitan@stud.usv.ro

*Abstract* — Real-time systems are a key element for applications where deadlines must be satisfied. The absence of a time constraint in a hard real-time system can cause severe material damage or even life threatening scenarios. This is why the system designer's task is to make proper selection of an embedded operating system that can meet these demands.

Index Terms —  $\mu$ C/OS-II, hard real-time/soft real-time, embedded system, EP9302, real-time scheduling, operating system

- Cottet F., Delacroix J., Kaiser C., Mammeri Z., "Scheduling In Real-Time Systems," John Wiley & Sons Ltd, England, 2002, pp 1-41.
- [2] J. Labrosse, "MicroC/OS-II The Real Time Kernel", 2<sup>nd</sup> Ed, CMP Books, 2002, pp. 20-150.
- [3] Technologic Systems, TS7300 Manual Hardware and Software Revision 1.5 Jul 2008
- [4] Technologic Systems, TS7300 Schematic 1 May 2006, http://www.micrium.com
- [5] Cirrus Logic, EP93xx User Guide, September 2007
- [6] IAR Embedded Workbench, ARM IAR Assembler- Reference Guide
- [7] IAR Embedded Workbench, IDE User Guide, http://www.cirrus.com EP9302 Rev E2 Silicon
- [8] Samsung Electronics, 256Mb H-die SDRAM Specification, Revision 1.0, October 2005

# Analytic Method for Determination of the Amplitude-Phase Transmission Errors Between Selsyns

Gabriel GHIDUS<sup>1</sup>, Alecsandru SIMION<sup>2</sup>, Leonard LIVADARU<sup>3</sup>, Sorin MIHAI<sup>4</sup> <sup>1,2,3,4</sup>"Gheorghe Asachi" Technical University of Iasi 51-53, D. Mangeron Blvd. RO-700050 Iasi <sup>1</sup>gghidus@ee.tuiasi.ro, <sup>2</sup>asimion@ee.tuiasi.ro, <sup>3</sup>livadaru@ee.tuiasi.ro, <sup>4</sup>mihai\_sorin@ee.tuiasi.ro

*Abstract* — The paper presents an analytic method capable to evaluate the transmission errors between two synchros. The method is validated by experimental tests. The system created in this way allows the determination of small errors, like seconds in the transmission of the angular position between a transmitter selsyn and a receiver selsyn.

Index Terms — analytic method, selsyn, transmission errors

- L. Sun, "Analysis and improvement on the Structure of variable reluctance resolver", IEEE Trans Mag., vol. 44, no. 8, pp. 2002-2008, August 2008.
- [2] K. C. Kim, C. S. Jin, J. Lee, "Magnetic shield design between interior permanent magnet synchronous motor and sensor for hybrid electric vehicle", IEEE Trans Mag., vol. 45, no. 6, pp. 2835-2838, July 2009.
- [3] S. Mihai, A. Simion, L. Livadaru, "Fem-based analysis concerning some solutions on the restriction of the space high order harmonics of the two-phase induction machine", Bul. Inst. Polit. Iasi, Tomul LIV(LVIII), Fasc.4, pp. 933-938, 2008.
- [4] D. A. Khaburi, F. Tootoonchian, Z. N. Gheidari, "Parameter Identification of a brushless resolver using change response of stator current", EE, Journal of Electrical, vol. 3, no. 1 & 2, pp. 42-52, Jan. 2007.
- [5] D. C. Hanselmar, R. E. Thibodeau, D. J. Smith., "Variable-reluctance resolver design guidelines," IEEE IECON, New York, pp. 203-208, 1989.
- [6] L. Z. Sun, J. B. Zou, Y. P. Lu, "New variable-reluctance resolver for rotor-position sensing, IEEE conference, pp. 5-8, 2004.
- [7] J. Setbaken, "System performance and application tradeoffs determine the choice between encoders and resolvers in brushless R servos," Power convers, Intell, Motion, vol. 22, no 5, pp.69-76, 1996.
- [8] M. Benammar, L. B. Brahim, M. A. Alhamadi, "A high precision resolver to dc converter," IEEE Trans. Instrum. Meas., vol. 54, no. 6, pp. 2289-2296, Dec. 2005.
- [9] F J. Wan, X. Li, G. Hong, "The analysis and design of high-speed brushless resolver plus R/D converter shaft-angle measurement system," in Electr. Mach. Syst., ICEMS, pp. 289–292, 2001.
- [10] D. C. Hanselman, "Techniques for improving resolver-to-digital conversion accuracy," IEEE Trans. Ind. Electron., vol. 38, no. 6, pp. 501–504, Dec. 1991.
- [11] www.moog.com, Synchro and Resolver Engineering Handbook, MOOG Components Group, 2004.
- [12] K. Masaki, K. Kitazawa, H. Mimura, K. Tsuchimichi, H. Wakiwaka, H. Yamada, "Consideration on the angular error due to the shaft eccentricity and the compensation effect by short-circuit winding on a resolver," J. Magn. Soc. Jpn. 22, pp. 701-704, 1998.

# Thunderstorms as Interactive Component of Global Ecodynamics

V.F. KRAPIVIN<sup>1</sup>, C. NITU<sup>2</sup>, V.Yu. SOLDATOV<sup>1</sup>

<sup>1</sup> V.A. Kotelnikov Institute of Radioengineering and Electronics, Russian Academy of Sciences, <sup>2</sup>University "POLITECHNIKA", Bucharest, Romania, <sup>1</sup>vfk@ms.ire.rssi.ru, <sup>2</sup>cnitu ubp2001@yahoo.com

*Abstract* — An analysis of thunderstorms is realized to understand the interrelation between different atmospheric processes and to assess the tendencies in generation of the atmospherics. In the paper an analytical description of natural atmosphere-electric discharges is given which can be used in modeling of these atmospheric phenomena.

Index Terms — Global ecodynamics, natural disasters, monitoring systems, ecology, atmospheric chemistry

### REFERENCES

- Brown, R. A., Kaufman, C. A., and MacGorman, D. R. (2002). Cloud-to-ground lightening associated with the evolution of a multicell storm. J. Geophys. Res., 107(D19), ACL13/1-ACL13/13.
- [2] Chronis, T. G. and Anagnostou, E. N. (2003). Error analysis for a long-range lightning monitoring network of groundbased receivers in Europe. J. Geophys. Res., 108(D24), ACL8/1-ACL8/10.
- [3] Crawford, J., Davis, D., Olson, J., Chen, G., Liu, S., Fuelberg, H., Hannan, J., Kondo, Y., Anderson, B., Gregory, G., Sachse, G., Talbot, R., Viggiano, A., Heikes, B., Snow, J., Singh, H., and Blake, D. (2000). Evolution and chemical consequences of lightning-produced NO<sub>x</sub> observed in the North Atlantic upper atmosphere. J. Geophys. Res., 105(D15), 19,795-19,809.
- [4] Kondratyev K.Ya, Krapivin V.F., and Varotsos C.A. (2006). Natural Disasters as Interactive Components of Global Ecodynamics. Springer/Praxis, Chichester U.K., 580 pp.
- [5] Krapivin V. F., Kotelnikov V.A., Nitu C. Flexible information technology for the diagnostics of the ocean-atmosphere system instability, Int. Conference Control Systems and Computer Science- CSCS-17, University "Politehnica" of Bucharest, vol.2, pg. 277-280, ISSN 2066-4451, May, Bucharest, 2009
- [6] V.F. Krapivin, C. Nitu, V.Yu. Soldatov Resources and Global Ecodynamics Int. Conference Control Systems and Computer Science- CSCS-17, University "Politehnica" of Bucharest, vol.1., pg.369-372, ISSN 2066-4451, May, Buharest, 2009
- [7] V.F. Krapivin, C. Nitu, V.Yu. Soldatov Direct and inverse problems of the microwave monitoring of the environment, Journal "Control Engineering and Applied Informatic" - CEAI, vol.11, nr.1, pg.56-61, ISSN 1454-8658, Bucharest, 2009
- Y.Kondratyev, V.F.Krapivin, C.Varostos Natural Disasters as Interactive Components of Global-Ecodynamics (Springer Praxis Books / Environmental Sciences), ISBN 10:3:540-3144-3, Berlin 2006
- [9] Kurz, C. and Grewe, V. (2002). Lightning and thunderstorms. Part 1: Observational data and model results. Meteorol. Z., 11(6), 379-392.
- [10] Mansell, E. R., Mac Gorman, D. R., Ziegler, C. L., and Starka, J. M. (2002). Simulated three-dimensional branches lightning in a numerical thunderstorm model. J. Geophys. Res., 107(D9), ACL2/1-ACL2/14.
- [11] Marshall, T. C. and Stolzenburg, M. (2002). Electrical energy constraints on lightning. J. Geophys. Res., 107(D7), ACL1/1-ACL1/13.
- [12] Miki, M., Rakov, V. A., Rambo, K. J., Schnetzer, G. H., and Uman, M. A. (2002). Electric fields near triggered lightning channels measured with Pockels sensors. J. Geophys. Res., 107(D16), ACL2/1-ACL2/11.
- [13] Mo, Q., Helsdon, J. H., and Winn, W. P. (2002). Aircraft observations of the creation of lower positive charges in thunderstorms. J. Geophys. Res., 107(D22), ACL4/1-ACL4/15.
- [14] C.Nitu, A.S.Dobrescu Conducerea proceselor cu reducerea consumului de energie, Ed.MATRIX, pg.164, Bucuresti, 2009

More references are available on-line at www.dasconference.ro.

# Analysis and Simulation of Unbalanced Systems

<sup>1</sup>Virgil MAIER, <sup>2</sup>Antoniu TURCU, <sup>3</sup>Sorin PAVEL, <sup>4</sup>Iulian BIROU Technical University of Cluj-Napoca 15, C-tin Daicoviciu Str., RO-400020 Cluj-Napoca <sup>1</sup>Virgil.Maier@eps.utcluj.ro, <sup>2</sup>Antoniu.Turcu@eps.utcluj.ro, <sup>3</sup>Sorin.Pavel@eps.utcluj.ro, <sup>4</sup>iulian.birou@edr.utcluj.ro

*Abstract* — The correct appreciation of the unbalanced states requires the establishment of the ranges and availability situations for the multitude of known calculus relations. Their verification, as well as the calibration and testing of the virtual instruments, dedicated to the unbalanced states, are demanding the unbalanced phasors system simulation.

The method of the equal modulus and equal, consecutive, phases, developed in the paper, presents the next advantage: the phasors system is defined in comparison with only one variable, this one being the phase between two consecutive phasors. The analytically study on a definition range of this variable  $(2\pi)$ , emphasizes the complete covering of the unbalanced state indicators range, so any type of asymmetries may be described.

The corresponding functions for the symmetrical components, as well as for the unbalanced state indicators, as the dissymmetry and asymmetry coefficients, are analytically and graphically presented.

The approaching of the inverse problem affords the unbalanced states identification, which have to fulfill certain unbalance degrees, expressed through the precised dissymmetry and asymmetry coefficients.

*Index Terms* — calculus relations of the unbalanced states, Stokvis-Fortescue theorem, phasors system, dissymmetry and asymmetry coefficients, iterative calculus method

- [1] Golovanov, Carmen ș.a. Probleme moderne de măsurare în electroenergetică (in Romanian). București: Editura Tehnică, 2001.
- [2] Iordache, Mihaela și Conecini, I. Calitatea energiei electrice. (in Romanian). București: Editura Tehnică, 1997.
- [3] Maier, V. şi Maier, C.D. LabVIEW în Calitatea Energiei Electrice, (in Romanian). Ediția a doua, completată. Cluj-Napoca: Editura Albastră, 2000.
- [4] Maier, V., Pavel, S. G. şi Maier, C. D. Ingineria calității şi protecția mediului. (in Romanian). Cluj-Napoca: Editura U. T. PRESS, 2007.
- [5] Maier, V. şi Maier, C.D. Instrument Virtual pentru Caracterizarea Regimurilor Nesimetrice. (in Romanian). În: Revista de Instrumentație Virtuală (RIV), 4(12)/2000, pag. 116-123.
- [6] PE 143/2001 Normativ privind limitarea regimului deformant și nesimetric în rețelele electrice. (in Romanian). București, ISPE, 2001.

# Hybrid Electric Vehicle Experimental Model with CAN Network Real Time Control

Gheorghe LIVINȚ, Vasile HORGA, Daniel STICEA, Marcel RĂŢOI, Mihai ALBU "Gh.Asachi" Technical University of Iași, Bvd. Dimitrie Mangeron, nr. 23, RO-700050, Iași, glivint@tuiasi.ro, horga@tuiasi.ro, danisticea@yahoo.com ratoi@tuiasi.ro, albu@tuiasi.ro

*Abstract* — In this paper an experimental model with a distributed control system of a hybrid electrical vehicle is presented. A communication CAN network of high speed (1 Mbps) assures a distributed control of the all components. The modeling and the control of different operating regimes are realized on an experimental test-bench of a hybrid electrical vehicle. The experimental results concerning the variations of the mains variables (currents, torques, speeds) are presented.

Index Terms — CAN network, experimental model, hybrid electrical vehicle, real time control

- [1] H. Boterenbrood, "CANopen high-level protocol for CAN-bus", NIKHEF, Amsterdam March 20, 2300, Versiunea 3.0.
- [2] S. Comigan, "Introduction to the Controller Area Network (CAN)", Texas Instruments Application Report, SLOA101-August 2002, pp. 1-16.
- [3] V. R. Chacko, V.Z. Lahaparampil, V. Chandrasekar, "CAN based distributed real time controller implementation for hybrid electric vehicle", 0-7803-9280-9-05/2005IEEE, 247- 251.
- [4] J. Duan, J. Xiao, M. Zhang, "Framework of CANopen protocol for a hybrid electric vehicle", Proceedings of the IEEE Intelligent Vehicles Symposium Instanbul, Turkey, June 13-15, 2007.
- [5] Gh. Livint, R. Gaiginschi, V. Horga, R. Drosescu, G. Chiriac, M. Albu, M. Ratoi, I. Damian, M. Petrescu, "Vehicule electrice hibride", Casa de Editura Venus, Iasi, 2006.
- [6] Siemens, Sinamics, S120 Control Unit and additional system components, 03, 2007 Edition.
- [7] CANopen User Manual, Software Manual, July 2004, PHYTE Technology Holding Company
- [8] Gh.Livinţ, V. Horga, M. Răţoi, "Distributed control system for a hybrid electric vehicle implemented with CANopen protocol" – Part I, Bulletin of the Polytechnic Institute of Iasi, tom LIV (LVIII), FASC. 4, 2008, ISSN 1223-8139, pp. 1019-1026
- [9] Gh.Livinţ, V. Horga, M. Răţoi, M. Albu, M. Petrescu, G. Chiriac, "Distributed control system for a hybrid electric vehicle implemented with CANopen protocol" – Part II, Bulletin of the Polytechnic Institute of Iasi, tome LIV (LVIII), FASC. 4, 2008, ISSN 1223-8139, pp.1027-1032
- [10] Gh.Livinţ, V. Horga, M. Răţoi, I. Damian, M. Albu M.,G. Chiriac, "Advanced real rime control algorithms for hybrid electric vehicles optimization", CEEX Program, Simpozion "Contributii Stiintifice", UCP AMTRANS, noiembrie 2008, pp. 209-214
- [11] Gh. Livinţ, V. Horga, M. Răţoi, M. Albu, G. Chiriac "Implementing the CANopen protocol for distributed control for a hybrid electric vehicle", Proceedings The 8th International Symposium on Advanced Electromechanical Motion Systems, Lille, July 1-3, 2009, CD., ISBN: 978-2-915913-25-5/EAN: 978291591325
- [12] M. Ehsani, Y. Gao, S.E. Gay, A. Emadi, "Modern Electric, Hybrid Electric, and Fuel Cell Vehicles", CRC PRESS, 2005, ISBN 0-8493-3154-4
- [13] V.Horga, I.Doroftei, M. Răţoi, "CANopen protocol for the distributed control of an omnidirectional mobile robot", European Journal of Mechanical and Environmental Engineering, Volume 2010, Issue 1.

# The Iterative Algorithm of Tuning Controllers to the Model Object with Advance and Inertia Second Order

Bartolomeu IZVOREANU Technical University of Moldova, Ştefan cel Mare av., 168, MD 2004, Chişinau, Republic of Moldova izvor@mail.utm.md

*Abstract* — This paper proposes an iterative algorithm of tuning the typical controllers PI, PID to the model objects with advance and inertia (second order). The proposed algorithm is using the maximal stability degree method for tuning controllers. As the result of this study the algorithm of tuning controllers and the procedure of determining the system's performance in dependence of maximal stability value is proposed.

Index Terms — the iterative algorithm, the maximal stability degree method, tuning of controllers

- R. K. Dorf, R. X. Bishop. Sovremennîe sistemî upravlenia (Modern Control Systems). Moskva: Laboratoria Bazovîh Znanii, -832 s., 2004.
- [2] Ş. Preitl, R. E. Precup. Introducere în ingineria reglării automate, Timișoara: Editura Politehnica, 334 p., 2001.
- [3] G. I. Zagarii, A. M. Shubladze. Sintez system upravlenia na osnove criteria maximalnoi stepeni ustoichivosti. (The Synthesis of the Control System According to the Maximal Stability Degree), Moskva: Energoatomizdat, 198 s., 1998.
- [4] N. Tan, D. P. Atherton Design of stabilizing PI and PID controllers. In: International Journal of Systems Science, Vol. 37 Issue 8, pp. 543-554, 2006.
- [5] B. Izvoreanu, I. Fiodorov. The Synthesis of Linear Regulators for Aperiodic Objects with Time Delay According to the Maximal Stability Degree Method.//In Preprints the Fourth IFAC Conference on System Structure and Control, Bucureşti: Editura Tehnică, pp. 449 – 454, 1997,.
- [6] B. Izvoreanu, I. Fiodorov, F. Izvoreanu. The Tuning of Regulator for Advance Delay Objects According to the Maximal Stability Degree Method / In: Proceedings of the 11th International Conference on Control Systems and Computer Science (CSCS- 11), București, V.I. – pp. 179-184, 1997.

# Tuning Controllers in the Multiple-Loop Feedback Control System to the Objects with Inertia, Time Delay and Non Minimal Phase

### Irina COJUHARI

Technical University of Moldova Ştefan cel Mare av., 168, MD 2004, Chişinău, Republic of Moldova cojuhari\_irina@yahoo.com

*Abstract* — This paper proposes a tuning algorithm of linear controllers P, PI, PID in the multipleloop feedback control systems. The control object consists of two subprocesses, which are described by the dynamical models with inertia (first and second order), time delay and non minimal phase. The controllers in the internal contour and in the external contour tuning use the maximal stability degree method. P and PI controllers are used in the internal contour and P, PI, PID controllers are used in the external contour.

*Index Terms* — multiple-loop feedback control system, tuning of controllers, internal contour, external contour, non minimal phase, time delay, maximal stability degree method

- V. Ia. Rotach, Teoria avtomaticheskogo upravlenia termoenergheticheskimi protzessami. Moskva: Energoatomizdat, 292 s, 1985.
- [2] V. A. Lukas, Teoria avtomaticheskogo upravlenia. Moskva: Nedra, 416 s, 1990.
- [3] I. Dumitrache și al., Automatizări electronice. București: EDP, 660 p., 1993.
- [4] Tan N., Atherton D. P., Design of stabilizing PI and PID controllers. In: International Journal of Systems Science, Vol. 37 Issue 8. pp.543-554, 6/20/2006.
- [5] B. Izvoreanu, I. Fiodorov, F. Izvoreanu, The Tuning of Regulator for Advance Delay Objects According to the Maximal Stability Degree Method / In: Proceedings of the 11th International Conference on Control Systems and Computer Science (CSCS-11), Bucureşti, V.I. pp. 179-184, 1997.
- [6] Izvoreanu B., Fiodorov I., Cojuhari I, Tuning of Controllers to the Third Order Advance Delay Objects / In: Proceedings of the 5th International Conference on Microelectronics and Computer Science (ICMCS-2007), Chişinău, V.I., pp. 250-253, 2007.

# Fuzzy Model for Sustainability Assurance Related to Environmental Protection

Marius PISLARU, Alexandru TRANDABAT, Cristina SCHREINER, Alexandru SPIRIDONICA "Gheorghe Asachi" Technical University of Iasi Bd. Dimitrie Mangeron nr. 67,RO- 700050 Iaşi mpislaru@ee.tuiasi.ro

*Abstract* — This paper aims to build a system based on fuzzy models that can be implemented in the assessment of ecological systems, to determine appropriate methods of action for reducing adverse effects on environmental and implicit the population. It is noted that this subject of research represent a high interest current in the world. In situations difficult to approach methods with modeling conventional, are proposed as a reliable alternative pathways to fuzzy logic-based modeling. Information systems may determine, based on data supplied by the beneficiary (government agencies, local authorities, economic agents), appropriate methods of action for reducing adverse effects on industry, agriculture, forestry, water management and human settlements. Fuzzy algorithms in this field is new, and presume definition, clear delimitation and the analysis of the system which performing the tasks specified.

Index Terms - environmental assessment, fuzzy model, sustainability

- Yannis A. Phillis, Vassilis S. Kouikoglou"Fuzzy Measurement of Sustainability" Nova Science Publishers, ISBN-13 / EAN: 9781606920527, (2009)
- [2] Zadeh LA (1983) "The role of fuzzy logic in the management of uncertainty in expert systems," Fuzzy Sets and Systems, Vol. 11, pp. 199–227.
- [3] Atkinson G., Dubourg R., Hamilton K., Munashinge M. Pearce D., (Eds), (1999), "Measuring Sustainable Development: Macroeconomics and the Environment", Second Edition, Edward Elgar, Northampton
- [4] Prescot-Allen R., (1996), "Barometer of Sustainability: A Method of Assessing Progress towards Sustainable Societies", PADATA, Victoria Canada, IUCN, Gland, Switzerland.
- [5] O. Castillo, W. Pedrycz, J. Kacprzyk "Evolutionary Design of Intelligent Systems in Modeling, Simulation and Control (Studies in Computational Intelligence)" Publisher:Springer, ISBN-10 / ASIN: 3642045138,2009
- [6] Andriantiatsaholiniaina L., Kouikoglou VS, Phillis YA "Evaluating strategies for sustainable development: fuzzy logic reasoning and sensitivity analysis", Ecological Economics, Vol. 48, No 2, pp. 149–172., 2004

# Mechanical-electrical Optoisolator Transducer with current-to-frequency Conversion

Ioan Marcel CIURUŞ<sup>1</sup>, Mihai DIMIAN<sup>2</sup>, Adrian GRAUR<sup>3</sup> <sup>1,2,3</sup>"Ştefan cel Mare" University of Suceava, Romania str.Universitatii nr.13, RO-720229 Suceava <sup>1</sup>marcelciurus@usv.ro, <sup>2</sup>dimian@eed.usv.ro, <sup>3</sup>adrian.graur@usv.ro

*Abstract* — A novel design for a mechanical-electrical transducer is presented in this article along with the preliminary testing of the transducer prototype. By using a Polaroid optocoupler as the motion sensor, this device combines the transducer feature to convert mechanical signals to electrical ones with the optoisolator feature of galvanic separation between two voltage modules. Signal conditioning circuit is a current-to-frequency converter, while the obtained signals are logically compatible and can be processed by a microprocessor. The device is aimed for application in the areas of automation and mechatronics.

Index Terms — Current-to-frequency conversion, Optical polarization, Optoelectronics, Polaroid optocoupler, Transducer

- [1] J. Corda and J.K. Al-Tayie, "Enhanced performance variable-reluctance transducer for linear-position sensing", IEE Proc. Electric Power Applications, vol. 150, pp. 623-628, Sept. 2003.
- [2] A. Drumea, A. Vasile, P. Svasta and I. Ilie, "Modelling and simulation of simple mechatronic system position control solution based on linear variable inductor displacement transducer", Proc. IEEE 2nd Electronics System-Integration Technology Conf., Greenwich, GB, Sept. 2008, pp. 225 – 230.
- [3] K. Tsubata, K. Suzuki, S. Mikami and E.I. Osawa, "Recognition of lawn information for mowing robots", Proc. IEEE 4th Int. Conf. Autonomous Robots and Agents, Wellington, NZ, Feb. 2009, pp.15-20.
- [4] I.M. Ciuruş, "Optocuplor polaroid" (patent pending), OSIM Bucureşti, RO, a2009 00270, 2009.
- [5] D.A. Rauth and V.T. Randal, "Analog-to-digital conversion. part 5", IEEE Instrumentation & Measurement Magazine, vol. 8, pp. 44-54, Oct. 2005.
- [6] http://www.vishay.com/docs/81504/81504.pdf.
- [7] S. Brock and J. Deskur, "The problem of measurement and control of speed in a drive with an inaccurate measuring position transducer", Proc. IEEE 10th Int. Workshop on Advanced Motion Control, Trento, IT, March 2008, pp. 132-136.
- [8] I.M. Ciuruş, "LED-Photoresistor Polaroid Optocouplers", Proc. 3rd Int. Symp. Electrical Engineering and Energy Converters, Suceava, RO, Sept. 2009, pp. 257-262.
- [9] M. Ciugudean et al., "Circuite integrate liniare. Aplicații", Editura Facla, Timișoara, RO, 1986, ch. 7, sec. 7.2, pp. 218-227.

# A Short Survey on Applications of Rough Sets Theory in Power Engineering

Ioana PISICĂ, Petru POSTOLACHE

University Politehnica of Bucharest, Electrical Power Systems Department Splaiul Independenței 313, RO-060042 Bucharest ioanapisica@gmail.com

*Abstract* — Rough Set theory has proved to be an adequate technique in imperfect data analysis, which has found interesting extensions and various applications. It can be regarded as complementary to other theories that deal with imperfect knowledge, such as Bayesian inference or fuzzy sets. The paper presents some Rough Set Theory applications in electrical power engineering.

Index Terms — data management, information systems, knowledge based systems, knowledge engineering, power systems

### REFERENCES

- [1] Z. Pawlak, Rough sets, J. ComputationalInformation Sciences, vol.11, 1982, pp.341-345.
- [2] Z. Pawlak, Classification of Objects by Means of Attributes, Reports, vol. 429, 1981, Institute of Computer Science, Polish Academy of Sciences, Warsaw, Poland.
- [3] Z. Pawlak, Rough Relations, Reports, vol. 435, 1981, Institute of Computer Science, Polish Academy of Sciences, Warsaw, Poland
- [4] Z. Pawlak, Information systems-theoretical foundations, Information Systems 6 (1981), 205–218
- [5] Y. Sai, P. Nie, R. Xu, J. Huang, A Rough Set Approach to Mining Concise Rules from Inconsistent Data, IEEE International Conference on Granular Computing, pp. 333–336, 10-12 May 2006
- [6] J.H. Nasiri, M. Mashinchi, Rough Set and Data Analysis in Decision Tables, Journal of Uncertain Systems, Vol.3, No.3, pp.232-240, 2009
- [7] Duo Chen, Du-Wu Cui, Chao-Xue Wang, Zhu-Rong Wang, A Rough Set-Based Hierarchical Clustering Algorithm for Categorical Data, International Journal of Information Technology, Vol.12, No.3, 2006
- [8] J. Bisaria, N. Srivastava, K. R. Pardasani, A Rough Set Model for Sequential Pattern Mining with Constraints, (IJCNS) International Journal of Computer and Network Security, Vol. 1, No. 2, Nov. 2009
- [9] A. Chouchoulas, Q. Shen, Rough set-aided keyword reduction for text categorisation. Applied Artificial Intelligence, vol. 15, 2001, pp. 843–873.
- [10] R. Slowinski, Rough classification of HSV patients, In: Slowinski, R. (ed.), Intelligent Decision Support, Handbook of Applications and Advances of the Rough Set Theory, pp.77-93, 1992.
- [11] H. Tanaka, H. Ishibuchi, T. Shigenaga, Fuzzy inference system based on rough sets and its applications to medical diagnostic, Intelligent Decision Support, Handbook of Applications and Advances of the Rough Set Theory, pp.111-117, 1992.
- [12] J. Jelonek, J. Stefanowski, Feature subset selection for classification of histological images. Artificial Intelligence in Medicine 9(3), 1997.
- [13] K. Slowinski, R. Slowinski, J. Stefanowski, Rough sets approach to analysis of data from peritoneal lavage in acute pancreatitis. Medical Informatics 13(3), 1998, 143–159.
- [14] R. Slowinski, C. Zopounidis, Sough set sorting of firms according to bankruptcy risk, Applying Multiple Criteria Aid for Decision to Environmental Management, pp.339-357, 1994.
- [15] R. Slowinski, C. Zopounidis, Applications of the rough set approach to evaluation of bankruptcy risk, International Journal of Intelligent Systems in According Finance and Management, vol.4, 1995, 27-41.
- [16] A. Czyzewski, Automatic identification of sound source position employing neural networks and rough sets. Pattern Recognition Letters 24(6), 2003, 921–933.
- [17] A. Czyzewski, R. Krolikowski, Neuro-rough control of masking thresholds for audio signal enhancement. Neurocomputing 36, 2001, 5–27.

More references are available on-line at www.dasconference.ro.

# Middleware Based Model of Heterogeneous Systems for SCADA Distributed Applications

Nicoleta-Cristina GĂITAN<sup>1</sup>, Vasile Gheorghiță GĂITAN<sup>2</sup>, Ștefan Gheorghe PENTIUC<sup>3</sup>, Ioan UNGUREAN<sup>4</sup>, Eugen DODIU<sup>5</sup> Ștefan cel Mare University of Suceava str.Universitătii nr.13, RO-720229 Suceava<sup>1</sup>cristinag@eed.usv.ro, <sup>2</sup>gaitan@eed.usv.ro, <sup>3</sup>pentiuc@eed.usv.ro, <sup>4</sup>ioanu@eed.usv.ro, <sup>5</sup>edodiu@usv.ro

*Abstract* — Infrastructure underlying the distributed information systems is heterogeneous and very complex. Middleware allows the development of distributed information systems, without knowing the functioning details of an infrastructure, by its abstracting. An essential issue on designing such systems is represented by choosing the middleware technologies. An architectural model of a SCADA system based on middleware is proposed in this paper. This system is formed of servers that centralize data and clients, which receive information from a server, thus allowing the chart displaying of such information. All these components own a specific functionality and can exchange information, by means of a middleware bus. A middleware bus signifies a software bus, where more middleware technologies can coexist.

Index Terms — middleware, SCADA, client-server technology, heterogeneous system, distributed system

- [1] D. Eberle, Semantic Management of Middleware. Springer, ISBN 978-0-387-27630-4, 2006.
- S. Krakowiak. Middleware Architecture with Patterns and Frameworks. Distributed under a Creative Commons license, http://creativecommons.org/licenses/by-nc-nd/3.0/, 2009.
- [3] J.Waldo,; G. Wyant,; A. Wollrath,; S. Kendall. A Note on Distributed Computing. In Vitek, J. and Tschudin, C., editors, Mobile Object Systems: Towards the Programmable Internet, volume 1222 of Lecture Notes in Computer Science, Springer Verlag, 1997, pages 49–64.
- [4] D. Karastoyanova,; A. Buchmann, COMPONENTS, MIDDLEWARE AND WEB SERVICES. In IADIS International Conference WWW/Interne, Volume II, IADIS, 2003.
- [5] R. E. Schantz, D. C. Schmidt. Middleware for Distributed Systems, Evolving the Common Structure for Networkcentric Applications. Wiley Encyclopedia of Computer Science and Engineering, 2008.

# Time of Arrival Based on Chirp Pulses as a means to Perform Localization in IEEE 802.15.4a Wireless Sensor Networks

Anneleen VAN NIEUWENHUYSE, Jeroen WYFFELS, Jean-Pierre GOEMAERE, Lieven DE STRYCKER, Bart NAUWELAERS DraMCo Research Group Katholieke Hogeschool Sint-Lieven, Gent, Belgium – KU Leuven Gebroeders Desmetstraat 1, B-9000 Gent anneleen.vannieuwenhuyse@kahosl.be dramco@kahosl.be

*Abstract* — This paper introduces the technology Time of Arrival (TOA) based on chirp pulses (according to IEEE 802.15.4a) as a means to perform localization in Wireless Sensor Networks (WSN's) active at 2.4 GHz. Advantages and disadvantages of the technology are discussed and act as a guideline for improving localization accuracy. Tests concerning TOA are performed by means of the location engine of Nanotron. Adapting this engine leads to improved localization results. It is shown that TOA measurements are susceptible to reflections and dynamic environments.

Index Terms - Chirp Pulses, Localization, RF, Time of Arrival, Wireless Sensor Networks

- [1] N. Patwari, "Location estimation in sensor networks," pp. 22–34, 2005.
- [2] Real Time Location Systems (RTLS) White paper, version 1.02, NA-06-0148-0391-1.02, Nanotron.
- [3] nanoLOC Development Kit User Guide, version 1.03, NA-06-0230-0402-1.03, Nanotron.
- [4] Y. Jiang and V. Leung, "An Asymmetric Double Sided Two-Way Ranging for Crystal Offset," IEEE 1-4244-1449-0/07, pp. 525- 528, 2007.
- [5] J. Lampe, R. Hach, L. Menzer, K.-K. Lee and J.-W. Chong, "DBO-CSS PHY Presentation for 802.15.4a," IEEE 15-05-0126-01-004a, 2005.
- [6] A.T. Ali, H. Sayed and N. Khajehnouri, "Network-based wireless location," pp. 27–28, 2005.
- [7] N. Patwari, "Location estimation in sensor networks", A dissertation submitted in partial fulfilment of the requirements for the degree of Doctor of Philosophy (Electrical Engineering: Systems), University of Michigan, 2005.
- [8] Van Nieuwenhuyse A., Ottoy G., Goemaere J-P., De Strycker L., "Indoor Localisation Techniques: Comparison between the Use of RSS and TOA," Proceedings of the Third European Conference on the Use of Modern Information and Communication Technologies, ISBN 9-78908082-553-6, 2008.
- [9] A. Hein, "Processing of SAR DATA- Fundamentals, Signal Processing, Interferometry," ISBN 3-540-05043-4,pp23-44, 2004.
- [10] nanoNET Chirp Based Wireless Networks White paper, version 1.04, NA-04-0000-0298-1.04, Nanotron.
- [11] The Kolmogorov-Smirnov test at: http://www.physics.csbsju.edu/stats/KS-test.html
- [12] S. Chandran, "Advances in Direction-of-Arrival Estimation," ISBN 1-59693-004-7, 2006.
- [13] ZigBee Alliance, ZigBee Specification, ZigBee Document 053474r17, January 2008.
- [14] K. D'hoe, G. Ottoy, J.-P. Goemaere, L. De Strycker, "Indoor Room Location Estimation," Advances in Electrical and Computer Engineering, Volume 8, Number 2, ISSN 1582-7445, pp 78-81, 2008.

# A New Family of CSK Signals

Nicolae Dumitru ALEXANDRU "Gheorghe Asachi" Technical University of Iaşi Bd.Carol I No.11, RO-700506 Iaşi, Romania nalex@etti.tuiasi.ro

*Abstract* — A new family of CSK pulses with good spectral properties defined on the time interval [-T, T] is proposed and its spectral properties are investigated. Imposing the condition that the signals of this family should exhibit a large number of derivatives which are continuous and equal to zero at the ends of the time interval [-T, T], the expressions of Fourier transforms of the component signals are deduced. So, exact analytical formulae for the power spectral densities (p.s.d.) of these signals can be derived.

The asymptotic decay rate of the envelope of power spectral density can be made small enough. These pulses are of interest in digital communications and in particular in wireless transmissions, as the intercarrier interference is diminished.

*Index Terms* — Digital communication, digital modulation Fourier transforms, frequency domain analysis, pulse analysis

- [1] J.G.Proakis, M. Salehi, Communication Systems Engineering, Prentice Hall, 1994.
- [2] B Reiffen, et al., "On Low Crosstalk Data Communication and its Realization by Continuous-Frequency Modulation Schemes", IEEE Transactions on Communications, COM-26, 131-135, (Jan. 1978)
- [3] P.Cotae, N.D.Alexandru, "A Class of Generalized Constant Envelope Shaping Functions", Int. Journal of Electronics and Communications (AEU), Vol. 46, No. 2, March 1992, pp. 102-106.
- [4] M.C Austin, M.U. Chang, "Quadrature Overlapped Raised-Cosine Modulation", IEEE Trans., 1981, Vol. COM-29, pp. 237-249.
- [5] N. C. Beaulieu and M. O. Damen, "Parametric construction of Nyquist-I pulses," IEEE Trans. Commun., vol. 52, pp. 2134-2142, Dec. 2004.
- [6] Ziemer R.E. and Peterson, R.L., Introduction to Digital Communication, Prentice Hall, 2001
- [7] B.Sklar, Digital Communications: Fundamentals and Applications, 2/ed, Prentice Hall, 2001
- [8] N.D.Alexandru, L.A Onofrei, Improved Nyquist filters, POLITEHNIUM, Iaşi, 2009.
- [9] T. Őberg, Modulation, Detection and Coding, J.Wiley, 2001

# Some Useful Properties of STBC Codes for Residential Applications

Angela DARIE, Mihai GHENGHEA, Ion BOGDAN "Gheorghe Asachi" Technical University of Iasi Dept. Telecommunications, Blvd. Carol I nr. 11 700506 IASI, ROMANIA adarie@etti.tuiasi.ro;mghenghea@etti.tuiasi.ro;bogdani@etti.tuiasi.ro

*Abstract* — Main drawbacks of Wi-Fi home networks are inadequate range and coverage. A way to improve both of them is the use of transmit diversity, which also increases network throughput by finding paths with highest data rates and avoiding signal paths that induces packet errors and retransmissions. The main idea of the transmit diversity is the use of space-time coding (STC) techniques that spread the same information across different antennas at the transmitter in order to obtain a transmit diversity. This paper aims to study coherent space-time block codes to estimate the channel coefficients in the presence of flat fading. It focuses on the popular transmit diversity scheme of Alamouti assuming a flat fading Rayleigh multipath channel and BPSK and QPSK modulation schemes.

*Index Terms* — Space Time Coding, Transmit Diversity, Zero Forcing algorithm, Alamouti code, channel state information at the receiver

- S.M. Alamouti, A simple transmit Diversity for Wireless Communication, IEEE Select Areas in Communication, vol.16 8, Oct 1998
- [2] Lori Anne Dalton, New Orthogonal Space-Time Block Codes With Full Diversity, Master of Science Thesis, December 2002
- [3] David Gesbert, Mansoor Shafi, Da-shan Shiu, Peter J. Smith and Ayman Naguib, From Theory to Practice: An overview of MIMO Space-Time Coded Wireless Systems, IEEE J. Select Areas Commun., vol.31, no.3, April 2003
- [4] A.J. Paulraj, D. Gore, R.U. Nabar, and H. Bölcskei, An Overview of MIMO Communications A Key to Gigabit Wireless, Proceedings of the IEEE Vol. 92, Issue 2, Feb 2004
- [5] I. Emre Telatar, Capacity of multiantenna Gaussian channels, AT&T Bell Laboratories, Tech. Memo., June 1995.

## Spectral Analysis of Three Miller-like Codes

Nicolae Dumitru ALEXANDRU "Gheorghe Asachi" University of Iaşi Bd.Carol I No.11, RO-700506 Iaşi, Romania nalex@etti.tuiasi.ro

*Abstract* — There is a variety of codes that derive from the delay modulation or Miller code. Unlike Miller code, some are D.C.-constrained. They are also RLL (*Run-Length Limited*). A thorough spectral analysis of three DC-free Miller-like codes was performed. The derived coding factor formulae and the p.s.d. representations confirm the D.C.-free properties of this code.

Index Terms - Codes, Digital filters, Markov processes, Spectral analysis

- Ferreira, H., "On DC free Magnetic Recording Codes Generated by Finite State Machines", IEEE Trans. Magnetics, vol. MAG-19, No 6, pp.2691-2693, Nov.1983
- [2] Isailovic, "Realisation of a decoder for two MFM codes", Electronics Lett., vol.17, No 3, pp.117-118, Febr.1981
- [3] P Radev, G. Stoianov, "New 1B2B line code for digital fibre optic transmission systems", Electronics Lett., vol. 20, No 8, pp.355-356, April 1984
- [4] K.A. Schouhammer.Immink, Coding Techniques for Digital Recorders. Prentice Hall, 1991
- [5] N.D. Alexandru, and G. Morgenstern, Digital Line Codes and Spectral Shaping. Matrix ROM, Bucharest, 1998.
- [6] N.D. Alexandru, and Dae Young Kim, Spectral Shaping via Coding, CERMI, Iaşi, 2003.
- [7] J. Justesen, "Calculation Of Power Spectra for Block Coded Signals", IEEE Trans. Commun. Vol 49, No 3, pp.389-392, March 2001.
- [8] N.D. Alexandru, and C. Chatellier, "Extending the Calculation of Correlation Function for 1I nO Block Coded Signals", in Proc. SCS2003, Iaşi, Romania, pp. 629-632, 2003
- [9] G. S. Poo, "Computer aids for code spectra calculations," Proc. IEE, vol. 128, pt. F, No. 5, pp. 323, 1981.
- [10] G.L. Cariolaro, G.L. Pierobon, and G.P. Tronca, "Analysis of codes and spectra calculations", Internat. Jnal of Electronics, vol.55, No.1, pp.35-79, 1983.

# A New Evolutionary Approach for Base Station Transmitter Placement

Shahriar MAHBUB<sup>1</sup>, Nusrat SHARMIN<sup>2</sup> Department of Computer Science "Lucian Blaga" University of Sibiu E. Cioran Str., No. 4, Sibiu - 550025, ROMANIA <sup>1</sup>shahriar.mahbub, <sup>2</sup>nusrat.sharmin@ulbsibiu.ro

*Abstract* — In the designing of a mobile phone network (cellular network) it is very important to place the base stations optimally for the cheaper and better customer service. As this is a NP-hard optimization problem so heuristic approach is a good choice. We propose a new evolutionary approach to solve base station transmitter location (BST-L) problem. The algorithm is designed to meet two main objectives. One is to cover all demands of the service area and another is minimizing the interference as much as possible. In our proposed approach, we use only mutation operator. To make the process efficient random and problem-specific knowledge is used in the operator.

*Index Terms* — BST-L problem, Cellular Systems, Evolutionary Algorithm, interference minimization, mutation

- Nicole Weicker, Gabor Szabo, Karsten Weicker, and Peter Widmayer, "Evolutionary Multiobjective Optimization for Base Station Transmitter Placement with Frequency Assignment", IEEE TRANSACTIONS ON EVOLUTIONARY COMPUTATION, VOL. 7, NO. 2, APRIL 2003.
- [2] Geetali Vidyarthi, Alioune Ngom, and Ivan Stojmenovi'c, "Combinatorial Evolutionary Methods in Wireless Mobile Computing", Kluwer Academic Publishers, 2005.
- [3] Kurt Tutschku, Rudolf Mathar, and Thomas Niessen, "Interference Minimization in Wireless Communication Systems by Optimal Cell Site Selection", 3rd European Personal Mobile Communication Cenferrence, MARCH 1999.
- [4] Larry Raisanen\_, Roger M. Whitaker, and Steve Hurley, "A comparison of randomized and evolutionary approaches for optimizing base station site selection", Proceedings of the 2004 ACM symposium on Applied computing, PP. 1159 – 1161, 2004.
- [5] K. Tutschku, T. Leskien, and P. Tran-Gia, "Traffic estimation and characterization for the design of mobile communication networks," Univ. of Würzburg, Würzburg, Germany, Tech. Rep. 171, ser. Inst. of Comput. Sci. Res. Rep. Series, 1997.
- [6] Mischa Schwartz, Mobile Wireless Communications. Cambridge University Press, 2005.
- [7] T Back, Evolutionary Algorithms in Theory and Practice. Oxford University Press, New York, 1996.

### An Optimization of Gaussian UWB Pulses

Adrian POPA

"Gheorghe Asachi" Technical University of Iaşi Bd.Carol No.11, RO-700.506 Iaşi, Romania padirovs@gmail.com

*Abstract* — UWB is a new interesting technology for wireless communications. It can replace traditionally carrier-based radio transmission by pulse-based transmission using ultrawide band frequency but at a very low energy. An important aspect of research in this domain is to find a pulse with an optimal shape, whose power spectral density respects and best fits emission limitation mask imposed by FCC.

In this paper we review common used Gaussian pulses and its derivatives and the influence of shape factor, finding an optimal specific value for each derivative. Next, we search to obtain possible better pulse shapes as linear combinations of Gaussian derivatives. Older studies refer in one case to the same shape factor for all derivatives and in other case to higher factor for first derivative and smaller shape factors for subsequent derivatives.

Our new idea is to use Gaussian derivatives, each with its specific optimal shape factor and to use a "trial and error" algorithm to obtain a linear combination pulse with better performance.

Index Terms — Gaussian Monocycle; Shape factor; Trial and error; UWB; Wireless LAN

- Maria-Gabriella Di Benedetto, Luca De Nardis, "Tuning UWB signals by pulse shaping: Towards context-aware wireless networks", in Signal Processing 86 (2006)
- [2] D. Kn Hongsan Sheng, Philip Orlik, Alexander M. Haimovich, "On the Spectral and Power Requirements for Ultra-Wideband Transmission "
- [3] Haolu Xie, Xin Wang, Albert Wang, Bin Zhao, Yumei Zhou "Varying Pulse Width 5th-Derivative Gaussian Pulse Generator for UWB Transceivers in CMOS "
- [4] Federal Communications Commission, "Revision of Part 15 of the commission's rules regarding ultra-wideband transmission systems, First Report and Order. February 14, 2002."
- [5] http://www.wisegeek.com/what-is-uwb.htm
- [6] http://www.qmitw.com/home\_tech.html
- [7] B. Hu, N. C. Beaulieu, "Pulse Shapes for Ultrawideband Communication Systems," IEEE Trans., July 2005
- [8] Oppermann I., Hämäläinen M., Iinatti J.: UWB Theory and Applications, Wiley, 2004
- [9] M. Ghavami, L. Michael, R. Kohno, "Ultra Wideband Signals and Systems in Communication Engineering", Wiley, 2004.

# The Impacts of Temperature on PMD and CD Dispersions during High Speed Optical Communications

Nikola STOJANOVIĆ, Miodrag JELIĆ, Miloš SLANKAMENAC, Miloš ŽIVANOV University of Novi Sad, Faculty of Technical Sciences, Trg Dositeja Obradovića 6, 21000 Novi Sad, Republic of Serbia miloss@uns.ac.rs

*Abstract* — The widespread use of optical fiber networks caused expansion of 10 Gbits and 40 Gbits transmission. These new requirements caused negative impacts like chromatic dispersion (CD) and polarization mode dispersion (PMD). CD and PMD must be measured more accurately and frequently than ever. In this paper both dispersions for 25 km long singlemod fiber in temperature range from - 35°C to 60°C were measured and discussed. Results show that there is a high impact of temperature on measured parameters of the dispersions.

Index Terms — Optical fibers, optical fiber dispersion, chromatic dispersion, polarization mode dispersion

- [1] "Applications Of Nonlinear Fiber Optics", Govind P.Agrawal, 2001
- [2] "Praktikum za laboratorijske vežbe iz optoelektronike", Fakultet tehničkih nauka, Miloš B. Živanov, Miloš Slankamenac, Aleksandar Milinski, Novi Sad 2006.
- [3] Telfor 2008, Serbia, Belgrade, "Ispitivanje optičkih vlakana savremenim instrumentima", Nikola Stojanović, Miloš Slankamenac, Miloš Živanov
- [4] FTB-5700 manual, www.exfo.com

# New High Performance Deterministic Interleavers for Turbo Codes

Georgian Alexandru LAZAR, Nicoleta Roxana BUZATU, Elena COJOCARIU, Lucian TRIFINA, Razvan VIERU "Gheorge Asachi" University of Iasi bd.Carol I nr.11, RO-700506 Iasi lazara@etc.tuiasi.ro

*Abstract* — Turbo codes offer extraordinary performance, especially at low signal to noise ratios, due to a low multiplicity of low weight code words. The interleaver design is critical in order to realize an apparent randomness of the code, thus further enhancing its performance, especially for short block frames. This paper presents four new deterministic interleaver design methods, that lead to highly performing turbo coding systems, namely the block-spread, the block-backtracking and their variations the linearly-spread and linearly-backtracking interleavers. The design methods are explained in depth and the results are compared against some of the most wide-spread turbo code interleavers. Furthermore, the selection method of the generator polynomials used in the simulations is explained.

*Index Terms* — Channel coding, Concatenated coding, Deterministic algorithms, Error correction coding, interleaved coding

- [1] A.H.S Mohammadi, W. Zhuang- "Variance of the Turbo Code Performance Bound over the Interleavers" IEEE Transactions on Information Theory vol. 48, no. 7, july 2002, pp. 2078-2086
- [2] M. C. Valenti and J. Sun-"The UMTS Turbo Code and an Efficient Decoder Implementation Suitable for Software-Defined Radios" International Journal of Wireless Information Networks vol.8, no 4, october 2001, pp. 203-215
- [3] X.Zou, M.Wang, G.Feng –"A New Interleaver Design for Iteratively Decoded Bit-Interleaved Coded Modulation" International Journal of Soft Computing 3 (5), Medwell Journals 2008, pp. 338-343
- [4] P. Robertson-"Illuminating the Structure of Code and Decoder of parallel concatenated recursive systematic (turbo) codes" IEEE International Conference on Communications (ICC) 1994, pp 1298-1303
- [5] B.G. Lee, S. J. Bae, C. K. Jeong, E. K. Joo- "Performance Analysis of Swap Interleaver for Turbo Codes" Electronics Letters, vol 35, no 32, october 1999, pp. 1939-1940
- [6] C. Avenacio-Leon "Analysis of the Dispersion and Spreading Properties of Interleavers for Turbo Codes " Computing Research Conference CRC 2004
- [7] O. Takeshita- "Permutation Polynomial Interleavers: An Algebraic-Geometric Perspective" IEEE Transactions on Information Theory, vol 53, no 6, june 2007
- [8] K. Andrews, C. Heegard, D. Kozen "A Theory of Interlavers" Cornell University Press 1997
- [9] S. Crozier- "New High-Spread High-Distance Interleavers for Turbo-Codes", 20<sup>th</sup> Biennial Symposium on Communications, Kingston, pp 3-7 May 2000
- [10] L. Perez, J. Seghers, D. Costello –"A Distance Spectrum Interpretation of Turbo Codes" IEEE Transactions of Information Theory, special issue on coding and complexity 1996, pp 1698-1709
- [11] R. Garello, F. Chiaraluce, P. Pierleoni, M. Scaloni, S. Benedetto –"On the Error Floor and Free Distance of Turbo Codes" IEEE International Conference on Communications 2001, pp.45-69

# A Comparative Approach on WiMax and LTE Technologies

<sup>1</sup>Mihai-Florentin URSULEANU, <sup>2</sup>Daniel SIMION, <sup>3</sup>Adrian GRAUR and <sup>4</sup>Alin Dan POTORAC <sup>1,2,3,4</sup> Ştefan cel Mare University of Suceava <sup>1,2,3,4</sup> str.Universitatii nr.13, RO-720229 Suceava <sup>1</sup>mursuleanu@stud.usv.ro, <sup>2</sup>dsimion@stud.usv.ro, <sup>3</sup>adriang@eed.usv.ro, <sup>4</sup>alinp@eed.usv.ro

*Abstract* — Wireless industry continues to change at very high speeds, tending to use the equipment more easily and safely and with a connection speed that tends to be higher and higher. Users of 3G wireless networks are looking forward to the launch of the new 4G standard. WiMax and LTE technologies are the main competitors in the mobile communication domain. This paper is a comparative study based on the first two level layers of the most innovative wireless and mobile technologies (WiMax and LTE), a technical comparative overview the parameters performances and the vulnerabilities of this technologies.

Index Terms - 4G, Comparative Approaches, LTE, WiMax, Wireless

- [1] Renny Pradina Kusumawardani,S.T., "Long Term Evolution: The next generation of mobile communication network", Indonesia, 24-25 June 2009.
- [2] Rysavy Research and 3G Americas, "EDGE, HSPA & LTE. *The Mobile Broadband Advantage*", September 2008 (whitepaper).
- [3] Adrian MATEI, "LTE Perspectives and Challenges for the 2.5GHz Expansion Band", The 16<sup>th</sup> IEEE Workshop on Local and Metropolitan Area Networks 2008 Cluj-Napoca, 3-6 September 2008.
- [4] Jim Zyren, "Overview of the 3GPP Long Term Evolution Physical Layer", whitepaper, 2006.
- [5] Hughes Systique, "Uplink Physical Channels", 2009, wiki.hsc.com
- [6] Juho Lee, Jin-Kyu Han and Jianzhong (Charlie) Zhang, "MIMO technologies in 3GPP LTE and LTE-Advanced", EURASIP Jurnal on Wireless Communications and Networking, Vol.2009, Article ID 302092, 31 May 2009.
- [7] WiMax Forum, "Mobile WiMax A Technical Overview and Performance Evaluation", whitepaper February 2006.
- [8] Alim O. A., Elboghdadly N., Ashour M.M., Elaskary A.M., "Simulation of channel simulation and equalization for WiMax PHY Layer in Simulink ", Computer Engineering & Systems, ICCES, 07.International Conference on Volume, Issue, 27-29 Nov. 2007, Pages 274-279.
- [9] Tamio Saito, Yoshinori Tanaka, Tsuguo Kato, "Trends in LTE/WiMax Systems", Fujitsu Scientific and Technical Journal, ISSN 0016-2523, pages 355-362.
- [10] Ehud Reshef, "LTE & WiMAX Evolution to 4G", Israel Mobile Association Event, 29 October 2008.
- [11] Potorac A.D., Graur A., Popa V., "QoS Challenges in Modern Communications Networks", 15th January 2010.
- [12] Maravedis Research, "WiMax, LTE and Broadband Wireless Worldwide Market Trends 2008-2014", 5th edition, 2008.
- [13] Erik Dahlman, Stefan Parkvall, Johan Skold, Per Beming, "3G evolution: HSPA and LTE for Mobile Broadband", Academic Press Publishing House, 2007.
- [14] Nokia whitepapers, www.nokia.com.

## Data Communications in an HPC Hybrid Cluster and Performance Evaluation

Ovidiu GHERMAN, Ioan UNGUREAN, Ștefan Gheorghe PENTIUC, Oana VULTUR Stefan cel Mare University of Suceava str.Universitatii nr.13, RO-720229 Suceava ovidiuh@stud.usv.ro,ioanu@eed.us.ro,pentiuc@usv.ro, ovultur@stud.usv.ro

*Abstract* — The need for powerful computing systems is more present than ever in the today scientific (and not only) environment. Cluster systems built with general purpose processors (a trend that caught in the previous years) are superseded today by platforms built around specialized multicore processors, capable of processing massive amounts of arithmetic operations, usually from the field of graphic accelerators (GPU). These units are specifically created to manage intensive operations so they are the logical choice for this purpose. IBM took this step by creating a platform that uses a multicore accelerator CPU (Cell BE) for the HPC operations, managed by nodes with a more traditional architecture, with general purpose CPUs (AMD Opteron). This hybrid approach toward HPC is successful, even if the application deployment and software development can pose a certain degree of difficulty.

Index Terms — data communications, networking, Cell BE, hybrid cluster, k-means, RISC architecture, speedup

- [1] T. Chen, R. Raghavan, J. Dale, E. Iwata, "Cell Broadband Engine Architecture", IBM Journal of Research and Development, vol. 51, issue 5, 2007.
- [2] \*\*\*\*, "Cell Broadband Engine Programming Handbook v 1.1", IBM Systems and Technology Group, available: https://www-01.ibm.com/chips/techlib/techlib.nsf/techdocs/7A77CCDF14FE70D5852575CA0074E8ED.
- [3] K. Koch, "Roadrunner Platform Overview", Roadrunner Technical Seminar Series, Los Alamos National Laboratory, March 2008.
- [4] \*\*\*\*, "SPU Application Binary Interface Specification v 1.9", CBEA JSRE Series, Cell Broadband Engine Architecture, Join Software Reference Environment Series, July 2008
- [5] C. Kessler, "Programming Techniques for the CELL Processor", Multicore Day seminar 2009, Kista, Sweden.
- [6] J.A. Turner, "The Los Alamos Roadrunner Petascale Hybrid Supercomputer Overview of Applications, Results and Programming", Roadrunner Technical Seminar Series, Los Alamos National Laboratory, March 2008.
- [7] \*\*\*\*, "IBM BladeCenter QS22", available: http://www-03.ibm.com/systems/bladecenter/hardware/servers/qs22/
- [8] A. Asuncion, D.J. Newman, UCI Machine Learning Repository, Irvine, CA: University of California, School of Inf. and Comp. Sci, 2007, available: http://www.ics.uci.edu/~mlearn/MLRepository.htm
- [9] Cristian Andy Tănase, Radu-Daniel Vatavu, Ștefan Gheorghe Pentiuc, Adrian Graur (2008), "Detecting and Tracking Multiple Users in the Proximity of Interactive Tabletops", Advances in Electrical and Computer Engineering, Volume 8 (15), Number 2 (30), 2008, University "Stefan cel Mare" of Suceava, ISSN 1582-7445, pp. 61-64.

## LTE eNodeB Demonstrator with Real and Simulated Interfaces

Titus-Constantin BĂLAN<sup>1</sup>, Florin SANDU<sup>2</sup>, Szilard CSEREY<sup>3</sup>, Virgil CAZACU<sup>4</sup>

<sup>1</sup>SIEMENS Program and System Engineering Bd. Mihail Kogalniceanu nr. 21, RO-500090, Brasov Transilvania University of Brasov Bd Eroilor nr. 29A RO-500036, Brasov SIEMENS Program and System Engineering Bd. Mihail Kogalniceanu nr. 21, RO-500090, Brasov Bit Defender str. Preciziei, nr.24, RO-062204, Bucharest <sup>1</sup>titus.balan@siemens.com, <sup>2</sup>sandu@unitbv.ro, <sup>3</sup>szilard.cserey@siemens.com, <sup>4</sup>vcazacu@bitdefender.com

*Abstract* — The difference between a simulator and an emulator resides in the feature of emulation to replace the functions of real equipment in operability conditions. When it comes to networking, the main distinction between simulation and emulation can be confined to the option of connectivity with real interfaces that makes possible intercommunication between virtualized and real network elements. The paper describes a method of integrating real interfaces to communicate with simulation modules of OMNeT++ environment. The case study presented is oriented towards Long Term Evolution eNodeB functionality emulation.

*Index Terms* — Communication system software, Discrete event simulation, Internetworking, Long Term Evolution, Network interfaces, Mobile Data Communications, Simulation software

- [1] A.Varga: "OMNeT++ Discrete Event Simulation System Version 3.2 User Manual", 2005, www.omnetpp.org
- [2] Florin Sandu, Szilárd Cserey, Titus Constantin Balan, Mihai Romanca: "Simulation-based UMTS e-learning software, PETRA '08: Proceedings of the 1st international conference on PErvasive Technologies Related to Assistive Environments", July 2008
- [3] Christoph P. Mayer, Thomas Gamer, "Integrating real world applicationsinto OMNeT++", Institute of Telematics, Universität Karlsruhe (TH), Technischer Bericht, Nr. TM-2008-2, Feb 2008
- [4] Balan Titus-Constantin, Sandu Florin," Fourth-Generation Wireless Networks: Applications and Innovations", Pages: 405-423 pp, IGI Global, 2010
- [5] Harri Holma, Antti Toskala : "LTE for UMTS OFDMA and SC-FDMA Based Radio Access", Wiley, April 2009
- [6] 3rd Generation Partnership Project: "3GPP TS 36.413 Evolved Universal Terrestrial Radio Access Network"; (E-UTRAN); S1 Application Protocol (S1AP), V9.1.0 (2009-12)
- [7] I. Baumgart, B. Heep, and S. Krause. OverSim: "A Flexible Overlay Network Simulation Framework. Proceedings of 10th IEEE Global Internet Symposium". pages 79–84, May 2007.
- [8] http://www.omnetpp.org

## Simulation of LTE Signaling

Florin SANDU<sup>1</sup>, Szilárd CSEREY<sup>2</sup>, Eugen MILE-CIOBANU<sup>3</sup> <sup>1</sup>Transilvania University of Brasov Bd Eroilor nr. 29A RO-500036 Brasov sandu@unitbv.ro <sup>2, 3</sup> SIEMENS Program and System Engineering Bd Mihai Kogalniceanu nr.21 bl.C6 RO-500090 Brasov <sup>2</sup>szilard.cserey@siemens.com, <sup>3</sup>eugen.mile@siemens.com

*Abstract*—This article aims to present a simulation and emulation software that was developed to simulate the call flows of a LTE (Long Term Evolution) network. LTE is the latest Mobile Telecommunications technology being currently in development and testing phase. The simulator can be used as an e-Learning software, for teaching the procedures and phases of different LTE scenarios. Call flows can be visualized trough the simulation panel, where signaling messages can be run continuously or step-by-step, for the purpose of detailed analysis. The simulator has the capability to generate real signaling packets that are being sent to a virtual loopback adapter and captured / dissected using the Wireshark software. In this way a whole simulation environment is created that is very useful for teaching the latest mobile telecommunications technology, the LTE (Long Term Evolution) system.

Index Terms — Communication Systems, Communication Standards, Communication System Signaling, Computer networks, Protocols

- H. Holma, A. Toskala, "LTE for UMTS OFDMA and SC-FDMA Based Radio Access", John Wiley & Sons Ltd., ISBN 978-0-470-99401-6, 2009.
- [2] S. Sesia, I. Toufik, M. Baker, "LTE The UMTS Long Term Evolution From Theory to Practice", John Wiley & Sons Ltd, ISBN 978-0-470-69716-0, 2009.
- [3] P. Lescuyer, T. Lucidarme, "The LTE and SAE Evolution of 3G UMTS", John Wiley & Sons Ltd., ISBN 978-0-470-05976-0
- [4] S. Kumar Dornal, "LTE Whitepaper", wired-n-wireless.blogspot.com
- [5] A. Varga, "OMNeT++ Discrete Event Simulation System, Version 4.0 User Manual", www.omnetpp.org.
- [6] "Long Term Evolution (LTE) Attach (Moving from Old to New MME)" call-flow, "Long Term Evolution (LTE) Tracking Area Update (Moving from Old to New MME (Serving GW Change))" call-flow www.eventhelix.org.
- [7] Virtual Network Adapter VirtNet 1.0 www.ntkernel.com/w&p.php?id=32.
- [8] WinPcap: The Windows Packet Capture Library www.winpcap.org
- [9] Ulf Lamping: Wireshark Developer's Guide www.wireshark.org
- [10] 3GPP TS 23.401 version 9.3.0 Release 9 "General Packet Radio Service (GPRS) enhancements for Evolved Universal Terrestrial Radio Access Network (E-UTRAN) access" www.3gpp.org

# BPEL Implementation of QoS-based Management in Multi-modal Mobile Communications

Florin SANDU<sup>1</sup>, Dan Nicolae ROBU<sup>2</sup>, Cosmin COSTACHE<sup>3</sup> <sup>1</sup>Transilvania University of Brasov Bd Eroilor nr. 29A RO-500036 Brasov sandu@unitbv.ro, <sup>2,3</sup>SIEMENS Program & System Engineering Bd M.Kogalniceanu nr 21, bl.C6 RO-500090 Brasov <sup>2</sup>dan.robu@siemens.com, <sup>3</sup>cosmin.costache@siemens.com

*Abstract* — The authors consider the concept of "partial handover" of connections in multi-modal mobile packet communications. This is based on the idea of a partial transfer - not a total one, e.g. 10%-90% - of the connection. Maintaining at a minimum level the channel with reduced QoS (Quality of Service), with drastically reduced energy consumption, has also the advantage of keeping a signaling path - practically "on common channel". It is also useful to simply restore the preponderance of a channel if its QoS increases significantly, without the complications of restarting the radio link, even if this could be internally triggered, at the mobile terminal level, through the other path which is still active. The proof-of-concept is oriented on a 3G/WLAN multi-modal communication, with a binary decision, based on the QoS calculus - as double weighted sum of performance parameters - on a path and its comparison with a threshold value or with the "cost function" of the QoS on the other path.

Index Terms — Communication Systems, Communication Standards, Communication System Signaling, Computer networks, Protocols

- [1] ITU-T M.3000: Overview of TMN Recommendations
- [2] 3GPP TS 23.060 General Packet Radio Service (GPRS); Service description; Stage 2, Release 6, September 2005.
- [3] 3GPP TS 23.107 Quality of Service (QoS) concept and architecture, Release 6, June 2005
- [4] W3Schools.com SOAP Specification http://www.w3schools.com/soap/default.asp
- [5] Oracle BPEL Process Manager Developer's Guide
- [6] W3Schools.com WSDL Specification http://www.w3schools.com/wsdl/default.asp
- [7] IBM SOA http://www.ibm.com/developerworks/webservices/library/ws-soa-term1/
- [8] RFC 2326 Real Time Streaming Protocol (RTSP)
- [9] BizAgi Bussines Agility http://www.bizagi.com
- [10] Intalio | Cloud http://www.intalio.com/

# Eigenvalue Characterization of the Sum Capacity of Multi-User MIMO Multiple Access Channels

### Paul COTAE

Electrical Engineering Department, School of Engineering and Applied Sciences University of the District of Columbia Washington, DC 20008 pcotae@udc.edu

*Abstract* — In this paper, we focus on the sum capacity of finite size multi-user MIMO wireless communication on Gaussian MAC. We provide an eigenvalue analysis of the mutual information of Gaussian MAC channels under transmitter power constraint based on the majorization theory.

A single user MIMO system is characterized by a channel matrix, which is a linear transformation of the input information in the presence of the Gaussian noise. By writing the mutual information in terms of the eigenvalues of this channel matrix, we give an eigenvalue characterization of MIMO MAC channels from both information theoretic, and from wireless communication perspective.

We will extend our eigenvalue approach given in a previous paper for a discreet memoryless channel (DMC) with invertible channel matrix, to a single user Gaussian MIMO system, and after that we will generalize the results to the multiuser MIMO MAC wireless communication systems.

We derived a fundamental inequality among the eigenvalues of the transmitter covariance matrix, which will assure its convergence in a finite number of steps toward the optimal solution. By using this inequality and again the majorization theory we give a proof of the Telatar conjecture under the above conditions. The complete proof including the general case when the channel matrix is random and partial CSI is available at the transmitter is under investigation right now.

*Index Terms* — Sum Capacity, Multi-User MIMO, MAC wireless communication systems, Multiple Access Channels, discreet memoryless channel, DMC

- [1] G. J. Foschini and M.J. Gans, "On limits of wireless communications in a fading environment when using multiple antennas", Wireless Pers. Commun, vol.6, pp.311-335, 1998.
- [2] W. Yu, W. Rhee, S. Boyd and J.M.Cioffi "Iterative Water-Filling for Gaussian Multiple Access Channels", IEEE Trans. on Inf. Theory, vol.50, no.1, pp.145-151, Jan. 2004.
- [3] A.Soysal and S. Ulukus "Optimum Power Allocation for Single-User MIMO and Multi-User MIMO-MAC with Partial CSI", IEEE Journal on Selected Areas, vol.25, no.7, pp.1402-1412, Sept 2007.
- [4] A. M. Tulino, A. Lozano, and S. Verdu, "Capacity-achieving input covariance for single-user multi-antenna channels. IEEE Transactions on Wireless Communications, vol.5, no.3, pp.:662671, March 2006.
- [5] A. Lozano, A.M. Tulino and S. Verdu " Optimum Power Allocation for Parralel Gaussian Channels With Arbirary Input Distributions" IEEE Trans. on Inf. Theory, vol.52, no.7, pp.3033-3051, July 2006.
- [6] P. Cotae, "Transmitter Adaptation Algorithm for Multicellular Synchronous CDMA Systems with Multipath" IEEE Journal of Selected Areas in Communications (Special Issue on Next Generation CDMA echnologies),vol.24, no.1, pp.94-103, Jan.2006.
- [7] P. Cotae, "Transmitter Adaptation Algorithm for Multicellular Synchronous CDMA Systems with Multipath" IEEE Journal of Selected Areas in Communications (Special Issue on Next Generation CDMA Technologies),vol.24, no.1, pp.94-103, Jan.2006.

# Assigning Connection Sources in Large-Scale Circuits Multilevel Decomposition

Olivian STĂNICĂ Politehnica University of Bucharest Faculty of Electrical Engineering Splaiul Independenței 313, Bucharest s\_olivian@yahoo.com

*Abstract* — Diakoptic analysis means the decomposition of the large-scale circuits into sub-circuits which can be singly and in the same time analyzed. In order to preserve the voltages and currents from the initial circuit, connection sources to the sub-circuits are assigned. In this paper, an efficient connection sources assignment algorithm is presented.

Index Terms — large-scale circuits decomposition, diakoptic analysis concept

### REFERENCES

- [1] G. Kron, Diakoptic-Piecewise Solution of Large-Scale Systems, MacDonald, London, 1963.
- [2] H. H. Happ, Diakoptic and Networks, Academic Press, New York, 1971.
- [3] H. H. Happ, Diakoptics The solution of system problems by tearing, Proc. of IEEE, Vol. 62, July 1974, pp. 930-940.
- [4] F. Wu, Solution of Large-Scale Networks by Tearing, Electronics Research Laboratory University of California, Berkeley, Memo ERL-M532, July 1975.
- [5] G. Guardabassi, A. Sangiovanni-Vincentelli, A two levels algorithm for tearing, IEEE Trans. on Circuits and Systems, CAS-33, No. 12, December 1976, pp. 783-791.
- [6] G. N. Stenbakken, J. A. Starzyk, Diakoptic and large change sensitivity analysis, IEEE Proceedings-G, Vol. 139, No. 1, February 1992, pp. 114-118.
- [7] M. Iordache, Lucia Dumitriu, Simularea asistată de calculator a circuitelor analogice (Analog circuits computer-aided simulation), Editura POLITEHNICA Press, București, 2002.
- [8] K. U. Wang, T. Chao, An algebric theory of network topology, Proc. of the IEEE International Symp. On Circuits and Systems, Apr. 1974, pp. 324-328.
- [9] C. A. Desoer, E. S. Kuh, Basic Circuit Theory, McGraw-Hill, New York, 1969.
- [10] A. Sangiovanni-Vincentelli, Li-Kuan Chen, L. O. Chua, An efficient heuristic cluster algorithm for tearing large-scale networks, IEEE Trans. on Circuits and Systems, CAS-4, No. 12, December 1977, pp. 709-717.
- [11] A. E. Schwarz, Computer-aided design of microelectronic circuits and systems, Academic Press, London, 1987.
- [12] A. G. Exposito, L. G. Franquelo, A new contribution to the cluster problem, IEEE Trans. on Circuits and Systems, CAS-34, No. 5, May 1987, pp. 546-552.
- [13] W. J. McCalla, Fundamentals of computer-aided circuit simulation, Kluwer Academic Publishers, Boston, 1988.
- [14] C. W. Ho, A. E. Ruehli, P. A. Brennan, The modified nodal approach to network analysis, IEEE Trans. on Circuits and Systems, CAS-22, No. 6, June 1975, pp. 504-509.
- [15] J. Roth, An application of algebraic topology: Kron's method of tearing, Quarterly of Applied Math., Vol. 17, No. 1, Apr. 1969, pp. 1-24.
- [16] S. Amari, Topological foundations of Kron, RAAG Memories, Vol. 3, 1962, pp. 322-350.
- [17] F. H. Branin, The relation between Kron's method and the classical method of network analysis, The Matrix and Tensor Quarterly, Vol. 12, No. 3, March 1962, pp. 69-115.
- [18] R. A. Rohrer, Circuit Theory: An Introduction to the State Variable Approach, McGraw-Hill, New York, 1970.
- [19] G. Gielen, W. M. Sansen, Symbolic Analysis for Automated Design of Analog Integrated Circuits, Kluwer Academic Publishers, New York, 1991.

More references are available on-line at www.dasconference.ro.

## The Modeling of the Heating Resistors in Transient Regime

Mitica Iustinian NEACA<sup>1</sup>, Andreea Maria NEACA<sup>2</sup>

<sup>1</sup> University of Craiova, Faculty of Electrotechnics, Bdul Decebal, nr.107, 200440 Craiova, Romania, e-mail: ineaca@elth.ucv.ro
<sup>2</sup>University of Craiova, Faculty of Electrotechnics, Bdul Decebal, nr.107, 200440 Craiova, Romania, e-mail: neaca andreea@yahoo

*Abstract* — The present paper presents an applicative solution of mathematical modeling and simulation for resistive heating elements. A frequently problem, which appears during the use of these ovens, is the rapid aging who leads to the break down of the heating resistors. This model allows the simulation of the transient self-heating regime, as well as of the continuous heating regime. To verify this, the authors have realized a more complex model of an electrical oven with resistors, which integrates the models of the heating resistors as subsystems. The paper presents a part of the simulation results and the conclusions generated by their analysis.

*Index Terms* — circuit simulation, electric heating, electrothermal effects, industrial power systems, system modeling

- [1] F.P.Incropera, D.P.DeWitt, "Fundamentals of Heat and Mass Transfer", WILEY, ISBN: 978-0-470-05554-0
- [2] M.C.Potter, C.W.Somerton, "Thermodynamics for Engineers", McGRAW-HILL, 1993.
- [3] S.J.Karris, "Introduction to Simulink with Engineering Applications", Orchard Publications, 2008.
- [4] T.P.Merchant, "Modelling of Rapid Thermal Processes", Massachusetts Institute of Technology, 1995.
- [5] B.D.Hahn, D.T.Valentine, "Essential MATLAB for Engineers and Scientists", ELSEVIER, 2007.
# Electronic Devices for Determining the Working Length in Root Canal Therapy

Anca POPESCU, PhD student Politehnica University of Bucharest dr\_apopescu@yahoo.com

*Abstract* — The paper refers to the modern electronic devices that can be used for determining the working length in a root canal, in the most important phase of endodontic treatment. It briefly presents new generations of such devices and some possible developments based on electronic improvements

IndexTerms — root canal, endodontic therapy, electrical impedance

- [1] I. Noboru, D.H. Skinner, "A simple and accurate way of measuring root canal length", Journal of Endodontics 1985
- [2] R. Brown., V. Hadley, D. Chambers" An evaluation of Ektaspeed plus film versus ultra speed film for Endodnticworking length determination", J. of Endodontics, 1998,
- [3] A. Olson, et al., "The ability of the radiograph to determine the location of the apical foramen", Int. End. J., 1991
- [4] D. H. Pratten, N. J. McDonald, "Comparison of radiographic and electronic working lengths", J. Endod., 1996
- [5] J. Dahlin, "Electrometric determination of apical foramen, A new aid for endodontic experiment and therapy", Quintessence, 28, 1977
- [6] I. Sunada," New method for measuring the length of the root canal" J. of Dental Research", 1962
- [7] M. Gordon., N. Chandler "Electronic apex locators" Int. End. J., 2004
- [8] D. Hoer, T. Attin, "The accuracy of electronic working length determination", Int.End. J., 37, 2004
- [9] C. Kobayashi, H. Suda, "New electronic canal measuring device based on the ratio method", J. Endod 1994
- [10] J. Ushiyama "New principle and method for measuring the root canal length". J Endod 1983.
- [11] N.J.McDonald."The electronic determination of working length" Dent Clin North Am 1992
- [12] A. F. Fouad, K. V. Krell, D. J. McKendr, G. F. Koorbusch, R. A. Olson, "A clinical evaluation of five electronic root canal length measuring instruments". J Endod., 1990
- [13] Z. Stare, J. Šutalo, N. GalićThe "Effect of Apical Foramen and Electrode Diameter on the Accuracy of Electronic Root Canal Measuring Devices" 8TH International conference on measurement in clinical medicine, Croatia, 1998
- [14] E. B. Jacobson, K. J. Heyerasas, "Pulp interstitial fluid pressure and blood flow after denervation and electrical tooth stimulation in the ferret", 1997
- [15] J. Vera, M. Gutierrez" Accurate working length determination using a fourth generation apex locator" (in press)

### A Study in Binary Relations for Logic Algebra Functions

Ion COJOCARU, Andrei VASILĂȚEANU, Octavian IONEL The University "Politehnica" Bucharest, Spl. Independenței 313, RO 077206, Faculty of Engineering in Foreign Languages, Bucharest i\_coj@yahoo.fr

*Abstract* — Solving the Design for Test (DFT) problem for digital circuits (DC) requires conducting complex studies of the phenomena situated at the boundaries of scientific directions, such as Digital Signal Theory, Logic and Boolean Algebra, DC Analysis and Synthesis, DC Design Fundamentals, Testing Algorithms Design, Relational Models, DC Testing. Half a century, from the moment the DFT for DC problem was raised, no concluding results were obtained, which confirms the necessity for introducing a new DFT paradigm, based on existence principles found in nature. Creating this new DFT paradigm requires the analysis, design and usage of certain binary relations between logical functions (LF), determined on the same definition domain as binary arguments tuples. This fact leads to the creation of new elementary structures and the development of a modern and efficient DFT theory.

The present study originality lies in performing for the first time an exhaustive analysis of the logic functions binary relations in logic algebra, with the purpose of highlighting their properties, important for formalizing synthesis algorithms and elaborating the concepts for digital structures and for the indispensable know-how regarding obtaining an adequate solution for the Designed for Test problem for digital circuits.

Index Terms - complement, duality, equivalence, partial complement

- [1] Ion Cojocaru, Study in Boolean algebra functions binary relations. Ongoing publication
- [2] K. Kinosita, K. Asada, O. Karatsu, Logical design of VLSI. Loghiceskoe proiectirovanie SBIS Iwanami Shoten Publishers, Tokyo, 1985, 304 pag. Trad. în limba rusă, 1988.
- [3] Wakerly J. F., Circuite digitale. Principiile și practicile folosite în proiectare, București: Teora, -2002. -928 p.
- [4] M. Rafiquzzaman, Fundamentals of Digital Logic and Microcomputer Design.- Fifth Edition, California, WILEY INTERSCIENCE – John Wiley&Sons inc., 2005, 840 pag
- [5] Wilkinson B., Digital System Design. 4nd edition, Prentice Hall, London, 2004, 320 p.
- [6] Holdsworth B., Digital Logic Design. Butterworth & Co (Publishers), LTD, London, 1982, 285 p.
- [7] Белоусов А.И., Ткачев С.Б., Дискретная математика.- Изд-во МГТУ им. Н.Э. Баумана, 2004 г., -744 с

### Study of Binary Relations of Boolean Algebra Functions

Ion COJOCARU, Octavian IONEL The University "Politehnica" Bucharest, Spl. Independenței 313, RO 077206, Faculty of Engineering in Foreign Languages, Bucharest i coj@yahoo.fr

*Abstract* — In the process of digital circuits (DC) design, the logical functions (LF) are initialy represented in the boolean simple base (BSB) of the Boolean algebra (BA), which allows checking the correctitude of representing the minimal shape of the LF and the absence of the logical redundance. The usage of only 3 boolean operators - AND, OR, NOT, is imposing some restrictions in the process of synthesis, because any LF must be represented by the operator AND or OR: without negations, with negation only at the input or only at the output, with negations on the arbitrary connexions. Also, the main resources of minimization (for example, Karnaugh diagrams) and the synthesis procedures are most developped for the LF represented in BSB. The originality of this study stands in making, for the first time, a complete analysis and a mathematical description of the logical binary relations (LBR) of the LF in the BA. The purpose of the paper is to detect the LBR properties which are important for formalizying the synthesizing algorithms, the concepts development, digital structures and know-how needed to obtain adequate solutions of the design problem and to increase the technological efficiency of making the actual integrated circuits.

*Index Terms* — boolean algebra, technological efficiency, equivalence, complement, duality

- K. Kinosita, K. Asada, O. Karatsu. Logical design of VLSI. Loghiceskoe proiectirovanie SBIS Iwanami Shoten Publishers, Tokyo, 1985, 304 pag. Trad. în limba rusă, 1988.
- [2] Кузнецов О. П., Адельсон-Вельский Г. М. Дискретная математика для инженера. М.: Энергия, 1980 г.–344 с.
- [3] Николай Вавилов. Не совсем наивная теория множеств.- М., Изд-во Академии, 2004.- 325 с
- [4] Белоусов А.И., Ткачев С.Б. Дискретная математика.- Изд-во МГТУ им. Н.Э. Баумана, 2004 г., -744 с
- [5] James A. Anderson. Discrete Mathematics with Combinatorics. Prentice Hall. University of South Carolina, Spartanburg, 2004. -960 p.
- [6] Rod Haggarty. Discrete Mathematics for computing. Edition published by Pearson Education Limited, Harlow, UK, 2002. – 317 p.
- [7] С. И. Гуров. Упорядоченные множества и универсальная алгебра. Электронная версия. Изд. МГУ, Москва, 2005 г. 83 стр.
- [8] Wakerly J. F. Circuite digitale. Principiile și practicile folosite în proiectare, București: Teora, 2002. 928 p.
- M. Rafiquzzaman. Fundamentals of Digital Logic and Microcomputer Design. Fifth Edition, California, WILEY INTERSCIENCE – John Wiley&Sons inc., 2005, 840 pag
- [10] Wilkinson B. Digital System Design. 4nd edition, Prentice Hall, London, 2004, 320 p.
- [11] Holdsworth B. Digital Logic Design. Butterworth & Co (Publishers), LTD, London, 1982, 285 p.
- [12] Е. Н. Вавилов, Г.П. Портной. Синтез схем электронных цифровых машин. Изд. Советское Радио. М.: 1963 г. – 440 с.
- [13] А.А. Степанян. Цифровые вычислительные машины.- Куйбышевское книжное издательство.- 1966 г. 191 с.

# Electrical and Switching Parameters of Amorphous Chalcogenide Glassy Semiconductors Cu5(AsSe1.4I0.2)95

Miloš SLANKAMENAC<sup>1</sup>, Svetlana R. LUKIĆ<sup>2</sup>, Miloš ŽIVANOV<sup>1</sup> <sup>1</sup> University of Novi Sad, Faculty of Technical Sciences, Trg Dositeja Obradovića 6, 21000 Novi Sad, Republic of Serbia <sup>2</sup> University of Novi Sad, Faculty of Sciences, Trg Dositeja Obradovića 4, 21000 Novi Sad, Republic of Serbia miloss@uns.ac.rs

Abstract — The subject of this paper is experimentally determination of electrical and switching parameters at different temperatures of amorphous chalcogenide glassy semiconductors  $Cu_5(AsSe_{1.4}I_{0.2})_{95}$ . It was shown that amorphous semiconductors from the system  $Cu_x(AsSe_{1.4}I_{0.2})_{100-x}$  have relatively high electrical resistance and expressed memory and threshold switching nonlinear effect, so that they have great potential for applications in electronics and optoelectronics. On switching parameters of the realized switching component a great impact have next properties of the active amorphous semiconductor: values of the activation energy, electrical conductivity, softening and working temperature. It has been found that this glass has current-controlled negative resistance (CCNR) switching characteristic with memory and high values of switching threshold fields.

*Index Terms* — electronic switching systems, amorphous semiconductors, nonlinear systems, semiconductor device doping, semiconductor device measurements

#### REFERENCES

- [1] S. R. Lukić and D. M. Petrović, "Complex amorphous chalcogenides: Thermal stability and crystallization tendency, Physics applications of disordered materials," edited by M. Popescu, Romania, pp. 259-276, 2002.
- [2] M. Popescu, "Disordered chalcogenide optoelectronic materials: Phenomena and applications," Journal of Optoelectronics and Advanced Materials, vol. 7, pp. 2189-2210, Aug 2005.
- [3] D. Strand, "Ovonics: From science to products," Journal of Optoelectronics and Advanced Materials, vol. 7, pp. 1679-1690, Aug 2005.
- [4] H. Fritzsche, "Why are chalcogenide glasses the materials of choice for Ovonic switching devices?," Journal of Physics and Chemistry of Solids, vol. 68, pp. 878-882, May-Jun 2007.
- [5] S. R. Ovshinsky, "Reversible electrical switching phenomena in disordered structures," Phys. Rev. Lett., vol. 21, pp. 1450-1453, 1968.
- [6] S. J. Park, I. S. Kim, S. K. Kim, S. M. Yoon, B. G. Yu, and S. Y. Choi, "Phase transition characteristics and device performance of Si-doped Ge2Sb2Te5," Semiconductor Science and Technology, vol. 23, p. 105006, Oct 2008.
- [7] A. S. Glebov, "Semiconducting Chalcogenide Glass III: Applications of Chalcogenide Glasses, ed R Fairman and B Ushkov," London: Elsevier Academic Press, vol. 80, 2004.
- [8] N. Kalkan, S. Yildirim, K. Ulutas, and D. Deger, "Electrical switching in TISbSe2 chalcogenide semiconductors," Journal of Electronic Materials, vol. 37, pp. 157-160, Feb 2008.
- [9] M. A. Afifi, N. A. Hegab, H. E. Atyia, and A. S. Farid, "Investigation of DC conductivity and switching phenomenon of Se80Te20-xGex amorphous system," Journal of Alloys and Compounds, vol. 463, pp. 10-17, Sep 8 2008.
- [10] M. M. Abdel-Aziz, "Memory switching of germanium tellurium amorphous semiconductor," Applied Surface Science, vol. 253, pp. 2059-2065, 2006.
- [11] R. Rajesh and J. Philip, "Memory switching in In-Te glasses: results of heat-transport measurements," Semiconductor Science and Technology, vol. 18, pp. 133-138, Feb 2003.

# Analysis of Coupled Oscillators through a Series RLC Network

Iulia DUMITRESCU, Mihai IORDACHE, Mihaela IONITA "Politehnica" University of Bucharest Spl. Independenței 313, 060042, Bucureşti dumitrescuiulia@yahoo.com, iordache@elth.pub.ro, mihaelaizabela@yahoo.com

*Abstract* — Voltage controlled oscillators are present in almost every digital communication system. Thus, coupled microwave oscillators are the subject of intense research activities. Recently, they are used to control the phase in microwave antenna arrays as an alternative to electronic beam steering methods. Researches are made so that a particular phase shift can be obtained by choosing the free-running frequencies of the oscillators in the array. In this paper, we have analyzed, in different ways, in time domain and also in frequency domain, the phase shift between output voltages of each pair of coupled oscillators and also, the behavior of multiple coupled oscillators

Index Terms — phase shift, synchronization, oscillator, microwave, VCO

- [1] J. Lynch and R. York, Synchronization of oscillators coupled through narrowband networks, IEEE Transactions on Microwave Theory and Techniques, vol. 49, No.2, pp. 237-249, February 2001
- [2] K. Kurokawa, Injection locking of microwave solid-state oscillators, Proceedings of the IEEE, vol. 61, No. 10, pp. 1386-1410, October 1973
- [3] N. Tohme, J.M. Paillot, D. Cordeau and P. Coirault, Analysis of the frequency locking region of coupled oscillators applied to 1-D antenna arrays, 38th European
- [4] P. Liao and R. York, "Beam scanning with coupled vcos," IEEE Proc.Antennas Propagation Soc. Int. Symp., vol. 2, pp. 836–839, June 1994.
- [5] R. York and T. Itoh, "Injection and phase-locking techniques for beam control," IEEE Trans. Microwave Theory Tech., vol. 46, pp. 1920–1929, Nov. 1998.
- [6] B. Van der Pol, The nonlinear theory of electric oscillations, Proceedings of the IRE, vol. 22, No. 9, pp. 1051-1086, September 1934
- [7] Nidaa Y. Tohme, Etudes comportementales et réalisation d'un réseau d'oscillateurs couplés et de déphaseurs actifs appliqués à la command d'un réseau d'antennes linéaire, Thèse de Doctorat, Poitiers, 2006.
- [8] R. Adler, A study of locking phenomena in oscillators, Proceedings of the IRE, vol. 34, No. 6, pp. 351-357, June 1946
- [9] M. Iordache, Lucia Dumitriu, I. Matei, "A Numerical Multi-Rate Method for Steady-State Analysis of Radio Frequency Integrated Circuits", Revue Roum. Sci. Techn.- Électrotechn. et Énerg., Bucarest, Tome 51, No. 3, Bucarest, 2006, pp. 281-291, RM-ISSN 0035-4066

# Sensitivity and Tolerance Analysis in Analog Circuits Using Symbolic Methods

Lucian MANDACHE<sup>1</sup>, Mihai IORDACHE<sup>2</sup>, Lucia DUMITRIU<sup>3</sup>

<sup>1</sup>University of Craiova, Department of Electrical Engineering, Decebal Blv. 107, Craiova, Romania <sup>2,3</sup>"Politehnica" University of Bucharest, Department of Electrical Engineering, Splaiul Independenței 313, Bucharest, Romania <sup>1</sup>Imandache@elth.ucv.ro, <sup>2</sup>iordache@elth.pub.ro, <sup>3</sup>dlucia@elth.pub.ro

*Abstract* — The paper is focused on a new and practical approach to perform sensitivity and tolerance analysis of analog lumped circuits. Any linear circuit can contain passive elements, magnetically coupled inductors, excess elements, and any type of independent and controlled sources. Special strategies based on symbolic methods are used in order to reduce the computational effort and to minimize the numerical errors in the automatic design of these circuits. As part of this process, a new, modern, reliable and easy-to-use software tool for sensitivity and tolerance analysis has been developed, as a useful and valuable support for research and design engineers.

*Index Terms* — sensitivity, tolerance analysis, analog circuit, symbolic methods, software tools

#### REFERENCES

- [1] H.W. Bode, Network Analysis and Feedback Amplifier Design, Van Nostrand Reinhold Company, New York, 1945.
- [2] Kun-Lin Hsieh, The study of cost-tolerance model by incorporating process capability index into product lifecycle cost, The International Journal of Advanced Manufacturing Technology, Springer London, ISSN 0268-3768, Volume 28, Numbers 5-6 / March, 2006, pag. 638-642.
- [3] L. O. Chua, P. M. Lin, Computer-Aided Analysis of Electronic Circuits Algorithms and Computational Techniques, Preutice-Hall, In., Englewood Cliffs, New Jersey, 1975.
- [4] P.M. Lin, Sensitivity analysis of large linear networks using symbolic programs, Proceedings of The IEEE International Symposium on Circuits and Systems ISCAS '92, 10-13 May 1992, vol.3, pp.1145-1148.
- [5] L. Vallese, Incremental versus adjoint models for network sensitivity analysis, IEEE Transactions on Circuits and Systems, vol.21, no.1, pp. 46-49, Jan 1974.
- [6] Herng-Jer Lee, Chia-Chi Chu, Wu-Shiung Feng, Interconnect modeling and sensitivity analysis using adjoint networks reduction technique, Proceedings of the 2003 International Symposium on Circuits and Systems, ISCAS '03, vol. 4, pp. IV-648 - IV-651, 25-28 May 2003.
- [7] F. Yuan, A. Opal, Sensitivity analysis of periodically switched linear circuits using an adjoint network technique, Proceedings of the 1999 IEEE International Symposium on Circuits and Systems, ISCAS '99, vol. 5, pp. 331-334.
- [8] M. Iordache, L. Mandache, D. Niculae, Analiza asistată de calculator a senzitivităților și toleranțelor circuitelor analogice, Ed. Matrix Rom, București, 2010.
- [9] M. Iordache, Lucia Dumitriu, Simularea asistată de calculator a circuitelor analogice, Ed. Politehnica press, București, 2002.
- [10] F. Vallette, G. Vasilescu, G. Alquié, A Fully Recursive Approach to the Computation of Higher Order Sensitivities of Linear Active Circuits, IEEE Transactions on circuits and systems - I: Fundamental theory and applications, Vol. 46, No. 8, August 1999, pp. 907-919.
- [11] Lubomir Kolev, Worst-Case Tolerance Analysis of Linear DC and AC Electric Circuits, IEEE Transactions on Circuits and Systems - I: Fundamental theory and applications, Vol. 49, No. 12, December 2002, pp. 1693-1701.
- [12] K. Singhal, J. F. Pinel, Statistical Design Centering and Tolerancing Using Parametric Sampling, IEEE Trans. on Circuits and Systems, Vol. CAS-28, No. 7, July 1981, pag. 692-702.
- [13] Wei Tian, Xie-Ting Ling, Ruey-Wen Liu, Novel Methods for Circuit Worst-Case Tolerance Analysis, IEEE Trans. on Circuits and Systems- I: Fundamental Theory and Applications, Vol. 43, No. 4, April 1996, pag. 272-278.
- [14] N. Evmorfopoulos, G. Stamoulis, J. Avaritsiotis, A Monte Carlo Approach for Maximum Power Estimation Based on Extreme Value Theory, IEEE Transactions on Computer-Aided Design of Integrated Circuits and Systems, Vol. 21, No. 4, April 2002, pp. 415-432.

# HDL Implementation from Petri Nets Description

Viorica SUDACEVSCHI, Victor ABABII, Emilian GUTULEAC, Valentin NEGURA Technical University of Moldova str.Stefan cel Mare, 168, MD-2012, Chisinau svm@mail.utm.md; avv@mail.utm.md; egutuleac@mail.utm.md; vnegura@yahoo.fr

*Abstract* — This paper describes the digital systems synthesis based on direct mapping of Petri nets model into FPGA circuit. A design flow that includes the specification of the system using Synchronous Petri Nets, verification of the behavioral properties of the model, generation of the mathematical model of Hard Petri Nets (HPN), used for automatic generation of the AHDL code is described. The direct mapping approach avoids algorithmic complexity inherent in logic synthesis based on state encoding and substantially reduces the design time and cost. The method used for modeling and implementation of the digital systems was validated using MAX+PLUS II design environment.

Index Terms — AHDL, digital system, direct mapping, FPGA, MAX+PLUS II, Hard Petri Nets

- [1] Semiconductor Industry Association, "International Technology Roadmap for Semiconductors, 2005 Edition."
- [2] Jun Yuan, Carl Pixley, Adnan Aziz, Constraint-based verification, Springer, 2006, 253 pages.
- [3] A. Bystrov and A. Yakovlev, Asynchronous Circuit Synthesis by Direct Mapping: Interfacing to Environment, Proc. ASYNC'02, Manchester, April 2002.
- [4] J. Cortadella, M. Kishinevsky, A. Kondratyev, L. Lavagno, and A.Yakovlev: Logic Synthesis of Asynchronous Controllers and Interfaces. Springer Verlag (2002).
- [5] V. Sudacevschi, V. Ababii, V. Negură, A Hardware Implementation of Safe Petri Net Models. Proceedings of the 8th International Conference on Development and Application Systems, Suceava, Romania, 25-27 May, 2006, p. 9-13.
- [6] V.Ababii, V. Sudacevschi, Safe Petri Nets Models Mapping into FPGA Using HDL Code. The International Symposium on Systems Theory, SINTES 12, October 20-22, 2005, Craiova, Romania, Vol.4, p. 697-699

# Induction Motor Control with Predicted Maximum Electromagnetic Torque and Speed

Nicoleta Roxana BUZATU, Dimitrie ALEXA, Georgian Alexandru LAZAR, Dan BUTNICU, Oana Loredana BUZATU Technical University "Gheorghe Asachi" of Iasi, Bd. Carol I, nr 11,RO-700506 Iasi, Romania,

rbuzatu@etc.tuiasi.ro

*Abstract* — The paper presents a new control of an induction motor, based on the indirect rotor – flux – oriented control (IRFOC). The control circuit ensures an independent electromagnetic torque control, which limits its maximum value to a predicted one. The torque predicted values are dependent on the external parameters of the induction motor and overrides the speed control. The proposed system can be implemented in various applications constrained by mechanical or physical factors, which require variable torque and speed.

Index Terms — Indirect Rotor - Flux - Oriented Control (IRFOC), induction motor, rotor, torque, speed

- [1] B. K. Bose, "Modern Power Electronics and AC Drives", Pearson Education, Inc., 2002.
- [2] Carlos A. Martins, Adriano S. Carvalho, "Technological Trends in Induction Motor Electrical Drives", IEEE Porto Power Tech Conference, vol. 2, Sep. 2001.
- [3] L. Ben-Brahim, "Improvement of the stability of the V/f controlled induction motor drive systems", IEEE Proceedings of the 24th Annual Conference, vol. 2, pp. 859-864, 1998.
- [4] F. Blaschke, "The principle of Field Orientation as Applied to the New Transvektor Closed Loop Control System for Rotating – Field Machines", IEEE Press, New York, 1981.
- [5] P. de Wit, Romeo Ortega, Iven Mareels, "Indirect Field Oriented Control of Induction Motors is Robustly Globally Stable", IEEE conference on Decision and Control, vol. 3, pp. 2139 - 2144, 1995.
- [6] Sahoo S.K. Panda, S.K. Jian-Xin Xu, "Indirect torque control of switched reluctance motors using iterative learning control" Power Electronics, IEEE Transactions on , vol. 20, Issue 1, pp. 200 2008, Jan 2005.
- [7] Yu Zhang, Zhenhua Jiang, "Indirect Field-Oriented Control of Induction Machines Based on Synergetic Control Theory", Power and Energy Society General Meeting - Conversion and Delivery of Electrical Energy in the 21st Century, 2008 IEEE, pp. 1 – 7, 2008.
- [8] Leonhard W., "Control of Electrical Drives", Springer Verlag, Berlin, 1985.
- [9] Birou I., Maier V., Pavel S., Rusu, C., "Indirect Vector Control of an Induction Motor with Fuzzy-Logic based Speed Controller", Advances in Electrical and Computer Engineering, vol.1, pp.116-120, 2010.
- [10] Kelemen A., Imecs M.," Vector Control of Induction Machine Drives", Vol.1, OMIKK Publisher, Budapest, 1991

# Temperature Influence on Conversion Efficiency in the Case of Photovoltaic Cells

Corina MARTINEAC, Mihai HOPÎRTEAN, Gilbert DE MEY, Vasile ȚOPA, Silviu ȘTEFĂNESCU

Technical University of Cluj-Napoca Utrecht University, Gent University str.George Baritiu nr.26-28, 400027 Cluj-Napoca, ROMANIA Heidelberglaan 2, 3584CS Utrecht, THE NETHERLANDS Sint-Pietersnieuwstraat 41, B-9000 Gent, BELGIUM Corina.Martineac@eps.utcluj.ro, M.I.Hopirtean@students.uu.nl, Demey@elis.ugent.be, Vasile.Topa@et.utcluj.ro, Silviu.Stefanescu@eps.utcluj.ro

*Abstract* — The following paper presents concisely the operation principles of photovoltaic cells and their main parameters. The heat transfer process for a PV cell is described in order to analyze the PV cell temperature variation during operation. The aim of the paper is investigating temperature's influence on the conversion efficiency of solar energy into electricity. Temperature measurements have been done to provide PV cells' actual operation temperatures and also to ease an analysis on their effect on the conversion process.

Index Terms — Conversion efficiency, Photovoltaic cells, Photovoltaic cell thermal factors, Solar energy, Solar radiation

- [1] K. Blok, Introduction to Energy Analysis, Techne-Press, 2007
- [2] Y.A. Cengel, Introduction to Thermodynamics and Heat Transfer, 2nd Edition, McGraw-Hill, 2008
- [3] S. Darie and I. Vadan, Producerea, Transportul si Distributia Energiei Electrice. Vol. I Instalatii pentru Producerea Energiei Electrice, UTPRESS, 2000
- [4] A. Luque and S. Hegedus, Handbook of Photovoltaic Science and Engineering, John Wiley & Sons, 2003
- [5] G. M. Masters, Renewable and Efficient Energy Power Systems, John Wiley & Sons, 2004
- [6] C. J. Winter, Solar Power Plants. Fundamentals, Technology, Systems, Economics, Springer-Verlag, 1991

# GPRS Controlled System for Monitoring and Control of Well Sites

Vladimir MILOSAVLJEVIC, Milos ZIVANOV, Viktor DOGAN Faculty of Technical Sciences, Serbia zivanov@uns.ac.rs, dr.wigan@gmail.com

*Abstract* — In this paper a hardware realization of a water well monitoring and control system is presented. The system for water level monitoring is built of several field units witch measure the water levels, and gives full control over the well site pumps using inverters and other actuators. Measured data from field units are gathered and analyzed by central data analyzer. This gives user insight into the amount of water in a certain area and other parameters measured by field units. Organization of system allows operator to make remote commands to well site actuators instantly. Using modern technology it is possible to implement algorithm of self diagnostics and calibration and to use measured data to make model of underground water behavior for monitored area.

Index Terms - GPRS, remote control, well monitoring, water level measurement

- [1] W. Ritcher, W. Lilich: "Ground water basic data and network design principles and problems", Geological Survey of Niedersachsen-Federal Republic of Germany
- [2] Jerry T. Thornhill: "Accuracy of depth to water measurements", Superfund ground water issue, March 1989.
- [3] W. D. Welsh, J. Doherty: "Great artesian basin groundwater modelling", 29th Hydrology and Water Resources Symposium, February 2005.
- [4] K. Ubell: "Principles on network design and basic data to study groundwater balance", Research Institute for Water Resources, Budapest, Hungary
- [5] "Strategic Plan for Groundwater Monitoring at the Waste Isolation Pilot Plant", United States Department of Energy, February 2003.
- [6] Buha Slavenko, Živanov Miloš, Mihajlović Danijel, NADGLEDANJE NIVOA VODE U BUNARIMA, Indel, Banja Luka, 2006
- [7] Jovan Radak, Živorad Mihajlović, Milan Lukić, Miloš Živanov, Miloš Slankamenac, T HE NOVELL SOLUTION FOR SEISMIC RECORDING, Indel, Banja Luka, 2008

### Cordless Seismic Data Acquisition System

Miodrag BRKIC, Predrag TEODOROVIC, Milan LUKIC, Milos ZIVANOV Faculty of Ttehnical Sciences, University of Novi Sad, Serbia nebojsac@uns.ac.rs, t\_pedja@uns.ac.rs, milan\_lukic@uns.ac.rs, zivanov@uns.ac.rs

*Abstract* — Seismic methods are based on capturing of artificially generated seismic waves that are reflected on different ground layers. Seismic waves are captured using geophones, electro-mechanical sensors specially designed for geophysical exploration. This paper suggests a new system for data acquisition, based on ARM microcontroller, GSM/GPS module used in wireless network, internet technologies and a work station. This seismic system, comparing to older cable realizations, will cost less, greatly reduce the logistics effort, and reduce manpower required to conduct a seismic survey. In this paper are presented hardware and software realization, communicating network and results of data acquisition.

Index Terms - seismic method, geophone, AD conversion, GSM

- [1] John Milsom "Field Geophysics" Published 2003 by John Wiley and Sons Ltd.
- [2] Denis Mougenot, "How digital sensors compare to geophones?", Sercel, France, 2006.
- [3] Williams, M. "Seismic without cables", Nickle's New Technology, April/May 2007.
- [4] J. Meunier, J. P. Menard, "Seismic Noise Without a Seismic Source", Sercel, France, 2005.
- [5] Datasheet, Texas Instruments, "High-Resolution Analog-to-Digital Converter", 2008.
- [6] Jovan Radak, Živorad Mihajlović, Milan Lukić, Miloš Živanov, Miloš Slankamenac, THE NOVELL SOLUTION FOR SEISMIC RECORDING, Indel, Banja Luka, 2008
- [7] Buha Slavenko, Živanov Miloš, Mihajlović Danijel, NADGLEDANJE NIVOA VODE U BUNARIMA, Indel, Banja Luka, 2006.

### Borehole Orientation Sensor - Hardware Realization

Viktor DOGAN, Milos ZIVANOV, Miodrag BRKIC Faculty of Tehnical Sciences, University of Novi Sad, Serbia, novilog.viktord@gmail.com, zivanov@uns.ac.rs, nebojsac@uns.ac.rs

*Abstract* — Borehole measurement systems are used for measuring various parameters in gas, oil, water and other borehole exploration facilities. Measurement methods include the use of various sophisticated tools that are descended into boreholes. Nowadays there is a strong tendency of replacing analogue with digital well logging tools. In this article a hardware realization of one such digital device is presented.

This device is designed to provide orientation information in borehole logging and directional drilling applications. To fully determine the orientation of a borehole two parameters have to be known: the angle between the borehole axis and true vertical (inclination) and the angle of its departure from magnetic North (azimuth). These values are vital for determining the trajectory and depth of a well, and are also very important as preliminary parameters in other geophysical measurements. The orientation module combines a 3-axis magnetometer and 2-axis MEMS accelerometer, analog and digital support circuits, microprocessor and algorithms required for orientation angles computation. The measured values are transmitted to the surface over a mono cable in real time. For this purpose a special digital communication protocol has been developed. In this article the general principles of operation are briefly explained and details related to the electronic design and realization are given.

Index Terms - azimuth, borehole, inclination, orientation, sensor

- G. Mančić, S. Martinović, M. Živanov, "Geofizički karotaž osnovni principi", (in Serbian) DIT NIS-Naftagas, Novi Sad, 2002.
- [2] Makinhole.com's Glossary, "Directional Drilling Terms Defined", www.makinhole.com/glossary.htm
- [3] Caruso, M., Withanawasam, L., "Vehicle Detection and Compass Applications using AMR Magnetic Sensors", Honeywell SSEC, www.ssec.honeywell.com
- [4] Honeywell International Inc. "3-Axis Magnetic Sensor HMC1043", 2007. www.honeywell.com/magneticsensors
- [5] Analog Devices, "Precision ±1.7g Single-/Dual-Axis iMEMS Accelerometer", 2006. www.analog.com
- [6] M. Slankamenac, K. Knapp, M. Živanov: "The Industrial Communication Protocol in the Digital Borehole Measurement System", PSU-UNS International Conference on Engeneering and Evironment, Novi Sad, 2005.

# Indoor Inter-Robot Distance Measurement in Collaborative Systems

Mihai V. MICEA<sup>1</sup>, Andrei STANCOVICI<sup>1</sup>, Dan CHICIUDEAN<sup>1</sup>, Constantin FILOTE<sup>2</sup>

 <sup>1</sup> Computer and Software Engineering Department "Politehnica" University of Timisoara
2, Vasile Parvan Blvd., 300223 Timisoara, Romania
mihai.micea@cs.upt.ro, mrandy1986@yahoo.com, dan.chiciudean@cs.upt.ro
<sup>2</sup> Computers and Automation Department
Stefan cel Mare University of Suceava
str.Universitatii nr.13, RO-720229 Suceava
filote@eed.usv.ro

*Abstract* — This paper focuses on the problem of autonomous distance calculation between multiple mobile robots in collaborative systems. We propose and discuss two distinct methods, specifically developed under important design and functional constraints, such as the speed of operation, accuracy, energy and cost efficiency. Moreover, the methods are designed to be applied to indoor robotic systems and are independent of fixed landmarks. The measurement results, performed on the CORE-TX case study, show that the proposed solutions meet the design requirements previously specified.

*Index Terms* — collaborative system, distance measurement, indoor communication, mobile robots, Sonar

#### REFERENCES

[1] W. Burgard, M. Moors, C. Stachniss, F. Schneider, "Coordinated Multi-Robot Exploration", IEEE Trans. Robotics, 21 (3), Jun. 2005, pp. (376-386).

[2] S. Thrun, D. Hahnel, D. Ferguson, M. Montemerlo, R. Triebel, W. Burgard, C. Baker, Z. Omohundro, S. Thayer, W. Whittaker, "A system for volumetric robotic mapping of abandoned mines", in Proc. of the IEEE Intl. Conf. on Robotics and Autom. (ICRA), 2003.

[3] M. Simoncelli, G. Zunino, H. Christensen, K. Lange, "Autonomous pool cleaning: Self localization and autonomous navigation for cleaning", J. Autonom. Robots, 9 (3), 2000, pp. (261-270).

[4] K. Ohno, T. Tsubouchi, B. Shigematsu, S. Yuta, "Differential GPS and Odometry-Based Outdoor Navigation of a Mobile Robot", Advanced Robotics, 18(6), 2004, pp. (611-635).

[5] G. Reina, A. Vargas, K. Nagatani, K. Yoshida, "Adaptive Kalman Filtering for GPS-based Mobile Robot Localization", in Proc. IEEE Intl. Wshop. Safety, Security and Rescue Robotics, SSRR 2007, 2007, pp. (1-6).

[6] R. Grossmann, J. Blumenthal, F. Golatowski, D. Timmermann, "Localization in Zigbee-based Sensor Networks", in Proc. 1st European ZigBee Developer's Conf., EuZDC 2007, Munchen-Dornach, Germany, 2007.

[7] ZigBee Standards Organization, "ZigBee Specification", ZigBee Alliance, Inc., California, SUA, Jan. 2007, [Online: http://www.zigbee.org/].

[8] M. S. Reynolds, "A Phase Measurement Radio Positioning System for Indoor Use", Master's Dissertation, Dept. of Electrical Eng. and Comput. Sci., Massachusetts Institute of Technology, USA, Feb 1999.

[9] Cricket Project, "Cricket v2 User Manual", MIT Computer Science and Artificial Intelligence Lab, Cambridge, USA, Jan 2005.

[10] N. B. Priyantha, "The Cricket Indoor Location System", Ph.D. Thesis, Dept. of Electrical Eng. and Comput. Sci., Massachusetts Institute of Technology, USA, Jun. 2005.

[11] P. M. Novotny, N. J. Ferrier, "Using Infrared Sensor and the Phong Illumination Model to Measure Distances", in Proc. 1999 IEEE Intl. Conf. Robotics and Automation, Detroit, USA, May 1999, pp. (1644-1649).

[12] Y.S. Ha, H.H. Kim, "Environmental Map Building for a Mobile Robot Using Infrared Range-Finder Sensors", Advanced Robotics, 18(4), 2004, pp. (437-450).

This work is supported by the Romanian Ministry of Education and Research, through the grant PNCDI II ID-22/2007-2010 and, in parts through the grant PNCDI II PDP-2306/2007-2010.

# On Resonance Charts of Piezoelectric Ceramics of Perovskite-Type, in Microwave Range

Daniela IONESCU<sup>1</sup>, Iulia Brînduşa CIOBANU<sup>2</sup> "Gh. Asachi" Technical University of Iaşi, <sup>1</sup>Department of Telecommunications, <sup>2</sup>Department of Physics, Dimitrie Mangeron Av., No. 67, RO-700050 Iaşi, Romania danait@etti.tuiasi.ro

*Abstract* — Determination of the electrical resonance positions on frequency scale for the multicomponent materials is a necessity for the a correct exploitation of the material in the HF range, where multiple resonances are present. We have used for resonances determination a microwave simulation method, applied for a class of piezoelectric ceramics of perovskite-type: the  $K_x Na_{1-x}NbO_3$  and  $(1 - y)K_{0.5}Na_{0.5}NbO_3-ySrTiO_3$  crystals. Results were obtained in the frequency domain of 0.3–30 GHz. Structural interpretations and conclusions about geometrical and physical resonances determined for the material samples are available. The links between the resonances of the electrical displacement and the internal structure of the material samples were illustrated by resonance charts and commented as well. Geometrical parameters of the constituents (ionic radii, ion relative distances, average grains dimensions, etc.) and also the physical parameters (ions nature, concentration factors, phase transitions, polarization mechanisms, etc.) influence the resonance charts and can be also coordinated for resonances modification.

*Index Terms* — electrical resonances, finite element method, microwave range, piezoelectric ceramics, structural simulation

- [1] A. Ishimaru, "Electromagnetic Wave Propagation, Radiation and Scattering", Artech House, London, 1991.
- [2] D. Ionescu, N. D. Alexandru, "Determination of Resonance Frequency for Basic Multilayered PCB Samples, in Microwave Range", Proc. of 1<sup>st</sup> Int. Conf. on the Use of Modern Information and Communication Technologies, ECUMICT 2004, Gent, Belgia, 1-2 Apr. 2004, pp. 155-162, 2004.
- [3] H. Birol, D. Damjanovic, N. Setter, "Preparation and characterization of (K<sub>0.5</sub>Na<sub>0.5</sub>)NbO<sub>3</sub> ceramics", J. of the European Ceramic Society, Vol. 26, pp. 861–866, 2006.
- [4] H. E. Mgbemerea, R.-P. Herberb, G. A. Schneider, "Investigation of the dielectric and piezoelectric properties of potassiumsodium niobate ceramics close to the phase boundary at (K<sub>0.35</sub>Na<sub>0.65</sub>)NbO<sub>3</sub> and partial substitutions with lithium and antimony", J. of the European Ceramic Society, Vol. 29, No. 15, pp. 3273-3278, 2009.
- [5] M. P. Lemeshko, E. S. Nazarenko, A. A. Gonchar, L. A. Reznichenko, O. Mathon, Y. Joly and R. V. Vedrinskii, "Phase transitions in lead-free piezoelectric ceramics: Study of local atomic structure", EPL Journal, Vol. 77, Jan. 2007, 26003, pp. 26003-p1 - 26003-p5, 2007.
- [6] A. Safari, R. K. Panda and V. F. Janas, "Ferroelectric Ceramics : Processing, Properties & Applications", on-line:
- [7] http://www.rci.rutgers.edu/~ecerg/projects/ferroelectric.html
- [8] T. Hungria, M. Algueró, and A. Castro, "Grain Growth Control in NaNbO<sub>3</sub>–SrTiO<sub>3</sub> Ceramics by Mechanosynthesis and Spark Plasma Sintering", J. Am. Ceram. Soc., Vol. 90, No. 7, pp 2122–2127, 2007.
- [9] J. Kroupa, J. Petzelt, B. Malic and M. Kosec, "Electro-optic properties of KNN-STO lead-free ceramics", J. Phys. D: Appl. Phys., Vol. 38, pp. 679–681, 2005.
- [10] M. Połomska, B. Hilczer, M. Kosec, B. Malič, "Raman Scattering Studies of Lead Free (1-x)K<sub>0.5</sub>Na<sub>0.5</sub>NbO<sub>3</sub>-xSrTiO<sub>3</sub> Relaxors", Ferroelectrics, Vol. 369, No. 1, 2008, pp. 149 - 156, 2008.

# Finite State Machine Design and VHDL Coding Techniques

#### Iuliana CHIUCHISAN, Alin Dan POTORAC, Adrian GRAUR Stefan cel Mare University of Suceava str.Universitatii nr.13, RO-720229 Suceava iulia@eed.usv.ro, alinp@eed.usv.ro, adrian.Graur@usv.ro

*Abstract* — The first part of paper discusses a variety of issues regarding finite state machine design using the hardware description language. VHDL coding styles and different methodologies are presented. Our study of FSM focuses on the modeling issues such as VHDL coding style, state encoding schemes and Mealy or Moore machines. Our discussion is limited to the synchronous FSM, in which the transition is controlled by a clock signal and can occur only at the triggering edge of the clock.

The second part contains a worked example of a model that detects a unique pattern from a serial input data stream and generates a '1' value to output whenever the sequence '10' occurs. The string detector is modeled at the RTL level in VHDL and Verilog, for comparison purposes.

The last part of this paper presents a view on VHDL and Verilog languages by comparing their similarities and contrasting their difference.

*Index Terms* — VHDL code, Verilog code, finite state machine, Mealy machine, Moore machine, modeling issues, state encoding

- [1] Hopcroft, J. E., Ullman, J. D., "Introduction to Automata Theory, Languages, and Computation", Addison-Wesley, 1979.
- [2] Reese, R. B., Thornton, M. A., "Introduction to Logic Synthesis using Verilog HDL", Morgan & Claypool Publishers' series Synthesis lectures on digital circuits and systems, USA, ISSN: 1930-3166, pp. 46-79, 2006
- [3] Volnei, A. Pedroni, "Circuit Design with VHDL", MIT Press Cambridge, Massachusetts, London, England, ISBN 0-262-16224-5, pp. 159-186, 2004
- [4] Chu, Pong P., "RTL hardware design using VHDL", A Wiley-Interscience publication, USA, ISBN: 978-0-471-72092-8, pp. 313-373, 2006
- [5] Golson, S., "State Machine Design Techniques for Verilog and VHDL", Synopsys Journal of High-Level Design, pp. 1-2, 1994
- [6] Enoch O. Hwang, "Digital Logic and Microprocessor Design With VHDL", ISBN 0-534-46593-5, pp. 328-377, 2004
- [7] XILINX "A CPLD VHDL Introduction", 1-800-255-7778, 2001
- [8] IEEE Standard 1076-1993, IEEE Standard Description Language Based on the VHDL Hardware Description Language, 1993.
- [9] IEEE Standard 1364-2001, IEEE Standard Description Language Based on the Verilog Hardware Description Language, 2001.
- [10] Mealy, G. H., "A method for synthesizing sequential circuits," Bell System Tech. J., Vol. 34, No. 5, pp. 1045–1079, 1955.
- [11] Moore, E. F., "Gedanken experiments on sequential machines," Automata Studies. Princeton, NJ: Princeton University Press, pp. 129–153, 1956.
- [12] Smith, D. J., "VHDL & Verilog Compared & Contrasted Plus Modeled Example Written in VHDL, Verilog and C", Proceedings of the 33rd annual Design Automation Conference, USA 1996

# Synchronous Overmodulation Control of Cascaded Inverters for Photovoltaic Application

Valentin OLESCHUK, Roman PRUDEAK, Alexandr SIZOV Power Engineering Institute of the Academy of Sciences str. Academiei nr. 5, Chisinau, MD-2028, Republic of Moldova oleschukv@hotmail.com

*Abstract* — Novel method of synchronized pulsewidth modulation (PWM) has been disseminated for control of cascaded (dual) inverters of photovoltaic installation with relatively low DC-voltages of two insulated photovoltaic panels. Control regimes are characterized by overmodulation control modes of two inverters in this case. Algorithms of synchronized PWM provide continuous voltage synchronization both in each inverter and in the load in the overmodulation control zone of inverters. Special attention has been given to analysis of opera-tion of photovoltaic systems with different DC-voltages of two strings of photovoltaic panels. Results of simulations present a behavior of dual-inverter photovoltaic system with two dis-continuous and one combined versions of synchronized PWM.

*Index Terms* — Photovoltaic power systems, Pulse width modulated power converters, Synchronization, Voltage control

#### REFERENCES

- [1] H. Stemmler and P. Guggenbach, "Configurations of high power voltage source inverter drives", Proc. of the EPE'93 Conf., pp. 7-12.
- [2] H. Stemmler, "High-power industrial drives", IEEE Proc., vol. 82, no. 8, pp. 1266-1286, 1994.
- [3] K.A. Corzine, S.D. Sudhoff and C.A. Whitcomb, "Performance characteristics of a cascaded two-level converter", IEEE Trans. Energy Conversion, vol. 14, no. 6, pp. 433-439, 1999.
- [4] E.G. Shivakumar, K. Gopakumar, S.K. Sinha, A. Pittet and V.T. Ranganathan, "Space vector PWM control of dual inverter fed open-end winding induction motor drive", Proc. of the IEEE APEC'2001 Conf., pp. 399-405.
- [5] E.G. Shivakumar, V.T. Somasekhar, K.K. Mohapatra, K. Gopakumar, L. Umanand and S.K. Sinha, "A multi level space phasor based PWM strategy for an open-end winding induction motor drive using two inverters with different dc-link voltages", Proc. of the IEEE PEDS'2001 Conf., pp. 169-175.
- [6] M.R. Baiju, K.A. Mohapatra, R.S. Kanchan and K. Gopakumar, "A dual two-level inverter scheme with common mode voltage elimination for an induction motor drive", IEEE Trans. Power Electr., vol. 19, no. 6, pp. 794-805, 2004.
- [7] G. Grandi, C. Rossi, A. Lega and D. Casadei, "Multilevel operation of a dual two-level inverter with power balancing capability", CD-ROM Proc. of the IEEE IAS'2006 Conf., 8 p.
- [8] J. Holtz, "Pulsewidth modulation a survey", IEEE Trans. Ind. Electr., vol. 39, no. 5, pp. 410-420, 1992.
- [9] N. Mohan, T.M. Undeland and W.P. Robbins, Power Electronics, 3<sup>rd</sup> ed. John Wiley & Sons, 2003.
- [10] V. Oleschuk, F. Profumo, G. Griva, R. Bojoi and A.M. Stankovic, "Analysis and comparison of basic schemes of synchronized PWM for dual inverter-fed drives", Proc. of the IEEE ISIE'2006 Symp., pp. 2455-2461.
- [11] V. Oleschuk, A. Sizov, F. Profumo, A. Tenconi and A.M. Stankovic, "Multilevel dual inverter-fed drives with synchronized PWM", CD-ROM Proc. of the IEEE PESC'2006 Conf., 7 p.
- [12] V. Oleschuk, R. Bojoi, G. Griva and F. Profumo, "Dual inverter-fed traction drives with DC sources power balancing based on synchronized PWM", Proc. of the IEEE IEMDC'2007 Conf., pp. 260-265.
- [13] G.Grandi, D. Ostojic, C. Rossi and A. Lega,"Control strategy for a multilevel inverter in grid-connected photovoltaic applications", CD-ROM Proc. of the IEEE 2007 Aegean Conf. on Electr. Machines, Power Electr. and Electromotion, 6p.
- [14] G. Griva and V. Oleschuk, "Dual inverters with synchronized PWM for grid-connected photovoltaic systems", Proc. of the IEEE ICCEP'2009 Conf., pp. 420-425.
- [15] V. Oleschuk and F. Blaabjerg, "Direct synchronized PWM techniques with linear control functions for adjustable speed drives", Proc. of the IEEE APEC'2002 Conf., pp. 76-82.

# Hysteresis Modelling of Soft Magnetic Materials using LabVIEW Programs

Septimiu MOTOASCA, Gheorghe SCUTARU

Department of Electrical Engineering, Transilvania University of Brasov, Romania E-mail: motoascas@yahoo.com

*Abstract* — The paper deals with an analytical model for hysteresis cycle representation. The hysteresis curve is decomposed in a series of arcs of circles and segments of lines. Each arc of circle or segment of line is expressed using analytical geometry as a function of some given parameters or calculated ones. The easiness of the model proposed is given by the small amount of input data needed to represent the hysteresis cycle in a satisfactory way. Using an inverse mapping function from major hysteresis branches the minor cycles, reversal curve of the first kind or curve of first magnetization can be obtained. Finally a comparison between the measured data and modelled ones was made.

Index Terms - soft magnetic materials, modeling, magnetic hysteresis

- [1] A. Nicolaide, Magnetism and Magnetic Materials, Transilvania University Press, Brasov, Romania, 2001.
- [2] E. Della Torre, Magnetic Hysteresis, IEEE Press, New York, 1999
- [3] A. Nicolaide, Electromagnetics, Transilvania University Press, Brasov, Romania, 2002.
- [4] S. Motoasca, A. Nicolaide, E. Helerea, Simple Analytical Method for Hysteresis Modelling using LabVIEW, JOAM, Vol 10, ISS 7, p.1847-1852, july, 2008.
- [5] Sárospataki, E., Kuczmann, M., Realization of the Jiles-Atherton Hysteresis Model Applying The LabVIEW And MatLab Software Package, Journal of Electrical Engineering, Vol 57. No 8/S, 2006, pp. 40-43.

# Performance Evaluations and Comparative Electromagnetic Compatibility Measurements on Compact Fluorescent Lamps

Georgiana BUTA, Eugen COCA, Adrian GRAUR, Valentin POPA Stefan cel Mare University of Suceava 13, Universitatii Street, RO-720229 Suceava gbuta@usv.ro, eugen.coca@usv.ro, adrian.graur@usv.ro, valentin@eed.usv.ro

*Abstract* — When compared to standard incandescent light bulbs, compact fluorescent lights (CFL) provide multiple benefits and give much longer lifetime and lower power consumption. Available in a wide variety of models and various wattages, efficiency types and prices, nowadays CFL seems to successful replace the use of incandescent lights. On the other hand, disadvantages like dangerous electromagnetic pollutions and harmful ultraviolet radiations made CFLs the subject of many debates concerning their performances.

Several electromagnetic compatibility measurements were performed in order to point out the high level of radiated and conducted disturbances of CFLs. The first set of experiments were made in the frequency band of 1 MHz to 500 MHz, and then reduced to 1 MHz - 300 MHz, 1 MHz - 100 MHz and 1 Hz - 50 KHz frequency intervals. Comparative EMC measurements on three different compact fluorescent bulbs were made using a specific test setup (as described in chapter 4). For CFL emissions testing, we used an anechoic chamber, which is a shielded enclosure with radio absorbing materials on ceiling and walls. The results obtained were then compared to the CISPR22 standard limits.

*Index Terms* — anechoic chamber, common mode current, compact fluorescent lamp (CFL), electromagnetic compatibility (EMC), electronic ballast

- R. ISTOK, "Relation Between Disturbance Radiation of CFL and Resonant Frequency of Power Supply Cable", Advances in Electrical and Computer Engineering, ISSN 1582-7445, e-ISSN 1844-7600, vol. 7, no. 1, pp. 23-25, 2007
- [2] A. Vitanza, R. Scollo, A. Hayes, "Electronic fluorescent lamp ballast" (Application note), 2009
- [3] EN 55022 standard (CISPR22) Information technology equipment Radio disturbance characteristics Limits and methods of measurement, 2007
- [4] Z. Wei, N.R. Watson, L.P. Frater, "Modeling of compact fluorescent lamps", 13th International Conference on Harmonics and Quality of Power, 2008
- [5] O. Montero, D. Baez, F. Alvarez, R. Alejos, G.E. Flores-Verdad. "Simulation and experimental results for a compact fluorescent lamp with electronic adapter", Proceedings of the 38th Midwest Symposium on Circuits and Systems, 1995
- [6] M.A. Shafi, R.A. McMahon, "Influence of voltage and frequency dimming on power loses in HF electronic ballasts for compact fluorescent lamps", IEEE Industry Applications Conference, 2006
- [7] L. Laskai, M. Ilic, "An approach for selecting switching devices for CFL ballasts", IEEE Transactions on Industry Applications, 2002
- [8] M.A. Shafi, R.A. McMahon, "Implementation and verification of CFL models for use in performance analysis in high frequency electronic ballasts", The 3rd IET International Conference on Power Electronics, Machines and Drivers, 2006
- [9] M. Poncc, I. Guerrero, J. Arau, J. Correa, J.M. Alonso, "Electronic ballasts for CFL operating at frequencies above of 1 MHz: design considerations and behavior of the lamp", Power Electronics Congress, 2002
- [10] EN 61000-4-3 standard Electromagnetic Compatibility (EMC) Part 4-3: Testing and measurement techniques -Radiated, radio-frequency, electromagnetic field immunity test, 2006
- [11] M.F. da Silva, G.W. Denardin, R.A. Pinto, J.P. de Lopes, M. Polonskii, A.R. Seidel, R.N. do Prado, "Dimmable Lighting System Strategy Based on Integral Compact Fluorescent Lamps with Digital Compensation", Industry Applications Society Annual Meeting, 2009.

# Analysis of Beamforming in Phased Antenna Arrays

Octavian MANU, Mihai DIMIAN, Adrian GRAUR Stefan cel Mare University of Suceava str.Universitatii nr.13, RO-720229 Suceava octavianm@eed.usv.ro

*Abstract* — In this paper the beamforming and radiation pattern of various linear and planar phased antenna arrays configurations are presented. They are intended for use in indoor location estimation and wireless process monitoring applications based on the determining of direction-of-arrival (DOA) of radio signals by measuring the angle-of-arrival (AOA). Beamforming and the steering of antenna's lobes are obtained via a linear phase taper applied between antenna array elements, which provides a relatively simple design. Various antenna array configurations are studied using numerical simulations in order to obtain an optimal beamforming necessary for indoor localization and scanning systems.

*Index Terms* — Antenna arrays, Antenna radiation patterns, Array signal processing, Phased arrays, Indoor localization

#### REFERENCES

M. Golio and J. Golio (eds), RF and Microwave Handbook, CRC Press, 2208 pages, 2008.

B. Hatami, K. Alavi, K. Pahlavan, and M. Kanaan, "A Comparative Performance Evaluation of Indoor Geolocation Technologies," Interdisciplinary Information Sciences, vol 12, no.2, p. 133-146, 2006.

H. Liu, H. Darabi, P. Banerjee, L. Jing, "Survey of Wireless Indoor Positioning Techniques and Systems," IEEE Transactions on Systems, Man, and Cybernetics, Part C: Applications and Reviews, Vol. 37, No. 6, p. 1067-1080, 2007.

K. D'hoe, G. Ottoy, J.-P. Goemaere, and L. De Strycker, "Indoor Room Location Estimation," Advances in Electrical and Computer Engineering Journal, Vol. 8, No 2, p. 78 – 81, 2008.

K. Pahlavan, F. Akgul, M. Heidari, A. Hatami, J. Elwell, and R. Tingley, "Indoor Geolocation in the Absence of Direct Path", IEEE Wireless Communications Magazine, vol. 13, no. 6, p. 50-58, 2006.

H. J. Visser "Array and Phased Array Antenna Basics", Jon Wiley & Sons Ltd, 2005

O. Manu, M. Dimian, A. Graur, "Analysis of beamforming in phased antenna arrays for indoor localization and scanning systems", Proceedings of 6th International Conference on Microelectronics and Computer Science, Chisinau, Moldova (2009)

J.L. Volakis "Antenna Engineering Handbook", McGraw-Hill Companies, 2007

M. Taguchi, K. Era, K. Tanaka "Two Element Phased Array Dipole Antenna", 22nd Annual Review of Progress in Applied Computational Electromagnetics, March 12-16, 2006

J. Paradells, J. Vilaseca, J. Casademont "Improving security applications using indoor location systems on wireless sensor networks", Proceedings of the International Conference on Advances in Computing, Communication and Control, p. 689-695, 2009

# Audio Source Localization, using a Network of Embedded Devices

#### Laurențiu FRANGU, Marius MĂZĂREL, Claudiu CHICULIȚĂ "Dunărea de Jos" University of Galați str.Domnească 47, RO-800008 Galați Laurentiu.Frangu@ugal.ro

*Abstract* — In this paper, a problem of audio source localization is solved, using a network of embedded devices. The intensive computing procedures (such as the crosscorrelation functions) are performed by the embedded devices, which have enough speed and memory for this task. A central computer computes the position in a fast procedure, using the data transmitted by the network nodes, and plays the role of operator interface. The paper also contains the description of the embedded devices, which are designed and manufactured by the authors. They prove to be suited for this kind of application, as they perform fast computation and require low power and small space for installing.

*Index Terms* — audio source, direction of arrival (DoA), embedded devices, position measurement, sensor network

- [1] Y. Huang, J. Benesty, J. Chen, Acoustic MIMO Signal Processing. Springer, 2006
- [2] G. Zucker, L. Frangu, "Smart Nodes for Semantic Analysis of Visual and Aural Data", Proc. 5-th Int. Conf. Ind. Informatics (INDIN 2007), pp. 1027-1032, Vienna
- [3] L. Frangu, M. Măzărel, C. Chiculiță, S. Epure, "An Embedded Platform for Smart Multiple Sensor Network", Proc. 3<sup>rd</sup> Int. Conf. "From Scientific Computing to Computational Engineering", July 2008, Athens
- [4] J. Simo, G. Benet, G. Andreu, "Embedded Video Processing for Distributed Intelligent Sensor Networks", Proc. 3<sup>rd</sup> Int. Conf. "From Scientific Computing to Computational Engineering", July 2008, Athens
- [5] D. Bruckner, R. Velik, G. Zucker, "Network of Cooperating Smart Sensors for Global-View Generation in Surveillance Applications" Proc. 6-th Int. Conf. Ind. Informatics (INDIN 2008)

# Modeling of Ferrite Common Mode Chokes for EMI Suppression in LTCC Technology

Mirjana DAMNJANOVIĆ, Ljiljana ŽIVANOV, Miloš ŽIVANOV University of Novi Sad Trg D. Obradovića 6, 21000 Novi Sad, Serbia mirad@uns.ac.rs, lilaziv@uns.ac.rs, zivanov@uns.ac.rs

*Abstract* — In this paper, proposed structure of ferrite common mode choke for suppression of conductive electromagnetic interference (EMI) will be presented. The proposed chokes can be realized in low temperature co-fired ceramics (LTCC) technology. LTCC technology is chosen in order to achieve better performance passive components, with excellent thermal and high frequency electrical performance. Proposed choke consists of two highly conductive multilayer quadratic spiral type inductors, embedded in ferrite material 40012. To obtain the optimal design of choke, the simulation tool ILCMC for calculation of insertion loss of common mode choke is used. Simulations have been conducted for different geometrical dimensions of structure of the common mode choke using software tool ILCMC. Insertion losses of proposed components are calculated and compared.

Index Terms — Electromagnetic interference, ferrite devices, loss, modeling, simulation software

#### REFERENCES

- [1] C. Q. Scrantom, J. C. Lawson, "LTCC technology: where we are and where we're going II," IEEE MTT-S Symposium on Technologies for Wireless Applications, pp. 193–200, Feb. 1999.
- [2] L. Rebenklau, K.-J. Wolter, G. Hagen, "Realization of μ-Vias in LTCC Tape", ISSE '06, 29th International Spring Seminar on Electronics Technology, pp. 55 – 63, 2006.
- [3] F. Amemiya, K. Takagi, N. Kuwabara, S. Hamada, Y. Iwamoto, "Developing a common-mode choke coil with highpermeability core used high-speed telecommunications port for UTP cable", in Proc. IEEE International Symposium on Electromagnetic Compatibility, Vol. 1, N-5, pp 314-319, Sept. 2002.
- [4] Technical Information from Murata, "On-Board Type (DC) EMI Suppression Filters (EMIFIL)", Available: www.murata.com
- [5] Technical information from Coilcraft, Inc., "Common mode filter inductor analysis", Available: www.coilcraft.com
- [6] Technical information from Epcos, "Power Line Chokes", 2007, Available: www.coilcraft.com
- [7] M. Mardiguian, EMI Troubleshooting Techniques, McGraw Hill, New York, 2000.
- [8] H.-J. Kim, Y.-J. Kim, J.-R. Kim, "An Integrated LTCC Inductor Embedding NiZn Ferrite", IEEE Transactions on Magnetics, Vol. 42, Issue: 10, pp. 2840 – 2842, 2006.
- [9] Y. Liu, H. Zhang, Y. Li, "The design and fabrication of multilayer chip LC filter with a modified structure by LTCC technology", International Conference on Electronic Packaging Technology & High Density Packaging, ICEPT-HDP '09, pp. 112-115, 2009.
- [10] A. A. Glubokov, D. B. Bondar, B. N. Shelkovnikov, "Broadband differential transformers for ICs in LTCC", 15th International Crimean Conference Microwave & Telecommunication Technology, Vol. 2, pp.435 – 438, 2005.
- [11] Technical Information from Epcos, "General Technical Information", Available: www.epcos.com
- [12] M. Matters-Kammerera, U. Mackensb, K. Reimanna, R. Pietigb, D. Henningsb, B. Schreinemacherb, R. Mauczoka, S. Gruhlkeb and C. Martiny: "Material properties and RF applications of high k and ferrite LTCC ceramics", Microelectronics Reliability, Vol. 46, pp. 134–143, 2006.
- [13] Technical Information from Formosa Teletek Corporation: "LTCC design guide" 2004, Available: http://www.Ftech.com.tw
- [14] R.L. Wahlers, M. Heinz and A.H. Feingold: "Lead Free Dielectric and Magnetic Materials for Integrated Passives", Proc. International symposium on low cofired ceramic based electronic devices, Orlando FL, USA, 2003 , vol. 27, pp. 283-289

# Embedded System for Start of ICE with Hybrid Battery-Super-capacitor Sources

Aurel Cornel STANCA, Venetia SANDU, Iuliu SZEKELY

"Transilvania" University of Brasov, Romania B-dul Eroilor nr.29, RO–500036, Brasov "Sapientia" University of Targu- Mures, Romania Corunca, Sos. Sighisoarei 1C, RO-540485, Targu-Mures cornelstanca@yahoo.com, sandu@unitbv.ro, gszekely@ms.sapientia.ro

*Abstract* — In automotive starting systems the demand for efficient use of energy and environmental protection lead to the use of supercapacitors in combination with traditional starter batteries. The main advantages of the hybrid battery – supercapacitor systems are extended life span of batteries, lower capacity, lower weight and volume as well as meeting the environmental regulations. The control of internal combustion engine (ICE) starting systems values the specific gains in terms of energy of lead acid batteries and supercapacitors, having as final performance indicator the available starter power.

The paper presents the control strategies of the hybrid battery – supercapacitor system using a microcontroller which efficiently distributes the energy transfer among sources (battery, supercapacitor, alternator) and specific loads (starter and other energy consumers).

Index Terms — Algorithms, alternator, battery chargers, microcontroller, starting

- A.C. Stanca, I. Szekely, A. Mailat, "Strategy for performance optimization in supercapacitor-based ICE starting system", Proceedings of the 7th International Conference on Electromechanical and Power System – "SIELMEN 2009", Iaşi, Romania, 8-9 October 2009, vol. II, pag. 159-162.
- [2] G. Danciu, "Electrical and electronic automotive equipment. The power system" Matrixrom, Bucharest, 1997.
- [3] F.S. Boureima, J.Matheys, V. Wynen, N.Sergeant, J. Van Mierlo "Comparative LCA of supercapacitor and different battery technologies used in a hybrid electric vehicle", ESSCAP'08 – 3rd European Symposium on Supercapacitors and Applications, Roma, November 6-7, 2008.
- [4] L. Zubieta, R. Bonert, "Characterisation of double-layer capacitors in power electronics applications", Industry Applications, IEEE Transactions on, Volume 36, Issue 1, Jan/Feb 2000 Pag.199-205.
- [5] Borza P., Puscas A., M., Carp M., "Energy-Optimized Electrical Systems for Land Transport Using Batteries and Supercapacitors: TRANS-SUPERCAP", http://ercim-news.ercim.eu/en79/rd/energy-optimized-electrical-systems-forland-transport-using-batteries-and-supercapacitors-trans-supercap.
- [6] G. Coquery, "High Performance Energy Storages for Mobile and Stationary Applications", COST 542 Berlin 30 Nov.-1 Dec. 2006.
- [7] http://www.elit-cap.com/files/eng/a\_start.htm.
- [8] M. Hanlon,"Next-generation variable ratio drive pulley Stop-Start system",May12,2009, http://www.gizmag.com/tag/integral+powertrai

# Magnetic Properties of Two-Dimensional (2D) Heisenberg Lattices as Good Candidates for Spintronic Junctions

Jacques CURÉLY

Centre de Physique Moléculaire Optique et Hertzienne (C.P.M.O.H.), University of Bordeaux 1 351 Cours de la Libération, F-33405 Talence Cedex, FRANCE j.curely@cpmoh.u-bordeaux1.fr

Abstract — In this article we briefly recall a theoretical treatment previously published [1] and concerning the magnetic properties of 2D square lattices composed of  $(2N+1)^2$  classical spins isotropically coupled between first-nearest neighbors (i.e., showing Heisenberg couplings). Indeed these layers are good candidates for spintronic junctions. In the thermodynamic limit  $(N \rightarrow +\infty)$ , we recall that (i) a very simple closed-form expression may be derived for the zero-field partition function  $Z_N(0)$ , (ii) the spin correlation vanishes in the zero-field limit i.e., there is no remnant magnetization, except at T=0 K; (iii) the spin-spin correlation is described by a correlation path confined inside a correlation domain (Theorem 1). As a result a general closed-form expression may be respectively derived for the spin-spin correlation. We finally test previous experimental fits and we show that the use of a truncated expansion for the susceptibility was totally justified.

Index Terms — spintronics, classical spins, Heisenberg couplings, magnetic properties, quantum theory

#### REFERENCES

- J. Curély, "Study of the magnetic properties of two-dimensional (2D) classical square Heisenberg antiferromagnets. I. Zero-field partition function," to be published in the Proceedings of Optim 2010 (IEEE), Ed. The Transilvania University of Braşov, Faculty of Electrical Engineering and Computer Science, Braşov, Romania, May 2010;
- [2] J. Curély, "Study of the magnetic properties of two-dimensional (2D) classical square Heisenberg antiferromagnets. II. Spin correlations and susceptibility," to be published in the Proceedings of Optim 2010 (IEEE), Ed. The Transilvania University of Braşov, Faculty of Electrical Engineering and Computer Science, Braşov, Romania, May 2010.
- [3] M. Johnson, and R. H. Silsbee, "Interfacial charge-spin coupling: injection and detection of spin magnetization in metals," Phys. Rev. Lett., vol. 55, pp. 1790-1793, 1985;
- [4] M. Johnson, and R. H. Silsbee, "Coupling of electronic charge and spin at a ferromagnetic-parama-gnetic metal," Phys. Rev., vol B37, pp. 5312-5325, 1988;
- [5] F. J. Jede-ma, A. T. Filip, and B. J. Van Wees, "Electrical spin injection and accumulation at room temperature in an allmetal mesoscopic spin valve," Nature, vol 410, pp. 345-348, 2001;
- [6] A. Fert, J-M. George, H. Jaffres, and G. Faini, "Spin-injection and experimental detection of spin accumulation," J. Phys. D: Appl. Phys., vol 35, pp. 2443-2447, 2002;
- [7] J-M. George, A. Fert, and G. Faini, "Direct measurement of spin accumulation in a metallic mesoscopic structure," Phys. Rev., vol B67, pp. 012410-1, 012410-4, 2003;
- [8] R. Wang, X. Jiang, R. M. Shellay, R. M. Macfarlane, S. S. P. Parkin, S. R. Bank, and J. S. Harris, "Increase in spin injection efficiency of a CoFe/MgO (100) tunnel spin injector with thermal annealing," Appl. Phys. Lett., vol. 86, pp. 052901-1,052901-3, 2005.

# A New Hybrid Genetic Algorithm for the District Heating Network Problem

Mitică CRAUS<sup>1</sup>, Florin LEON<sup>1</sup>, Dragos AROTĂRIȚEI<sup>2</sup> <sup>1</sup>"Gheorghe Asachi" Technical University Bd. Dimitrie Mangeron nr. 53A, 700050 Iași, Romania <sup>2</sup>"Gr. T. Popa" University of Medicine and Pharmacy Str.Universitatii nr. 16, 700115 Iasi, Romania <sup>1</sup>craus@cs.tuiasi.ro, <sup>1</sup>fleon@cs.tuiasi.ro, <sup>2</sup>dragos aro@yahoo.com

*Abstract* — In this paper we propose a new hybrid genetic algorithm with an adaptive fitness function to solve the problem of extending district heating networks, related to the prize-collecting Steiner tree problem. The multi-criterial optimization is achieved by means of weighting the profit and costs, depending on the application. The experimental results showed that the algorithm works well for small and sparse graphs and the running time is reasonable.

*Index Terms* — Water heating systems, Genetic algorithms, Optimization methods, Trees (graphs), Prize-collecting Steiner tree

- D. Arotăriţei, M. Craus, "An evolutionary Algorithm for Multi-criteria Optimization of District Heating Networw", Buletinul Institutului Politehnic din Iaşi, tomul LII (LVI), fasc.1-4, Automatic Control and Computer Science Section, pp. 97-106, 2006.
- [2] P. Feofiloff, C.G. Fernandes, C.E. Ferreira, J.C. de Pina, "Primal-Dual Approximation Algorithms for the Prize-Collecting Steiner Tree Problem", Information Processing Letters, Vol. 103, Issue 5, pp. 195-202, 2007.
- [3] A.M. Costa, J.-F. Cordeau, G. Laporte, "Fast heuristics for the Steiner tree problem with revenues, budget and hop constraints", European Journal of Operational Research, Vol. 190, Issue 1, pp. 68-78, 2008.
- [4] H. Esbensen, P. Mazumder, "A Genetic Algorithm for the Steiner Problem in a Graph", European Conf. on Design Automation, pp. 402-406,1994.
- [5] J. Gottlieb, B.A. Julstrom, G.R. Raidl, F. Rothlauf, "Prüfer Numbers: A Poor Representation of Spanning Trees for Evolutionary Search", Proceedings of the Genetic and Evolutionary Computation Conference GECCO-2001, pp. 343-350, 2001
- [6] L. Kou, G. Markovski, L. Berman, "A Fast Algorithm for Steiner Trees", Acta Informatica, 15, pp. 141-145, 1981.
- [7] Ljubic, et.al, "An algorithmic framework for the exact solution of the prize-collecting Steiner tree problem", Mathematical Programming, Series B, 105(2-3), pp. 427-449, 2006.
- [8] Ljubic, et.al, "Solving the prize-collecting Steiner tree problem to optimality", in: C. Demetrescu, R. Tamassia, and R. Sedgewick, editors, Proceedings of ALENEX 2005, Seventh Workshop on Algorithm Engineering and Experiments, Vancouver, British Columbia, Canada, January 22, 2005.
- [9] M. G. C. Resende, "Test problem distribution: Prize collecting Steiner tree", AT&T Labs Research, Internet and Network Systems Research Center, Algorithms and Optimization Research Department, http://www.research.att.com/~mgcr/data/pcstp.tar.gz, 2003.

# Information Security Policy in the Distributed Computer Systems

Vadym MUKHIN, Artem VOLOKYTA National Technical University of Ukraine "Kiev Polytechnic Institute" Pr. Pobedy, 37, UA-03056 Kiev mukhin@comsys.ntu-kpi.kiev.ua

*Abstract* — In the paper are presented the general principles of the information security policy in the computer systems. The main components of the security policy, implemented in accordance with the requirements of the modern standards, are described in detail.

The model of the security policy for the distributed computer systems is suggested. The potential threats to the safety of the computer systems and the main rules of the security policy for administrating in the distributed computer systems are formulated and substantiated, using the suggested model.

The suggested model for the access control of the subjects to objects in the distributed computer systems allows formalize an important component of the information security system.

Index Terms — distributed computer systems, information security, model, security policy

- [1] S. Barman, Writing Information Security Policies. Boston, "New Riders", 2002, 342 p.
- [2] ISO/IEC 27001:2005. "Information Technology. Security Techniques. Information Security Management Systems. Requirements". 18 October 2005, 44 p.
- [3] T.R. Peltier, Information Security Policies. Procedures and Standards: Guideline for Effective Information Security Management. Boca Raton, "Auerbach Publication", 2002, 176 p.
- [4] C.C. Wood, Information Security Policies Made Easy (9th ed.). Houston, Texas, USA. Pentasafe Security Technologies Inc, 2002. – 84 p.
- [5] E. Maiwald, Fundamentals of Network Security. "McGraw-Hill. Technology Education", New York, 2004.
- [6] National Institute of Standards and Technology: An Introduction to Computer Security, NIST Special Publication 800-12, Gaitherburg, MD 48, 2002.
- [7] L. Tobarra, D. Cazorle, F. Cuartero and G. Diaz, "Application of Formal Methods to the Analysis of Web-services Security"//In Proc. 2nd International Workshop on Web Services and Formal Methods (WS-FM'05), Versailles, France, September 2005, pp. 215 – 229.
- [8] M. Hentea, Information Security Management. Encyclopedia of Multimedia Technology and Networking. IDEA Group Reference. "Hershey", Pennsylvania, 2005, pp. 390 -395.
- [9] F.Y. Wang. "Agent-based Control for Networked Traffic Manage-ment systems". // IEEE Intelligent Systems, N 5(19), 2005, pp. 92 96.
- [10] K. Bhagavan, C. Fournet, A.D. Gordon and G. O'Shea. "An Advisor for Web Services Security Policies".// In Proc. of ACM Workshop on Secure Web Services (SWS'05), Fairfax, Virginia, USA, November 2005, pp. 197 – 206.
- [11] NCSA Security Policies and Procedures. Available: www.ncsa.uluc.edu/People/ ncsairst/Policy.html
- [12] R.C. Cardoso and M.M. Friere, Security Vulnerabilities and Exposures in Internet Systems and Services. Encyclopedia of Multimedia Technology and Networking. IDEA Group Reference, "Hershey", Pennsylvania, 2005, pp. 910 916.
- [13] M. Swanson and B. Guttman, Generally Accepted Principles and Practices for Security Information Technology Systems (GSSP)", National Institute of Standards and Technology, NIST Special Publication 800-14, Gaitherburg, MD, 2002.

# Analysis and Determination of Risk Factors Leading to Preterm Birth Using Data Mining Techniques in 📿

Adriana-Georgiana MALEA, Ștefan HOLBAN, Nicolae MELIȚĂ "Politehnica" University of Timișoara Blv. Vasile Pârvan, No. 2, RO-300223 Timișoara

*Abstract* — This paper aims to present a method of analysis a real medical dataset using Data Mining techniques. The method determines the risk factors leading to preterm birth and also analysis the quality in obstetrics. As language and development environment for statistical computation we used the R system. The purpose of this study is to highlight the influence of certain factors for premature birth by using graphics created in R.

The method further, applied on a sample of Romanian births, shows that various socio-demographic, anthropometric, behavioral and medical factors act interconnected in a direct manner on the risk of premature births. To prove this statement we wanted a partitioning based on similarities between the attributes that may be risk factors. We also classified attributes that may represent risk factors according to the type of birth: term or preterm. The results will be outlined with graphics obtained by applying data exploration algorithms.

Index Terms — Clustering, Data Mining, Heatmap, Preterm birth, R programming language

- [1] Brandt, 1986; Gould, 1986; Kramer, 1987; Livshits et al., 1988; Livshits, 1990; Berkowitz and Papiernik, 1993, "Path analysis of risk factors leading to premature birth"
- [2] Sandrine Dudoit and Robert Gentleman, Cluster Analysis in DNA Microarray Experiments, Bioconductor Short Course Winter 2002
- [3] Kardi Teknomo, "Distance Matrix of Multivariate Data", published in 2006 on the personal website: http://people.revoledu.com/kardi/tutorial/Similarity/MutivariateDistance.html
- [4] Sandrine Dudoit, Robert Gentleman, "Classification in Microarray Experiments", Bioconductor Short Course, summer 2003
- [5] Robert Gentleman, Wolfgang Huber, Vince Carey, Raphael Irizarry, "Machine Learning, Part 1"
- [6] Venables, D. M. Smith and the R Development Core Team, "An Introduction to R" manual, Version 2.10.1, 14.12.2009
- [7] N. T. Melita, S. Holban, " A Genetic Algorithm Approach to DNA Microarrays Analysis of Pancreatic Cancer", 9th International Conference on DEVELOPMENT AND APPLICATION SYSTEMS, Suceava, Romania, May 22-24, 2008
- [8] Adriana-Georgiana MALEA, "Analysis and Determination of Risk Factors Leading to Preterm Birth Using Data Mining Techniques in R", Bachelor paper, Universitatea Politehnica Timisoara, July 2009

# Embarking on the road of Intrusion Detection, with Erlang

Ioan Alfred LETIA<sup>1</sup>, Dan Alexandru MARIAN<sup>2</sup> <sup>1</sup>Department of Computer Science, Technical University of Cluj-Napoca Cluj-Napoca, Romania, letia@cs.utcluj.ro <sup>2</sup>Technical University of Cluj-Napoca, Department of Computer Science Cluj-Napoca, Romania marian.dan.alexandru@gmail.com

*Abstract* — Intrusion detection techniques are indispensable for the security infrastructure in order to detect threats before damage is produced. New methods have been conceived using advanced mechanisms, some of them biologically inspired, but all need some kind of information fusion. To be able to deploy these methods some functionalities are required for processing the huge amount of data passing through the network environment. We have been developing such functionalities in the Erlang programming language and are presenting them in this paper.

*Index Terms* — Computer maintenance, Computer network reliability, Computer network security, Functional programming, Network operating systems

- [1] J. Greensmith, J. Feyereisl, and U. Aickelin, "The DCA: Some comparison a comparative study between two biologically inspired algorithms," Evolutionary Intelligence, vol. 1, pp. 85–112, 2008.
- [2] S. X. Wu and W. Banzhaf, "The use of computational intelligence in intrusion detection systems: A review," Applied Soft Computing, vol. 10, pp. 1–35, 2010.
- [3] J. Twycross and U. Aickelin, "Information fusion in the immune system," Information Fusion, vol. 11, pp.35-44, 2010.
- [4] V. Chandola, A. Banerjee, and V. Kumar, "Anomaly detection: A survey," ACM Comput. Surv. vol. 41, no.3, pp. 1–58, 2009.
- [5] J. Armstrong, "Making reliable distributed systems in the presence of software errors," Ph.D. dissertation, The Royal Institute of Technology, Stockholm, Sweden, 2003.
- [6] R. Virding, C. Winkstrom, and M. Williams, Concurrent Programming in Erlang, J. Armstrong, Ed. Prentice-Hall, 1996.
- [7] R. Carlsson, "Parameterized modules in Erlang," in ERLANG 03: Proceedings of the 2003 ACM SIGPLAN workshop on Erlang. New York, NY, USA: ACM, 2003, pp. 29–35.
- [8] J. Armstrong, Programming Erlang: Software for a Concurrent World. The Pragmatic Bookshelf, 2007.
- [9] J. Nystrom, P. Trinder, and D. King, "Evaluating high-level distributed language constructs", in ICFP '07: Proceedings of the 12th ACM SIGPLAN international conference on Functional programming, New York, NY, USA: ACM, 2007, pp. 203–212.
- [10] Erlang Run-Time System Application, 5th ed., Ericsson, Nov. 2009.
- [11] V. Nicosia. (2007, Oct.) Towards hard real-time erlang. ACM SIGPLAN Erlang Workshop ICFP 2007.
- [12] M. L. Bailey, B. Gopal, M. A. Pagels, and L. L. Peterson, "PATHFINDER: A pattern-based packet classifier," Proceedings of the First Symposium on Operating Systems Design and Implementation, USENIX, 1994.
- [13] E. Nakashima, "Cyber attack data-sharing is lacking, congress told," The Washington Post, September 2009.
- [14] J. Allen, A. Christie, W. Fithen, J. McHugh, J. Pickel, and E. Stoner, "State of the practice of intrusion detection technologies," Carnegie Mellon, Software Engineering Institute, Tech. Rep., 2000.
- [15] S. Preda, F. Cuppens, N. Cuppens-Boulahia, J. G.Alfaro, L. Toutain, and Y. Elrakaiby, "Semantic context aware security policy deployment," in ASIACCS '09: Proceedings of the 4th International Symposium on Information, Computer, and Communications Security. New York, NY, USA: ACM, 2009, pp. 251–261.
- [16] A. Abrahama, R. Jainb, J. Thomasc, and S. Y. Hana, "D-SCIDS: Distributed soft computing intrusion detection system", Journal of Network and Computer Applications, 2007.
- [17] DARPA, "Rfc793 transmission control protocol", sep 1981.
- [18] S. Dharmapurikar, P. Krishnamurthy, T. S. Sproull, and J. W. Lockwood, "Deep packet inspection using parallel bloom filters," IEEE Micro, vol. 24, no. 1, pp. 52–61,2004.
- [19] P. Mell, V. Hu, R. Lippmann, J. Haines, and M. Zissman, "An overview of issues in testing intrusion detection systems," National Institute of Standards and Technology, Massachusetts Institute of Technology Lincoln Laboratory, Tech. Rep.

# Argumentative Support for Structured HACCP Plans

Ioan Alfred LETIA, Adrian GROZA Technilcal University of Cluj-Napoca str.Daicoviciu nr.13, RO-400003 Cluj-Napoca letia@cs.utcluj.ro

*Abstract* — This research presents an argumentation based decision support system for implementing the Hazard Analysis at Critical Control Points (HACCP) standard in food industry. Our analysis starts by identifying the adequate technical instrumentation needed for supporting different aspects of the HAACP system. An integrated architectural solution is presented. The framework is built around concept maps and it exploits the integration of ontologies with argumentation theory by using the Argument Interchange Format ontology.

*Index Terms* — decision support systems, food industry, description logic, argumentation, supply chains

- [1] Rajan Alex. Fuzzy point estimation and its application on fuzzy supply chain analysis. Fuzzy sets and systems, 158:1571-1587, 2007.
- [2] Okezie I. Aruoma. The impact of food regulation on the food supply chain. Texicology, 221:119–227, 2006.
- [3] Dane Bernard, Bob Colletet, Don Kraemer, Kathy Hart, Bob Price, Steve Otwell, and Donn Ward. Hazard Analysis and Critical Control Point Training Curriculum. National Seafood HACCP Aliance, 1997.
- [4] Massimo Bertolini, Antonio Rizzi, and Bevilacqua Maurizio. An alternative approach to haccp system implementation. Journal of Food Engineering, 79:1322–1328, 2007.
- [5] Michael J. Braunscheidel and Nallan C. Suresh. The organizational antecedents of a firm's supply chain agility for risk mitigation and response. Journal of Operations Management, 27:119–140, 2009.
- [6] Yapp C. and Fairman R. Factors affecting food safety compliance within small and medium-sized enterprises: implications for regulatory and enforcement strategies. Food Control, 17:261–271, 2006.
- [7] Anthony Chavez, Daniel Dreilinger, Rob Guttman, and Pattie Maes. A real-life experiment in creating an agent marketplace. In Software Agents and Soft Computing: Towards Enhancing Machine Intelligence, Concepts and Applications, pages 160–179, London, UK, 1997. Springer-Verlag.
- [8] Taylor E. Haccp in small companies: benefit or burdens? Food Control, 12:217–222, 2001.
- [9] Food and Agriculture Organisation of the United Nations World Health Organization. Codex Alimentarus. 1997.
- [10] Marijin Janssen. The architecture and business value of a semicooperative, agent-based supply chain management system. Electronic Commerce Research and Applications, 4:315–328, 2005.
- [11] Danijela Tadic, Miladin Stefanovic, and Dragan Milanovi'c. Fuzzy approach in evaluation of operations in food production. International Journal for Quality Research, 1(2):97–104, 2007.
- [12] Aurora Zugarramurdi, Maria A. Parin, Liliana Gadaleta, and Hector M. Lupin. A quality cost model for food processing plants. Journal of Food Engineering, 83:414–421, 2007.
- [13] Iyad Rahwan , Fouad Zablith, and Chris Reed. Laying the foundations for a world wide argument web. Artificial Intelligence, 171(10-15):897-921, 2007
- [14] Douglas Walton. Fundamentals of critical argumentation, Cambridge University Press, 2006

# Applied Realization of Neural Network and Neurolike Parallel-Hierarchical System Based on GPGPU

Andriy YAROVYY Vinnytsia National Technical University 95, Khmelnytske Shosse, Vinnytsia, 21021, Ukraine axa@vinnitsa.com

*Abstract* — The paper considers main aspects and features of applied realization of neural network and neurolike parallel-hierarchical systems based on GPGPU technologies. The research performs the analysis of the architecture of modern GPU and models of GPU parallel programming, as well as considers ways of GPU programs optimization for parallel computing in general-purpose parallelhierarchical systems, proposed as a networking model of neurolike scheme of information processing. On the basis of research performed and results obtained software modules are offered for realization at CPU and GPU of large-scale neural and neurolike parallel-hierarchical networks of different topologies.

*Index Terms* — parallel-hierarchical neurolike systems, neural networks, parallel computing, GPGPU, video card programming, image processing, forecast

#### REFERENCES

- [1] V.V. Voevodin Parallel computing: Tutorial [for students of higher educational institutions.] / V.V. Voevodin, Vl.V. Voevodin Sankt Petersburg: BHV- Petersburg, 2002. 608 p. ISBN 5-94157-160-7.
- [2] Parallel-hierarchical model of systemic transformation as optoelectronic means of artificial intelligence: [Monograph.] / V.P. Kozhemyako, Yu.F. Kutaev, S.V. Svechnikov, L.I. Timchenko, A.A. Yarovyy – Vinnytsia: Universum-Vinnytsia, 2003. – 324 p. – ISBN 966-641-072-9.
- [3] Hardware implementation of parallel-hierarchical network based on DSP / V.P. Kozhemyako, L.I. Timchenko, A.A. Yarovyy, S. Remezyuk / Book of abstracts of Third International Scientific Conference [Optoelectronic Information Technologies "Photonics ODS-2005"], (Vinnitsa, 27-28 April 2005) Vinnytsia: Universum-Vinnytsia, 2005. P. 43.
- [4] Krug P.G. Neural networks and Neurocomputers : Tutorial [for students of higher educational institutions the course "Microprocessors"] / Krug P.G. Moskow: Publishing MEI, 2002. 176 p. ISBN 5-7046-0832-9.
- [5] Selecting the hardware platform for implementing large-scale neural and neurolike parallel-hierarchical networks [Electronic resource]: (IX International Conference on Control and management of complex systems (CMCS 2008), Vinnytsia, October, 21-24, 2008) / A.A. Yarovyy, Yu.S. Bogomolov, K.Yu. Voznesensky. – Mode of access: http://www.vstu.vinnica.ua/mccs2008/materials/subsection\_2.2.pdf.
- [6] Applied aspects of software and hardware implementation of parallel-hierarchical neural systems / A.A. Yarovyy: Collection of scientific works [Scientific Session of MIPhI - 2009], [XI All-Russia Scientific-Technical Conference "Neuroinformatics-2009"], (Moscow, January, 27-30, 2009), [in 2 parts. Part 2.] - Moscow, MIPhI, 2009. - P. 39-48.
- [7] Comparison of performance graphics accelerators and CPU in the calculations for large volumes of processed data / Skribtsov P.V, Dolgopolov A.V. // Neurocomputers: development, application – Moscow, Publishing House "Radiotechniques", 2007. - № 9. - P. 421-425. – ISSN 0869-5350.
- [8] GPGPU: General Purpose computations on Graphic Processing Unit [Electronic resource] Mode of access: http://www.gpgpu.org.
- [9] OpenCL: Open Computing Language [Electronic resource] Mode of access: http://en.wikipedia.org/ wiki/OpenCL.
- [10] Certificate of registration of copyright in a research №27755. Computer program "Software library for design and modeling topologies of artificial neural and neurolike networks" ("NN-Constructor") / A.A. Yarovyy, Yu.S. Bogomolov, K.Yu. Voznesensky. Registered with the State Department of Intellectual Property of Ukraine, 20.02.2009.
- [11] Certificate of registration of copyright in a research №31705. Computer program "Software library for parallel processing of information based on programming video card ATI ("useGPU")" / A.A. Yarovyy, Yu.S. Bogomolov, K.Yu. Voznesensky. Registered with the State Department of Intellectual Property of Ukraine, 21.01.2010.

# An Ontological Approach to Legal Literature for Improving Legal Knowledge Dissemination

Ioan Alfred LETIA<sup>1</sup>, Sorina CORNOIU<sup>2</sup> <sup>1</sup>Department of Computer Science, Technical University of Cluj-Napoca, Romania <sup>2</sup>Legislative Council, Bucharest, Romania <sup>1</sup>letia@cs.utcluj.ro,

*Abstract* — We present an ontological approach to the legal literature for translating sources of law into information accessible to people both with and without a legal education. To improve the quality of the legislative language and to facilitate legal experts and citizens in accessing the legislation we propose to use legal ontologies. In this sense we show the roles of two legal ontologies: the LKIF-core Ontology and the Lex-is Ontology in improving the dissemination of legal knowledge.

*Index Terms* — computer science, information retrieval, knowledge based systems, knowledge representation, problem-solving

- K. D. Ashley, S. Bruninghhaus, "Automatically classifying case texts and predicting outcomes", Artificial Intelligence and Law, 17:125–165, 2009.
- [2] A. Boer, R. Winkels, F. Vitali. "Metalex and LKIF", In The Twentieth Annual Conference Annual Conference, pages 19–28, 2007.
- [3] J. Breuker, R. Hoekstra, A. Boer, K. van der Berg, G. Sartor, R. Rubino, A. Wyner, T. Bench-Capon, "Owl ontology of basic legal concepts LKIF core", 2008.
- [4] J. Breuker, A. Valente, R. Winkels, "Legal ontologies in knowledge engineering and information management", Artificial Intelligence and Law, 12:241–277, 2004.
- [5] J. Breuker, van de Ven, S.El-Ali, M.Bron, R.Hoekstra, S.Klarman, U.Milosevic, L.Wortel, "D4.6. Developing HARNESS Towards a hybrid architecture for LKIF", 2008: http://www.estrellaproject.org/doc/Estrella-D4.6.pdf.
- [6] E. Francesconi, G. Peruginelli, "Integrated access to legal literature through automated semantic classification", Artificial Intelligence and Law, 17:31–49, 2009.
- [7] T. F. Gordon, "Constructing legal arguments with rules in the legal knowledge interchange format (LKIF)", In P. Casanova and et al, editors, Computable Models of the Law, LNCS 4884, pages 162–184. Springer-Verlag, 2008.
- [8] R. Hoekstra, J. Breuker, M. Di Bello, and A. Boer. "The lkif core ontology of basic legal concepts", Legal Ontologies and Artificial Intelligence Techniques, 2007.
- [9] J. Lehmann, J. Breuker, B. Brouwer, "Causation in AI and Law", Artificial Intelligence and Law, volume 12, Number 4, December 2004, pp.279-315(37).
- [10] J. Lehmann, J. Breuker, B. Brouwer, and CAUSATIONT: modeling causation in AI & Law, Law and the Semantic Web, page. 77-96, 2003.
- [11] F. C. Maya Wardeh, Trevor Bench-Capon, "PADUA: A protocol for argumentation dialogue using association rules", Artificial Intelligence and Law, 17:183–215, 2009.
- [12] L. Mommers, W. Voermans, W. Koelewijn, H. Kielman, "Understanding the law: improving legal knowledge dissemination by translating the contents of formal sources of law", Artificial Intelligence and Law, 17:51–78, 2009.
- [13] H. Prakken. "Formalising ordinary legal disputes: a case study", Artificial Intelligence and Law, 16:333–359, 2008.
- [14] M. Saravanan, B. Ravindran, S. Raman,"Improving legal information retrieval using an ontological framework", Artificial Intelligence and Law, 17:101–124, 2009.
- [15] G. Sartor, "Legal concepts as inferential nodes and ontological categories", Artificial Intelligence and Law, 17:217–251, 2009.
- [16] A. Valente, "Types and Roles of Legal", In Benjamins, V. R. et al. (eds.) Law and the Semantic Web. Springer: Berlin/Heidelberg, DE, 65-76.

### Architectural Views for Designing Relationships in Distributed Systems

Anca Daniela IONITA<sup>1</sup>, Jacky ESTUBLIER<sup>2</sup> <sup>1</sup>University "Politehnica" of Bucharest Splaiul Independentei 313, 060042, Bucharest, Romania Anca.Ionita @ mag.pub.ro <sup>2</sup>LIG-IMAG, 220, rue de la Chimie BP53 38041 Grenoble Cedex 9, France Jacky.Estublier @ imag.fr

*Abstract* — The paper studies the detailed design of relationships between concepts, taking into account four architectural views: logical, process, implementation and deployment. The classical patterns, applied if one considers the conceptual relationships from the logical view, are not enough for distributed applications, because the related elements may pertain to different computing nodes. More criteria should be used for the detailed design, like the technology used for communication paths - e.g. for Service Oriented Architectures - or the rights to modify the subsystems containing the related elements - if the distributed system is based on composing reusable assets. Moreover, the object oriented approach may need to be leveraged by a design based on aspects, for grasping crosscutting issues.

*Index Terms* — Aspect-Oriented Software Development, Design methodology, Distributed systems, Object oriented methods, Service Oriented Architectures

#### REFERENCES

- Y-G. Guéhéneuc, H. Albin-Amiot, "Recovery Binary Class Relationships: Putting Icing on the UML Cake", Conference on Object-Oriented Programming, Systems, Languages & Applications (ACM / OOPSLA'04), Vancouver (Canada), pp. 301-314, 2004.
- [2] M. Gogolla, M. Richters, "Equivalence Rules for UML Class Diagrams", in The Unified Modeling Language. <<UML>>'98: Beyond the Notation, First International Workshop, Mulhouse, France, J. Bezivin, P.A. Muller (Eds.), LNCS, Vol. 1618, pp. 92-106,1999.
- [3] P. Stevens, "On the interpretation of binary associations in the Unified Modeling Language", Journal on Software and Systems Modelling, Vol. 1, No. 1, pp. 68-79, 2002.
- [4] G. Génova, J. Llorens, J. Fuentes, "UML Associations: A Structural and Contextual View". Journal of Object Technology, Vol. 3, No. 7, pp. 83-100, 2004.
- [5] K.J Lieberherr. "Controlling the Complexity of Software Designs", Proc. of the 26th International Conference on Software Engineering (IEEE/ICSE 2004), Scotland, United Kingdom, pp. 2-11, 2004.
- [6] N. May, "A survey of software architecture viewpoint models", Proc. of the Sixth Australasian Workshop on Software and System Architectures, Melbourne, Australia, pp. 13-24, 2005.
- [7] OASIS Reference Architecture for Service Oriented Architecture Version 1.0, Public Review Draft 1, 2008, Available: http://docs.oasis-open.org/soa-rm/soa-ra/v1.0/soa-ra-pr-01.pdf
- [8] Ph. Kruchten, "Architectural Blueprints—The "4+1" View Model of Software Architecture", IEEE Software, Vol. 12, No. 6, pp. 42-50, 1995.
- [9] FCGSS, "Applying 4+1 view architecture with UML2", White Paper, 2007, Available: http://www.sparxsystems.com/downloads/whitepapers/FCGSS\_US\_WP\_Applying\_4+1\_w\_UML2.pdf
- [10] A.D. Ionita, M. Florea, L. Jelea, "4+1 Views for a Business Cooperation Framework Based on SOA", IAENG International Journal of Computer Science, Vol. 36, No. 4, pp. 332-343, 2009.
- [11] A.D. Ionita, J. Estublier, Th. Leveque, T. Nguyen, "Bi-dimensional Composition with Domain Specific Languages", e-Informatica Software Engineering Journal, Vol. 3, No. 1, pp. 27-41, 2009.
- [12] E. Barra, G.Génova, J. Llorens, "An approach to Aspect Modelling with UML 2.0", Proc. of Aspect-Oriented Modeling Workshop at UML'2004, Lisbon, Portugal, 2004
- [13] C. Larman, Applying UML and Patterns: An Introduction to Object-Oriented Analysis and Design and the Unified Process, Pearson Education, Prentice Hall, 2003.

### Value Based Argumentation using Formal Concepts

Ioan Alfred LETIA, Anca GORON Technical University of Cluj-Napoca str.Baritiu nr.26-28, RO-400027 Cluj-Napoca letia@cs.utcluj.ro, anca d g@yahoo.com

*Abstract* — We consider the problem of argumentation over actions for the development of new agent programs. The goal is to improve the representation of argumentation over actions by using Galicia, a tool based on Formal Concept Analysis and Relational Concept Analysis. The main objective of the paper is to show our findings in the advantage provided by a clear visualization of the interaction between the agents. While we are using here a simple scenario the end goal is a more complex one in which agents need a clear picture in their decision making encounter.

*Index Terms* — Cooperative systems, Distributed computing, Intelligent systems, Interactive systems, Knowledge representation

- [1] K. Atkinson and T. Bench-Capon. Practical reasoning as presumptive argumentation using action based alternating transition systems. Artif. Intell. 171(10-15):855–874, 2007.
- [2] T. Bench-Capon, K. Atkinson, and P. McBurney. Altruism and agents: an argumentation based approach to designing agent decision mechanisms. In 8th International Conference on Autonomous Agents and Multiagent Systems, pages 1073–1080, 2009.
- [3] T. Bench-Capon and P. E. Dunne. Argumentation in artificial intelligence. Artif. Intell. 171:619-641, 2007.
- [4] T. J. M. Bench-Capon. Persuasion in practical argument using value-based argumentation frame- works. Journal of Logic and Computation, 13:429–448, 2003.
- [5] P. M. Dung, P. M. Thang, and F. Toni. Towards argumentation-based contract negotiation. In Second International Conference on Computational Models of Argument, Toulouse, France, 2008.
- [6] B. Ganter and R. Wille. Formal Concept Analysis: Mathematical Foundations. Springer-Verlag, 1999.
- [7] M. Huchard, M. Rouane Hacene, C. Roume, and P. Valtchev. Relational concept discovery in structured datasets. Annals of Mathematics and Artificial Intelligence, 49:39–76, 2007.
- [8] S. Modgil. Value based argumentation in hierarchical argumentation frameworks. In Proceeding of the 2006 conference on Computational Models of Argument, pages 297–308, Amsterdam, The Netherlands, The Netherlands, 2006. IOS Press.
- [9] Y. Tang and S. Parsons. A dialogue mechanism for public argumentation using conversation policies. In 7th International Joint Conference on Autonomous Agents and Multiagent Systems, pages 445–452

# Ontology Based Modeling of Cultural Heritage Systems

Dorin-Mircea POPOVICI<sup>1, 2</sup>, Crenguta-Madalina BOGDAN<sup>1</sup>, Ronan QUERREC<sup>2</sup>

<sup>1</sup>"Ovidius" University of Constanta 124 Mamaia Blvd., RO-900527, Constanta {dmpopovici, cbogdan}@univ-ovidius.ro <sup>2</sup>Ecole Nationale d'Ingénieurs de Brest Laboratoire d'Informatique des Systémes Complexes 25 rue Claude Chappe, F-29280 Plouzane, France {popovici, querrec}@enib.fr

*Abstract* — Any virtual environment (VE) built in a classical way is dedicated to a very specific domain. Its modification or even adaptation to another domain requires an expensive human intervention measured in time and money. This way, the product, that means the VE, returns at the first phases of the development process. Our proposal is based on the description of the domain knowledge in a standard format and the assisted creation (using these pieces of knowledge) of the VE. This permits the explanation within the virtual reality (VR) simulation of the semantic of the whole context and of each object. This knowledge may be then transferred to the public users. Moreover, we may capitalize the knowledge concerning the environment resources (both geometrical and semantic) and sharing them between different VEs.<sup>2</sup>

Index Terms — Virtual reality, artificial intelligence, information system

#### **REFERENCES**

- [1] B. Szasz, A. Saraniva, K. Bognar, M. Unzeitig, M. Karjalainen, Cultural Heritage on the Semantic Web the Museum24 project, http://www.museo24.fi/, (visited in jan. 2010).
- [2] Y. Liu, C.Xu, Q.Zhang, Y.Pan, "Ontology Based Semantic Modeling for Chinese Ancient Architectures", American Association for Artificial Intelligence, pp. 1808-1813, 2006.
- [3] C. Ghiselli, A. Trombetta, L. Bozzato, E. Binaghi, "Semantic Web Meets Virtual Museums: The Domus Naturae Project", In Cultural Heritage Informatics 2005: selected papers from ichim05. Toronto: Archives & Museum Informatics, http://www.archimuse.com/publishing/ichim05/ghiselli.pdf, (visited in january 2010), 2005.
- [4] O. Eide, A. Felicetti, C.E. Ore, A. DAndrea, J. Holmen, "Encoding Cultural Heritage Information for the SemanticWeb", Procedures for Data Integration through CIDOC-CRM Mapping, EPOCH Conference on Open Digital Cultural Heritage Systems, D. Arnold, F. Niccolucci, D. Pletinckx, L. Van Gool (Editors), pp. 1-7, 2008.
- [5] O. De Troyer, F. Kleinermann, B. Pellens, W. Bille, "Conceptual Modeling for Virtual Reality", In Tutorials, Posters, Panels and Industrial Contributions of The Twenty-Sixth International Conference onConceptual Modeling – ER 2007, Auckland, New Zealand, Conferences in Research and Practice in Information Technology (CRPIT), J. Grundy, S. Hartmann, H. Alberto, F. Laender, L. Maciaszek and J.F. Roddick, Eds., Vol. 83, 2007.
- [6] D. Arnold, A. Day, J. Glauert, S. Haegler, V. Jennings, B. Kevelham, R. Laycock, N. Magnenat-Thalmann, J. Maim, D. Maupu, G. Papagiannakis, D. Thalmann, B. Yersin and K. Rodriguez-Echavarria, "Tools for Populating Cultural Heritage Environments with Interactive Virtual Humans", NO : EPOCH Conference on Open Digital Cultural Heritage Systems, D. Arnold, F. Niccolucci, D. Pletinckx, L. Van Gool (Editors), 2008.
- [7] J. Maim, S. Haegler, B. Yersin, P. Miller, D. Thalmann, L. Van Gool, "Populating Ancient Pompeii with Crowds of Virtual Romans", In 8th International Symposium on Virtual Reality, Archeology and Cultural Heritage VAST, 2007.
- [8] A. Bogdanovych, J. A. Rodriguez, S. Simoff, A. Cohen, C. Sierra, "Developing Virtual Heritage Applications as Normative Multiagent Systems", In Proceedings of the Tenth International Workshop on Agent Oriented Software Engineering (AOSE 2009) at the Eights International Joint Conference on Autonomous Agents and Multiagent Systems (AAMAS 2009), Budapest, Hungary, pp. 121-132, 2009.
- [9] J. Ibanez Martinez, C. Delgado Mata, "A Basic Semantic Common Level for Virtual Environments", The International Journal of Virtual Reality, 5(3), pp. 25-32, 2006.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>2</sup> This work was supported by PROMETEU grant AUF/2009 and TOMIS project PN II 11-041/ 2007.

# Some Aspects of Data Integration in Data Mining Systems

Mirela DANUBIANU, Emanuela-Alina BOLOHAN, Radu TIGANESCUL-AMARITII Stefan cel Mare University of Suceava str. Universitatii nr. 13, RO-720229 Suceava mdanub@usv.ro; embolohan@stud.usv.ro; rtiganescul@stud.usv.ro

*Abstract* — The aim of this paper is to present some aspects of data preparation in the Knowledge Discovery in Databases process. We have made some experiments regarding data migration from MS Access to Oracle, respectively to DB2 UDB, as a first step in data preparation for data mining algorithms. We have decided to implement a data mining system in order to improve the personalized therapy of speech disorder assisted by Terapers system. Due to the limitation of MS Access, the DBMS used for Terapers, we intend to use for this data mining system a database management system to provide data mining features incorporated. The reason of these experiments is to find the best solution for that.

Index Terms — Knowledge Discovery in Database, data mining, data integration, data migration

- [1] U. Fayyad, G. Piatetsky-Shapiro, and P Smyth, (1996) The KDD process for extracting useful knowledge from volumes of data. Communications of the ACM, 39(11):27-34, November
- [2] R.J. Brachman, and T. Anand. (1996) The process of knowledge discovery in databases: A human centered approach. In U. M. Fayyad, G. Piatetsky-Shapiro, P. Smyth, and R. Uthurusamy, editors, Advances in Knowledge Discovery and Data Mining, chapter 2, pages 37-57. AAAI/MIT Press,
- [3] R. Wirth, and J. Hipp, (2000) CRISP-DM: Towards a standard process model for data mining. In Proceedings of the 4th International Conference on the Practical Applications of Knowledge Discovery and Data Mining, pages 29-39, Manchester, UK.
- [4] M. Danubianu, S.G. Pentiuc, O Schipor, M Nestor, I Ungurean Distributed Intelligent System for Personalized Therapy of Speech Disorders, Proceedings of ICCGI08, 2008, Atena
- [5] M Danubianu, S.G. Pentiuc, T. Socaciu, Towards the Optimized Personalized Therapy of Speech Disorders by Data Mining Techniques, The Fourth International Multi Conference on Computing in the Global Information Technology ICCGI 2009, Vol: CD, 23-29 August, Cannes - La Bocca, France, 2009
- [6] http://www.oracle.com/technology/obe/hol08/sqldev\_migration/msaccess/migrate\_microsoft\_access\_otn.htm#t6
- [7] http://download.oracle.com/docs/cd/B25329\_01/doc/appdev.102/b25108/toc.htm
- [8] http://www.ibm.com/developerworks/data/library/techarticle/dm-0605bhogal/index.html
- [9] http://users.utcluj.ro/~valean/II/bd.pdf

# Formation of Microrelief on the Base of Multilevel Elevations Maps

Sergei I.VYATKIN<sup>1</sup>, Oksana V. ROMANIUK<sup>2</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Institute of Automation and Electrometry, SB RAS,1 prosp. Koptiuga, Novosibirsk Russia, <sup>2</sup>Vinnitsa National Technical University, Ivana Bohuna street, 119, Vinnitsa-21100, Ukraine

*Abstract* — There had been considered the issues on usage of perturbation functions for microrelief rendering. There had been suggested the methods for prescribing and rendering of microrelief on the base of multi level elevation map. There had been shown the advantages before the existent methods of microrelief rendering. In comparison with the known methods in the suggested methods, the time of calculations during the relief generation practically does not depend on elevation map resolution. In the suggested method of microrelief generation for the microrelief representation and levels of detail changing the same mechanism is used as for the usual texture.

*Index Terms* — microrelief, multilevel elevation maps, multilevel ray-tracing, perturbation function, rendering

- [1] T. Akenine-Möller, E. Haines, N. Hoffman. Real-Time Rendering, third edition. A K Peters, 2008.
- [2] I. Ernst, D. Jackèl, H. Rüsseler, O. Wittig. Hardware Supported Bump Mapping: A Step towards Higher Quality Real-Time Rendering. – Proceedings of 10<sup>th</sup> Eurographics Workshop on Graphics Hardware, 1995. – P. 63-70.
- [3] T. Welsh. "*Parallax Mapping with Offset* Limiting: A PerPixel. Approximation of Uneven Surfaces". Infiscape Corp. Tech Report, 2004.
- [4] Manuel M. Oliveira, Gary Bishop, David McAllister. Relief Texture Mapping. Proc. SIGGRAPH 2000. P. 324 331.
- [5] F. Policarpo, M. Olivers, J. Comba. Real-Time Relief Mapping on Arbitrary Polygonal Surfaces. Proceedings of ACM SIGGRAPH 2005. – P. 155-162.
- [6] Vyatkin S.I, Romaniuk O.V. The Method of Relief Surface Image Formation // Data Rec., Storage & Processing. 2009. – Vol. 11, №4. – P. 51-58.
- [7] Vyatkin S.I., Dolgovesov B.S., Yesin A.V. et al. Voxel Volumes volume-oriented visualization system // International Conference on Shape Modeling and Applications (March 1-4, 1999, Aizu-Wakamatsu, Japan) IEEE Computer Society, Los Alamitos, California, 1999. - p. 234-241.
- [8] Vyatkin S.I., Dolgovesov B.S., Guimaoutdinov O.Y. Synthesis of virtual environment using perturbation functions // volume III (Emergent Computing and Virtual Engineering), World Multiconference on Systemics, Cybernetics and Informatics Proceedings, Orlando, FL, USA, July 22-25, 2001. p.350-355.

# The BRDF Models Based on the Cosine-quadratic Function

#### Alexander ROMAHYUK, Yuri LYASHENKO Vinnitsa National Technical University str. Khmelnitske Shosse, 95, 21021, Vinnitsa, Ukraine ran12345@mail.ru, Yuri.Lyashenko@gmail.com

*Abstract* — This paper describes several approaches to approximate bidirectional reflectance distribution function (BRDF) by cosine-quadratic functions. Since BRDF is the most computationally complicated part of calculating the color intensity according to the Phong illumination model it needs to be simplified. Herein, several approximations are provided. The advantages of them are numerous: easy hardware implementation, less relative error, than most widespread approximations have, fast to compute.

*Index Terms* — Approximation methods, computer graphics, Color graphics, Graphics, Rendering, BRDF

- [1] Hern D., Paulin Backer The Computer Graphics and OpenGL. -M. : Publishing House «Williams».2005.-1168 p.
- [2] Chrictophe Schlick A Fast Alternative to Phong's Specular Model // Graphics Gems IV. Academic Press. 1994. pp. 404-409.
- [3] Lyon R.F. Phong Shading Reformulation for Hardware Renderer Simplification // Apple Technical Report No43. 1993.
- [4] Chang C.F., Bishop G., Lastra A. LDI Tree: A Hierarchical Representation for Image-Based Rendering // In Computer Graphics, SIGGRAPH '99 Proceedings. - 1999. - pp. 291-298
- [5] Foley, Van Dam, Feiner, and Hughes Computer Graphics // Principles and Practice. Addison Wesley. Ch. 16. 1996. pp. 800-870.
## VRDN: A Software Environment for Visual Simulation of Rewriting Generalized Timed Differential Petri Nets Models

Emilian GUŢULEAC, Iurie ŢURCANU, Ion BALMUŞ, Victor CHEIBAŞ, Alexei CORDUNENU Computer Science Department, Technical University of Moldova Bul. Stefan cel Mare nr. 168, MD-2012 Chisinau, Republic of Moldova egutuleac@mail.utm.md, Iurie.Turcanu@endava.com, balmus@mail.utm.md

*Abstract* — This paper presents the Rewriting generalized Differential Petri nets (RGDN) a class of Petri nets, that accept the negative-continuous place capacity, negative real values for discrete and continuous place marking and negative marked-dependent arc cardinalities. For the purpose of visual simulation and analysis of RGDN a Visual Rewriting Differential Petri Nets (VRDN) software environment has been elaborated and developed. It offers an intuitive graphical user interface for designing various elements of nets as well as their efficient simulation, thus making it usable for research and academic activities.

Index Terms - hybrid systems, modeling, Petri nets, rewriting, software tool, visual simulation

#### REFERENCES

- [1] A. Alla, H. David, "Continuous and hybrid Petri nets," Journal of Systems Circuits and Computers, 8(1), pp. 159-188, 1998.
- [2] Demongodin, N.T. Koussoulas, "Differential Petri Nets: Representing continuous systems in a discrete-event world," IEEE Transaction on Automatic Control, Vol. 43, No. 4, 1998.
- [3] M. Calzarossa, R. Marie, "Tools for Performance Evaluation," Performance Evaluation, no. 33, pp.1-3, 1998.
- [4] C. Ciufudean, A. B. Larionescu, "Estimation of the Performances of The Discrete Events Systems," Advances in Electrical and Computer Engineering, no. 2, pp. 30-34, 2003.
- [5] K. Compton, S. Hauck, "Reconfigurable Computing: a Survey of Systems and Software," ACM Computing Surveys (CSUR), vol. 34, no. 2, pp. 171-210, 1998.
- [6] R. German, M. Gribaudo, G. Horvath, M. Telek, "Stationary analysis of FSPNs with mutually dependent discrete and continuous parts," Proceedings of 10<sup>th</sup> Int. Workshop on Petri Nets and Performance Models (PNPM'03), Urbana-Champaign, USA, September 2003, IEEE Comp. Soc. Press., p. 30-39, 2003.
- [7] E. Guţuleac, M. Mocanu, I. Ţurcanu, "Dynamic Rewriting of Differential Petri Nets for Modeling of Hybrid Systems," In Proc. of the 2-nd International Conference on Intelligent Computer Communication and Processing, 1-2 September, Cluj-Napoca, România, pp. 105-112, 2006.
- [8] E. Guţuleac, "Descriptive Timed Membrane Petri Nets for Modeling of Parallel Computing," International Journal of Computers, Communications & Control, Agora University, Oradea, România, no. 3, Vol. I, pp. 33-39, 2006.
- [9] E. Gutuleac, "Descriptive compositional HSPN modeling of computer systems," Annals of the University of Craiova, vol. 3 (30), no.2, pp.82-87, 2006.
- [10] E. Guţuleac, "Descriptive compositional HSPN based discrete continuous modeling of distributed systems," Scientific Annals of the State University of Moldova, CEP USM, Chisinau, pp. 182-187, 2005.
- [11] K. Hoffmann, H. Ehrig, T. Mossakowski, "High-Level Nets with Nets and Rules as Tokens," Proceedings of ICATPN'05, volume 3536 of LNCS, Springer, p. 268–288, 2007.
- [12] M. Llorens, J. Oliver, "Structural and Dynamic Changes in Concurrent Systems: Reconfigurable Nets," IEEE Transactions on Computers, vol. 53, no. 9, pp. 1147-1158, 2004.
- [13] C. Lefter, M.H. Matcovschi, O. Pastravanu, "Computer-Aided Analysis and Design of Discrete-Event Systems with Petri Net Toolbox for MATLAB," În: Yagawa, Atanasiu G. and C. Brătianu (Eds.), Perform. Based Engineering for 21st Century, Ed. Cermi, p. 222-227, 2004.
- [14] http://ru.wikipedia.org/wiki/.NET\_Framework.
- [15] Petri nets world Petri nets tools database. http://www.informatik.uni-hamburg.de/TGI/PetriNets/tools/quick.html.

More references are available on-line at www.dasconference.ro.

## Information Technology Approach to Individual "Knapsack Problem" (Nanologistics)

Sergey RYVKIN<sup>1</sup>, Denis KRASNOVSKI<sup>2</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Trapeznikov Institute of Control Sciences of Russian Academy of Sciences str.Profsouznaua nr.65, 117997 Moscow, Russia rivkin@ipu.ru <sup>2</sup>State Corporation "Bank for Development and Foreign Economic Affairs (Vnesheconombank)" Akademika Sakharova Prospect nr. 9, 107996 Moscow, Russia denis krasnovsky@mail.ru

*Abstract* — The main aim of this article is shown new approach to the solving of the classical individual goods "knapsack problem" on the base of modern information technology. First of all in the frame of the modern logistics a new branch named nanologistics have been separated. It is oriented to investigation of an individual logistics behavior and design optimal solutions for his logistics goals. The individual logistics roles are presented und discussed. The basic ideas are introduced. A technique and a problem solving procedure for an individual goods basket forming are shown. The logistics cost less goods basket is formed with responsiveness to individual features and an allowance for risks and by fulfillment of some limitation.

*Index Terms* — integer programming, Internet, logistics, management information systems, optimization methods

- [1] Available: http://www.idc.com/home.jhtml.
- [2] Available: http://www.gs1.org/.
- [3] Available: http://www.mysehome.com/products.html?c=Wiser.
- [4] Available: http://www.lge.com/global/products/home-appliances/index.jsp.
- [5] Available: http://www.robotsrule.com/html/samsung-refrigerator.php.
- [6] E.Trachtengerts, Computer methods for realization of economics and management solutions. SINTEG, 2009 (in Russian).
- [7] A. Gadzhinsky, Logistics. Dashkov & Co, 2006 (in Russian).
- [8] B. Anikin, Logistics. INFRA-M, 1999 (in Russian).
- [9] K. Arrow, "Reflections on the essays," Arrow and the Foundations of the Theory of Economic Policy. Macmillan, 1987.
- [10] G. Kleiner, "Nanoeconomics and firm theory", Bulletin of Woronezh State University, vol. Economics and management, pp. 99 123, no. 2, 2004 (in Russian).
- [11] D. Pink, Free Agent Nation: The Future of Working for Yourself. Warner Books, 2002.
- [12] R. Camrass, M. Farncombe, The Atomic Corporation: Rational Proposals for Uncertain Times. Ltd (A Wiley Company), 2004.
- [13] K. Marx, Capital, Available: http://www.marxists.org/archive/marx/works/1867-c1/index.htm.
- [14] A. Holmes, Smart risk. Capstone Publishing Ltd (A Wiley Company), 2004.
- [15] I. Evstaf'ev, Total risk management. EKSMO, 2008 (in Russian).
- [16] I. Sigal, A, Ivanova, Introduction to applied discrete optimization: models and computational algorithms. Physics & Mathematics Publishers, 2007 (in Russian).

### Cryptoresistant Generator of Binary Key Sequences on the Basis of Cellular Automata

Sergey OSTAPOV, Vladimir ZHIKHAREVICH, Lidiya VAL' Chernivtsi Yuri Fed'kovich National University 2, Kotsyubinski St., Chernivtsi, 58012, Ukraine sergey.ostapov@gmail.com

*Abstract* — In this paper the cryptoresistant generator of pseudorandom binary consecution is developed and implemented on the basis of unidimensional cellular automata. The determined algorithm of regular bit selection, which can be easily reproduced on a receiving side, is offered. The statistical analysis of the obtained results is conducted by the package of NIST-STS.

*Index Terms* — binary sequences, cellular automata, initial state, pseudorandom number generator, idle cycles

- S. Wolfram. Random sequence generation by cellular automata // Advances in Applied Mathematics. 1986. v.7. P. 123-164.
- [2] W. Meier and O. Staffelbach. Analysis of pseudo random sequence generated by cellular automata // Advances in Cryptology EUROCRYPT '91 Proceedings, Springer-Verlag. – 1991. – P. 186-199.
- [3] Sergey Ostapov, Vladimir Zhikharevich, Lidiya Val'. Investigation of Properties of Pseudorandom Binary Sequences Generator on the Basis of Cellular Automata. // Prooceeding of the 9-th International Conference on DAS. – May 2008. –P. 115-117.
- [4] Andrew Rukhin, Juan Soto, James Nechvatal, A Statistical Test Suite for Random and Pseudorandom Number Generators for Cryptographic Applications. NIST Special Publication 800-22; U.S.Government printing office Washington: 2000.

## ICT serves Business Training: Implementing Life-Long-Learning

Timothy HALL<sup>1</sup>, Ileana HAMBURG<sup>2</sup>, Emma O'BRIEN<sup>3</sup>, Sinead MELLETT<sup>1</sup> <sup>1</sup>EMRC-Educational Media Research Centre, University of Limerick, Limerick Ireland. Timothy.hall@ul.ie Sinead.mellett@ul.ie <sup>2</sup>IAT, University of Applied Sciences, Munscheidstr 14, 45879 Gelsenkirchen, Germany. hamburg@iat.eu <sup>3</sup>Enterprise Research Centre, University of Limerick, Limerick, Ireland. Emma.obrien@ul.ie

*Abstract* — Much of the economic activity and most of the employment in EU countries is provided by SMEs, Small and Medium Enterprises. The most vibrant sector that promises a good prospect for future growth is that of ICT and other Technologies. These companies employ a high proportion of University graduates many of them from science and engineering, subject areas in which new knowledge is constantly being generated. How are these workers to be kept up to date? Traditional training is giving way to Life-long-learning and for high tech companies whose workers have good ICT skills e-Learning can be effective and efficient, but planning and implementation must be carefully carried out to enable new knowledge to be harnessed to meet business needs. This paper sets out a tried and tested process in e-Learning planning and implementation for SMEs based on a holistic approach firmly rooting LLL at the core of strategic planning.

Index Terms — Business Planning, Education, Educational Technology, Learning Systems, Training

#### REFERENCES

- [1] B. Hall (2000): Learning goes online: how companies can use networks to turn change into a competitive advantage (Cisco Systems: Packet Magazine).
- [2] M.J. Rosenberg (2000a): E-Learning: Strategies for Delivery Knowledge in the Digital Age. New York McGraw-Hill.
- [3] G. Attwell, D. Dirckinck-Holmfeld, P. Fabian, A. Kárpáti & P. Littig (2003): E-learning in Europe–Results and Recommendations. Thematic Monitoring under the LEONARDO DA VINCI Programme, Bonn, Impuls 010.
- [4] I. Hamburg (2007): Shifting eLearning in SMEs to a Work-based and Business Oriented Topic. In: European Distance and ELearning Network: New learning 2.0? Emerging digital territories – developing continuities – new divides, THE EDEN, Annual Conference, Budapest, June 13-16, 4. Naples: CD-ROM.
- [5] Economist, The (2003): e-learning readiness rankings, Economist Intelligence Unit. Available at: http://www-304.ibm.com/jct03001c/services/learning/solutions/pdfs/eiu\_e-learning\_readiness\_rankings.pdf.
- [6] S. Psycharis (2005): Presumptions and action affecting an e-learning adoption by the educational system. Implementation using virtual private networks, European Journal of Open and Distance Learning 2/2005. Available at http://www.eurodl.org/materials/contrib/2005/Sarantos\_Psycharis.htm.
- [7] M.J. Rosenberg (2000b): The e-learning readiness survey: 20 key strategic questions you and your organization must answer about the sustainability of your e-learning efforts. Available at http://books.mcgrawhill.com/ training/elearning\_survey.pdf
- [8] S. Chapnick (2000): Are you ready for E-Learning? Learning Circuits Update (Online serial). Available at http://www.learningcircuits.org/2000/nov2000/Chapnick.htm.
- [9] B. Broadbent (2002): Tips to held decide if your organization is ready for e-learning. Available at http://www.serprofessoruniversitario.pro.br/ler.php?modulo=11&texto=700
- [10] Worknowledge (2004): E-Learning Assessment Readiness.
- [11] S. Borotis & A. Poulymenakou (2004): E-Learning Components: Key issues to Consider Before Adopting e-learning Interventions. Proceedings of eLearn, Washington, DC. Available at http://www.ois.dmst.aueb.gr/analysi/ pages/eLReadiness\_ELEARN2004.pdf.
- [12] F. Habermann & W. Kraemer (2001): Envision E-Learning: Von der Strategie zum detaillierten Projektplan. In: W. Kraemer & M. Müller (eds.), Corporate University und E-Learning (Wiesbaden: Verlag, pp.233-258).
- [13] P. Stacey (2001): E-Learning The Big 8-Questions to Answer in Planning & Implementing E-Learning, 27.07.2001. Available at http://www.bctechnology.com/statics/pstacey-jul2701.html.
- [14] www.iso.org/iso/catalogue\_detail?csnumber=33934

More references are available on-line at www.dasconference.ro.

### New Trend on OPC Middleware

Simona-Anda GHERASIM, Adrian Mihai GĂITAN, Vasile Gheorghiță GĂITAN, Valentin POPA Stefan cel Mare University of Suceava str.Universitatii nr.13, RO-720229 Suceava sgherasim@stud.usv.ro, adgaitan@stud.usv.ro, gaitan@eed.usv.ro, valentin@eed.usv.ro

*Abstract* — A new trend on OPC Middleware is presented in this paper. In addition to general solutions of middleware (CORBA, Java RMI, DCOM), the attention focuses over OPC Foundation specifications, meaning: OPC Data Access, OPC Alarms & Events, OPC Historical Data Access, OPC XML-Data Access, OPC Unified Architecture and OPC Express Interface. OPC Unified Architecture (OPC UA) signifies a new standard of the OPC Foundation, providing interoperability in process automation and beyond.

Time specific to read OPC items on Windows and Linux platforms is also emphasized. At the end of this paper, strategies of migrating to OPC UA applications are introduced.

*Index Terms* — Middleware, Object Linking and Embedding for Process Control (OPC), OPC Data Access, OPC XML DA, OPC Unified Architecture

- [1] Brown, N., Kindel, C.: Distributed Component Object Model Protocol DCOM/1.0. Microsoft Corp., 1998
- [2] Stefan-Helmut Leitner, Wolfgang Mahnke: OPC UA Service-oriented Architecture for Industrial Applications, Germany.
- [3] OPC Foundation: Alarms and Events Custom Interface Standard. Version 1.10, Oct. 02, 2002
- [4] OPC Foundation: Data Access Custom Interface Standard. Version 3.00, March 04, 2003
- [5] OPC Foundation: OPC Historical Data Access Specification. Version 1.20, Dec. 10, 2003
- [6] Microsoft Corporation: Windows Communication Foundation, September 2006
- [7] OPC Foundation: OPC UA Specification: Part 1 Concepts. Version 1.00, July 28, 2006
- [8] OPC Foundation: OPC UA Specification: Part 2 Security Model. Version 1.00, July 28, 2006
- [9] OPC Foundation: OPC UA Specification: Part 3 Address Space Model. Version 1.00, July 28, 2006
- [10] OPC Foundation: OPC UA Specification: Part 4 Services. Version 1.00, July 28, 2006
- [11] OPC Foundation: OPC UA Specification: Part 5 Information Model. Version 1.00, July 28, 2006
- [12] OPC Foundation: OPC UA Specification: Part 6 Mapping. Release Candidate 0.93, June 01, 2006
- [13] OPC Foundation: OPC UA Specification: Part 7 Profiles. Draft 0.93, July 28, 2006
- [14] OPC Foundation: OPC UA Specification: Part 8 Data Access. Version 1.00, Sep. 25, 2006
- [15] OPC Foundation: OPC UA Specification: Part 9 Alarms and Conditions. Draft 0.75, June 28, 2006
- [16] OPC Foundation: OPC UA Specification: Part 10 Programs. Draft 0.4, Sep. 01, 2006
- [17] www.opcfoundation.com
- [18] www.softing.com
- [19] www.moxa.com
- [20] www.automation.com

## A Bee-inspired Approach for Selecting the Optimal Service Composition Solution

Cristina Bianca POP, Viorica Rozina CHIFU, Ioan SALOMIE, Mihaela DINSOREANU, Mihaly FODOR, Irina CONDOR

Department of Computer Science, Technical University of Cluj-Napoca 26-28 Baritiu Street, Cluj-Napoca, Romania {Cristina.Pop, Viorica.Chifu, Ioan.Salomie, Mihaela.Dinsoreanu}@cs.utcluj.ro, {Mihaly Fodor, Irina.Condor}@student.utcluj.ro

*Abstract* — This paper presents a bee colony optimization method for selecting the optimal solution in semantic Web service composition. The bee-inspired selection method uses an enhanced planning graph model and a matrix of semantic links to incrementally search the optimal solution. We use a multi-criteria function which evaluates whether a solution is optimal or not in terms of its QoS attributes and the quality of the semantic match between the services involved in the solution. The selection method was validated by making experiments on a set of semantic Web services from the trip planning domain.

*Index Terms* — bee colony optimization, enhanced planning graph, ontology, semantic Web service, service composition

- G. Canfora, M. Di Renta, R. Esposito, M. L. Villani, "An Approach for QoS aware Service Composition based on Genetic Algorithms", Proceedings of GECCO'05, pp. 1069-1075, Washington, DC, USA, 2005.
- [2] J. Wang, Y. Hou, "Optimal Web Service Selection based on Multi-Objective Genetic Algorithm", Proceedings of the ISCID 2008, pp. 553-556, Wuhan, 2008.
- [3] J. Kennedy, R.C. Eberhart," Particle swarm optimization", Proceedings of IEEE International Conference on Neural Networks, Piscataway, NJ. pp. 1942-1948, 1995.
- [4] C. Ming, W. Zhen-wu, "An Approach for Web Services Composition Based on QoS and Discrete Particle Swarm Optimization", Eighth ACIS International Conference on Software Engineering, Artificial Intelligence, Networking, and Parallel/Distributed Computing, pp. 37-41, Washington DC, USA, 2007.
- [5] J.Liu, J. Li, K. Liu, W. Wei, "A Hybrid Genetic and Particle Swarm Algorithm for Service Composition", Proceedings of the Sixth International Conference on Advanced Language Processing and Web Information Technology, pp.564-567, 2007.
- [6] C. B. Pop, V. R. Chifu, I. Salomie, M. Dinsoreanu, I. Vartic, M. Vlad, "Immune-inspired Web Service Composition Framework", Proceedings of the 11th International Symposium on Symbolic and Numeric Algorithms for Scientific Computing (SYNASC2009), September 26-29, Timisoara Romania, ISBN 978-0-7695-3964-5, pp. 376-383, 2009.
- [7] S. Russell, S, P. Norvig, "Artificial Intelligence: A Modern Approach." Upper Saddle River, NJ: Prentice Hall/Pearson Education, ISBN: 0137903952, 2003.
- [8] M. Paolucci, et al., "Semantic Matching of Web Services Capabilities", LNCS, vol.2342, Springer Berlin / Heidelberg, pp. 333-347, 2002.
- [9] D.Teodorovic, M. Dell'Orco, "Bee Colony Optimization A Cooperative Learning Approach to Complex Transportation Problems", Advanced OR and AI Methods in Transportation, pp. 51–60, 2005.
- [10] M. Dorigo, M. Birattari, T. Stützle, Ant Colony Optimization-- Artificial Ants as a Computational Intelligence Technique, IEEE Computational Intelligence Magazine, 2006.
- [11] SAWSDL, http://www.w3.org/2002/ws/sawsdl/spec/
- [12] D. Skoutas, A. Simitsis, T. Sellis, "A Ranking Mechanism for Semantic Web Service Discovery", Proceedings of the IEEE Congress on Services, Salt Lake City, UT, pp.41-48, 2007.

## Modelling the Probability of Deadlocks in a Multithreading Process

Doina LOGOFĂTU, Felix DIETRICH, Evgeni PAVLIDIS, Dennis WILFERT

Department of Computer Science and Mathematics University of Applied Sciences Lothstrasse 64, 80335, Munich {doina.logofatu, felix.dietrich, evgeni.pavlidis, dennis.wilfert}@hm.edu

*Abstract* – This paper addresses some aspects on modeling a problem in continuous probability theory. We start describing a common problem in current computer science, the deadlock. This is followed by a mathematical abstraction of the problem. Three solution models are presented for it, two of them designed for multidimensional cases. These models are then tested in experiments and compared against the exact solutions.

*Index Terms* – Continuous Probability Theory, Geometry, Monte-Carlo Simulation, Parallelization, Threading

- [1] R. E. Caflisch, "Monte Carlo and quasi-Monte Carlo methods", Acta Numerica 7, pp. 1-49, Cambridge University Press, 1998.
- [2] B. Goetz, J. Bloch, J. Bowbeer, D. Lea, D. Holmes, T. Peierls, Java Concurrency in Practice, Addison-Wesley Longman, Amsterdam, 2006.
- [3] J. Harrop, F # for Scientists, John Wiley & Sons, 2008.
- [4] W. K. Hastings, Monte Carlo Sampling Methods Using Markov Chains and Their Applications, Biometrica, Vol. 57, No. 1, pp 97-109, 1970.
- [5] D. P. Landau, K. Binder, A Guide to Monte Carlo Simulations in Statistical Physics, New York Cambridge University Press, 2005.
- [6] J. S. Liu, Monte Carlo Strategies in Scientific Computing, Springer, New York, 2008.
- [7] J. Magee, J. Kramer, State Models and Java Programs, John Wiley & Sons, 2<sup>nd</sup> Edition, 2006.
- [8] N. Metropolis, S. Ulam, "The Monte Carlo Method", Journal of the American Statistical Association 44 (247), pp. 335-341, 1949.
- [9] K. A. Robbins, S. Robbins, UNIX Systems Programming: Communication, Concurrency and Threads, Prentice Hall, 2003.
- [10] C. P. Robert, G. Casella, Monte Carlo Statistical Methods, 2<sup>nd</sup> Edition, Springer, New York, 2005.
- [11] H. Ruskeepaa, Mathematica Navigator: Mathematics, Statistics and Graphics, Academic Press, 3<sup>rd</sup> Edition, 2009.
- [12] R. W. Shonkwiler, F. Mendivil, Explorations in Monte Carlo Methods, Springer, New York, 2009.
- [13] CSM: Computer Science and Mathematics, "Impact of Monte Carlo methods on scientific research", URL: http://www.csm.ornl.gov/ssi-expo/MChist.html.
- [14] MacKinnon, A.: Computational Physics, Monte-Carlo Integration, URL: http://www.ipp.mpg.de/~rfs/comas/Helsinki/helsinki04/compphys/node87.html.
- [15] Hörmann, W., Leydold, J.: "Monte Carlo Integration using Importance Sampling and Gibbs Sampling", In: H. Dag and Y. Deng (eds.), Proceedings of the International Conference on Computational Science and Engineering, pp.92-97, Istanbul, 2005.
- [16] Iordanova, T.: "Introduction to Monte Carlo Simulation", In: INVESTOPEDIA, URL: http://www.investopedia.com/articles/07/monte carlo intro.asp.
- [17] Zabenkov, I.V., Kochubey, V.I.: "Monte Carlo simulation of the recording of fluorescent objects in the skin", In: Optics and Spectroscopy, vol. 107, nr. 6, pp. 898-902, Springer, 2009.
- [18] Programming Praxis, "Calculating Pi", URL:
- [19] http://programmingpraxis.com/2009/10/09/calculating-pi/.
- [20] Gonsalves, G.J.: "Monte Carlo Calculation of ", URL:
- [21] http://www.physics.buffalo.edu/phy516/jan25.pdf.
- [22] Logofătu, D.: Bazele programării în C. Aplicații, pp. 229-246, Polirom, Iași, 2006.
- [23] Logofătu, D.: Eine praktische Einführung in C, pp. 209-226, entwickler-press, München, 2008.

## System for Real Time Detection of Hands and Pedestrians Movements

Gina CRĂCIUN, Ionela RUSU, Ștefan-Gheorghe PENTIUC, Radu Daniel VATAVU Stefan cel Mare University of Suceava str.Universitatii nr.13, RO-720229 Suceava ginac@eed.usv.ro, iorusu@stud.usv.ro, pentiuc@eed.usv.ro, vatavu@eed.usv.ro

*Abstract* — Interaction with virtual reality systems involves both navigation in virtual environments and virtual object manipulation. Hand gestures are used for direct interaction with virtual objects, while human body postures serves as navigation commands.

The proposed system is focused on the human detection task in a video stream. Once a target is detected the system continues, in the obtained region of interest, the analysis of the motion history, the object tracking, and determines the convexity of the hand image.

The developed method is able to detect and track multiple targets. The hand convexity analysis presented in the paper may be useful in other gestures recognition systems.

Index Terms — hand posture, computer vision, human computer interaction (HCI), pedestrian detection

- [1] P. Viola and M. J. Jones, "Robust real-time face detection", in International Journal of Computer Vision, 2004.
- [2] Prateem C., Prashant S., Ankit M., "Hand Gesture Recognition A Comparative Study", in Proceedings of the International Multi Conference of Engineers and Computer Scientists 2008 Vol I IMECS 2008, 19-21 March, 2008, Hong Kong.
- [3] A Erol, G Bebis, M Nicolescu, RD Boyle, X Twombly, "Vision-based hand pose estimation: A review", Computer Vision and Image Understanding Volume 108, Issues 1-2, October-November 2007, Pages 52-73 Special Issue on Vision for Human-Computer Interaction.
- [4] M.K. Bhuyan, P.K. Bora, and D. Ghosh, "Trajectory Guided Recognition of Hand Gestures having only Global Motions", International Journal of Computer Science, Fall 2008.
- [5] Q. Chen, F. Malric, Yi Zhang, M. Abid, "Interacting with Digital Signage Using Hand Gestures", Institute of Computer Graphics and Image Processing, Tianjin University, China, 2008.
- [6] JS. Munder and D.M. Gavrila, "An Experimental Study on Pedestrian Classification", IEEE Transactions on Pattern Analysis and Macjine Intelligence, vol. 28, no. 11, november 2006
- [7] G. Monteiro, P. Peixoto, U. Nunes, "Vision based pedestrian detection using haar-like features, in Robotica- Festival nacional de robotica", Guimaraes 2006
- [8] Gary Bradski, Adrian Kaehler, Learning OpenCV, 2008, Published by O'Reilly Media, Inc., 1005 Gravenstein Highway North, Sebastopol, CA 95472.
- [9] Radu-Daniel Vatavu, Ştefan Gheorghe Pentiuc, Laurent Grisoni, Christophe Chaillou, "Modeling Shapes for Pattern Recognition: A Simple Low-Cost Spline-based Approach", Advances in Electrical and Computer Engineering, Volume 8 (15), Number 1 (29), 2008, University "Stefan cel Mare" of Suceava, ISSN 1582-7445, pp. 67-71
- [10] http://opencv.willowgarage.com/wiki/FaceDetection
- [11] Pragati Garg, Naveen Aggarwal, Sanjeev Sofat, "Vision Based Hand Gesture Recognition", World Academy of Science, Engineering and Technology 49 2009
- [12] Philip Kelly, "Pedestrian detection and tracking using stereo vision techniques", December, 2007
- [13] onela Rusu, "Pedestrian Detection Using Vision-Based Techniques", Sisteme Distribuite (Suceava online), p. 85-89, ISSN 2067 - 5259, Suceava, 2010.
- [14] Elena-Gina Craciun, Ştefan-Gheorghe Pentiuc, "Hand Detection using a Set Of Classifiers Based on Haar-Like features", Sisteme Distribuite (Suceava - online), p. 90-93, ISSN 2067 – 5259, Suceava, 2010.
- [15] Ovidiu Ungurean, "Cercetari privind comunicarea gestuala cu sistemele de calcul", Suceava 2009.

## The Application of Genetic Algoritm for Training "Without a Teacher"

Valeriy FRATAVCHAN "Yurii Fedkovich" Chernivtsi National University str.Universitetsika.1,Chernivtsi vgfrat@mail.ru

*Abstract* — The algorithm of determination of reference patterns for classification in the conditions of training «without a teacher» is described in this paper. The case is considered when patterns are set by n – measured vectors of numerical stochastic signs. For finding the coordinates of reference vectors it is offered to use Genetic Algorithm.

*Index Terms* — Recognition, Training, Self-training, Vector of Signs, Space of Signs, Optimal Estimations, Genetic Algorithm, Genetic Operations

- [1] Зайченко Ю.П. Основи проектування інтелектуальних систем. Навчальний посібник. Київ:Видавничий Дім «Слово», 2004. 352 с. (Zaychenko Yu. P. Basics of Intelectual Systems Designing. Tutorial. Kyiv, 2004. 352 р.)
- [2] Фор А, Восприятие и распознавание образов/ Пер. с фр. А.В.Серединского; под ред. Г.П.Катыса. Москва: Машиностроение, 1989 г. – 272 с.: ил. (Faure Alain. Processing and Recognition of visual information / Tanslated from French by Seredyns'kyi A. V. – Moscow, 1989. – 272 р.)
- [3] Сотник С.Л., Основы проектирования систем с искусственным интеллектом /Курс лекций. Днепродзержинск, 2000 г. http://www.codenet.ru/progr/alg/ai/htm/ ( Sotnyk S. L. Basics of Artificial Intelligence Systems Designing / Course of Lectures. Dneprodzerzhinsk, 2000.)
- [4] Генетический алгоритм/ Аналитические технологии для прогнозирования и анализа данных. 2005 г. http://www.neuroproject.ru/genealg.php#begin (Genetic Algorithm/ Analytical Technologies for the Forecasting and Data Analysis, 2005) http://www.neuroproject.ru/genealg.php#begin

## HL7 Messaging Engine with Customizable Translation System

Marius CERLINCĂ, Cristina TURCU, Tudor CERLINCĂ, Remus PRODAN Stefan cel Mare University of Suceava 13 University Street, RO-720229 Suceava mariusc@usv.ro, cristina@eed.usv.ro, tudor c@eed.usv.ro, prodan@eed.usv.ro

*Abstract* — This paper introduces a new client-server messaging engine used to exchange clinical data between various medical software applications. Our portal uses the HL7 (Health Level Seven) messaging standard to provide translated clinical data to HL7 and non-HL7 client applications. We used HL7 because this standard is worldwide used to facilitate the communication between clinical applications.

Index Terms - Medical services, HL7, Client-server systems, Data communication, RFID

- [1] HL7 Interface An Overview, Jon Mertz, Corepoint Health, March 4th, 2010
- [2] Bates DW, Gawande AA: Improving safety with information technology, The New England Journal of Medicine, 2003, 348:2526-2534
- [3] \*, About HL7, Available at http://www.ehto.org/ikb/standards/news.html
- [4] What Is HL7 Version 2.x, OTech Industries, June 7th, 2007
- [5] C. Turcu, R. Prodan, M. Cerlinca, T. Cerlinca, Object-Oriented Solutions for Information Storage on RFID Tags, in Development and Implementation of RFID Technology, 2009, Intech, Viena, ISBN: 978-3-902613-54-7
- [6] The Benefits of RFID in the Healthcare Organization, RFID Solutions for the Healthcare Industry, available at http://www.rfidhealthcare.com/
- [7] Alexander Bischoff, Thomas V Perneger, Patrick A Bovier, Louis Loutan, and Hans Stalder, Improving communication between physicians and patients who speak a foreign language, British Journal of General Practice, 53 (492), 2003, p. 541-546, http://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pmc/articles/PMC1314645/pdf/14694667.pdf
- [8] Tudor Cerlinca, Remus Prodan, Cristina Turcu, Marius Cerlinca, A distributed RFID based system for patients' identification and monitoring, International Conference on Development and Application Systems, May 2010, Suceava, Romania
- [9] Cr. Turcu, T. Cerlinca, C. Turcu, M. Cerlinca, R. Prodan, An RFID and Multi-agent Based System for Improving Efficiency in Patient Identification and Monitoring, WSEAS Transaction on Information Science and Applications, Issue 11, vol. 6, 2009, pag. 1792-1801, ISSN: 1790-0832
- [10] Cr. Turcu, T. Cerlinca, C. Turcu, M. Cerlinca, R. Prodan, I. Ungurean, Improving Efficiency in Patient Identification and Monitoring Using RFID and Multi-agent Technologies, Proceedings of the 2nd WSEAS International Conferences on Biomedical Electronics and Biomedical Informatics, Moscow, Russia, August 2009, ISBN: 978-960-474-110-6, ISSN: 1790-5125

## A Distributed RFID Based System for Patients' Identification and Monitoring

Tudor CERLINCA, Remus PRODAN, Cornel TURCU, Marius CERLINCA Stefan cel Mare University of Suceava 13 University Street, RO-720229 Suceava tudor c@eed.usv.ro, prodan@eed.usv.ro, cturcu@eed.usv.ro, mariusc@eed.usv.ro

*Abstract* — The goal of this paper is to present a distributed RFID (Radio Frequency Identification) based system for patients' identification and monitoring. The system we propose is intended to reduce medical mistakes, improve the patients' overall safety and enhance the quality of medical services in hospitals. By using the RFID technology, the patients can be easily identified and the risk of administrating wrong medication in case of an emergency will be highly reduced. Our system is also able to integrate and exchange information with other HL7 (Health Level Seven) based clinical applications already developed by other companies or organizations.

Index Terms — EHR (Electronic Health Record), EMR (Electronic Medical Record), HL7, RFID, Tag

- [1] Linda Castro, Samuel Fosso Wamba (2007), An inside look at RFID technology, Journal of Technology Management & Innovation 2007, Volume 2, Issue 1.
- [2] Yahia Zare Mehrjerdi (2007), RFID-enabled systems: a brief review, Available: http://www.emeraldinsight.com/Insight/ViewContentServlet?Filename=Published/EmeraldFullTextArticle/Articles/033 0280307.html
- [3] Tudor-Ioan Cerlinca, Cornel Turcu, Valentin Popa, Felicia Giza (2009), Mobile Applications for RFID Based B2B Systems, Development and Implementation of RFID Technology, ISBN 978-3-902613-54-7, IN-TECH, 2009
- [4] Report: Healthcare RFID Worth \$2.1B in 2016 (2008), Available: http://www.rfidupdate.com/articles/index.php?id=1105
- [5] About RFID, Available: http://www.peacocks.com.au/about-rfid.htm
- [6] Health Level 7, Available: http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Health\_Level\_7
- [7] Iguana & Chameleon, iNTERFACEWARE, HL7 Overview, http://www.interfaceware.com/manual/hl7.html
- [8] Dave Shaver, HL7 101: A Begunner's Guide, For the Record, Great Valley Publishing Co., Inc., vol. 19, no. 1, p22, January 2007, http://www.fortherecordmag.com/archives/ftr\_01082007p22.shtml
- [9] Networks, Applications and User Management, Available: http://teambusinesssolutions.com/solutions.asp?sid=82&clicked=79
- [10] Tudor Ioan Cerlinca, Cristina Turcu, Cornel Turcu, Marius Cerlinca, RFID-based information system for patients and medical staff identification and tracking, To be appear in Radio Frequency Identification Fundamentals and Applications, IN-TECH, 2010

## INDEX OF AUTHORS

ALBU, Mihai	
ALEXA, Dimitrie	
ALEXANDRU, Nicolae Dumitru	
ARDELEAN, Simona	
AROTĂRIŢEI, Dragos	
ATĂNĂSOAE, Pavel	
BĂLAN, Titus-Constantin	55
BALMUŞ, Ion	
BAZAVAN, Radu	
BIROU, Iulian T.	
BOGDAN, Ion	
BOGDAN, Crenguta-Madalina	
BOLDIŞOR, Cristian	
BOLOHAN, Emanuela-Alina	
BRKIC, Miodrag	
BUTA, Georgiana	
BUTNICU, Dan	
BUZATU, Nicoleta Roxana	
BUZATU, Oana Loredana	
BUZDUGA, Vasile	
CAZACU, Virgil	55
CERLINCĂ, Marius	
CERLINCĂ, Tudor	
CERNAT, Mihai	
CHEIBAŞ, Victor	
CHICIUDEAN, Dan	
CHICUDEAN, Dan CHICULIȚĂ, Claudiu	
CHICIUDEAN, Dan CHICULIȚĂ, Claudiu CHIFU, Viorica Rozina	
CHICIUDEAN, Dan CHICULIȚĂ, Claudiu CHIFU, Viorica Rozina CHIUCHISAN, Iuliana	
CHICIUDEAN, Dan CHICULIȚĂ, Claudiu CHIFU, Viorica Rozina CHIUCHISAN, Iuliana CIOBANU, Romeo-Cristian	
CHICIUDEAN, Dan CHICULIȚĂ, Claudiu CHIFU, Viorica Rozina CHIUCHISAN, Iuliana CIOBANU, Romeo-Cristian CIOBANU, Iulia Brînduşa	
CHICIUDEAN, Dan CHICULIȚĂ, Claudiu CHIFU, Viorica Rozina CHIUCHISAN, Iuliana CIOBANU, Romeo-Cristian CIOBANU, Iulia Brînduşa CIURUŞ, Ioan Marcel	
CHICIUDEAN, Dan CHICULIȚĂ, Claudiu CHIFU, Viorica Rozina CHIUCHISAN, Iuliana CIOBANU, Romeo-Cristian CIOBANU, Iulia Brînduşa CIURUŞ, Ioan Marcel COCA, Eugen	73 80 102 75 29 74 42 78
CHICIUDEAN, Dan CHICULIȚĂ, Claudiu CHIFU, Viorica Rozina CHIUCHISAN, Iuliana CIOBANU, Romeo-Cristian CIOBANU, Iulia Brînduşa CIURUŞ, Ioan Marcel COCA, Eugen COJOCARIU, Elena	73 80 102 75 29 74 42 78 52
CHICIUDEAN, Dan CHICULIȚĂ, Claudiu CHIV, Viorica Rozina CHIUCHISAN, Iuliana CIOBANU, Romeo-Cristian CIOBANU, Iulia Brînduşa CIURUŞ, Ioan Marcel COCA, Eugen COJOCARIU, Elena COJOCARU, Ion	73 80 102 75 29 74 42 78 52 52 62, 63
CHICIUDEAN, Dan CHICULIȚĂ, Claudiu CHIFU, Viorica Rozina CHIUCHISAN, Iuliana CIOBANU, Romeo-Cristian CIOBANU, Iulia Brînduşa CIURUŞ, Ioan Marcel COCA, Eugen COJOCARIU, Elena COJOCARIU, Elena COJOCARU, Ion COJUHARI, Irina	73 80 102 75 29 74 42 78 52 62, 63 40
CHICIUDEAN, Dan CHICULIȚĂ, Claudiu CHIFU, Viorica Rozina CHIUCHISAN, Iuliana CIOBANU, Romeo-Cristian CIOBANU, Iulia Brînduşa CIURUŞ, Ioan Marcel COCA, Eugen COJOCARIU, Elena COJOCARIU, Elena COJOCARU, Ion COJUHARI, Irina COMNAC, Vasile	73 80 102 75 29 74 42 78 52 62, 63 40 32
CHICIUDEAN, Dan CHICULIȚĂ, Claudiu CHICULIȚĂ, Claudiu CHIFU, Viorica Rozina CHIUCHISAN, Iuliana CIOBANU, Romeo-Cristian CIOBANU, Iulia Brînduşa CIURUŞ, Ioan Marcel COCA, Eugen COJOCARIU, Elena COJOCARIU, Elena COJOCARU, Ion COJUHARI, Irina COMNAC, Vasile CONDOR, Irina	$\begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$
CHICIUDEAN, Dan CHICULIȚĂ, Claudiu CHIVCULIȚĂ, Claudiu CHIVCHISAN, Iuliana CIOBANU, Romeo-Cristian CIOBANU, Iulia Brînduşa CIURUŞ, Ioan Marcel COCA, Eugen COJOCARIU, Elena COJOCARIU, Elena COJOCARU, Ion COJUHARI, Irina COMNAC, Vasile CONDOR, Irina CORDUNENU, Alexei	$\begin{array}{c} & 73 \\ & 80 \\ & 102 \\ & 75 \\ & 29 \\ & 74 \\ & 42 \\ & 78 \\ & 52 \\ & 62, 63 \\ & 40 \\ & 32 \\ & 102 \\ & 97 \end{array}$
CHICIUDEAN, Dan CHICULIȚĂ, Claudiu CHIFU, Viorica Rozina CHIUCHISAN, Iuliana CIOBANU, Romeo-Cristian CIOBANU, Iulia Brînduşa CIURUŞ, Ioan Marcel COCA, Eugen COJOCARIU, Elena COJOCARIU, Elena COJOCARU, Ion COJUHARI, Irina COMNAC, Vasile CONDOR, Irina CONDOR, Irina CORDUNENU, Alexei CORNOIU, Sorina	$\begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$
CHICIUDEAN, Dan CHICULIȚĂ, Claudiu CHICULIȚĂ, Claudiu CHIFU, Viorica Rozina CIURISAN, Iuliana CIOBANU, Romeo-Cristian CIOBANU, Iulia Brînduşa CIURUŞ, Ioan Marcel COCA, Eugen COJOCARIU, Elena COJOCARIU, Elena COJOCARU, Ion COJUHARI, Irina COMNAC, Vasile CONDOR, Irina CONDOR, Irina CORDUNENU, Alexei CORNOIU, Sorina COSTACHE, Cosmin	$\begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$
CHICIUDEAN, Dan CHICULIȚĂ, Claudiu CHIV, Viorica Rozina CHIUCHISAN, Iuliana CIOBANU, Romeo-Cristian CIOBANU, Iulia Brînduşa CIURUŞ, Ioan Marcel COCA, Eugen COJOCARIU, Elena COJOCARIU, Elena COJOCARU, Ion COJUHARI, Irina COMNAC, Vasile CONDOR, Irina CONDOR, Irina CORDUNENU, Alexei CORNOIU, Sorina COSTACHE, Cosmin COTAE, Paul	$\begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$
CHICIUDEAN, Dan CHICULIȚĂ, Claudiu CHICULIȚĂ, Claudiu CHIFU, Viorica Rozina CIUBANU, Romeo-Cristian CIOBANU, Romeo-Cristian CIOBANU, Iulia Brînduşa CIURUŞ, Ioan Marcel COCA, Eugen COJOCARIU, Elena COJOCARIU, Elena COJOCARU, Ion COJUHARI, Irina COMNAC, Vasile CONDOR, Irina CONDOR, Irina CORDUNENU, Alexei CORNOIU, Sorina COSTACHE, Cosmin COTAE, Paul COTAE, Paul CRĂCIUN, Gina	$\begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$
CHICIUDEAN, Dan CHICULIȚĂ, Claudiu CHIFU, Viorica Rozina CHIUCHISAN, Iuliana CIOBANU, Romeo-Cristian CIOBANU, Iulia Brînduşa CIURUŞ, Ioan Marcel COLA, Eugen COJOCARIU, Elena COJOCARIU, Elena COJOCARU, Ion COJUHARI, Irina COMNAC, Vasile CONDOR, Irina CONDOR, Irina CORDUNENU, Alexei CORNOIU, Sorina COSTACHE, Cosmin COTAE, Paul COTAE, Paul CRAUS, Mitică	$\begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$
CHICIUDEAN, Dan CHICULIȚĂ, Claudiu CHICULIȚĂ, Claudiu CHIFU, Viorica Rozina CIURUȘAN, Iuliana CIOBANU, Romeo-Cristian CIOBANU, Iulia Brînduşa CIURUȘ, Ioan Marcel COCA, Eugen COJOCARIU, Elena COJOCARIU, Elena COJOCARU, Ion COJUHARI, Irina COMNAC, Vasile CONDOR, Irina CONDOR, Irina CORDUNENU, Alexei CORDUNENU, Alexei CORNOIU, Sorina COSTACHE, Cosmin COTAE, Paul CRĂCIUN, Gina CRAUS, Mitică CRUCERU, Cristina	$\begin{array}{c} & & 73 \\ & & 80 \\ & & 102 \\ & & 75 \\ & & 29 \\ & & 74 \\ & & 42 \\ & & & 78 \\ & & 52 \\ & & 62, 63 \\ & & & 40 \\ & & & 32 \\ & & & 102 \\ & & & & 97 \\ & & & 97 \\ & & & 97 \\ & & & & 97 \\ & & & & 57 \\ & & & 58 \\ & & & 104 \\ & & & 84 \\ & & & & 28 \end{array}$
CHICIUDEAN, Dan CHICULIȚĂ, Claudiu CHIUCULIȚĂ, Claudiu CHIUCHISAN, Iuliana CIOBANU, Romeo-Cristian CIOBANU, Iulia Brînduşa CIURUŞ, Ioan Marcel COCA, Eugen COJOCARIU, Elena COJOCARU, Ion COJUHARI, Irina COMNAC, Vasile CONDOR, Irina CORDUNENU, Alexei CORDUNENU, Alexei CORNOIU, Sorina COSTACHE, Cosmin COTAE, Paul CRĂCIUN, Gina CRAUS, Mitică CRUCERU, Cristina CSEREY, Szilard	$\begin{array}{c} 73\\ 80\\ 102\\ 75\\ 29\\ 74\\ 42\\ 78\\ 52\\ 62, 63\\ 40\\ 32\\ 102\\ 97\\ 90\\ 57\\ 58\\ 104\\ 84\\ 28\\ 55, 56\end{array}$
CHICIODEAN, Dan CHICULIȚĂ, Claudiu CHIULIȚĂ, Claudiu CHIUCHISAN, Iuliana CIOBANU, Romeo-Cristian CIOBANU, Romeo-Cristian CIOBANU, Iulia Brînduşa CIURUŞ, Ioan Marcel COCA, Eugen COJOCARIU, Elena COJOCARU, Iena COJOCARU, Ion COJUHARI, Irina COMNAC, Vasile CONDOR, Irina COMNAC, Vasile CONDOR, Irina CORDUNENU, Alexei CORDUNENU, Alexei CORNOIU, Sorina COSTACHE, Cosmin COTAE, Paul CRĂCIUN, Gina CRAUS, Mitică CRUCERU, Cristina CSEREY, Szilard CURÉLY, Jacques	$\begin{array}{c} & 73 \\ & 80 \\ & 102 \\ & 75 \\ & 29 \\ & 74 \\ & 42 \\ & 78 \\ & 52 \\ & 62, 63 \\ & 40 \\ & 32 \\ & 102 \\ & 97 \\ & 90 \\ & 57 \\ & 58 \\ & 104 \\ & 84 \\ & 28 \\ & 55, 56 \\ & 83 \end{array}$

DANUBIANU, Mirela	
DARIE, Angela	
DE MEY, Gilbert	
DE STRYCKER, Lieven	
DIETRICH, Felix	
DIMIAN, Mihai	
DINSOREANU, Mihaela	
DODIU, Eugen	
DOGAN. Viktor	
DUMITRESCU. Iulia	
DUMITRIU. Lucia	66
ESTUBLIER Jacky	91
FIL OTE Constantin	73
FLOROIAN Dan	30
FODOR Mihaly	102
FRANGU Laurentiu	80
FRATAVCHAN Valeriy	105
GAITAN Cristina N	34 44
GAITAN Vasile G	3/ // 101
GAITAN, Vasice O	24 101
CHENCHEA Mihoj	
CHEDASIM Simone Ande	
CHERMAN Origina	
GHERMAN, UVIQIU	
COEMAEDE Leve Diene	
GODON A	
GORON, Anca	
GRAUK, Adrian	
GROZA, Adrian	
	<pre></pre>
GUTULEAC, Emilian	
GUTULEAC, Emilian	
GUTULEAC, Emilian	
GUTULEAC, Emilian GYSELINCK, Johan HALL, Timothy HAMBURG, Ileana	
GUTULEAC, Emilian GYSELINCK, Johan HALL, Timothy HAMBURG, Ileana HOLBAN, Ştefan	
GUTULEAC, Emilian GYSELINCK, Johan HALL, Timothy HAMBURG, Ileana HOLBAN, Ştefan HOPÎRTEAN, Mihai	
GUTULEAC, Emilian	
GUTULEAC, Emilian GYSELINCK, Johan HALL, Timothy HAMBURG, Ileana HOLBAN, Ştefan HOPÎRTEAN, Mihai HORGA, Vasile IONEL, Octavian	
GUTULEAC, Emilian GYSELINCK, Johan HALL, Timothy HAMBURG, Ileana HOLBAN, Ștefan HOPÎRTEAN, Mihai HORGA, Vasile IONEL, Octavian IONESCU, Daniela	67, 97 25 100 100 86 33, 69 38 62, 63 74
GUTULEAC, Emilian GYSELINCK, Johan HALL, Timothy HAMBURG, Ileana HOLBAN, Ştefan HOPÎRTEAN, Mihai HORGA, Vasile IONEL, Octavian IONESCU, Daniela IONITA, Mihaela	67, 97 25 100 100 86 33, 69 38 62, 63 74 65
GUTULEAC, Emilian GYSELINCK, Johan HALL, Timothy HAMBURG, Ileana HOLBAN, Ștefan HOPÎRTEAN, Mihai HORGA, Vasile IONEL, Octavian IONESCU, Daniela IONITA, Mihaela IONITA, Anca Daniela	67, 97 25 100 100 86 33, 69 38 62, 63 74 65 91
GUTULEAC, Emilian GYSELINCK, Johan HALL, Timothy HAMBURG, Ileana HOLBAN, Ştefan HOPÎRTEAN, Mihai HORGA, Vasile IONEL, Octavian IONESCU, Daniela IONITA, Mihaela IONITA, Anca Daniela IORDACHE, Mihai	67, 97 25 100 100 86 33, 69 38 62, 63 74 65 91 65, 66
GUTULÉAC, Emilian GYSELINCK, Johan HALL, Timothy HAMBURG, Ileana HOLBAN, Ştefan HOPÎRTEAN, Mihai HORGA, Vasile IONEL, Octavian IONESCU, Daniela IONITA, Mihaela IONITA, Mihaela IONITA, Anca Daniela IORDACHE, Mihai IZVOREANU, Bartolomeu	67, 97 25 100 100 86 33, 69 38 62, 63 74 65 91 65, 66 39
GUTULÉAC, Emilian GYSELINCK, Johan HALL, Timothy HAMBURG, Ileana HOLBAN, Ştefan HOPÎRTEAN, Mihai HORGA, Vasile IONEL, Octavian IONESCU, Daniela IONITA, Mihaela IONITA, Mihaela IONITA, Anca Daniela IORDACHE, Mihai IZVOREANU, Bartolomeu JELIĆ, Miodrag	67, 97 25 100 100 86 33, 69 38 62, 63 74 65 91 
GUTULÉAC, Emilian GYSELINCK, Johan HALL, Timothy HAMBURG, Ileana HOLBAN, Ştefan HOPÎRTEAN, Mihai HORGA, Vasile IONEL, Octavian IONEL, Octavian IONESCU, Daniela IONITA, Mihaela IONITA, Mihaela IONITA, Anca Daniela IORDACHE, Mihai IZVOREANU, Bartolomeu JELIĆ, Miodrag KRAPIVIN, V.F.	$\begin{array}{c} 67,97\\ 25\\ 100\\ 100\\ 86\\ 33,69\\ 38\\ 62,63\\ 74\\ 65\\ 91\\ 65,66\\ 39\\ 51\\ 36\end{array}$
GUTULÉAC, Emilian GYSELINCK, Johan HALL, Timothy HAMBURG, Ileana HOLBAN, Ştefan HOPÎRTEAN, Mihai HORGA, Vasile IONEL, Octavian IONESCU, Daniela IONITA, Mihaela IONITA, Mihaela IONITA, Anca Daniela IORDACHE, Mihai IZVOREANU, Bartolomeu JELIĆ, Miodrag KRAPIVIN, V.F. KRASNOVSKI, Denis	$\begin{array}{c} 67,97\\ 25\\ 100\\ 100\\ 86\\ 33,69\\ 38\\ 62,63\\ 74\\ 65\\ 91\\ 65,66\\ 39\\ 51\\ 36\\ 98\\ \end{array}$
GUTULÉAC, Emilian GYSELINCK, Johan HALL, Timothy HAMBURG, Ileana HOLBAN, Ştefan HOPÎRTEAN, Mihai HORGA, Vasile IONEL, Octavian IONESCU, Daniela IONITA, Mihaela IONITA, Mihaela IONITA, Anca Daniela IORDACHE, Mihai IZVOREANU, Bartolomeu JELIĆ, Miodrag KRAPIVIN, V.F. KRASNOVSKI, Denis KUNTMAN, H. Hakan	$\begin{array}{c} 67,97\\25\\100\\100\\86\\33,69\\38\\62,63\\74\\65\\91\\65,66\\39\\51\\36\\98\\98\\98\\98\\99\\9\end{array}$
GUTULÉAC, Emilian GYSELINCK, Johan HALL, Timothy HAMBURG, Ileana HOLBAN, Ştefan HOPÎRTEAN, Mihai HORGA, Vasile IONEL, Octavian IONESCU, Daniela IONITA, Mihaela IONITA, Mihaela IONITA, Anca Daniela IORDACHE, Mihai IZVOREANU, Bartolomeu JELIĆ, Miodrag KRAPIVIN, V.F. KRASNOVSKI, Denis KUNTMAN, H. Hakan LAZAR, Georgian Alexandru	$\begin{array}{c} 67,97\\25\\100\\100\\86\\33,69\\38\\62,63\\62,63\\74\\65\\91\\65\\66\\39\\51\\65,66\\39\\51\\36\\98\\98\\98\\98\\98\\9\\52,68\end{array}$
GUTULÉAC, Emilian GYSELINCK, Johan HALL, Timothy HAMBURG, Ileana HOLBAN, Ştefan HOPÎRTEAN, Mihai HORGA, Vasile IONEL, Octavian IONESCU, Daniela IONITA, Mihaela IONITA, Mihaela IONITA, Anca Daniela IORDACHE, Mihai IZVOREANU, Bartolomeu JELIĆ, Miodrag KRAPIVIN, V.F. KRASNOVSKI, Denis KUNTMAN, H. Hakan LAZAR, Georgian Alexandru LEON, Florin	$\begin{array}{c} 67,97\\25\\100\\100\\86\\33,69\\38\\62,63\\74\\65\\91\\65\\66\\39\\51\\65,66\\39\\51\\36\\98\\98\\98\\98\\98\\9\\52,68\\84\\\end{array}$
GUTULÉAC, Emilian GYSELINCK, Johan HALL, Timothy HAMBURG, Ileana HOLBAN, Ştefan HOPÎRTEAN, Mihai HORGA, Vasile IONEL, Octavian IONESCU, Daniela IONITA, Mihaela IONITA, Anca Daniela IONITA, Anca Daniela IORDACHE, Mihai IZVOREANU, Bartolomeu JELIĆ, Miodrag KRAPIVIN, V.F. KRASNOVSKI, Denis KUNTMAN, H. Hakan LAZAR, Georgian Alexandru LEON, Florin LETIA, Ioan Alfred	$\begin{array}{c} 67,97\\25\\100\\100\\86\\33,69\\38\\62,63\\74\\65\\91\\65\\66\\39\\51\\65,66\\39\\51\\36\\98\\98\\98\\98\\98\\98\\98\\51\\87,88,90,92\\\end{array}$
GUTULÉAC, Emilian GYSELINCK, Johan HALL, Timothy HAMBURG, Ileana HOLBAN, Ştefan HOPÎRTEAN, Mihai HORGA, Vasile IONEL, Octavian IONECU, Daniela IONITA, Mihaela IONITA, Mihaela IONITA, Anca Daniela IORDACHE, Mihai IZVOREANU, Bartolomeu JELIĆ, Miodrag KRAPIVIN, V.F. KRASNOVSKI, Denis KUNTMAN, H. Hakan LAZAR, Georgian Alexandru LEON, Florin LETIA, Ioan Alfred LIVADARU, Leonard	67, 97 25 100 100 86 33, 69 38 62, 63 74 65 65 91 65, 66 39 51 51 51 51 51 52, 68 84 84 87, 88, 90, 92 35
GUTULÉAC, Emilian GYSELINCK, Johan HALL, Timothy HAMBURG, Ileana HOLBAN, Ştefan HOPÎRTEAN, Mihai HORGA, Vasile IONEL, Octavian IONECU, Daniela IONITA, Mihaela IONITA, Mihaela IONITA, Anca Daniela IONITA, Anca Daniela IORDACHE, Mihai IZVOREANU, Bartolomeu JELIĆ, Miodrag KRAPIVIN, V.F. KRASNOVSKI, Denis KUNTMAN, H. Hakan LAZAR, Georgian Alexandru LEON, Florin LETIA, Ioan Alfred LIVADARU, Leonard LIVINT, Gheorghe	67, 97 25 100 100 86 33, 69 38 62, 63 74 65 65 91 65, 66 39 51 51 51 52, 68 84 87, 88, 90, 92 35 38
GUTULÉAC, Emilian GYSELINCK, Johan HALL, Timothy HAMBURG, Ileana HOLBAN, Ştefan HOPÎRTEAN, Mihai HORGA, Vasile IONEL, Octavian IONECU, Daniela IONECU, Daniela IONITA, Mihaela IONITA, Anca Daniela IONITA, Anca Daniela IORDACHE, Mihai IZVOREANU, Bartolomeu JELIĆ, Miodrag KRAPIVIN, V.F. KRASNOVSKI, Denis KUNTMAN, H. Hakan LAZAR, Georgian Alexandru LEON, Florin LETIA, Ioan Alfred LIVADARU, Leonard LIVINT, Gheorghe LOGOFĂTU, Doina	$\begin{array}{c} 67, 97\\ 25\\ 100\\ 100\\ 86\\ 33, 69\\ 38\\ 62, 63\\ 74\\ 65\\ 91\\ 65, 66\\ 91\\ 65, 66\\ 39\\ 51\\ 36\\ 98\\ 98\\ 9\\ 51\\ 51\\ 36\\ 88\\ 87, 88, 90, 92\\ 35\\ 38\\ 103\\ \end{array}$
GUTULÉAC, Emilian GYSELINCK, Johan HALL, Timothy HAMBURG, Ileana HOLBAN, Ştefan HOPÎRTEAN, Mihai HORGA, Vasile IONEL, Octavian IONESCU, Daniela IONITA, Mihaela IONITA, Mihaela IONITA, Anca Daniela IORDACHE, Mihai IZVOREANU, Bartolomeu JELIĆ, Miodrag KRAPIVIN, V.F. KRASNOVSKI, Denis KUNTMAN, H. Hakan LAZAR, Georgian Alexandru LEON, Florin LETIA, Ioan Alfred LIVADARU, Leonard LIVINȚ, Gheorghe LOGOFĂTU, Doina LUKIC, Milan	$\begin{array}{c} 67, 97\\ 25\\ 100\\ 100\\ 86\\ 33, 69\\ 38\\ 62, 63\\ 74\\ 65\\ 91\\ 65, 66\\ 91\\ 65, 66\\ 39\\ 51\\ 36\\ 98\\ 9\\ 51\\ 36\\ 84\\ 87, 88, 90, 92\\ 35\\ 38\\ 103\\ 71\\ \end{array}$
GUTULEAC, Emilian	$\begin{array}{c} 67, 97\\ 25\\ 100\\ 100\\ 86\\ 33, 69\\ 38\\ 62, 63\\ 74\\ 65\\ 91\\ 65, 66\\ 91\\ 65, 66\\ 39\\ 51\\ 36\\ 98\\ 98\\ 9\\ 51\\ 36\\ 84\\ 87, 88, 90, 92\\ 35\\ 38\\ 103\\ 71\\ 64\\ \end{array}$
GUTULÉAC, Emilian GYSELINCK, Johan HALL, Timothy HAMBURG, Ileana HOLBAN, Ştefan HOPÎRTEAN, Mihai HORGA, Vasile IONEL, Octavian IONESCU, Daniela IONITA, Mihaela IONITA, Anca Daniela IONITA, Anca Daniela IORDACHE, Mihai IZVOREANU, Bartolomeu JELIĆ, Miodrag KRAPIVIN, V.F. KRASNOVSKI, Denis KUNTMAN, H. Hakan LAZAR, Georgian Alexandru LEON, Florin LETIA, Ioan Alfred LIVADARU, Leonard LIVINT, Gheorghe LOGOFĂTU, Doina LUKIC, Svetlana R. LYASHENKO, Yuri	$\begin{array}{c} 67, 97\\ 25\\ 100\\ 100\\ 86\\ 33, 69\\ 38\\ 62, 63\\ 74\\ 65\\ 91\\ 65, 66\\ 91\\ 65, 66\\ 91\\ 65, 66\\ 99\\ 52, 68\\ 84\\ 87, 88, 90, 92\\ 35\\ 38\\ 103\\ 71\\ 64\\ 96\end{array}$
GUTULÉAC, Emilian	$\begin{array}{c} 67, 97\\ 25\\ 100\\ 100\\ 86\\ 33, 69\\ 38\\ 62, 63\\ 74\\ 65\\ 91\\ 65, 66\\ 39\\ 51\\ 65, 66\\ 99\\ 52, 68\\ 84\\ 87, 88, 90, 92\\ 35\\ 38\\ 103\\ 71\\ 64\\ 96\\ 49\\ 64\\ 96\\ 49\\ \end{array}$
GUTULEAC, Emilian	$\begin{array}{c} 67, 97\\ 25\\ 100\\ 100\\ 86\\ 33, 69\\ 38\\ 62, 63\\ 74\\ 65\\ 91\\ 65, 66\\ 91\\ 65, 66\\ 99\\ 52, 68\\ 84\\ 87, 88, 90, 92\\ 35\\ 38\\ 103\\ 71\\ 64\\ 96\\ 49\\ 37\\ \end{array}$

MALEA, Adriana-Georgiana	86
MANDACHE, Lucian	
MANU, Octavian	
MARIAN, Dan Alexandru	
MARTINEAC, Corina	33, 69
MARTIS, Claudia	
MĂZĂREL, Marius	80
MELIŢĂ, Nicolae	
MELLETT, Sinead	
MICEA, Mihai V.	
MIHAI, Sorin	
MILE-CIOBANU, Eugen	
MILOSAVLJEVIĆ, Vladimir	
MOLDOVEANU, Florin	24, 28, 30
MOTOASCA Septimiu	
MUKHIN Vadvm	85
NAUWELAERS Bart	45
NEACA Mitica Iustinian	60
NEACA Andreea Maria	60
NEGURA Valentin	
NITU C	36
O'BRIEN Emma	100
OICĂ Gieu	
OI ESCHUK Valentin	
ONET Oana	
OSTADOV Sergev	
DAVEL Sorin	
PAVI IDIS Evgeni	103
DENTILIC Stafan Cheorghe	<i>AA</i> 5A 10A
PETPIIS Vlad	++, 5+, 10+
PISICĂ Joana	
PISI A RI Marius	29 31 41
POP Adrian-Cornel	
POP Cristina Bianca	102
POPA Adrian	50
POPA Valentin	78 101
POPESCU Anca	
POPOVICI Dorin-Mircea	93
POSTOLACHE Petru	43
POTORAC Alin Dan	53 75
PRODAN Remus	106 107
PRUDEAK Roman	
PUIU Dan	24
	93
UUERREC Ronan	
QUERREC, Ronan	38
QUERREC, Ronan RĂȚOI, Marcel ROBU Dan Nicolae	
QUERREC, Ronan RĂŢOI, Marcel ROBU, Dan Nicolae ROMAHYUK Alexander	
QUERREC, Ronan RĂŢOI, Marcel ROBU, Dan Nicolae ROMAHYUK, Alexander ROMANIUK, Oksana V.	
QUERREC, Ronan RĂŢOI, Marcel ROBU, Dan Nicolae ROMAHYUK, Alexander ROMANIUK, Oksana V. RUSU, C. G.	38 57 96 95 22
QUERREC, Ronan RĂŢOI, Marcel ROBU, Dan Nicolae ROMAHYUK, Alexander ROMANIUK, Oksana V. RUSU, C. G. RUSU Jonela	38 57 96 95 22 104
QUERREC, Ronan   RĂŢOI, Marcel   ROBU, Dan Nicolae   ROMAHYUK, Alexander   ROMANIUK, Oksana V.   RUSU, C. G.   RUSU, Ionela   RYVKIN Sergev	38 57 96 95 22 104 98
QUERREC, Ronan RĂŢOI, Marcel ROBU, Dan Nicolae ROMAHYUK, Alexander ROMANIUK, Oksana V RUSU, C. G RUSU, Ionela RYVKIN, Sergey SALOMIE Joan	38 57 96 95 22 104 98 102
QUERREC, Ronan RĂŢOI, Marcel ROBU, Dan Nicolae ROMAHYUK, Alexander ROMANIUK, Oksana V RUSU, C. G RUSU, Ionela RYVKIN, Sergey SALOMIE, Ioan SANDU Florin	38 57 96 95 22 104 98 102 55 56 57
QUERREC, Ronan   RĂŢOI, Marcel   ROBU, Dan Nicolae   ROMAHYUK, Alexander   ROMANIUK, Oksana V.   RUSU, C. G.   RUSU, Ionela   RYVKIN, Sergey   SALOMIE, Ioan   SANDU, Florin   SANDU Venetia	38 57 96 95 22 104 98 
QUERREC, Ronan   RĂŢOI, Marcel   ROBU, Dan Nicolae   ROMAHYUK, Alexander   ROMANIUK, Oksana V.   RUSU, C. G.   RUSU, Ionela   RYVKIN, Sergey   SALOMIE, Ioan   SANDU, Florin   SANDU, Venetia   SCHREINER, Cristina	38 57 96 95 22 104 
QUERREC, Ronan   RĂŢOI, Marcel   ROBU, Dan Nicolae   ROMAHYUK, Alexander   ROMANIUK, Oksana V.   RUSU, C. G.   RUSU, Ionela   RYVKIN, Sergey   SALOMIE, Ioan   SANDU, Florin   SANDU, Venetia   SCHREINER, Cristina   SCUTARU Gheorghe	38 57 96 95 22 104 98 102 55, 56, 57 82 41 77

SHARMIN, Nusrat	
SIMION, Alecsandru	
SIMION, Daniel	
SIZOV, Alexandr	
SLANKAMENAC, Miloš	
SOLDATOV, V.Yu.	
SPINU, Leonard	
SPIRIDONICĂ, Alexandru-Mihnea	
STANCA, Aurel Cornel	
STANCOVICI, Andrei	
STĂNICĂ, Olivian	
ŞTEFĂNESCU, Silviu	
STEIMEL, A.	
STICEA, Daniel	
STOJANOVIĆ, Nikola	
STRUNGARU, Rodica	
SUCIU. Alexandru	
SUDACEVSCHI, Viorica	
SULIMAN, Caius	
SZEKELY. Juliu	
TEODOROVIC. Predrag	
TIGĂNESCUL-AMARITII. Radu	23.94
TOPA Julian	32
TOPA. Vasile	
TRANDABAT. Alexandru	
TRIFINA Lucian	52
TURCANU. Jurie	97
TURCU. Antoniu	37
TURCU. Cristina	106
TURCU. Cornel	
UNGUREAN. Ioan	
URSULEANU. Mihai-Florentin	
VAL'. Lidiva	
VAN NIEUWENHUYSE. Anneleen	
VASILĂTEANU. Andrei	
VATAVU, Radu Daniel	
VERMESAN. Claudiu	
VESA. Tudor	
VIERU. Razvan	
VIZITIU. Gabriela	
VOLOKYTA. Artem	
VULTUR, Oana	
VYATKIN, Sergei I.	
WILFERT, Dennis	
WYFFELS, Jeroen	
YAROVYY, Andriy	
ZHIKHAREVICH, Vladimir	
ŽIVANOV, Milos	
ŽIVANOV, Ljiljana	

# 1985-2010

## 25 years

of

**Electrical Engineering Higher Education in Suceava** 

### TIMELINE HISTORY

- 1985
  - *Power Engineering* was introduced to train engineers (6 years of studies and evening courses only)
- 1986
  - o evening courses in Automation and Computers were held for the first time (6 years of studies)
- 1990
  - o day courses on a 5-year basis were first introduced for both specializations;
  - *Automation* and *Electromechanics* specializations were established, Engineer degree, day courses (5 years) and evening courses (6 years);
  - *Electrotechnics Chair* was established, which represented the forerunner of the *Faculty of Electrical Engineering*;
  - o the Inventics Center started its activity led by Prof. eng. Dorel CERNOMAZU, Ph.D.
- 1991
  - o Faculty of Electrical Engineering was established;
  - o Computers and Automation Chair was established;
  - o the Engineer Diploma was awarded to the first generation of graduates in *Power Engineering*
- 1992
  - Automation and Industrial Informatics specialization was established, Engineer degree, day courses (5 years) and evening courses (6 years);
  - the Engineer Diploma was awarded to the first generation of graduates in *Automation and Computers*;
  - the first edition of the International Conference on Development and Application Systems (DAS) was organized (biennial scientific event, http://www.dasconference.ro);
- 1993
  - o General Electrotechnics specialization was established, Engineer degree, day courses (5 years);
  - o Computers specialization was established, Engineer degree, day courses (5 years);
- 1994
  - on 16 December 1994, the C building University building was inaugurated. It provides a surface of 3.500 m<sup>2</sup> and houses the *laboratories of the Faculty of Electrical Engineering*;
  - the first edition of the International Computers Contest for Students "Hard&Soft" (yearly scientific event, <u>http://www.hardandsoft.ro</u>) was held;
  - the first issue of our Faculty scientific journal: *The Annals of the "Stefan cel Mare" University, Electrical Section* ISSN 1222-4316 was published; it appeared biannually until 2001 (http://www.eed.usv.ro/anale) and was included in B category by CNCSIS;
- 1995
  - the specializations *Power Engineering* and *Computers* were accredited under HG 568 / 16.08.1995;
  - o the anniversary event "10 years of Electrical Higher Education in Suceava" was organized;
  - o the first generation of graduates majored in *Electromechanics;*
- 1998
  - inauguration on 21 May 1998 of a new faculty building (D building); it provides a surface of 3.500 m<sup>2</sup>, and houses the *Faculty of Electrical Engineering*, amphitheatres, laboratories and seminar rooms;
  - periodical evaluation and reconfirmation of the accreditation of *Power Engineering* specialization by HG 442 / 10.08.1998;
  - o the first generation of graduates majored in General Electrotechnics;

• Computer Use postgraduate training program (4 months) was set up;

#### • 1999

- the specializations *General Electrotechnics*, *Power Engineering* and *Computers* received EFNAE accreditation (European Federation of National Associations of Engineers);
- o Intelligent Systems for Process Control Master program, 1 year, was launched;
- o the first Organization of Electrical Engineering Students (OSăFIE) was established;
- 2000
  - o the Ph.D. programs in *Electrical Engineering* (Ph.D. supervisor: Prof. eng. Dorel CERNOMAZU, Ph.D.) and *Electronic Engineering and Telecommunications* (Ph.D. supervisor: Prof. eng. Adrian GRAUR, Ph.D.) were established;
  - o Informatics Master program, 2 years, was established;
  - *Economic Engineering in Electrical and Energetic Field* specialization was set up, Engineer degree, day courses, (5 years);
- 2001
  - the first issue of the new scientific journal of our faculty: Advances in Electrical and Computer Engineering, ISSN: 1582-7445, e-ISSN: 1844-7600, doi: 10.4316/aece, appeared and was later classified B, B+ and A by CNCSIS, being co-edited by Romanian Academy of Technical Sciences;
  - o the Ph.D. program in *Computer Science* (Ph.D. supervisor: Prof. eng. Ștefan-Gheorghe PENTIUC, Ph.D.) domain was established;
  - the postgraduate training courses (4 months) *WEB Design* and *Internet Applications Programming* were launched;
- 2002
  - o *Electronics* specialization was set up, Engineer degree, day courses, (5 years);
- 2003
  - o Computers II Chair was established;
  - o General Electrotechnics specialization was accredited;
  - *PC Use and Birotics Programs, Electroenergetic Balance Sheets* and *Energy Management* postgraduate training courses (4 months) were launched;
  - the first edition of the National Scientific Seminar Distributed Systems was held (yearly scientific event, <u>http://www.eed.usv.ro/SistemeDistribuite</u>);
- 2004
  - the National Council for Research in Higher Education accredited the three scientific research centers in our faculty: Research Center in Electrical Machines, Apparatus and Drives – EMAD, Research Center for Process Control Systems Research - SISCON, Research Center in Computer Science – CCSC;
  - Intelligent Systems for Process Control (one year courses), Computer Engineering and Process Control (2 year courses), Computer-Aided Visual Art (2 years), Visual Arts, Design and Advertising Image (2 years) Master programs were set up;
  - o periodic evaluation and re-accreditation of Computers and Power Engineering specializations;
  - Training Courses in PC Utilization and Office Programs and Project and Human Resources Management postgraduate training courses (4 months) were set up;
- 2005
  - *The Center for Formation and Training in Communication and Information Technologies* was established (PROCES);
  - Computer Science and Engineering, Informatics Management in Industry and Administration, Advanced Techniques in Electrical Machines and Drives and Modern Systems for Energetic Process Control Master programs (2 year courses) were set up;
  - the Engineer degree program length decreases from 5 to 4 years (according to the Bologna Statement), and the names of the following specializations change as follows: *Power Engineering* becomes *Power Management*, *General Electrotechnics* becomes *Electrical Systems* and *Electronics* becomes *Applied Electronics*;
  - o the first edition of the biennial International Symposium on Electrical Engineering and Power

Conversion (ELS) - (<u>http://www.eed.usv.ro/html/els.html</u>);

#### • 2006

- *CAD Applications Development in Electric and Energetic Fields* postgraduate training courses (4 months) were set up;
- the first edition of the yearly *StudACE* Student Workshop was organized (<u>http://www.eed.usv.ro/StudACE</u>);
- The Student Association of the Faculty of Electrical Engineering and Computer Science (FI®ESC) was set up;

#### • 2007

- the scientific journal of the faculty, *Advances in Electrical and Computer Engineering*, is indexed and abstracted in Science Citation Index Expanded by ISI Thomson Reuters;
- o our Faculty awarded the Honorary Teaching Degree to *Jean Michel DUTHILLEUL*, Polytech'Lille, Universite de Science et Technologies de Lille, France;
- the MEC Order 477 / 05.03.2007 certified the *Informatics* postgraduate professional conversion program (2 years);
- the first edition of the yearly Scientific Communication Session for Students ELSTUD (<u>http://www.eed.usv.ro</u>);

#### • 2008

- o on 14-th of June the *Laboratory of Electromagnetic Compatibility* was set up (www.emclab.ro);
- o our Faculty awarded the Honorary Teaching Degree to John MILNER and Timothy HALL;
- the BSc programs (4 years) *Economic Engineering in Electric, Electronic and Energetic Field* and *Automation and Applied Informatics* were accredited;
- o periodic evaluation and re-accreditation of *Electrical Systems* specialization;
- the Club for Robotics and Open Source of the students from Faculty of Electrical Engineering and Computer Science (CROS) was setup;

#### • 2009

- *High Performance Computing Laboratory*, equipped with the most powerful parallel computing system in the national academic environment, was set up;
- Two test laboratories, *Test Laboratory for Product Quality Certification CERTeLAB* and *RFID Test Laboratory - SRD-RFID*, were accredited by RENAR under EN 17025:2005 standard (<u>http://www.emclab.ro</u> / <u>http://www.emclab.eu</u>);
- the followings were confirmed as Ph.D. supervisors: Prof. dr. eng. Valentin POPA, (*Electronic Engineering and Telecommunications*), Prof. dr. eng. Vasile GĂITAN, and Prof. dr. eng. Cornel Octavian TURCU, (*Computers and Information Technologies*);
- Computer and Communication Networks, Computer and Communication Networks, Software Engineering, Computer Networks, Advanced Embedded Systems Master programs (2 years) were set up;
- all Master programs of our Faculty were internally accredited, and later listed in OMECI no. 5356 from 29/09/2009;
- o Electrical Machines and Drives postgraduate training course (4 months) was licensed;
- our Faculty awarded the DOCTOR HONORIS CAUSA honorific degree to: Prof. dr. eng. Mircea PETRESCU, Prof. dr. eng. Radu MUNTEANU, Prof. dr. eng. Costică NITU, Prof. dr. eng. Petru LEONTE, Ph.D., Prof. dr. eng. Alecsandru SIMION;
- the USV Gold Medal was awarded to *Eng. Ovidiu MUSTAȚĂ, Ph.D.*
- 2010
  - o periodic evaluation and re-accreditation of *Computers* and *Power Engineering* specialization;
  - Applied Electronics BSc program was accredited;
  - our Faculty awarded training certificates to *Power Engineering* teachers as recognition of their professional competences and skills, at different levels;

### **ACADEMIC STAFF**

All along these years of electrical engineering higher education in Suceava, the followings held the position of:

### A. TENURED ACADEMIC STAFF

No	First name / Last name	Tenure year
1.	Adrian GRAUR	1977
2.	Sonia GUTT	1978
3.	Leon MANDICI	1978
4.	Cătălin ȚIGĂERU	1988
5.	Narcisa AIROAEI	1990
6.	Lăcrămioara BULAT	1990
7.	Dorel CERNOMAZU	1990
8.	Paul CHIRILĂ	1990
9.	Ioan COJOCARIU	1990
10.	Ştefan-Gheorghe PENTIUC	1990
11.	Valentin POPA	1990
12.	Dan Alin POTORAC	1990
13.	Teodor Dănuț STRUGARIU	1990
14.	Vasile Gheoghiță GĂITAN	1991
15.	Alexandru MARCU	1991
16.	Tudor MOROŞAN	1991
17.	Daniela MINESCU	1991
18.	Georgel PAICU	1991
19.	Mircea Lucian RUSU	1991
20.	Ioan MĂCINCĂ	1991
21.	Constantin FILOTE	1992
22.	Cezar Dumitru POPA	1992
23.	Ioan TOMA	1992
24.	Corneliu Octavian TURCU	1992
25.	Cristina Elena TURCU	1992
26.	Niculai BARBĂ	1993
27.	George MAHALU	1993
28.	Radu Dumitru PENTIUC	1993
29.	Cristinel PETRIŞOR	1993
30.	Radu FECHET	1994
31.	Laurențiu Dan MILICI	1994

No	First name / Last name	Tenure year
38.	Oana Magdalena COŞMAN	1998
39.	Iuliana DAŞU	1998
40.	Cristian Andy TĂNASE	1998
41.	Liviu TITU	1998
42.	Elena Crenguța BOBRIC	1999
43.	Gabriela RAȚĂ	1999
44.	Adina Luminița BĂRÎLĂ	2000
45.	Marius CERLINCĂ	2000
46.	Alexandru LARIONESCU	2000
47.	Constantin UNGUREANU	2000
48.	Cărlin CIUFUDEAN	2001
49.	Iulian CORDUNEANU	2001
50.	Sorin POHOAȚĂ	2001
51.	Bianca Renata SATCO	2001
52.	Cristina BABIUC	2002
53.	Marinică BOSÎNCEANU	2002
54.	Tudor CERLINCĂ	2002
55.	Eugen COCA	2002
56.	Adrian Dumitru CREŢU	2002
57.	Mirela DANUBIANU	2002
58.	Daniel Toader ONOFREI	2002
59.	Dorin PALANCIUC	2002
60.	Iuliana CHIUCHIUŞAN	2002
61.	Adrian PENIŞOARĂ	2002
62.	Ana-Maria COZGAREA	2003
63.	Felicia GÎZĂ	2003
64.	Raluca IUREA	2003
65.	Alexandra Ligia ONOFREI	2003
66.	Ovidiu SCHIPOR	2004
67.	Mihai DIMIAN	2007
68.	Ciprian AFANASOV	2007

#### 25 years of Electrical Engineering Higher Education in Suceava

32.	Remus Cătălin PRODAN	1995	69.	Alexandru GOLOCA	2007
33.	Mihai RAȚĂ	1995	70.	Radu SAGHIN	2008
34.	Cătălin Marian SÎICU	1995	71.	Cristina HURJUI	2008
35.	Andra IGNAT	1996	72.	Elena OLARIU	2008
36.	Mariana Rodica MILICI	1996	73.	Radu VATAVU	2008
37.	Catalin TIGAERU	1996			

#### B. HONORARY PROFESSORS

- Jean Michel DUTHILLEUL Polytech'Lille, Universite de Science et Technologies de Lille, France
- John MILNER City London University, Great Britain
- Timothy HALL University of Limerick, Ireland

### C. SUPPORT STAFF

No.	First name / Last name	Hiring year	No.	Fire
1.	Livia PRODAN	1978	17.	Aurel C
2.	Doina VICOL (CIUHAN)	1978	18.	Mariana
3.	Doina TANĂSICIUC	1978	19.	Luca C
4.	Trandafira CURIC	1979	20.	Carmer
5.	Valeria PUPĂZĂ	1980	21.	Remus
6.	Dorin GRĂDINARU	1980	22.	Valentii
7.	Gheorghe SIMIONIUC	1981	23.	Daniel
8.	Liliana GÎLIȚĂ	1981	24.	Ioan Cl
9.	Brighita PILAT	1981	25.	Adrian
10.	llie NIȚAN	1985	26.	Mircea
11.	Doina CANURĂ	1986	27.	Marius
12.	Gheorghe SIMERIA	1986	28.	Mihaela
13.	Viorel CUCU	1990	29.	Laura D
14.	Ioan GAVRILIUC	1990	30.	Lucian
15.	Sorin POHOAȚĂ	1990	31.	Iulian C
16.	Elena CURELARU	1990	32.	Gheorg

No.	First name / Last name	Hiring year
17.	Aurel CHIRAP	1990
18.	Mariana LELESCU	1992
19.	Luca CÂMPAN	1992
20.	Carmen SOCIU	1993
21.	Remus PRODAN	1995
22.	Valentina PRODAN	1996
23.	Daniel GEORGESCU	1997
24.	Ioan CHIFAN	1997
25.	Adrian Dumitru CREŢU	1997
26.	Mircea NAROVICI	1998
27.	Marius BUTA	1999
28.	Mihaela BUJANOVSCHI	2002
29.	Laura DOSPINESCU	2002
30.	Lucian SPETCU	2008
31.	Iulian CHIUCHIŞAN	2008
32.	Gheorghe PENTIUC	2010

### **INVENTIONS CENTER**

The Inventions Center started its activity in 1990, led by Professor Dorel CERNOMAZU. The continuous development in this domain is reflected by scientific papers elaborated and published in prestigious journals, through numerous patents obtained in the last years, through research projects and even through doctoral theses, dissertations and diploma projects.

Research directions of Invention Center are:

- Solar engines;
- Sensors and transducers;
- Transformers;
- Electrostatic motors;
- Linear Motors;
- Piezoelectric motors;
- Shielded pole motors;
- Vibromotors;
- Electromechanical actuators and the liquid pumps;
- Electromechanical actuators with paraffin;
- Improving the safety of high voltage equipment.

The research results were evidenced through international and national exhibition awards.

1. CERNOMAZU, M.; GRAUR, A.; MANDICI, L. *Excellence Diploma*. The 8th edition International Salon of Research, Innovation and Invention PRO-INVENT Cluj-Napoca, 2010.

2. CERNOMAZU, M.; MANDICI, L.; UNGUREANU, C. *Gold Medal*. The 8th edition International Salon of Research, Innovation and Invention PRO-INVENT Cluj-Napoca, 2010.

3. Georgescu, D.; Jeder, M.; Olariu, E.D.; UNGUREANU, C. *Gold Medal*. The 8th edition International Salon of Research, Innovation and Invention PRO-INVENT Cluj-Napoca, 2010.

4. GRAUR, A. *Leonardo da Vinci Scientific Order for Commanders*. European Exhibition of Creativity and Innovation EUROINVENT 2010, Iași, Romania

5. SOREA, N.; MANDICI, L.; CERNOMAZU, D. *Gold Medal*. European Exhibition of Creativity and Innovation EUROINVENT 2010, Iași, Romania

6. CERNOMAZU, D.; GRAUR, A.; MANDICI, L.; SIMION, Al. *Silver Medal*. European Exhibition of Creativity and Innovation EUROINVENT 2010, Iași, Romania

7. CERNOMAZU, D.; GRAUR, A.; MANDICI, L. *Silver Medal*. European Exhibition of Creativity and Innovation EUROINVENT 2010, Iași, Romania

8. CERNOMAZU, D.; MANDICI, L.; PRISACARIU, I. *Bronze Medal*. European Exhibition of Creativity and Innovation EUROINVENT 2010, Iaşi, Romania

9. CERNOMAZU, D. *"Inventive Merit" Medal.* Inventics Institute of Iaşi, International Salon of Research, Innovation and Invention, Cluj-Napoca, 2009.

10. CERNOMAZU, D.; UNGUREANU, C.; MANDICI, L. **Excellence Diploma** for *Low Speed Electric Motor* Romanian Inventors Society, The 7th edition International Salon of Research, Innovation and Invention PRO-INVENT, Cluj-Napoca, 2009.

11. CERNOMAZU, D.; MANDICI, L.; SIMION, Al. et. al. *Excellence Diploma and Gold Medal*. The 7th edition International Salon of Research, Innovation and Invention PRO-INVENT, Cluj-Napoca, 2009.

12. GEORGESCU, D.; JEDER, M.; OLARIU, E.D. *Excellence Diploma and Gold Medal* The 7th edition International Salon of Research, Innovation and Invention PRO-INVENT, Cluj-Napoca, 2009.

13. GRAUR, A.; CERNOMAZU, D. *Gold Medal. – Single phase Induction Motor*. Romanian Inventor Forum, The 7th edition International Salon of Research, Innovation and Invention PRO-INVENT, Cluj-Napoca, 2009.

14. GRAUR, A. *Excellence Diploma for Promotion of Inventics and the Field Management in Higher Education*. Romanian Inventor Forum, The 7th edition International Salon of Research, Innovation and Invention PRO-INVENT, Cluj-Napoca, 2009.

15. CERNOMAZU, D.; MANDICI, L.; UNGUREANU, C. *Excellence Diploma. Low Speed Electric Motor*. Technical University of Moldova, The 7th edition International Salon of Research, Innovation and Invention PRO-INVENT, Cluj-Napoca, 2009.

16. CERNOMAZU, D.; MANDICI, L.; OLARIU, E.D. *Diploma and Bronze Medal EUREKA 2009 Energetics Section. Single phase Induction Motor with multiple rotors* Le salon International de l'Innovation, de la Recherche et des Nouvelles Technologies - 58ème édition: BRUSSELS INNOVA 2009" - BELGIA

17. Cernomazu, D.; Ungureanu, C.; Leonte, P.; Simion, Al. *Gold Medal. – Solar Micromotor*. International Specialized Exhibition of Inventions, New Equipment, Technologies and Materials INFOINVENT 2009, Chişinău, Republic of Moldova.

18. Cernomazu, D.; Graur, A.; Mandici, L. *Silver Medal. – Limited Movement Electric Motor.* International Specialized Exhibition of Inventions, New Equipment, Technologies and Materials INFOINVENT 2009, Chişinău, Republic of Moldova.

19. CERNOMAZU, D.; MANDICI, L.; OLARIU, E.D. *Silver Medal.* - International Specialized Exhibition of Inventions, New Equipment, Technologies and Materials INFOINVENT 2009, Chişinău, Republic of Moldova.

20. Cernomazu, D.; Ungureanu, C.; Gavriliu, M. et. al. Solar Micromotor. – *Silver Medal*. International Specialized Exhibition of Inventions, New Equipment, Technologies and Materials INFOINVENT 2009, Chişinău, Republic of Moldova.

21. Georgescu, D.; Jeder, M.; Olariu, E.D. *Mobile Coil Electric Motor– Silver Medal*. International Specialized Exhibition of Inventions, New Equipment, Technologies and Materials INFOINVENT 2009, Chişinău, Republic of Moldova.

22. Mandici, L.; Cantemir, L.; Pentiuc, R.; Cernomazu, D. *Single phase Linear Induction Motor Motor liniar asincron – Bronze Medal*. International Specialized Exhibition of Inventions, New Equipment, Technologies and Materials INFOINVENT 2009, Chişinău, Republic of Moldova.

23. JEDER, M.; OLARIU, E.D. - *Bronze Medal*. International Specialized Exhibition of Inventions, New Equipment, Technologies and Materials INFOINVENT 2009, Chişinău, Republic of Moldova.

24. CERNOMAZU, D.; MANDICI, L.; UNGUREANU, C. *Low Speed Electric Motor*. Silver Medal. The International Exhibition of Inventions, New Techniques and Products - Geneva, 4 April 2008

25. CERNOMAZU, D.; MANDICI, L.; UNGUREANU, C. *Low Speed Electric Motor*. Silver Medal. Romanian Inventor Forum, World exhibition on innovation research and new technologies -EUREKA, Bruxelles, 15 November 2008

26. CERNOMAZU, D.; MANDICI, L. *Low Speed Electric Motor* Silver Medal World exhibition on innovation research and new technologies -EUREKA, Bruxelles, 15 November 2008

27. CERNOMAZU, D.; MANDICI, L.; UNGUREANU, C. *Low Speed Electric Motor* **Bronze Medal**. Organizers of International Exhibition of Novelties, New Ideas, Products and Technologies ARCA, Zagreb, Croatia, 19 September 2008.

28. CERNOMAZU, D.; MANDICI, L. *Low Speed Electric Motor* Silver Medal. Organizers of International Exhibition of Novelties, New Ideas, Products and Technologies ARCA, Zagreb, Croatia, 19 September 2008.

29. CERNOMAZU, D.; MANDICI, L.; UNGUREANU, C. *Low Speed Electric Motor* **Bronze Medal**. Awarded by ANCS at the International Exhibition of Novelties, New Ideas, Products and Technologies ARCA, Zagreb, Croatia, 19 September 2008.

30. CERNOMAZU, D.; MANDICI, L. *Low Speed Electric Motor* **Silver Medal**. Awarded by ANCS at the International Exhibition of Novelties, New Ideas, Products and Technologies ARCA, Zagreb, Croatia, 19 September 2008.

31. CERNOMAZU, D.; MANDICI, L.; UNGUREANU, C. **Excellence Diploma**. Ministry of Education and Youth, Technical University of Republic of Moldova, International Exhibition of Inventions, Research and Technology Transfer INVENTICA 2008, Iaşi.

32. CERNOMAZU, D.; MANDICI, L. **Bronze Medal**. The International Exhibition of Inventions, New Techniques and Products -Geneva, 4 April, 2008

33. CERNOMAZU, D. *Various Patents*. Excellence Diploma and Gold Medal. National Salon of Research, Innovation and Invention PRO-INVENT, 6<sup>th</sup> edition, 2008, Cluj-Napoca

34. CERNOMAZU, D.; BARBĂ, N.; HUȚANU, D.; MANDICI, L.; SIMION, AL.; BOBRIC, E.C. *Induction Motor, Electrostatic Motor, Electrostatic Micromotor*, **Excellence Diploma Iași 600 and Gold Medal.** International Exhibition of Inventions, Research and Technology Transfer INVENTICA 2008, 14-24 May 2008, Iași.

35. SAVU, E. *Various Patents*. **Excellence Diploma and Silver Medal**. National Salon of Research, Innovation and Invention PRO-INVENT, 6<sup>th</sup> edition, 2008, Cluj-Napoca

36. HARIP,C.; MELINCEANU, A.; COJOCARU, C. et.al. *Various Patents*. Excellence Diploma and Bronze Medal. National Salon of Research, Innovation and Invention PRO-INVENT, 6<sup>th</sup> edition, 2008, Cluj-Napoca

37. NEGRU, B.; MINESCU, D. **Excellence Diploma and Silver Medal.** National Salon of Research, Innovation and Invention PRO-INVENT, 6<sup>th</sup> edition, 2008, Cluj-Napoca

38. CERNOMAZU, D. **GOGU CONSTANTINESCU COMANDOR Order**, Romanian Inventors Society, National Salon of Research, Innovation and Invention PRO-INVENT, 5<sup>th</sup> edition, 2007, Cluj-Napoca.

39. CERNOMAZU, D.; GEORGESCU, D.; JEDER, M.; OLARIU, E.D. *Mobile Coil Electric*. Gold Medal and Excellence Diploma - National Salon of Research, Innovation and Invention PRO-INVENT, 5<sup>th</sup> edition, 2007, Cluj-Napoca.

40. CERNOMAZU, D.; MANDICI, L.; UNGUREANU, C. SIMION, AL. *Solar Motor*. Silver Medal. World Exhibition on Innovation Research and New Technologies "INNOVA" - EUREKA, Brussels, 24 November, 2007

41. CERNOMAZU, D. Excellence Diploma - "Leonardo da Vinci" Technical-Scientific Order, Romanian Inventors Forum, 3 March, Cluj-Napoca, 2006

42. CERNOMAZU, D. *Solar Engine* Gold Medal and Excellence Diploma - National Salon of Research, Innovation and Invention PRO-INVENT, 4<sup>th</sup> edition, 2006, Cluj-Napoca

43. CERNOMAZU, D. UNGUREANU, C. Excellence Diploma, Romanian Inventors Forum, Cluj-Napoca, 3 March 2006 44. CERNOMAZU, D.; MANDICI, L. - Silver Medal. World exhibition on innovation research and new technologies "INNOVA" - EUREKA, Brussels, 2006

45. CERNOMAZU, D. *Single phase Induction Motor*. **Gold Medal**. World exhibition on innovation research and new technologies "INNOVA" - EUREKA, Brussels, 19 November 2005

46. CERNOMAZU, D.; MANDICI, L. *Solar Engine*. **Silver Medal**. The International Exhibition of Inventions, New Techniques and Products -Geneva, 8 April 2005

### EMAD - RESEARCH CENTER IN ELECTRICAL MACHINES, APPARATUS AND DRIVES

Unconventional Actuators, Micromachines and Micropower Drives laboratory it's a part of the structure of Research Center in Electrical Machines, Apparatus and Drives recognized in 2004 by National Council of Scientific Research from superior education of Research and Education Minister.

The Unconventional Actuators, Micromachines and Microdrives laboratory has been founded in 1996, when the first solar electric engines were achieved under the guidance of Prof. Dorel CERNOMAZU and Prof. Leon MANDICI.



One year later, the first solar electric engines based on thermo-mechanic conversion were designed. The novelty and the originality of those achievements are confirmed through some patents released by State Office for Inventions and Marks.

The laboratory activity has increased amazingly in 2000, when the doctoral school in the unconventional actuators, micromachines and microdrives was created. Numerous scientific papers and patents in the field were conceived as a result of the young PhD students' research work: Constantin UNGUREANU, Elena OLARIU, Mihaela JEDER, Nicolae Sorea, Niculina Crețu. The acquired results were rewarded by many medals at national and international inventions centers organized in Iași, Cluj-Napoca, București, Chisinău, Geneva and Bruxelles.

The research directions which entailed the founding of Unconventional Actuators, Micromachines and Microdrives laboratory relies on the reconsideration of some categories of classic forces developed in magnetic field and electric field or another category of forces: forces based on solid structure deformation under the action of the electric field (piezoelectricity etc.) or under the action of the magnetic field; forces based on solid structure deformation under the action of the heat (thermobimetal; memory alloy etc.) and which brought in some prototypes in solar energetics (solar bimetallic engine, solar nitinol engine, solar pneumatic engine etc.); forces based on chemical reactions leading to the achievement of the electrochemical pumps; forces based on hydraulic effects uses (diaphragm actuators; piston actuators etc.). Non-conventional energy supply developments, micro wind turbine dimensioning and power system testing equipment represents new research directions.

### SISCON - SYSTEMS AND PROCESSES CONTROL RESEARCH CENTER

SiSCON Research Center was created in 2004 by a group of university professors and researchers from the Computer, Automations and Electronics Department -Electrical Engineering and Computer Science Faculty, Stefan cel Mare University of Suceava, Romania. Our research center was authorized by the CNCSIS - The National University Research Council, which is the main Romanian government funding organization for university and postgraduate research programs.



Our main research areas include, without being exclusive, the following domains:

- Remote location and identification (RFID);
- Electromagnetic compatibility (EMC);
- Processes control and automations;
- Wired and wireless data transmissions;
- Digital signals processing;
- Power line carrier communications;
- Embedded processing systems;
- Network time synchronization and applications;

The Radio Identification devices and Short Range Devices is a component of the research center. The interests of this laboratory are teaching and research in the field of Radio Identification devices and Short Range Devices. The main objectives are represented by the insurance of a specific and particular environment for research activities, training of the newest generations of engineers and the guarantee of a permanent development of the perspectives regarding both research activities, reflecting at the laboratory provided a favorable environment for developing the research activities, reflecting at the same time its real potential of performance and research. The Radio Identification (RFID) devices and Short Range Devices (SRD) laboratory is furnished with the latest technology to support research, a variety of testing / measuring SRD and RFID equipments is available in laboratory. The two main components involved in a RFID system are the transponder (tags) and the RFID reader.

The Electromagnetic Compatibility Laboratory - EMCLab, part of SiSCON Research Center, is located in Stefan cel Mare University of Suceava campus, in a modern new building. The laboratory is accredited by RENAR Bucharest, in conformity with SR EN ISO/CEI 17025:2005 international standard, for electromagnetic compatibility tests on information technology equipments, electrical and electronic equipments used in residential, commercial and industrial areas, 2.4 GHz broadband transmission equipments, communication networks equipments, Bluetooth devices, Short Range Devices and Radio Frequency Identification (RFID) equipments (the complete list of equipments may be found on the web-site). The laboratory started as a CEEX 2006 research project, the implementation team being formed by specialized personnel, well trained and with a lot of experience in the accredited field. The laboratory is involved in research projects related to test methods improvements, impact of electromagnetic radiation on humans and other live organisms, and biological effects of EMF. We are opened for collaboration in the EMC field with production partners, universities and research institutes for research projects partnerships.

### **CCSC - COMPUTER SCIENCE RESEARCH CENTER**

The research Center was recognized in 2003 by CNCSIS. Its main activities focus on the domain of Computer Science and Engineering and Information Technologies.

The Center maintains strong cooperation relationships with Laboratoire d'Informatique Fondamentale de Lille (U.S.T. Lille), National Center for Information Technologies (Politehnica University of Bucharest), Vinnitsa State Technical University from Ukraine, KAHO Gent, Belgium.



The major research fields are:

- Pattern Recognition,
- Software Engineering.
- Artificial Intelligence,
- Human Computer Interaction
- Distributed Intelligent Systems, Microprocessor Systems,
- Real Time Operating Systems,
- Computers Networks,
- Computers Architecture,
- Advanced Systems for Process Control.

The members of the Center provide great expertise in software design, embedded system development, process control integrated systems.

Computers Ph.D. students and Master students in Computer Science and Engineering, Software Engineering, Computer Networks, Advanced and Embedded Systems, Informatics programs actively involve in the all Research Center activities.